
ANDERSON 
COUNTY 
SOUTH CAROLINA 

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman 

Council District 5 

Ray Graham 
Vice Chait·man 

Council District 3 

Craig Wooten 
Council District 1 

Gracie S. Floyd 
Council District 2 

Brett Sanders 
Council District 4 

Jimmy Davis 
Council District 6 

M. Cindy Wilson 
Council District 7 

Lacey A Croegaert 
Clerk to Council 

Rusty Bums 
County Administrator 

AGENDA 
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
September 17,2019 at 6:30PM 

Historic Courthouse - Council Chambers - Second Floor 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 
2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

Ms. Gracie S. Floyd 
September 3, 2019 

4. 
5. 

CITIZENS COMMENTS: Agenda Matters only 
DISCUSSION ON METHADONE CLINICS IN ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Mr. Danny Brown (allotted 5 minutes) 
6. ORDINANCE THIRD READING: None 
7. ORDINANCE SECOND READING: 

a. 2019-032: An ordinance to amend the zoning map to rezone +1- 9.75 acres from R-20 
Single Family Residential) to C-2 (Highway Commercial) at Cartee Road and 1-85. 
(District 4) Dr. Jeff Parkey (allotted 5 minutes) 

b. 2019-042: An ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a Joint 
County Industrial and Business Park (2010 Park) Of Anderson and Greenville 
Counties so to enlarge the park to include certain property of Project Alloy. 
(Project Alloy) Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

c. 2019-044: An ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of a Fee in Lieu of 
Tax and Incentive Agreement by and between Anderson County, South Carolina and 
a company identified for the time being as Project Augustus, with respect to certain 
Economic Development property to be located at one or more locations in the 
County, whereby such property will be subject to certain payments in Lieu of Taxes. 
(Project Augustus) Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

d. 2019-045: An ordinance to approve a Ground Lease by and between Anderson 
County, South Carolina and Tri-County Technical College for a site at the Anderson 
Regional Airport for Heavy Equipment Operator Training and for a site at the TTl 
Pearman Dairy Road Facility for a Lineman Training School. 

Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

e. 2019-046: An ordinance to approve an amendment to the Fee in Lieu of Tax 
Agreement and Infrastructure Finance Agreement between Anderson County, South 
Carolina and Ortec, Inc. so as to add the Town of Pendleton as a party to the 
agreements. Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

8. ORDINANCE FIRST READING: 

a. 2019-014: An ordinance to amend Chapter 70, Article 6 of the Anderson County 
Code of Ordinances, so as to clarify storage of Commercial Equipment in 
residential zones. (allotted 5 minutes) 

b. 2019-040: An ordinance ( 1) authorizing pursuant to Title 4 of the Code of Laws of 
South Carolina 1976, as amended, including Sections 4-1-70, 4-1-175 and 4-29-68 
thereof, and Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution the, 
execution and delivery of an Infrastructure Credit Agreement, by and between 
Anderson County, South Carolina, and a Company known to the County as Project 
Swan, to provide for certain Special Source Revenue or Infrastructure Credits; (2) 
authorizing the receipt and administration of a State Grant for the benefit of the 
project; and (3) other related matters. (Project Swan) 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

Post Office Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622 
www.andersoncountysc.org I (864) 260·4000 



Page Two 
Anderson County Council Agenda for September 17 , 2019 

c. 2019-041: An ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a Joint County Industrial and Business 
Park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the Park. (Project Swan) 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

d. 2019-048: An ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of a Fee-in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes and 
Incentive Agreements by and between Anderson County, South Carolina and Project Santa' s Hat to provide for 
payment of a Fee-in-Lieu of Taxes; authorizing the inclusion of a project site in a Multi-County Business Park; 
authorizing certain Special Source Revenue Credits. (Project Santa' s Hat) 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

e. 2019-049: An ordinance authorizing the termination of a Lease Agreement between Anderson County, South 
Carolina and Project Lilac; the conveyance of certain property from Anderson County, South Carolina to 
Project Lilac or its designee; the execution and delivery of an Infrastructure Credit Agreement, by and between 
Anderson County, South Carolina and Project Lilac or its designee, to provide for Special Revenue Credits . 
(Project Lilac) Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

9. RESOLUTIONS: 
a. R2019-038: A resolution expressing intent to cease County maintenance on and to authorize County consent 

to Judicial Abandonment and closure of Beehive Boulevard, designated as Anderson County Road C-1-0372. 
(District 6) 

b. R2019-040: A resolution committing to negotiate a Fee-in-Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes Agreement between 
Anderson County and Project Santa' s Hat; identifying the Project; and other matters related thereto. 
(Project Santa's Hat) Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

10. BID APPROVAL: Mr. Robert Carroll (allotted 5 minutes) 
a. BID# 19-049 TOXAWAY MILL DEBRIS PILE REMEDIATION 

11. IMPLEMENTATION OF TITLE VI REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO COUNTY BOARDS AND 
COMMISSIONS: Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

12. EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
a. Legal matters concerning the Right-of-Way acquisition for Welpine Project 
b. Contractual matters related to office in Watson Village Shopping Center for Sheriff 
c. Legal matter concerning Iva Sewer Service 
d. Contractual matters related to former TTl Properties 
e. Contractual matter related to Medical Services for the Detention Center 

13. APPOINTMENTS: 
14. REQUESTS BY COUNCIL: 

Anderson Chapter South Carolina Genealogical Society- All 
Belton Center of the Arts-All 
Starr Athletic Association- D3 

15. ADMINISTRATORS REPORT: 
a. Building and Codes 
b. Special Projects 
c. Paving 
d. Transfers 
e. Sheriff's Report 

(allotted 2 minutes) 



Page Three 
Anderson County Council Agenda for September 17, 2019 

16. CITIZENS COMMENTS: 
17. REMARKS FROM COUNCIL: 
18. ADJOURNMENT: 

Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a modification of policies or 
procedures in order to participate in this program, service or activity please contact the office of the program. 
service or activity as soon as possible but no later than 24 hours before the scheduled event. 

For assistance please contact the Clerk to Council at 864-260-1036. 



State of South Carolina 

County of Anderson 

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING 

IN ATTENDANCE: 
TOMMY DUNN , CHAIRMAN 
BRETT SANDERS 
CRAIG WOOTEN 
CINDY WILSON 
JIMMY DAVIS 

ALSO PRESENT: 
RUSTY BURNS 
LEON HARMON 
LACEY CROEGAERT 

SEPTEMBER 3 , 2019 



Anderson County Council- Special Presentation Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 second by Ms . Wilson . Are there any discussion? I 
2 want to appreciate Mr . Wooten for doing this and for 

3 

3 all the association does . Just some great work . And I 
4 know you have supported them and been on council. 
5 Appreciate it. If no more discussion , all in favor of 
6 the motion show of hands . All opposed like sign . Show 
7 the motion carries with Ms . Floyd being absent at this 
8 time. Mr. Wooten , do you have any? 
9 CRAIG WOOTEN : Yes. If everybody would 

10 come forward , we ' d like to all take a picture together 
11 and recognize who ' s in attendance . 
12 PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION 
13 CRAIG WOOTEN : I think from my standpoint 
14 I can't say enough . I met with these folks years ago 
15 and it was a small meeting in a house . And they said 
16 they had this big vision and , you know , a lot of people 
17 talk about stuff like that , but they saw it all the way 
18 through. They ' ve opened up a wonderful center that 
19 serves everybody in the county . It doesn ' t matter who 
20 you are . And I just want to thank you for what you've 
21 done and your leadership and the board's leadership . I 
22 feel very confident for years to come there's going to 
23 be bigger and better things coming . So thank you so 
24 much . 
25 FEMALE : Thank you for your support . 
26 APPLAUSE 
27 TOMMY DUNN : This is going to conclude our 
28 part of the meetings. We ' ll reconvene back at 6 : 30 for 
29 our regular council meeting. 
30 
31 (SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:07 P.M.) 



State of South Carolina 

County of Anderson 

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 3 , 2019 

IN ATTENDANCE: 
TOMMY DUNN , CHAIRMAN 
RAY GRAHAM 
BRETT SANDERS 
CRAIG WOOTEN 
CINDY WILSON 
GRACIE FLOYD 
JIMMY DAVIS 

ALSO PRESENT : 
RUSTY BURNS 
LEON HARMON 
LACEY CROEGAERT 

4 



Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 TOMMY DUNN: At this time I'd like to 
2 call the September 3rd regular council meeting to 
3 order. I'd like to welcome each and everyone here . 
4 And thank you for coming tonight. 
5 At this time I'd like for us all to rise for the 
6 invocation and pledge of allegiance, Councilman Davis, 
7 please . 
8 JIMMY DAVIS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. 
9 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY JIMMY DAVIS 

5 

10 TOMMY DUNN: Moving on to item number 3, 
11 approval of the minutes of August 20th . Are there any 
12 corrections that need to be made? Ms . Wilson. 
13 CINDY WILSON: On page 8, line 29, Linwood 
14 Trail is actually Windward Trail. And that was the 
15 only thing I noted. Thank you. 
16 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you . Anyone else? 
17 Hearing and seeing none, Ms . Wilson , do you want to 
18 make the motion to accept the minutes with that change? 
19 CINDY WILSON: So moved. 
20 CRAIG WOOTEN: Second . 
21 TOMMY DUNN: Second by Mr. Wooten. All 
22 in favor of the motion show of hands . All opposed like 
23 sign. Show the motion carries unanimously. 
24 Moving on now to citizens comments . When Mr . 
25 Harmon calls your name, please address the chair. You 
26 have three minutes . Items on the agenda only at this 
27 time. Please address the chair. Mr. Harmon? 
28 LEON HARMON: Mr. Chairman, first speaker 
29 is Rick Freemantle. 
30 THE COURT: Please state your name and 
31 district for the record, please . 
32 RICK FREEMANTLE: Good evening , Mr . Chairman . 
33 My name is Rick Freemantle . I'm from District 7. I'm 
34 here to speak tonight about this proposed fee on our 
35 vehicles. I understand also that this thing is still a 
36 work in progress, so I just want to kick around some 
37 things that bother me about it. I understand that this 
38 comes about because there's a shortfall due to the 
39 lower tax rate on our vehicles dropping. I believe it 
40 was from ten percent down to six percent, which means 
41 you guys get less money. I would have thought y'all 
42 would have been happy about that, that your 
43 constituents finally get a break. Apparently not. 
44 I also understand that you have no consistency in 
45 the paving budget so this is another reason for this, 
46 so that you can have monies you can count on every year 
47 and set your paving accordingly . As I understand it, 
48 my years of watching county council , you guys make the 
49 budget, you set the priorities, so why hasn't this been 
50 a priority over the last twenty something years in this 



6 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 county? 
2 My biggest bone of contention with this is for 
3 eleven years this county, every other county in this 
4 state, has allowed the theft of money owed to this 
5 county by the state budget violating their own state 
6 laws. In this county alone that represent over twenty-
7 five million dollars since 2008, and yet nobody, either 
8 on this council or previous councils, with the 
9 exception of Francis Crowder, ever raised a finger or 

10 an eyebrow with any attempt whatsoever to fight this 
11 illegal theft of money due to our county. I find that 
12 very shameful, disgraceful and appalling that you would 
13 want twenty-five dollars per vehicle out of my pocket 
14 when twenty-five million dollars isn't enough to 
15 motivate you all to stand up in unison with the rest of 
16 the counties in this state and fight to get the money 
17 that's due to us. We wouldn't be in this situation. 
18 Thank you. 
19 TOMMY DUNN: Next. 
20 LEON HARMON: Next speaker is Ruby 
21 Garrish. 
22 RUBY GARRISH: Ruby Garrish, District 7. 
23 First of all, I would like to thank the council for the 
24 wonderful event we had out at the Civic Center. It was 
25 wonderful. 
26 I am a Tea Party republican. Now, as to the auto 
27 fee, I would respectfully ask that the council take one 
28 more time to look further to see if needed funds could 
29 be found that are already in the budget in other areas. 
30 With the economy improving by leaps and bounds, we are 
31 seeing the growth of the county in a residential 
32 business and industry like we've never seen. This is 
33 certain to grow our tax base. Please do not rush 
34 through this. 
35 Although it may be true, it will give the general 
36 public the impression that there is a negative reason 
37 that this is being done quickly. If you determine 
38 there is no other avenue than to implement the road 
39 fee, I ask that you consider a twelve to fifteen dollar 
40 fee with absolutely no exemptions. Set up a web page 
41 exclusively for the fee. I ask that the funds from the 
42 fee be kept in a lockbox exclusively for the road 
43 repair. No bike trails, no green pond, no private 
44 subdivisions that now belong to a developer. No new 
45 subdivision roads. 
46 I ask that all districts receive work in their 
47 areas. If there is a need for a fee, I ask that 
48 everybody benefit from it across the whole county. 
49 Thank you. 
50 LEON HARMON: Next speaker is Guy 



7 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

Thurman . 
GUY THURMAN : District 6 , Guy Thurman. 

Forest Gl en Drive . I probably speak for ten to twen t y 
thousand people in this county to silence this issue . 
The reason I ' m here , any time somebody ta l ks about 
raising what we have to pay to l ive here , when we see 
in some cases absolutely no services , some roads that 
we live on . Forest Gl en Drive , you mi ght want to check 
that . When is the last time you did anything on it? I 
can ' t remember anything , z i p , i n the l ast thirty years . 
But ye t you won ' t do somethin g , pave someth i ng 
somewhere else , clean out the ditches , d i tch 
maintenance of county roads . I t ' s pathetic . I ' d like 
to see how in the world you can save money? I want to 
hear discussion . How can you save money? If you ' re 
interested in it , you could ask me the ques t ion . I ' m 
surprised that we don 't have that privi l ege of 
answering a question that you wou l d ask. 

I think that one thing that you need to do is have 
some kind of form so that the citizens in this county 
can do something to he l p you f ind ways to save money ; 
not f ind ways to spend more money . If you save money 
you might be able to handle some of these situations , 
like potholes or keeping grass out of the roads or 
cleaning out ditches . Whatever you ' re going to do on 
maintenance . 

I don ' t hear anything from you about sav i ng money. 
Another thing , I don ' t even know whether this is proper 
or not , but years ago this council authorized an eighty 
t housand dollar budget for a stupid balloon in this 
county . I don ' t even know where it is . Do you know 
where it is? That ' s a question I ' d like to know . If 
somebody wants to tell me , I ' d appreciate i t . What ' s 
happened to it? Do we have a team that f l oats that 
thing? I think it ' s pretty good , but I think that you 
need to be accountable about things like that . I can ' t 
imagine even authorizing that kind of money when you ' ve 
got private industry everywhere doing that k i nd of 
stuff , want to float their beer balloon or whatever , 
RE/MAX balloon . You don ' t need something for the 
county like that . We don ' t want that . Thank you very 
much. 

LEON HARMON: Next speaker is Youko 
Simmons . 

YOUKO SIMMONS : Hi , Youko Simmons , District 
5 . I ' m here to discuss about 8 (b ), about the twenty
f i ve do l lar fee . I have some questions and con cerns 
around that . And the reason why I do is because we pay 
vehicle property tax ; right? And if we drive our 
vehicles on the road , it would make sense that we pay 



Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 taxes because we utilize our vehicle on the road . But 
2 the thing that I see the most that ' s on my vehicle tax 
3 is school . And that ' s the largest amount of tax that 
4 I ' m paying as far as on my vehicle , which is a vehicle 
5 tax , not a school tax . So I feel that we need to 
6 allocate that money , as far as schoo l tax , somewhere 

8 

7 else where it properly needs to go . It doesn ' t need to 
8 go on vehicle taxes , because we don ' t use school for 
9 our vehicle . We use it for the road . So I come to you 

10 asking just to l ook at that and examine that because I 
11 feel like it needs to be -- it ' s in the wrong allocated 
12 vehicle tax . 
13 And secondly , I see a lot of mopeds that are on the 
14 road . They operate like a vehicle , as well . I see 
15 many of them will bypass a stop sign . If I ' m a vehicle 
16 and that moped -- I ' m stopped and that moped is running 
17 through the stop sign , I ' m liable to hit him or her 
18 who ' s riding that moped . So I feel that as we are --
19 we have people who drive mopeds on the road need to pay 
20 taxes , as well. They need to pay insurance , as well , 
21 even if they have a permit . Because I have noticed 
22 that some feel that even if they ' re highly intoxicated 
23 it ' s okay to drive a moped . And it really is not okay 
24 to drive a moped while you ' re under the influence. So 
25 I think as far as there ' s an area for opportunity with 
26 our mopeds to say , hey , look , first you need to be 
27 permitted ; secondly you need to be insured . Because if 
28 I -- God forbid if I hit a person on a moped , I don ' t 
29 want just my insurance to be hit , but his or her 
30 insurance need to be hit , as well . So that ' s an area 
31 that I feel needs to be looked into . 
32 And that ' s all I have for today . So thank you . 
33 LEON HARMON : Next speaker is Dan 
34 Harvell . 
35 DAN HARVELL : Hello , everyone . Thank you 
36 for your serv ice . We appreciate you giving of your 
37 time to do this . I know you don ' t get paid quite 
38 enough for all the hassle you go through to be up 
39 there . But you do ask -- you do kind of ask for it 
40 when you ask for the voters ' approval to put you in 
41 office . 
42 I ' m concerned - - oh , Dan Harvell , District 3 . I ' m 
43 concerned about another tax increase . I know you wish 
44 to couch this as a fee , but we know there ' s really no 
45 difference in fees and taxes . If it ' s coming out of 
46 the citizens ' pockets , it ' s bas i cally a tax . I ' m 
47 really concerned about another increase on the citizens 
48 of our county . We ' ve just had a new one by Duke Power . 
49 We ' ve had numerous increases in the municipalities and 
50 outside there for the water and the sewer rates . It 



9 
Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 3, 2019 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

costs so much now to have a house and a water bill at 
the same time . I ' m just amazed at how those rates have 
gone up . I know about the mandates that come down that 
you say are our government say caused that . But 
noneth e l ess , it ' s begi nn i ng to squ eeze our citizens to 
the point to where I think many of them can ' t take 
anymore . 

Now , citizens want to see sufficiency in 
government , especia l ly when it comes to road funding 
and what it costs to maintain our roads and bridges . 
What citizens want to see is we want to know that we ' re 
getting the most for our money from the peop l e that 
work for us. This is not only county , but of course , 
state and federal , too . When we go by a work site and 
we see five people hanging on a shovel and one person 
doing the work , we think about efficiency and that 
makes us think twice about increases and fees and taxes 
for roads . 

Another thing , it seems like the county ' s budgets 
have increased quite a b i t over the years . You know , 
I' ve been here for many years and I know where we 
started about in 1987 and I know where we are now . Are 
we getting any more services for those fees now than we 
were then? It ' s something to think about . The new 
growth and all the deve l opment that ' s happened brings 
in new taxes . So you have more money . So , you know , 
from the taxpayers ' standpoint we just want true 
accountability . We want to know that we ' re getting the 
most bang for our buck. We want to know that the money 
is being spent in the most efficient manner it can be . 
And right now , as a citizen , I can ' t be assured of 
that . So , please , let ' s don ' t do this . Let ' s tighten 
our belts more and look for other ways to serve our 
citizens . Thank you very much . 

LEON HARMON : Next speaker is Mark 
Powell . 

TOMMY DUNN : 
is here . Somebody must 
can ' t see him . So move 

LEON HARMON : 
Fant. 

I don ' t believe Mr . Powell 
have signed his name up . Or I 
on . 

Next speaker is Elizabeth 

ELIZABETH FANT: Elizabeth Fant , District 3 . 
I was digging in some of my papers and I happened to 
come across the summary of budget reviews all funds for 
20 1 7 to ' 18 and then 2018 to ' 19 . I just want to read 
you the bottom line on both of those . 2017-18 budget 
was a hundred and eighty million dollars total 
revenues. Budget for 2018 to 2019 was a hundred and 
ninety-four . That ' s fourteen mil l ion dol l ars more 
revenue in one year . I did not bring the one for the 



Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 last year . But fourteen million dollars more revenue 
2 in one year . Now , where is that money going? 

10 

3 I ' m going to talk this morning not just so much on 
4 the road fee , but from an emotional standpoint about 
5 roads ' condition . The roads , we know , need fixing . 
6 They ' re in horrible shape . Those of you that know me 
7 know that I had a major car accident , which is the 
8 reason I ' m in the condition that I'm in . I had an aunt 
9 that died from no guardrail where a rain swollen creek 

10 took her life . Today I visited somebody who ' s in the 
11 hospital who had a stroke while she was driving . 
12 Thankfully she got somewhere and somebody behind her 
13 got her stopped before she ran into something . I used 
14 to have to travel a lot at night . One time I came on 
15 I - 85 when they were doing a lot of construction , two 
16 o ' clock in the morning , a car where they had done 
17 construction, didn ' t have the change labeled correctly 
18 and I came up on a vehicle that had hydroplaned and was 
19 set up in the middle of the air . And I know those 
20 people both who were in there got broken necks. It 
21 happened right before I got there . Another night as I 
22 was traveling in the middle of the road on I-85 I come 
23 over a hill and there ' s a vehicle right in front of me 
24 with all four doors open . 
25 And that ' s not a road issue itself , but what I ' m 
26 trying to say is there are road issues everywhere . We 
27 don't do due diligence in the roads that we make . It 
28 is not enough to slap some asphalt and say we have 
29 fixed the roads . South Carolina is as stingy as they 
30 can be with asphalt . On intersections we don ' t do our 
31 pipes long enough so we can do road -- where we can put 
32 enough road there where somebody doesn ' t have to go off 
33 into the ditch in order to make a curve . It ' s our road 
34 construction and it ' s our road composition . Evidently 
35 the materials that we ' re using are worthless . If you 
36 have to go behind every three to five years to fix a 
37 road , you ' re not doing due diligence . So it ' s not 
38 enough to raise this money . I ' m going to talk more on 
39 that on the end . It ' s the quality of what we do. 
40 LEON HARMON: Time , Mr . Chairman. 
41 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you , Mr. Harmon . 
42 Next. 
43 LEON HARMON: No one else is signed up . 
44 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you, Mr . Harmon . 
45 Moving on to item number 5 , discussion on Project 
46 MCPEND, Ms . Floyd. Ms. Floyd . 
47 GRACIE FLOYD : Thank you. I would like to 
48 talk to you tonight about something that ' s close and 
49 near and dear to my heart. I guess it can go along 
50 with the car taxes. But I have been worried about this 



Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting - September 3, 2019 

1 thing . It ' s just-- you need to know about it so you 
2 can make your own decision about it, as I have made 
3 mine. 
4 Let me read to you what it is first. It's an 
5 ordinance authorizing pursuant to the titles and the 
6 codes and all the little numbers thereof in Article 7 , 
7 Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution , the 
8 execution and delivery of an infrastructure credit 
9 agreement by and between Anderson County, South 

11 

10 Carolina and Falls at Meehan Apartments , LLC , including 
11 certain related or affiliated entities , formerly 
12 identified by the county as Project MCPEND, to provide 
13 for certain special source revenues or infrastructure . 
14 It comes up for public service tonight . 
15 Now, I know you ' re wondering what this is . All 
16 right . It's an apartment complex to be built in 
17 Pendleton. And it's to be built , I was told , for the 
18 Arthrex. We have a company in Pendleton that ' s coming 
19 or is there or what . But it ' s called Arthrex . And 
20 what it is , Arthrex --they' re looking for places to 
21 have people to come and live there . 
22 Now , in last week ' s minutes we talked about this 
23 and there were certain questions that were asked and I 
24 want to tell you about it -- these questions . One 
25 question was will the schools get some funds out of 
26 this? All right . Please know that schools always get 
27 funds . They get most of the fund out of anything 
28 coming to Anderson that ' s an industry or a building or 
29 anything . So the schools will get the bulk of the 
30 money out of this thing . Another question was someone 
31 says this apartment complex helps to deal with the 
32 issue of affordable housing. That's not the truth . 
33 This is not an affordable housing complex. It ' s a 
34 high-end ritzy complex that they ' re hoping that the 
35 people who get the jobs over at Arthrex will then move 
36 right in the town of Pendleton , that they ' ll have some 
37 place to spend all the money that they ' re going to get . 
38 So it ' s a high apartment complex . We had two people 
39 that believed that it was affordable housing . You can 
40 check last week ' s minutes. And it ' s not. We were told 
41 that it's apartments that will certainly be above 
42 standard . They're not student housing and will be for 
43 folks to have good -- and it will be for folks who have 
44 good quality jobs such as those that will be created at 
45 Arthrex . 
46 Now, it sounds really good . But the thing about it 
47 is , the people who are going to build these apartments 
48 has been given fifty percent off property taxes . Fifty 
49 percent they have been excused . They won ' t have to pay 
50 the whole hundred percent for property taxes like most 



12 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 of us have to do . They have been excused f i fty percent 
2 off their property taxes . And it seems that a better 
3 dea l could have been made , it seems like a better dea l 
4 cou l d have been made so it would not impact us . Maybe 
5 my questions are not the right questions . I ' ve had two 
6 or three meetings about this and I ' m still 
7 understanding it the same way . 
8 But here we are , we ' re talking about charging 
9 everybody twenty- five dollars on a car so we can have 

10 road money . But what about the fifty percent tax 
11 deduction . Anderson County has never subsidized any 
12 county houses before . Why are we subsidizing this one? 
13 Anderson County have never even built a home for low 
14 income people . Why are we building homes for h igh 
15 income people? I don ' t get it. I don ' t understand it . 
16 I think that we should be concerned about it . And I 
17 think that we ought to be asking why . 
18 Now , I was told that , well , we did the same thing 
19 for Anderson when Anderson wants to bring this motel 
20 here in town , this new motel , you ' ve heard about it , 
21 that we did the same thing , we ' ve done the same th i ng 
22 and now here we are -- we have one small town that owes 
23 us eight hundred thousand dollars . They owe us eight 
24 hundred thousand dollars . That ' s gone . We probably 
25 will never see that . And now here we are , we ' re going 
26 to give these people , the builders -- I don ' t know who 
27 the builders are , but whomever they are , if they don ' t 
28 have the money to pay their property taxes , all of 
29 their property taxes , somebody else will . It doesn ' t 
30 mean that we have to do this or these poor people won ' t 
31 have any place to live if they come to Arthrex . Look 
32 around you now . We have First Quality down there . 
33 They didn ' t build any apartments for them . They didn ' t 
34 build an apartment for Milligan or Michelin . These 
35 people l ive all around us , some of them in Greenville , 
36 some of them in Florida -- I mean Georgia , some of them 
37 down below Laurens. But yet they ' re doing all right. 
38 But no , for Arthrex in Pendleton , we are going to give 
39 the builders of the high- end , high class apartments a 
40 fifty , fifty percent property tax reduction . 
41 And now we ' re going to ask you to come up with some 
42 money for the roads fee. Most of everything we get in 
43 this county , we go to the schools first . It goes to 
44 the schools first . Maybe we need to go back and re -
45 evaluate the money that is spent in the school area 
46 because we can . We tried it once before . We can . 
47 But folks , my only concern is this . I pay taxes , 
48 too . I pay taxes , too . And is it right -- do you 
49 think it ' s right that we give these people fifty 
50 percent off of their -- what is it? -- property taxes 



13 
Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 3, 2019 

1 so they c an build a high-end apartment so that Arthrex 
2 will pay these people big money so they can live in a 
3 really , really , really nice apartment? That ' s all I 
4 have . 
5 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you, Ms . Floyd . 
6 Moving on to item number 6(a) , ordinance third 
7 reading , be 2019 - 036 , it ' s an ordinance authoriz i ng 
8 p ursuant to Title 4 o f the Code of Laws of South 
9 Carolina 1976 , as amended , including sections 4-1- 170 , 

10 4- 1-1 75 and 4- 29 - 68 thereof , and Art i cle VII I , Sec t ion 
11 13 of the South Carolina Constitut i on the execut i on and 
12 delivery of an infrastructure credit agreement , by and 
13 between Anderson County , South Car olina and Fa ll s At 
14 Meehan Apartments , LLC , including certain r ela t ed or 
15 a ffi liated entit i es , formerly i denti fied by the county 
16 as Project MCPEND , to provide for certain spec i a l 
17 source revenue or infrastruct ure credi ts . 
18 This will be a public hearing . Anyone wishing to 
19 speak to this matter , please step forward and state 
20 your name , district, address the chair . Anyone at all? 
21 RICK FREEMANTLE : Good evening , Mr . Chair , 
22 Rick Freemantle , District 7 . First , I would like to 
23 commend the counc il lady from District 2 . Spoken like 
2 4 a true conservative . I have a question . I ' ve been in 
25 this county over twenty- five years . Where ' s my fifty 
26 percent discount? This is just appalling . I come here 
27 to talk about the twenty- five dollar per vehicle fee 
28 and I find out that you guys are giving people cut - rate 
29 taxes if they ' ll build houses . Seems to be a lot of 
30 squirrely stuff going on over there in Pendleton . I ' ve 
31 heard wind of about a half a million dollar little fund 
32 coming from the state that wasn ' t done legally to go to 
33 the fire department. Maybe this is the reason , so 
34 they ' ll have more fire department for these apartments 
35 or whatever they ' re going to be . But fifty percent tax 
36 reduction on people who are just building homes here in 
37 this county when we have a shortage of available 
38 housing all over this country . There was no reason to 
39 give this discount whatsoever. You could get full tax 
40 value on these properties , no problem at all , 
41 especially if these are going to be high-end jobs . 
42 These people can afford to pay their taxes . What is up 
43 with you folks? Apparently I shouldn ' t have taken such 
44 a long hiatus from coming t o these meetings . This is 
45 ridiculous . Thank you , District women 2. 
46 STAN WELCH : Stan Welch , District 7 or 
47 maybe 6 . I can ' t tell exactly . Is it 7? Are you 
48 disowning me? Okay, I was just asking . If I recall 
49 from the original presentation on this project , the 
50 seven acres of land involved currently pays about 



Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 twelve thousand dollars in property taxes. Once this 
2 development is finished , I believe that amount will 

14 

3 increase to over a half million . If you don 't see the 
4 value in that, I don ' t think anybody can explain it to 
5 you. It's seven acres of scrub land basically . It ' s 
6 not being used for anything. 
7 Also , the other issue is , if you create eight 
8 thousand jobs in ten years like this county has done , 
9 you ' ve got to give them somewhere to live. They can't 

10 all live in Elberton and drive over here. Thank you 
11 very much . And I hope you vote for this. 
12 TOMMY DUNN : Anyone else? Anyone at 
13 all? 
14 DAN HARVELL: Dan Harvell, District 3 . 
15 There ' s hardly anyone in here that has a longer history 
16 of fighting property taxes and the unfairness that they 
17 bring than me. It goes to back to three years as a 
18 citizen lobbyist at the state house because of the 
19 punitive , punishing situation that we have 
20 TOMMY DUNN : Wait a minute , Mr. Harvell . 
21 We've got to get this squared away . 
22 DAN HARVELL : All right . 
23 TOMMY DUNN : I don ' t think it was you. 
24 I think it was something in the equipment ; I don ' t 
25 know . Just give it a whirl and we ' ll try it again . 
26 DAN HARVELL : Okay . But anyway, many of 
27 you know my history on this . And if you give this 
28 any time you give a fee in lieu of for one thing , 
29 somebody else is going to have to make up the 
30 difference . I applaud Ms. Floyd for her comments 
31 tonight . I appreciate those very much . You ' re dead-
32 on . You ' re totally right. You know , you have to 
33 wonder -- yes, it ' s a coup for this company to be 
34 coming here. But if they're coming here , they're 
35 already committed . If they ' re already committed, 
36 they're already going to have the employees . They ' re 
37 already going to have the people here . And the free 
38 market will work itself out. 
39 You know, we as conservatives say that we believe 
40 in the free market, but sometimes we just kind of get 
41 in the way of that . And in doing so , we ' re actually 
42 costing our own citizens more money than they should be 
43 paying . So I would agree with Ms . Floyd and not go for 
44 this. Thank you very much. 
45 TOMMY DUNN : Anyone else? Anyone at 
46 all? 
47 RUBY GARRISH : I agree that we shouldn ' t 
48 be giving those kind of tax breaks . People when ---
49 TOMMY DUNN : I ' m sorry. Would you state 
50 your name again for the record and your district? 



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 3, 2019 

1 RUBY GARRISH : Ruby Garrish , District 7 . 
2 TOMMY DUNN: Yes , ma ' am . Go ahead. 
3 RUBY GARRISH : I agree that we shouldn ' t 
4 be giving those kind of tax breaks when obviously we 
5 don ' t even have the money to keep our roads up. I've 
6 been to the point in my younger days when I -- at one 

15 

7 point I had eight dollars to my name and nobody gave me 
8 a tax break. I still had to pay my taxes. And maybe 
9 we could give a small incentive to business and 

10 industry , but fifty percent is way too much. And 
11 really, in my opinion, it makes no difference if those 
12 breaks are being given on housing for the rich or 
13 housing for the poor ; it ' s still not right . 
14 TOMMY DUNN : Anyone else? Anyone at 
15 all? Public hearing will be closed . Somebody want to 
16 make a motion to put this on the floor for discussion? 
17 CRAIG WOOTEN : So moved. 
18 TOMMY DUNN : Motion Mr. Wooten . Have a 
19 second? Second Mr. Sanders . We'll start off getting 
20 some another. I don ' t want to start no argument. The 
21 thing about it , sometimes we get things and not know 
22 our facts . There ' s been a bad misunderstanding. I 
23 know you understand about the tax breaks , fee in lieu , 
24 like that . But this apartment complex ain 't got one 
25 iota to do with Arthrex; not nothing . Now somebody 
26 might happen to work there and rent this, but this 
27 ain ' t -- I want that straight for the record and all 
28 news media. This has got not one thing to do with 
29 Arthrex . Nothing . This was a request by the town of 
30 Pendleton , is what started this , about this coming in . 
31 Now , we can debate that or not , but it ' s like Mr . Welch 
32 said, it is revenue more on tax that we wouldn ' t have 
33 got . But where this come from is the town of Pendleton 
34 wanting this revenue . But I ' ve said my piece and I'm 
35 going to yield the floor. 
36 BRETT SANDERS : Mr. Chairman? 
37 TOMMY DUNN : Mr. Sanders . 
38 BRETT SANDERS: Yes , sir . I understand 
39 where a lot of this is coming from , Ms. Floyd ' s ideas , 
40 other people ' s ideas. I reached out to the town of 
41 Pendleton and also what hasn't been brought to the 
42 forefront is this development was actually banned , 
43 pretty much . This company came in and spent millions 
44 and millions of dollars . They have revamped . I rode 
45 through there today . I went and looked at the 
46 property . There's a lot going on there . The town of 
47 Pendleton , again , has requested this from council . I 
48 met with them. They feel this is the right thing to do 
49 in order to help the town of Pendleton, help them 
SO decrease their millage rate and trying to get their 



16 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 millage and tax rates down in Pendleton . 
2 Again , developers came in . They have spent 
3 millions without any breaks . Aga i n , this is not for 
4 Arthrex . This is apartments . And it is requested from 
5 the town of Pendleton . Thank you , Mr . Chairman . 
6 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you . And also I ' d 
7 like to add , Pendleton can get their tax revenue -- or 
8 their revenue up maybe they can get their police force 
9 full time and us not having to subsidize it . That ' ll 

10 be a good point , too. 
11 Mr . Davis . 
12 JIMMY DAVIS : Mr . Nelson? Mr . Nelson , 
13 can you remind me and the rest of council what the 
14 current tax revenue is on this property? 
15 BURRISS NELSON : It ' s-- currently it ' s 
16 twelve thousand five hundred and twenty-three dollars 
17 on a seven acre tract of land. 
18 JIMMY DAVIS : And Mr . Nelson , if we vote 
19 to approve this on third reading for the fee in lieu of 
20 agreement , what will be the tax revenue on that 
21 property then for the county? 
22 BURRISS NELSON: The projected tax rate in 
23 2021 , after it ' s completed and all the buildings are 
24 up , is eight hundred and twenty thousand three hundred 
25 and forty - four dollars . 
26 JIMMY DAVIS : So we gain roughly eight 
27 hundred thousand dollars with this agreement? 
28 BURRISS NELSON: Yes , sir . 
29 JIMMY DAVIS : Mr . Nelson , does this 
30 property we ' re talking about have any affiliation at 
31 all with Arthrex? 
32 BURRISS NELSON : Absolutely none . 
33 GRACIE FLOYD : Uh - uh (negative) . 
34 JIMMY DAVIS : Thank you , Mr . Nelson . 
35 BURRISS NELSON: Thank you . 
36 CINDY WILSON : Mr . Chairman , may I? 
37 TOMMY DUNN : Ms. Wilson . 
38 CINDY WILSON : I normally have never voted 
39 for these type configurations in the past , but when the 
40 town of Pendleton requested that we support them in 
41 this measure , I gave my vote . And seventy- five percent 
42 of the fee in lieu of taxes goes to the schools . The 
43 rest of it goes between the town and the county . We 
44 don ' t get that much , but it was significant for the 
45 town of Pendleton . So I will vote for this based on 
46 that . If it were out in the county , I probably would 
47 not have voted for it without some really good reason . 
48 Thank you . 
49 TOMMY DUNN : I don ' t think we would be 
50 having this discussion if it was out in the county , 



17 
Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 neither . 
2 RAY GRAHAM : Mr . Chairman? 
3 TOMMY DUNN : Mr . Graham . 
4 RAY GRAHAM : Ms . Wilson , I ' m with you . 
5 I think what our citizens are failing to recognize , you 
6 know , as far as our municipali t ies , and I actually have 
7 several in my district , you know , we as a county , we ' re 
8 here as a resource to our municipalities . When they 
9 come wanting , you know , to promote growth or whatever 

10 they come across the board with , we truly have to take 
11 into consideration what are their needs ; are their 
12 needs being met; what are they benefitting from each 
13 individual project. And I mean , looking at those items 
14 and looking at -- I wish , honestly , Pendleton would 
15 have had some representation here tonight as far as 
16 from their council. But I mean when they come to the 
17 county asking us to support this , you can ' t help but 
18 think, you know , they ' ve done their homework , they 
19 realize that it ' s going to cost us x amount of dollars 
20 to provide protection , whether it ' s law enforcement 
21 fire service or whatever , to this new apartment 
22 complex , but yet this is what we ' re going to get in 
23 return on the tax revenue . This is what we ' re going to 
24 get in return on the tax revenue. This is what our 
25 local businesses are going to get in return from them 
26 -- local people shopping at the local restaurants , to 
27 convenience stores , to just the mom and pop stores . 
28 You know , Pendleton is a small hometown . I ' m 
29 comfortable in saying that they ' re doing what ' s best 
30 for their community . They ' ve got to answer to their 
31 community . They came to us wanting us to support that. 
32 And with that being said , I would probably be very 
33 reluctant , which even like Mr . Chairman says , you know , 
34 I don ' t even know if we would be having this 
35 conversation if this was county property. But it ' s 
36 not . It's actually something in the town of Pendleton . 
37 It ' s something that they ' ve requested that we support . 
38 And with that being said , I can ' t help but feel led 
39 that we need to support it . 
40 Our council member , one of our fellow co- workers , 
41 has done their homework to ensure it ' s best for their 
42 district , ensure that ' s what that community wants up 
43 there , and we rely on their recommendation . And with 
44 that being said , I mean to me it ' s kind of a -- it ' s 
45 really not nothing in question . At the end of the day , 
46 as it was pointed out , we will benefit from it because 
47 that revenue that was twelve thousand dollars is now 
48 going to be eight hundred and something thousand 
49 dollars. Is it going to cost the county more funding 
50 to ensure that they ' ve got what they need and their 



18 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 needs are met? Absolutely . But it ' s continuing 
2 letting Anderson County grow . Is employees of Arthrex 
3 going to be living there? Probably , hopefully . It ' s 
4 right up the street from them . As far as what type of 
5 housing it is , that does not even matter in this 
6 conversation . A community has asked us to support them 
7 and I feel like we should . Thank you , Mr . Chairman . 
8 TOMMY DUNN: Thank you . 
9 GRACIE FLOYD: Mr . Chair? 

10 TOMMY DUNN : Ms . Floyd. 
11 GRACIE FLOYD: Okay . Right before the 
12 meeting we received up here newspaper clipping from 
13 it was about Arthrex in Naples , Florida . In this 
14 article it was talking about how Arthrex was going to 
15 pull out -- will probably be pulling out of Naples , 
16 Florida because people have nowhere to live down there . 
17 They don ' t have any housing complex down there . So , 
18 you know , why were we given this information right 
19 before this other thing came . And I want to read 
20 something to you . 
21 Mr . Chairman , my apology , one other thing about the 
22 affordable housing - - now remember it's not affordable 
23 housing -- I 'm sure everybody on council and plus the 
24 community has probably seen Arthrex . Part of the 
25 reason they ' re not developing as much in Naples , I 
26 believe it is due to affordable houses for their 
27 employees . This here is right near Arthrex and will be 
28 a very easy drive for their employees. So I ' m sure 
29 they ' re going to be grateful for this investment , as 
30 well . Nobody said that we ' re doing this for Arthrex . 
31 What you were told was that these high-end dollar homes 
32 were being built near Arthrex so the people could live 
33 there in Pendleton because Arthrex is going to be 
34 there . 
35 Folks , twenty-five percent reduction , thirty 
36 percent reduction would have done it. But I still say , 
37 I still say , you ' re giving fifty percent of the 
38 property taxes that we would have gotten away . I still 
39 say that . I still say that the eight hundred thousand 
40 dollars that Anderson County will not be getting . We 
41 will not be getting eight hundred thousand dollars . 
42 Mr . Burriss , on a monthly basis , except for the 
43 first year , the first year Anderson County will get , is 
44 it seventy- five thousand? 
45 BURRISS NELSON: Well , the property tax this 
46 year is twelve thousand and some change . The 
47 development will start , probably get twelve thousand 
48 and change next year . The 
49 GRACIE FLOYD: And how much will Anderson 
50 County get a year? 



19 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

BURRISS NELSON : Out of that? 
GRACIE FLOYD: Uh - huh (affirmative). Each 

year for property tax we ' ll be getting how much? 
BURRISS NELSON : About , well , let's see, 

about three thousand maybe , twenty-five hundred. 
GRACIE FLOYD: Okay. All right . Who will 

get the bulk of the money 
we are going to get? 

from the property taxes that 

BURRISS NELSON : 
another fifteen hundred and 
districts , but the schools 

GRACIE FLOYD : 
the top. Schools will get 

BURRISS NELSON: 
GRACIE FLOYD : 
BURRISS NELSON : 
GRACIE FLOYD: 

at the bottom ; remember? 

The town will probably get 
the schools and fire 

will get the majority . 
Okay . Let's start it from 

the top part? 
Yes , ma ' am . 
After that who is it? 
Anderson County . 
Uh- uh (negative) . We were 

BURRISS NELSON : Well , no , we ' ve got three 
hundred mils at that location , three hundred and 
twenty- five mils. So total -- we're at about eighty
five mils . 

GRACIE FLOYD: No , no , no , no , no . Mr. 
Nelson , you ' re going into an area right now that gets 
all mixed up when you ' re talking about it . You ' re 
getting -- if you would just answer the -- on the sheet 
that you showed me , on the sheet that you showed me 

BURRISS NELSON : Yes , ma ' am . 
GRACIE FLOYD: who was getting the 

most money from it? 
BURRISS NELSON: 
GRACIE FLOYD: 
BURRISS NELSON: 
GRACIE FLOYD : 

County on this map? 

The school district . 
And the next person was? 
Town of Pendleton . 
Okay . Where was Anderson 

BURRISS NELSON: We would have been last . 
GRACIE FLOYD: Would have been last ; okay . 

Folks , you can do what you want to . You can vote any 
way you want to. I don ' t , I don ' t hold it against 
anybody if you vote your heart. I don ' t hold it 
against you; okay? If you think we ' re getting a whole 
lot of money out of this , fine. If you think that 
fifty percent tax dollars is enough for us to get , you 
vote that way . That ' s all I ' m saying . But you have a 
right to know . You have the right to know what ' s going 
on . And that ' s all I'm doing . Whether you like what I 
said or not . I care because I pay taxes , too . Okay? 
But if you don't like it , I ' m too old to care . Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman . 

BRETT SANDERS : Mr . Chairman? 



20 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 TOMMY DUNN : Mr . Sanders . 
2 BRETT SANDERS : I think when we ' re looking 
3 at affordable housing , we ' ve got to put it in context . 
4 Port Royal Naples , Florida , the median home value seven 
5 million eight hundred and fifteen thousand three 
6 hundred. I ' m sure Arthrex needs some affordable 
7 housing. And that ' s why they ' re here in South Carolina 
8 and I'm glad they ' re in district ---
9 GRACIE FLOYD : These are not affordable 

10 houses . They said -- he said himself these are not --
11 I asked him that the last meeting , are these affordable 
12 houses? And he said no. 
13 TOMMY DUNN: I believe Mr. Wooten has 
14 asked for the floor . Mr . Wooten . 
15 CRAIG WOOTEN : I just want to ask a couple 
16 of questions of Mr . Nelson . I mean to the best of your 
17 knowledge and I won ' t hold you to anything specific , 
18 but does Pickens, Greenville , Abbeville , Oconee , do 
19 they do any type of fee in lieu of or incentive 
20 packages for people who invest? 
21 BURRISS NELSON : All of them will if they 
22 have the opportunity , certainly . 
23 CRAIG WOOTEN : Same thing with -- would 
24 you say that ' s pretty reasonable to say with Georgia, 
25 North Carolina and Tennessee? 
26 BURRISS NELSON : Certainly . 
27 CRAIG WOOTEN : Here ' s where I reconcile. 
28 I'm with Mr . Harvell on the free market stance and I 
29 have a fundamental problem with fee in lieu of taxes 
30 because it doesn ' t operate the way we want it to . It ' s 
31 something that we inherited from a long time ago. I 
32 think anybody on this council , if we could do it in a 
33 different way , we would . The problem with it , and this 
34 is where I have to reconcile is , if I don ' t make a deal 
35 and I say a deal that's in benefit for the taxpayers of 
36 Anderson County, I feel relatively certain one of our 
37 neighboring counties or one of our neighboring states 
38 will make the deal. And they ' ll take people there . 
39 We ' re elected to represent Anderson . We ' re elected to 
40 represent the people. 
41 Now, if the question of whether the tax deduction 
42 or increase is worth it or not , that ' s something that 
43 we have to work with for county economic development . 
44 We hire professional economic developers to negotiate 
45 on our behalf because we're part-time council members . 
46 That doesn ' t mean that we don ' t give them scrutiny and 
47 that we don ' t ever look at what they do and that we 
48 don ' t hold them accountable . So I look at it in the 
49 same way our President is looking at other countries . 
50 Is tariffs and subsidies free market? No . Laissez 



21 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 20 19 

1 faire economics . Let ' s just let it roll and it ' ll work 
2 itself out . But our President said , no , we need to do 
3 some tariffs and subsidies because these other people 
4 aren ' t playing fair . Now whether or not you think 
5 Georgia and North Carolina are playing fair or not , 
6 they have something that they will use to our 
7 disadvantage. I can't go back and look at people and 
8 say , I didn ' t get you an industry here . I didn ' t get 
9 you affordable housing here regardless of the 

10 definition of affordable housing , because I had to 
11 stick so hard to a principal that I let your neighbor 
12 benefit . 
13 Now , that doesn ' t give me the leeway to just carte 
14 b l anche do whatever I want to , but I have to look at 
15 how it benefits the people here that we ' re elected to 
16 represent . I ' m not trying to oversimplify it , but 
17 twelve thousand is what we get now . If we make this 
18 deal , we get eight hundred thousand . I would like to 
19 get 1 . 6 million . And if Mr . Nelson says we can go get 
2 0 1 . 6 million , let ' s go do it . But if he ' s saying this 
21 is the best I think we can get , I don ' t want to lose 
22 that eight hundred thousand to Pickens because I bet 
23 Clemson City Council or Pickens City County , I know 
24 some of those guys , will make the deal. So that ' s how 
25 I reconcile . What I don ' t like is a system that 
26 hopefully one day is out of our hands and be changed so 
27 we can make conservative judgment calls on it . But 
28 until then we have to weigh the costs and weigh the 
29 benefit and make a decision . Thank you , Mr . Cha i rman . 
30 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you . Ms . Wilson . 
31 CINDY WILSON : By my calculations the 
32 school district will get over six hundred thousand once 
33 this facility is in operation . This -- well , previous 
34 council sent two separate resolutions to our general 
35 assembly requesting , respectfully , that we change our 
36 industrial tax ratios; ten and a half percent , the 
37 highest in the United States . Across the river in 
38 Georgia , they can make zero taxes , which even our fee 
39 in lieu of taxes , which is reduced . And all that does 
40 go back to when Michelin first was established here in 
41 the county . Our General Assembly has failed to address 
42 our 1895 Constitution where it ' s ten and a half percent 
43 industrial , six percent commercial for rental or 
44 commercial , four percent homes. We do have homestead 
45 exemptions which do help those of us who are over 
46 sixty- five . 
47 Again , the town requested our support for this , so 
48 I will vote for it this time. But perhaps it ' s time to 
49 send that resolution back to the General Assembly and 
50 respectfully request that we have a different tool set 



22 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 in the bag because , I agree , this is so convoluted and 
2 it does seem to be unfair a lot of the time . And 
3 frankly , and you can ask our Mr. Maybank , he says if we 
4 do that it ' ll put the lawyers out of work . Mr . Nelson 
5 was in that meeting when we had that discussion . But 
6 anyway , there are a lot of complications in these 
7 agreements. And I try to read through each of them . 
8 And Mr . Nelson knows , he gets phone calls from me 
9 because a lot of the lawyers change the wording and you 

10 have to read through several times to understand 
11 exactly what's going on . And that is ridiculous . They 
12 get paid by the hour and we only get paid by the year . 
13 Thank you. 
14 TOMMY DUNN: Thank you. If no one else , 
15 call for the vote . All in favor of the motion show of 
16 hands. All opposed . Show the motion carries , Mr . 
17 Davis, Mr. Sanders , Mr . Dunn , Mr . Graham , Mr . Wooten, 
18 Ms. Wilson in favor . Ms . Floyd opposes. 
19 TOMMY DUNN : Moving on to item number 
20 6(b) , 2019 - 037, an ordinance to amend an agreement for 
21 the development of a joint county industrial business 
22 park, 2010 park , of Anderson and Greenville Counties so 
23 as to enlarge the park to include Project MCPEND . 
24 This will be a public hearing . Anyone wishing to 
25 speak to this step forward , state your name and 
26 district for the record and address the chair , please . 
27 Public hearing . Anyone at all? Seeing and hearing 
28 none, public hearing will be closed . Do we have a 
29 motion to put this on the floor? 
30 JIMMY DAVIS: So moved. 
31 TOMMY DUNN : Motion Mr . Davis ; second 
32 Mr . Graham . Any discussion? 
33 GRACIE FLOYD: Yes. 
34 TOMMY DUNN: Ms . Floyd . 
35 GRACIE FLOYD: All right. This one got 
36 me , too . I asked -- this is an agreement for the 
37 development of a joint county industrial and business 
38 park of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to 
39 enlarge the park . And it has Project MCPEND . So I 
40 asked a question, is this apartment complex going into 
41 the department of joint county industrial park for 
42 Greenville and Anderson? And I asked that question of 
43 Mr . Burriss . Mr . Burriss , would you please explain to 
44 them what your answer was to me? 
45 BURRISS NELSON : Yes , ma ' am . It would---
46 GRACIE FLOYD : I didn ' t understand this 
47 part of it . 
48 BURRISS NELSON : It would go into the multi -
49 county park agreement . That's the platform or method 
50 of fee in lieu of taxes that allows commercial 



Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 properties to receive a property tax discount . 
2 GRACIE FLOYD : In other words , the 
3 apartment complex won ' t be going into the industrial 
4 park? That ' s not the apartment complex . That ' s just 
5 where we ' re getting the credit from? 
6 BURRISS NELSON : Well , the actual complete 

23 

7 title of the legislation is multi - county park-- let ' s 
8 see -- multi - county industrial and business park . And 
9 it includes -- when you say business , that includes 

10 commercial entities . A rent by the year , by the month 
11 or whatever , apartment complex certainly falls under 
12 the commercial definition and is allowed under state 
13 law . 
14 We have protocols in the county that we developed 
15 fifteen , sixteen , seventeen years ago when we had a 
16 huge commercial project that l ooked -- in a part of the 
17 county . And we set some limits of minimum capital 
18 investment. Council probably doesn ' t even know that we 
19 operate in our office on these protocols . But it ' s got 
20 to be somewhere twenty million or greater on a 
21 commercial project , whereas an industrial project 
22 qualifies it to a half million . And so council has 
23 repeatedly said that residential property in the 
24 county , whether it was rental property or residential 
25 housing at four percent or commercial property , that 
26 that was not a subject or an opportunity for fee and 
27 for discounted property tax . And we followed that 
28 protocol for , I don ' t know , Mr. Burns , for thirty years 
29 that I ' ve been in this business . And of course , Mr. 
30 Burns hired me thirty years ago and he was in it before 
31 that . So we haven ' t changed how we approach economic 
32 development as far as residential property unless we 
33 are requested by a city or political subdivision that 
34 obviously needs a taxed income and that revenue to 
35 assist them. It is a -- it just is what it is on that 
36 part . They need the help. Otherwise , we wouldn ' t be 
37 involved in this at all. 
38 GRACIE FLOYD : Thank you. 
39 BURRISS NELSON: Thank you . 
40 GRACIE FLOYD : Mr . Burriss , I just thought 
41 they needed to understand it and needed to know . Thank 
42 you so much . 
43 BURRISS NELSON : Yes , ma ' am . 
44 TOMMY DUNN : Anyone else? All in favor 
45 of the motion show of hands . All opposed like sign . 
46 Show the motion carries with Mr . Davis , Mr. Sanders , 
47 Mr . Dunn , Mr . Graham, Mr . Wooten and Ms . Wilson in 
48 favor . Ms. Floyd opposes . 
49 Moving on to item number 7 , second readings . There 
50 are none . 



24 
Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 Going on to 8(a) , 2019-042 , an ordinance to amend 
2 an agreement for the development of a joint county 
3 industrial and business park , 2010 park , of Anderson 
4 County and Greenville County so as to enlarge the park 
5 to include certain property of Project Alloy . 
6 Mr . Nelson , do you want to have a little say before 
7 we put this on the floor? 
8 CINDY WILSON : So moved . 
9 TOMMY DUNN : Ms . Wilson makes a motion 

10 to put it on the floor . Have a second? Second Mr. 
11 Sanders . Now , Mr . Nelson . 
12 CINDY WILSON : May I very quickly? 
13 TOMMY DUNN : Yes , rna ' am. 
14 CINDY WILSON: Conversely , this is a 
15 project in Greenville County . Greenville takes ninety-
16 nine percent of the fee in lieu of tax funding . 
17 Anderson County gets one percent . The previous one 
18 involving the apartment complex in Pendleton , Anderson 
19 County , which predominantly the school districts , took 
20 ninety- nine percent and Greenville received one 
21 percent . 
22 BURRISS NELSON : That ' s correct . 
23 CINDY WILSON : Okay . Thank you . 
24 TOMMY DUNN : We got anymore discussion? 
25 All in favor of the motion show of hands . All opposed . 
26 You opposed Ms . Floyd? 
27 GRACIE FLOYD : Well , no , I ' ll vote for 
28 it . I was told that it was -- this was a thing for 
29 Greenville ; not so much for Anderson . 
30 TOMMY DUNN : That ' s right , a company in 
31 Greenville . Show the motion carries unanimously . 
32 Moving on to item number 8(b) , 2019-043 , an 
33 ordinance to amend the Code of Ordinances , Anderson 
34 County , South Carolina , Chapter 38 , so as to add to 
35 Article VI a new division title Road Maintenance Fee. 
36 It's title only . Put this in the form of a motion to 
37 put on the floor for discussion . Second? 
38 CINDY WILSON : I ' ll second it for 
39 discussion sake . 
40 TOMMY DUNN: Ms . Wilson seconds it . 
41 We ' ll start off discussion with just a couple of 
42 things . We ' ve still got work to do if this even 
43 passes , but we ' ve got a time thing to try to get if 
44 we ' re going to do something to make this worthwhile for 
45 the first of the year. It doesn ' t mean we ' ll vote on 
46 it next council meeting . I think there ' s going to be a 
47 few more community meetings . And the council needs to 
48 meet -- have a special meeting just for this to discuss 
49 it to put the nuts and bolts in it . But I just want to 
50 get one notion thing I think was said tonight about 



25 
Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 rushing into something . We ' ve had almost ten community 
2 meetings . We ' ve meeting tonight and there ' s going to 
3 be some more . So there ain ' t going to be no rushing 
4 into this. Everybody has got a right to come into them 
5 meetings and encourage you to come to more if you found 
6 some answers come up tonight . 
7 There was one gentleman tied in about (change of 
8 audio ) balloon was sold over eleven years ago . The 
9 majority of this council didn ' t buy it . You made the 

10 statement about your road not being worked on . Well , 
11 that ' s what this whole discussion is about , trying to 
12 get some funding to work on roads. 
13 Now , we call it a fee because state law says that ' s 
14 what we've got to call it . It ' s a tax , no doubt about 
15 it . But we have to call it a fee because that ' s what 
16 state law says it is . And Ms . Simmons back here 
17 mentioned a while ago about her cars and about the 
18 schools . That ' s state law . They dictate what 
19 percentage of car fees goes where and all your tax goes 
20 where on that . It ' s not the county that does that. 
21 Like I said , we need to have a lot more discussion 
22 on this . One thing I think we all do agree on , our 
23 roads are in bad shape . We would also be in worse 
24 shape if we had some hard freezes this past year we 
25 haven ' t had and whether or not that comes back. If you 
26 go out and ride the county and look at our roads , how 
27 they ' re cracking and what not. I wish you would come 
28 to some of the meetings and I hope y ' all come some more 
29 to see what it is . We ' ve got to pay this thing , too . 
30 Our biggest thing on the road fee is if we don ' t come 
31 up with some kind of funding on the road , and I ' m just 
32 telling you , millage ain ' t it . I ' ve been on council 
33 almost twelve years , cutting , scraping and trying to do 
34 this , that and the other . To make a dent in our roads , 
35 we ' re behind, that ' s not going to be the answer . But 
36 if we can ' t come up with some kind of fee to do 
37 something with roads, we ' re going to still be patching 
38 potholes . And it ' s going to be discussion , things out 
39 and come back . But I ' ll leave it at that right and go 
40 to Mr . Davis . 
41 JIMMY DAVIS : Thank you , Mr . Chair . I 
42 want to reiterate to anyone here , if you ' ve not 
43 attended one of our town hall type meetings on this 
44 topic , I would urge you to-- I ' ll be glad to have more 
45 in District 6 , and I ' m sure any council member up here 
46 would be glad to have one or more meetings to discuss 
47 this and to get the information , the facts , out there 
48 that Ms . Davis has done . You know , this past year was 
49 mine and Mr . Sanders ' first budget go-round, and I 
50 think we did a really good job as a council to pass a 



26 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 budget with zero millage increase . Yeah , we have a lot 
2 of peop l e -- more people and industries movi ng in to 
3 Anderson County , but we also have -- that means 
4 increase in services . 
5 Now , I don ' t like paying taxes anymore than anybody 
6 else does . But one of the biggest things that I ran 
7 into as I strove to obtain this -- you know , to win the 
8 e l ection to hold this seat and to represent District 6 
9 was roads . Roads , roads , roads ; that ' s all I heard 

10 about in Piedmont and Powdersville . That ' s what I came 
11 down here to try to figure out , why and what we could 
12 do about improving those roads . 
13 Upon going t h rough count l ess spread sheets with Ms . 
14 Davis through the budget process , as well as looking 
15 into this road fee , one of the things that we learned 
16 about was when you talk about road fee , you have to 
17 spend it on asphalt and culvert work and bridges and 
18 pipe . It can ' t even go to pay the wages o f the guy 
19 that ' s driving the roller machine or the paving 
2 0 machine . It has to go to road paving . It goes to 
21 paving the road in front of your house if you live on a 
22 county road . 
23 I have said for quite sometime since we started 
24 this process that I do not believe that mi llage is the 
25 answer to paving roads because it gets into too big of 
26 a pot of money. It gets into the general fund that can 
27 be moved around to so many different places . And we 
28 just don ' t get the bang for our buck . What I like 
29 about a road fee is it ' s going to paving . And it ' s 
30 reportable and auditable . And the only way that I 
31 would support it , and I think everybody up here in 
32 agreement is that we do report it and we do show you 
33 that we ' re auditing , and we do show you the projects 
34 that need to be worked on . The scientific method that 
35 our roads and bridges department goes through I believe 
36 is called Cartograph . And we can tell you in advance 
37 what roads we ' re going to hit next . But spending two 
38 million dollars a year , if we ' re lucky , to pave roads 
39 in the county that has fifteen hundred and thirty-five 
40 miles of road is absolutely a waste of time almost . At 
41 a cost -- at a rising cost of close to two hundred 
42 thousand dollars a mile to pave a road , that ' s just 
43 simple resurfacing . 
44 Some of you may not know this , but I ' m an employer . 
45 And one of the biggest challenges t hat we face in 
46 today ' s modern age is to hire good people . Well , these 
47 paving companies , right now there ' s over four hundred 
48 paving jobs available. Four hundred paving jobs . 
49 These companies can ' t even hire enough people to --
50 what are they doing? They ' re picking and choosing t he 



27 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

jobs . The cost of paving is going up . It ' s supply and 
demand . And so we ' ve got more areas to struggle with 
on paving roads than just trying to figure out how much 
money we can get . There ' s a struggle too trying to 
find the people to do the work . So the cost of paving 
is going up. Our roads are continuing to degrade . 
We ' ve got to find a way to put money in there that it 
can ' t be moved anywhere else . It can ' t be put under 
the magic coconut shells and moved around . It ' s got to 
go to paving . And this is the way that we can do it . 
Do any of us like paying more? No . But we ' ve got to 
do something about our infrastructure on our roads . 
And I thank you , Mr . Chair . 

TOMMY DUNN : Thank you. Anyone else? 
Ms . Floyd . 

GRACIE FLOYD : I have a question of ---
TOMMY DUNN : Mr . Burns? Mr . Burns . 
GRACIE FLOYD : Two , three , maybe four 

years ago we did a special thing where we took money 
out of the general fund -- we took a million dollars 
from somewhere and was for road fees or road work . 
What happened to that money? 

RUSTY BURNS : Ms . Floyd , I ' m not sure 
what you ' re talking about . 

GRACIE FLOYD: Just think about it a 
little bit . I think Mr . Dunn was the one who made the 
motion that we take --

CINDY WILSON : It carne out of contingent 
or fund balance? 

GRACIE FLOYD : Wait a minute . --- that we 
take some money out of the road fund -- I mean out of 
the fund balance and put it aside for the road stuff. 
Do you remember that? 

money? 

RUSTY BURNS : 
GRACIE FLOYD : 
RUSTY BURNS : 
GRACIE FLOYD : 

Yes , ma'am. 
You remember now? 
I do . 
So what happened to that 

RUSTY BURNS : We spent it on paving. 
GRACIE FLOYD : All of it is gone? 
RUSTY BURNS : Yes , ma ' am . 
GRACIE FLOYD : All right . 
RUSTY BURNS : We just recently put out a 

2 . 2 million dollar paving contract. 
GRACIE FLOYD : Okay. All right . I will 

check back . I ' ll check back , Mr . Burns, because there 
is some misinformation out there because I was told 
that the money hadn ' t been touched yet . So I will go 
back to my person and let ' s see what ' s going on here. 

RUSTY BURNS: Okay . 



28 
Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 GRACIE FLOYD: Okay . Good . Thank you . 
2 TOMMY DUNN : Ms . Wilson . 
3 CINDY WILSON: It ' s my understanding that 
4 those contracts were let , what was it , last spring and 
5 now the paving is being done that involved that pot of 
6 money . There was no money in this year ' s budget for 
7 district paving . A lot of my constituents were 
8 concerned because they thought the gas tax money was 
9 going to provide funding for county roads , and that ' s 

10 not true . The C- fund money will increase slightly. 
11 But still the majority must be spent on state roads . 
12 So we ' re still in a quandary . Having my form of PTSD 
13 from the previous regime , when I saw this in title only 
14 I came in prepared to vote against this situation 
15 tonight . But I talked with our chairman coming in . I 
16 thought we were going to get the rush job like we used 
17 to get and not have a full discussion . And from his 
18 description , we will be having continued town hall 
19 meetings . 
20 My constituents in District 7 had requested a 
21 meeting this previous weekend and we ' ll set that up 
22 soon . But there has to be a meeting with all of our 
23 council members and , of course , the public invited , 
24 too , to hash out all the pros and cons before a 
25 proposed ordinance is even put up for consideration . I 
26 still feel like there ' s funds in our budget that can be 
27 re - prioritized . This year is the first budget I voted 
28 approving in I guess about ten , twelve years . 
29 GRACIE FLOYD : Twenty. 
30 CINDY WILSON : And that was because we 
31 made a lot of adjustments . Mr . Sanders got in , a 
32 welcome addition to our council , he reviewed a lot of 
33 our permitting costs which I had not looked at since 
34 the great depression that we went through . The study 
35 came back that all the counties around us were charging 
36 a whole lot more , so we ' ve increased those fees up to 
37 level of the surrounding counties . 
38 Also , the driveway apron budget which is in the 
39 roads and bridges budget is about three hundred and 
40 seventy-five thousand , I believe , and that funding is 
41 now in a situation where developers have to pay for 
42 their own aprons instead of the county taxpayers . But 
43 if you citizens have a driveway apron that needs to be 
44 repaired or one put in for you , that ' s still covered . 
45 So that allowed the county budget not to increase our 
46 levy this year . And that was very , very heartening to 
47 know that . There ' s still more that needs to be done , 
48 but still in all no paving to speak of has been done 
49 except in this year ' s budget between C- fund money and 
50 the money that we put forward in last year ' s budget 



29 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 that ' s now being paved. From 2003 until most of this 
2 council was seated in 2009 , there had been no paving in 
3 Anderson County . Our funds were being used for , shall 
4 I say , wine , women and song , by the previous 
5 administrator . The funding -- this county got fleeced 
6 out of about a quarter of a billion dollars from deals 
7 that were done . And you can do the math in your own 
8 mind and know where this came from . Our landfill was 
9 given away for two million dollars ; no public 

10 competitive bidding . Mr . Daniel , who did the forensic 
11 audit on what could be found of the contract -- we 
12 still don ' t have a completed, executed contract -- it 
13 was kicking off , according to public documentation ten 
14 to thirteen million a year for the group that bought 
15 it. The Civic Center property was given away , same 
16 thing, no public competitive bidding , and sold for like 
17 three hundred and sixty-five thousand . It was worth 
18 about four million. Those people flipped it three 
19 months later for three and a half million . 
20 Y' all it ' s hard to overcome that kind of tyranny 
21 that we have had to work through . But the good thing 
22 is , our county , in spite of that baggage and the 
23 recession , we came out , according to the Wall Street 
24 Journal , one of the top ten counties in the nation for 
25 economic development . That can only be attributed to 
26 the good citizens of this county and the county staff 
27 and the county council working so hard together with 
28 industries and learning institutions to turn this ship 
29 around. 
30 So , no , we ' re not perfect yet , but we ' ve surely 
31 come a long ways and we still have a ways to go . But I 
32 will never vote for anything that I don ' t feel like we 
33 have our county citizens and all of us pulling together 
34 and in agreement on . I will vote for this in title 
35 only tonight , but there will be lots more coming . And 
36 we do desperately want your input and your 
37 participation with us . Thank you . 
38 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you , Ms. Wilson . 
39 Anyone else? Mr. Graham and then go to you, Ms . Floyd . 
40 Mr . Graham . 
41 RAY GRAHAM: Thank you , Mr. Chairman . 
42 Just a couple of things . I definitely want to commend 
43 each council member for all the district meetings that 
44 we ' ve had concerning this . Since I ' ve been on council , 
45 this has probably been one of the most widely spoken-
46 about topics that we ' ve had . And in doing so , it ' s 
47 also been the most engaging as far as with our 
48 citizens . I ' ll be honest with you. I still have 
49 questions . People in my district still has multiple 
50 questions concerning this . One thing that I have 



30 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 learned through this process is I think every one that 
2 I ' ve spoken with agrees ; we have issues with our roads . 
3 The question is how do we fix them? How do we cover 
4 that cost? 
5 So , you know , with that being said , we definitely 
6 have a lot of ways to go on this . I am willing to 
7 support this tonight . My only thing -- request to my 
8 fellow council members would be in between readings of 
9 two and three , the second and third readings is that we 

10 have enough time to get back out in our district . 
11 During these meetings that we ' ve had , we have shared so 
12 much information . We have gotten so much information . 
13 We have got so much -- many comments from citizens , 
14 anywhere from just your average Joe , your local farmer , 
15 to you know , people that ' s been in business their 
16 entire lives , local businesses , corporate businesses . 
17 I mean we have talked to all levels of education . 
18 Everybody has some input . A lot of great ideas have 
19 been shared . 
20 Doing this as title only , this is nothing more than 
21 a process for us to get it started . I don ' t think no 
22 council member up here is willing to pass this as far 
23 as the final reading in title only . We can ' t do that . 
24 So there ' s a lot of information that we ' ve got to 
25 still, just among ourselves , talk it out . I look 
26 forward to meeting on that second reading and 
27 determine , you know , what is the final suggestion as 
28 far as to moving forward with . What are we going to do 
29 as far as allowing some breaks on some individuals , 
30 some we ' re not. What is the answer there? There ' s a 
31 lot of questions unanswered for us to move forward and 
32 say , well, this is the third reading , guys , let ' s vote 
33 on it . I think we ' re a ways from that . But I think 
34 we ' re strongly working hard on getting toward that 
35 point. At that point , I mean I hope each and every one 
36 is going to vote at the end of the day what ' s best for 
37 our district . We all realize we ' ve got issues with our 
38 roads. We ' ve go to make a stand and determine what ' s 
39 our best option for Anderson County . Not for myself , 
40 not for individuals that ' s in my district, but the 
41 entire Anderson County , our entire districts . 
42 We ' ve got a lot of information that we ' ve still got 
43 to gather . I'm definitely planning on still having 
44 meetings in District 3 as we kind of, I guess , solidify 
45 some of these questions that ' s really unanswered right 
46 now . You know , what are some of the things that we ' re 
47 going to do? What ' s going to be included on this? And 
48 in doing so , I want to go back and share it with my 
49 citizens. That ' s what they ' ve all asked for ; you know, 
50 what are we going to support , what are we moving 



31 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 forward with? 
2 Again , everybody realizes we ' ve got issues with our 
3 roads . Everybody realizes we ' ve got to take a stand 
4 and do something about it . But we have not nailed that 
5 final thing as far as this is the correct-all , this is 
6 what we need to lean toward, this is what we need to 
7 move forward with . We ' ve still working at it . Again , 
8 I mean I commend our council members . Each and every 
9 one of us , I guarantee you , when it comes to this road 

10 topic there's things that every one of us agrees on and 
11 there ' s things that there ' s probably only one or two 
12 that agrees on. But we ' re going to have to somehow 
13 come together and determine what ' s best for Anderson 
14 County and what do we need to move forward on? Do we 
15 need to scrap this and go to something else? I don ' t 
16 know . If we do scrap it and go to something else, we ' d 
17 better be willing to pick something else up . Because 
18 we can ' t just keep punching this ball down the road and 
19 hoping the state is going to come in and fix our roads 
20 or Joe Blow down the street is going to come in and 
21 give us a lot of money to fix our roads . That ' s not 
22 going to happen. 
23 We ' re not going to save this kind of money in a 
24 budget. We ' re not going to raise this type of millage 
25 in a budget. So again , we ' ve got to somehow figure out 
26 what is the answer , how do we move forward and make the 
27 best decision? I ' m looking forward to that . I mean 
28 it ' s probably one of the toughest decisions that we ' ve 
29 came up with as far as since I ' ve been on council . But 
30 we ' ve got to make that decision . 
31 Again , Mr . Chairman, I just hope that between the 
32 second and third reading that we will allow ourselves 
33 time to get back in our community . But again , I 
34 appreciate what everybody has done on this . I know 
35 it ' s been a lot of late nights at community meetings . 
36 Look forward to hopefully coming up with a decision on 
37 what ' s best . 
38 TOMMY DUNN: Along those lines, not only 
39 before second reading we ' re going to have- - council is 
40 going to have workshop , not to vote on nothing , but to 
41 put the nuts and bolts together on something . 
42 Ms. Floyd . 
43 GRACIE FLOYD : Okay. Thank you. The only 
44 thing I wanted to say was that District 2 have not had 
45 a community -- full community meeting . We have had 
46 community meetings of spot in the district and we have 
47 had community meetings with all the leaders. So please 
48 look out for District 2 ' s community meeting . 
49 Now , I understand that some of the community 
50 meetings were well attended . Some of them were not . 



32 
Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 So I don ' t know how well we ' re getting the news out , 
2 but I didn ' t -- I was hoping that they would wait until 
3 we had all of the meetings done before they brought it 
4 -- because it ' s not ready to be voted for yet . Okay . 
5 And I think our biggest -- the biggest thing we ' ve done 
6 this year is stuff that was -- really people were 
7 talking about was the budget this year . Uh - huh 
8 (affirmative) . We ' ve still proud of what happened to 
9 the budget , and they were talking about it . And I 

10 thank you . 
11 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you , Ms . Floyd . 
12 Mr . Sanders . 
13 BRETT SANDERS : Mr . Chairman , I would just 
14 like to say that -- and commend all the council 
15 members , the community meetings we had. Not only have 
16 I attended the ones in my district . I ' ve went to 
17 everyone ' s meetings . I think I missed one . I was out 
18 of town . I understand some of the comments looking in 
19 the budget . I think that needs to continue . But also 
20 I would love to see , and it has been discussed but 
21 nothing ' s in concrete , a four-year sunset clause . And 
22 if people look at it from an investment point of view , 
23 say you have four cars , you ' re talki ng twenty- seven 
24 cents a day to get sixteen million dollars worth of 
25 paving over four years . And we ' re talking paving 
26 outside your window , as Councilman Davis said . I think 
27 I heard someone mention about the state . I ' ve reached 
28 out to not only my state representative but state 
29 representatives in every district and asked for help . 
30 It ' s a problem that ' s going to have to be addressed . 
31 It is a problem that everything else is status quo . 
32 We ' re working , we ' re looking , we ' re trying . I think 
33 our budget this past year is a fine example of thinking 
34 outside the box , looking for new a l ternatives , looking 
35 for new ways . But we ' ve got to do something . These 
36 roads , they ' re rated , and we can keep -- this four 
37 million dollars per year will allow us to keep some of 
38 these roads that ' s in the hundred thousand dollar , a 
39 hundred fifty , two hundred thousand mile maintenance 
40 versus five hundred thousand . And I would love to see 
41 a four - year sunset clause to where we can actually 
42 look , come back to the people and say , hey , this is 
43 working , this is not working , this needs to be 
44 adjusted . But as of right now I ' m not ready to vote on 
45 a road fee , but I support title only and I look forward 
46 to working with council members . I heard a lot of 
47 people complain . I think I ' ve seen two people that 
48 were actually attending the meetings . Check out the 
49 county website , attend the meetings . I think the 
SO majority of meetings I ' ve been to , everyone comes in , 



33 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 just like I would have , oh , I ' m against this tax . And 
2 as things get explained and clarif i ed and a better 
3 understanding of what ' s going on a t our state levels , 
4 people -- I don ' t want to say - - they understand that 
5 there is an issue and we have a serious issue that ' s 
6 growing exponentially and it ' s going to have to be 
7 addressed. I hope we can all get together and work 
8 something out to help the citizens of Anderson . Thank 
9 you , sir . 

10 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you . Anyone else? 
11 CRAIG WOOTEN : I think from my standpoint , 
12 you know , just bringing commentary on this , I think so 
13 much of life as I get older is timing . I joke 
14 sometimes if I had proposed to my wife a month earlier 
15 or a month later she would probably say no . But I 
16 caught her at the right time . That ' s what gives me 
17 reservations about this is because I represent a lot of 
18 the city and , you know , within this time frame we have 
19 been hit with an increased Duke Energy ; we have been 
20 hit with increased sewer rates , increased water rates , 
21 increased sales tax . And so in sayi ng that , it ' s not 
22 lost on me that there ' s a cumulative effect no matter 
23 what government entity it comes from . And that should 
24 definitely be recognized in a citizen , but using t he 
25 same determination of timing , with every passing second 
26 or minute , day , year , our roads get worse . And we will 
27 have to engage on them at some point . And at every 
28 juncture that you engage that ' s not today then the cost 
29 rises exponentially and you ' re playing a game of sort 
30 of cake walk or hot potato . 
31 And so I don ' t think that we can ignore the problem 
32 and not continue the debate on it . I would say from 
33 the state ' s perspective , I understand what some citizen 
34 said earlier , I don ' t understand a l l the nuances of 
35 what ' s available to us . I know we are constantly 
36 advocating for , you know , issues here on the ground and 
37 we ' re communicating to the state . But I also realize 
38 that the state is allocating scarce resources among 
39 competing ends and they have things that they have to 
40 make decisions on that are outside of our purview . So 
41 any way that we can continue that conversation , I mean , 
42 I think that is , bar none , something that would be good 
43 for us . And having said that , I guess we have to 
44 acknowledge that there is a road problem . But , you 
45 know , in doing so we also have to acknowledge all the 
46 other factors that are in place . 
47 So I do commend my fellow council members . I don ' t 
48 think any issue has been talked about more or more in 
49 depth with citizens than this issue has and the 
50 willingness to get feedback across district lines is 



34 
Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 3, 20 19 

1 what we ' re elected to do , is listen to the people . So 
2 I appreciate the time . 
3 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you . All in favor of 
4 the motion show of hands . All opposed . In favor Mr. 
5 Davis , Mr . Sanders , Mr . Dunn , Mr . Graham, Ms . Wilson . 
6 Opposed? Did I call for opposed? You oppose? Craig , 
7 you oppose? Show Ms. Floyd and Mr. Wooten opposed . 
8 Moving on to item number (c ), be 8 (c) , 2019 - 044 , an 
9 ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of a 

10 fee in lieu of tax and incentive agreement by and 
11 between Anderson County , South Carolina and a company 
12 identified for the time being as Project Augustus , with 
13 respect to certain economi c development property to be 
14 located at one or more l ocations in the county , whereby 
15 such property will be subject to certain payments in 
16 lieu of taxes , Project Augustus . 
17 Do we have a motion to put this on the floor? 
18 CINDY WILSON : So moved . 
19 TOMMY DUNN : Motion Ms . Wilson . Do we 
20 have a second? Second Mr . Graham . Mr . Nelson , do you 
21 want to 
22 BURRISS NELSON : Thank you , Mr . Chairman , 
23 members of council , this again is much like the project 
24 we had several months ago . A deve l opment company has 
25 come to Anderson. They ' ve bought land . They ' re going 
26 to build with their own money buildings that are for 
27 warehouse or industrial projects , anywhere from a 
28 hundred thousand to two hundred thousand . They ' ve 
29 simply asked us to discount the property tax for the 
30 first couple of years to give them a chance to recoup a 
31 little bit of their money in the investment of sewer , 
32 water lines and in paving that they ' ll have to do from 
33 state and county roads . 
34 This is the best of all worlds , especially when 
35 you ' re using other people ' s money for the development 
36 side . It ' s a multi-county industrial -- it ' s a fee in 
37 lieu of taxes infrastructure credit and it ' s eighty-
38 five percent SSRC for the first five years ; thirty- five 
39 percent for the years following . Taxes on the property 
40 that they ' re choosing this year is sixty dollars and 
41 five cents . Six zero point zero five . And the 2021 
42 projected taxes, twenty- eight thousand three hundred 
43 and thirty- nine dollars , and that ' s just for building 
44 one. And over thirty years property tax , three million 
45 two hundred and eleven dollars -- two hundred and 
46 eleven thousand dollars seven hundred and twenty 
47 dollars . 
48 But anyhow that comes to council as a 
49 recommendation from staff and from the Economic 
50 Development Advisory Board . 



35 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

TOMMY DUNN : Do we have anymore 
discussion? Ms. Wilson . 

CINDY WILSON : Mr . Chairman , I will vote 
for this first reading tonight , but Mr . Nelson is 
getting me some more information. There were a few 
items that I had some questions about . Thank you . 

TOMMY DUNN : Anyone else? All in favor 
of the motion show of hands. Opposed like sign . Show 
the motion carries unanimously. 

If there ' s no objection we ' re going to take about a 
five-minute break . 

BREAK 
TOMMY DUNN: 2019 - 045 , an ordinance 

to approve a ground lease by and between Anderson 
County , South Carolina and Tri-County Technical College 
for the site at the Anderson Regional Airport for heavy 
equipment operator training and for a site at the TTI 
Pearman Dairy Road facility for a lineman training 
school . And I believe we ' ve already had an agreement 
for them using the place at the airport now for some 
time . Mr . Burns . 

RUSTY BURNS : The place at the airport 
for some time is an ongoing request . And then on a 
piece of land that we will not be using , they will 
conduct a lineman training school on the old TTI site 
on Highway 28 . 

TOMMY DUNN : Ms . Floyd . 
GRACIE FLOYD : Is this where we were going 

to put that department? 
RUSTY BURNS : This is raw land way over 

to the side . It does not affect anything that the 
county is going to do . 

GRACIE FLOYD : 
now . Let me understand. 

RUSTY BURNS : 
GRACIE FLOYD : 

Okay . Let me understand 
This is Tri-County Tech? 

Tri-County Tech ---
And they ' re going to come 

to the airport first? 
RUSTY BURNS : They have been at the 

airport for some time using land that is on the airport 
and they use it for heavy equipment training . 

GRACIE FLOYD: Okay . That ' s where a 
couple of years ago we were going to use that for the 
Caterpillar thing . 

RUSTY BURNS: That ' s what -- they ' re 
still using it. 

GRACIE FLOYD : Okay . But not for 
Caterpillar, though , because they didn ' t come? 

RUSTY BURNS : No , not Caterpillar , but 
they ' re using it for that . 

GRACIE FLOYD : But now Tri-County Tech 



36 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

wants to go up there where we ' re going in the old Ryobi 
building? 

RUSTY BURNS : They want to go on that 
property on a piece of land . Basically what they ' re 
going to do is they ' re going to put up some poles to 
teach people how to climb poles to be linemen . 

GRACIE FLOYD: Okay . All right. And they 
could use that up at the Tri - County building -- I mean 
up there in Pendleton to do it? 

RUSTY BURNS : No , ma ' am . They requested 
that they use that site . 

GRACIE FLOYD : Are they paying us anything 
for it? 

RUSTY BURNS : No , ma ' am . 
GRACIE FLOYD: 

anything? 
Are we paying them 

RUSTY BURNS : No , ma ' am . 
GRACIE FLOYD: 

out of it . 
We ought to get something 

RUSTY BURNS : When that building was 
given to the county , one of the ideas was that we would 
have training for citizens in Anderson County at that 
facility . 

GRACIE FLOYD : But Ryobi gave us the 
building ; isn ' t that correct? 

RUSTY BURNS : Ryobi gave us the building . 
It was purchased using state funds , so i t ' s our 
building . 

GRACIE FLOYD : Okay. I ' m not -- we ' ll 
talk . 

BRETT SANDERS : Mr . Chairman? 
TOMMY DUNN : Mr . Sanders , if Ms . Floyd 

is through? 
GRACIE FLOYD: Yes , I am . Thank you . 
TOMMY DUNN : Yeah , Mr . Sanders . 
BRETT SANDERS : Mr . Burns , we ' ve actually 

negotiated a lease with them on using part of that and 
that came in under that lease that we did with them . 

RUSTY BURNS : That ' s originally , and 
there ' s no cost . But as you well know , since you ' re 
chairman of that committee , they ' re looking to locate 
an asphalt lab out at that same facility that serves 
the whole state of South Carolina and also provides 
that train i ng . They will be paying market rate on that 
facility , but that will be inside the b u i l ding . But 
we ' re talking now if you were looking at the Ryobi 
bui l ding straight , if you look way off to the side on 
land that is completely worthless , all they want to do 
is put up some poles to teach people how to climb 
poles. 



Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 BRETT SANDERS: And that was sort of a 
2 caveat to the lease that we done -- I thought we said, 
3 hey , you ' re leasing this , we ' ll allow you to use this 
4 useless property down here 
5 RUSTY BURNS: You ' re right ; yes , sir . 
6 BRETT SANDERS : - - - in the blood plain to 
7 do your line training? 
8 RUSTY BURNS : Yes , sir. 
9 BRETT SANDERS : Okay . Thank you . 

10 CINDY WILSON : May I , Mr. Chairman? 
11 TOMMY DUNN: Yes , ma ' am , Ms. Wilson . 
12 CINDY WILSON : I would like to see this 

37 

13 sketched off on an aerial . But it was interesting , I 
14 think earlier last week or maybe this week there was an 
15 article in the Wall Street Journal about the shortage 
16 of linemen . 
17 RUSTY BURNS : A big shortage . 
18 CINDY WILSON: They ' re trying to recruit 
19 women now . And on the termination , let ' s see, this is 
20 a ground lease that runs from 1 August 2019 to 31 July 
21 2024 , so it ' s like a five - year lease . And we have 
22 termination capabilities if we have higher and better 
23 uses of those properties. 
24 RUSTY BURNS: Yes , ma ' am . 
25 CINDY WILSON : Thank you . 
26 RAY GRAHAM : Mr . Chairman? 
27 TOMMY DUNN : Mr. Graham . 
28 RAY GRAHAM : This is nothing more than 
29 basically continuing moving forward with a partnership 
30 that we ' ve had for years . 
31 RUSTY BURNS : That we ' ve had for years 
32 with Tri-County Tech . There ' s a shortage , as you know , 
33 as every member of council knows , getting people to 
34 work in the asphalt and paving industry . It ' s a severe 
35 shortage . This is an opportunity that Tri - County uses 
36 to train these individuals , Anderson County 
37 individuals . The same thing with the lineman school , 
38 as Ms . Wilson just eluded to , there is a shortage in 
39 the United States of America not having enough linemen 
40 to do the work that ' s necessary . And so if they can 
41 train Anderson County people here in Anderson County on 
42 that property which is in essence useless property and 
43 the only thing it ' s good for is to put a pole up there , 
44 I would think that would be a win - win for us . 
45 RAY GRAHAM : Well , something else is we 
46 - - correct me if I ' m wrong -- but we would not be 
47 fortunate enough to have the growth that we currently 
48 have with economic development which affects our local 
49 sheriff ' s department , our fire department , our local 
50 communities , our tax base , everything we ' re doing , we 



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 would not have the growth with this economic 
2 development without the partnership with Tri - County 
3 Tech stepping up and ensuring these people has the 
4 proper training and everything else . That is our ace 
5 in the hole on the majority o f growth that we have . 

38 

6 RUSTY BURNS : They go hand- in- glove with 
7 Tri - County Tech. Ninety percent of the time after 
8 we ' ve made initial contact , the next question is , who ' s 
9 going to train our workers? Where are they going to 

10 get these skills? Tri - County Tech will go with us to 
11 those meetings , they will set up special training for 
12 train i ng those people . They just had the first class 
13 for Arthrex up at the new training facility up in Sandy 
14 Springs . Those people are already working in that 
15 plant making a product , not for sale , but making the 
16 product , learning how to do the process . So everything 
17 we do , we usually do with Tri - County Tech . 
18 RAY GRAHAM : I just want to commend 
19 Councilman Sanders and the committee for not only 
20 finding a use for land that really had no value to us , 
21 but we are getting a true value on this . Again , we ' re 
22 growing our partnership . But definitely a great job to 
23 the committee on what they ' ve done with this and look 
24 forward to continued opportun i ties with Tri-County . 
25 RUSTY BURNS : Yes , sir . 
26 TOMMY DUNN : All in favor of the motion 
27 show of hands . Opposed like sign . Show the motion 
28 carries unanimously . 
29 Mov i ng on to item number 8(c) , 2019 - 046 , an 
30 ordinance to approve an amendment to the fee in lieu of 
31 tax agreement and infrastructure finance agreement 
32 between Anderson County , South Carolina and Ortec , Inc . 
33 so as to add the town of Pendleton as a party to the 
34 agreements . Do we have a motion to put this on the 
35 floor? 
36 CINDY WILSON : So moved. 
37 BRETT SANDERS : Second . 
38 TOMMY DUNN : Motion by Ms. Wilson ; 
39 second by Mr. Sanders . Mr . Nelson . 
40 BURRISS NELSON : Mr . Chairman , members of 
41 council , thank you for allowing me to present. 
42 This is merely the Ortec project , Projects Smokey 
43 and Rocky , which total over forty million dollars in 
44 capital investment . They ' re in the old Westinghouse 
45 Isola building . They bought that bui l ding and put the 
46 manufacturing facility in there creating over a hundred 
47 jobs . Payroll , their average pay is twenty- two dollars 
48 an hour. Average annual salary is over four million 
49 dollars. To be able to continue their operation , they 
50 needed additional sewer and water service and they 



39 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 annexed into the city of Pendleton . And of course , 
2 that adds on the Pendleton millage rate to the project . 
3 So it increased their millage . This discounts the 
4 property tax for that to even that up a little bit so 
5 they're not paying quite as much as they were in the 
6 past , would have , if it just stayed in the county . So 
7 it ' s an opportunity for them to be able to get 
8 additional infrastructure and put them together with 
9 the town of Pendleton and additionally to assist 

10 Pendleton in their tax base . 
11 BRETT SANDERS : Mr . Chairman? 
12 TOMMY DUNN : Yes , sir . 
13 BRETT SANDERS : Mr . Nelson, this was 
14 actually an old Brownfield site ; right? 
15 BURRISS NELSON : Yes , sir . 
16 BRETT SANDERS : So it's a perfect example 
17 of utilizing and making use of a Brownfield site? 
18 BURRISS NELSON: Yes , sir . It has some 
19 issues , but they ' re working on cleaning it up . I 
20 believe they have a BCC . 
21 BRETT SANDERS : Thank you . Appreciate what 
22 you do . 
23 GRACIE FLOYD : Mr . Chairman? 
24 TOMMY DUNN : Ms . Floyd. 
25 GRACIE FLOYD : Mr . Nelson , Burriss , I have 
26 sixty jobs . Did I miswrite it down? You told me they 
27 were going to increase it to sixty jobs. 
28 BURRISS NELSON: Well , they had forty that 
29 they had from Project Smokey , the original project . 
30 That was about a twenty million dollar capita l 
31 investment . They continued to expand it another twenty 
32 million , adding additional employees . They ' re over the 
33 hundred and five total jobs now . 
34 GRACIE FLOYD: But they got sixty jobs , 
35 that ' s what it is? 
36 BURRISS NELSON : Originally. That was the 
37 original project . There ' s two projects . They ' ve just 
38 kept expanding and growing on the same site . 
39 GRACIE FLOYD : Okay . 
40 TOMMY DUNN : Is that it? Keep in mind 
41 all we ' re doing is just adding Pendleton to this 
42 agreement , from my understanding , the town of 
43 Pendleton . 
44 BURRISS NELSON : Yes , sir . 
45 TOMMY DUNN : All in favor of the motion 
46 show of hands . Opposed like sign . Show the motion 
47 carries unanimously. 
48 Now we ' ll be moving on to item number 9(a ), 2019 -
49 036 , a resolution authorizing , under certain 
50 conditions , the execution and delivery by Anderson 



Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 County , South Carolina of a fee in lieu of tax and 
2 incentive agreement with a company identif i ed for the 
3 time being as Project Augustus with respect to 

40 

4 commercial and/or industrial projects to be located at 
5 one or more locations in the county , whereby the 
6 project would be subject to payment of certain fees in 
7 lieu of taxes and the provision of certain special 
8 source revenue credits ; and providing for related 
9 matters. This , along with the project we just vote on , 

10 two or three votes ago . Do we have a motion to move 
11 this forward? 
12 JIMMY DAVIS : So moved . 
13 CINDY WILSON : So moved . 
14 TOMMY DUNN : Motion Mr . Davis ; second by 
15 Ms . Wilson. Mr . Nelson , do you want to comment on 
16 this? 
17 BURRISS NELSON : Nothing other than you ' re 
18 correct , sir , that ' s the companion piece to 2019 - 044 at 
19 8(c) , item 8(c) . Thank you , sir . 
20 TOMMY DUNN : Any discussion? All in 
21 favor of the motion show of hands . Opposed like sign. 
22 Show the motion carries unanimously . 
23 Now moving on to 9(b) , 2019 - 037 , a resolution to 
24 certify the Old Isola Laminate Systems Property at 500 
25 Westinghouse Drive in Anderson County , South Carolina 
26 as an abandoned building site . Do we have a motion to 
27 move this forward? 
28 CINDY WILSON : So moved . 
29 TOMMY DUNN : Motion Ms . Wilson . Do we 
30 have a second? 
31 CRAIG WOOTEN : Second. 
32 TOMMY DUNN : Second Mr. Wooten . Mr . 
33 Nelson , do you want to say anything? 
34 BURRISS NELSON : Mr . Chairman , members of 
35 council , thank you for giving me the opportunity to 
36 explain . Ortec took the - - has purchased what was in 
37 the beginning the Westinghouse facility , later became 
38 Isola , then was abandoned and empty for ten or eleven 
39 years with nothing there . They bought the building and 
40 began some repairs. Because it was an abandoned 
41 building , nothing there , they actually have a fully 
42 functional and operating business in there , they ' re 
43 allowed to apply for this abandoned building credit. 
44 And it ' s a credit against their corporate income tax . 
45 By this resolution we merely say that they are a 
46 company in good standing , hiring people , making capital 
47 investment , and they have certainly paid their property 
48 tax . So this is an opportunity for them to get a 
49 little bit of additional income in the house. And it ' s 
50 nothing to do with the county other than we ' re just 



Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 saying they ' re a good company and they ' re operating . 
2 TOMMY DUNN : Any discussion? All in 
3 favor of the motion show of hands . Opposed like sign . 
4 Show the motion carries unanimously . 

41 

5 BURRISS NELSON : Thank you , sir . Thank you 
6 for your support. 
7 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you . 
8 Moving on to item number 10, bid approvals . This 
9 will be bid number 20 - 004 , the Chris Taylor Park 

10 improvements. This was put in the budget , voted on and 
11 passed , and this was put out for bids . Ms . Davis , do 
12 you want to add anything to this? 
13 RITA DAVIS : I would like to point out 
14 that this is a furtherance of the projects that Mr . 
15 Wooten ' s Park & Rec Ad Hoc Committee (mic cutting out) 
16 money was set aside , accommodations fee (mic cutting 
17 out) and council voted to do those projects and we ' re 
18 just (mic cutting out) . 
19 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you. Do we have a 
20 motion to move this forward? 
21 CRAIG WOOTEN : So moved . 
22 TOMMY DUNN : Motion Mr . Wooten . Do we 
23 have a second? Second Mr. Sanders . Any discussion? 
24 CRAIG WOOTEN : Just for clarification , 
25 this is ATAX money which comes from outside the county 
26 in the form of revenue for people staying in hotels . 
27 So this is a positive thing that allows us to upgrade 
28 our parks for our children and our people to use . 
29 TOMMY DUNN : All in favor of the motion 
30 show of hands . Opposed like sign . Show the motion 
31 carries unanimously . 
32 Moving on to item number 11, Capital , this was 
33 voter registration and elections. This is -- we ' ve all 
34 seen this . This is a place to help them store their 
35 equipment , get it to site and back to site in secure 
36 manner , what needs to be done. Ms . Wilson -- I ' m sorry 
37 -- Ms . Davis , do you have anything you want to add? 
38 RITA DAVIS : I would just like to say 
39 that we ' ve put up to two hundred and fifty in 
40 contingency just because when the state had advised 
41 that we were getting new voting registration equipment , 
42 it ' s here and so these carts will be able to --
43 actually it ' s taller than me , which isn ' t saying much , 
44 but you can put the actual apparatus where the ballots 
45 go into , this is for security purposes . The voting 
46 machines that fit that you walk up and vote on will be 
47 in there . All the items that the poll workers will 
48 need in their bags will be in this cart . And also 
49 there are seven partitions so that you can vote 
50 securely will be in there . So we ' re asking council for 



42 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

seventy- nine of these. These are our polling 
precincts . So it is in the budget . The Department of 
Homeland Security has approved these . I will point out 
that the State Election Commission has negotiated and 
it ' s ten thousand dollars less than what they 
originally had advised , print elect , the original quote 
and so it ' ll be Sole Source to them . And so this will 
just ensure that each one of these polling locations 
that the items are stored and secured and deployed in 
an organized manner so that items aren ' t left out 
whenever -- because next Mr . Burns has to address how 
are we going to get these to the polling locations? 
Heretofore , poll workers and poll managers would just 
come get their equipment. But these are so large that 
this will facilitate the deployment of the necessary 
equipment to the polling locations . 

TOMMY DUNN : Do we have a motion to move 
this forward? 

CINDY WILSON : So moved . 
TOMMY DUNN : Motion Ms . Wilson. Second 

by Mr . Davis. Now discussion? 
GRACIE FLOYD : Yes. 
TOMMY DUNN : Ms. Floyd . 
GRACIE FLOYD : All right . Mr . Burns , 

remember that I called you over the weekend and when 
you called me back I couldn ' t remember . 

RUSTY BURNS : Yes , ma ' am . 
GRACIE FLOYD : That ' s what it was I wanted 

to talk to you about . 
RUSTY BURNS : Yes , ma ' am . 
GRACIE FLOYD : I saw the information when 

it came to my house on Friday , but I was astounded by 
the prices of them . They ' re the most inexpensive 
things that we can get? 

RUSTY BURNS : Those are the ones that 
have been approved by everybody , Homeland Security , 
State Election Commission ; they did the negotiation on 
the purchase price. We budgeted , off the top of my 
head , two hundred and twenty- five thousand , I think , 
that Rita just stated , and I think we ' re coming in 
about half of that , Rita? 

RITA DAVIS : Yes , sir , less . 
RUSTY BURNS : Less than that . And so 

this is money that council voted to put in the budget . 
It just turns out to be only half as much as we needed . 

GRACIE FLOYD : Okay . All right . So I 
guess it turned out -- but gosh , when I saw the prices 
of them . We ' re getting how many of them? 

RITA DAVIS : Seventy- nine . 
GRACIE FLOYD : Yes . 



43 
Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

you . 

RUSTY BURNS : 
RITA DAVIS : 
GRACIE FLOYD: 

For each polling place . 
And they ' re huge . 
Well , we shall see . Thank 

TOMMY DUNN : Anyone else? I just want 
to point out , somebody made a statement earlier tonight 
about so - called we save about state mandates . This is 
another prime example right here ; state mandate . It ' s 
greatly needed . It ain ' t our people in Anderson 
County ' s fault , but that is a thing . Just keep on and 
on and on . More to come , we want good , safe , honest 
elections , and this is going to make it easier on our 
voter regis t ration people , I think , to keep up with 
this . And they ' ve worked out a good thing to store 
them and all , but it ' s just another one of these things 
mandated and they don ' t send a check with it . It ain ' t 
just something we just make up in our minds . 

CINDY WILSON : It ' ll be really good to see 
how that paper ballot prints out . I ' d like to see how 
all that process works . Thank you . 

TOMMY DUNN : All in favor of the motion 
show of hands . Opposed like sign . Show the motion 
carries unanimously. 

Moving on , approval of certification of the 2019 
tax levy to county auditor . This is what we do every 
year. Mr. Hunter has asked for this . Hasn ' t changed . 
Same thing . Be no tax increase. So do we have a 
motion to move this forward? 

JIMMY DAVIS : So moved . 
TOMMY DUNN : Motion Mr . Davis ; second 

Mr . Graham . Any discussion? All in favor of the 
motion show of hands . Opposed like sign . Show the 
motion carries unanimously . 

If there ' s no objections , and this is in District 
1 , we ' ve got three road , Bronson Ridge , Bronson Road 
and Greer Farm Lane . Mr . Burns , all of these has been 
recommended by our road department and met all our 
standards . Do we have a motion to move all three of 
these roads into our system? 

CRAIG WOOTEN : So moved . 
TOMMY DUNN : Motion Mr . Wooten . Do we 

have a second? 
CINDY WILSON : Second . 
TOMMY DUNN : Second Ms . Wilson . Any 

discussion? All in favor of the motion show of hands . 
Opposed like sign . You approve this , Ms . Floyd? 

GRACIE FLOYD : I raised my hand . 
TOMMY DUNN : Okay. I ' m sorry . 

Show the motion carries unanimously . 
Now moving on to item number 14 , a report from the 



44 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 Public Safety Committee of the August 30 , 2019 meeting . 
2 Chairman Graham . 
3 RAY GRAHAM : Thank you , Mr . Chairman . 
4 First of all , on August 30th at the Public Safety 
5 Meeting , item number 3 was for radio fees for Belton , 
6 Honea Path and Williamston . It really is not a fee . 
7 It ' s actually basically a request from Williamston , I 
8 think was one radio ; from Honea Path , I think was four 
9 radios , and for Belton , I think was two , if I remember 

10 correctly . This is a common practice with Mark 
11 Williamson basically renegotiating the contract with 
12 Pal 8. Actually this time when we come to council , it 
13 comes at no cost to us because he done a great job as 
14 far as renegotiating that contract . So basically this 
15 is nothing more than a proper procedure to ensure that 
16 we give radio communications to go ahead to move 
17 forward as far as cutting these radios on for these 
18 municipalities . This does come forth in a 
19 recommendation from Public Safety . And Mr. Chairman , 
20 I ' d ask full council for support. 
21 TOMMY DUNN: Doesn ' t need a second 
22 coming from committee . Any discussion? All in favor 
23 of the motion show of hands . Opposed like sign . Show 
24 the motion carries unanimously. 
25 Moving on . 
26 RAY GRAHAM : Thank you , Mr . Chairman . 
27 Next thing on the list was the inmate healthcare 
28 services . Major Vaughan , if you could step forward I ' m 
29 sure you can probably explain 1Some of this a little bit 
30 more . As he ' s coming forward basically we ' re looking 
31 at redoing the contractual agreement that provides 
32 healthcare to our inmates . And one thing , with our 
33 recommendation , that I definitely want to share with 
34 full council is the sheriff and his staff has basically 
35 been able to come up with the money that this is going 
36 to cost through their budget . So with that being said , 
37 again this is something that ' s needed, something as far 
38 as moving the detention facility forward , especially 
39 with CJCC as far as providing proper care . This is 
40 basically putting us in place to where we need to be as 
41 far as the future. 
42 Major Vaughan , if you want to go ahead and explain 
43 what you ' ve got as far as your bids and what you ' re 
44 looking at doing with this. 
45 MAJOR VAUGHAN : Absolutely. 
46 TOMMY DUNN : And before he gets started , 
47 I think all this is is just a question and asking to go 
48 negotiate with this company. 
49 MAJOR VAUGHAN : Absolutely. We're not 
50 asking for any contracts . We don ' t even have any 



Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 contract sitting before us now . As a part of the RFQ 
2 that we began back in May , RFQ ' s came back that were 
3 scored. The company that ranked number one , the one 
4 that we ' re actually trying to negotiate with now . 
5 However , the reason why we ' re before council now is 

45 

6 because that price tag and what ' s (not speaking in mic 
7 or mic cutting out ) this year is greater . So that was 
8 the only thing that we were asking permission to go 
9 forward with the number one. If not we have the number 

10 two that we can (mic cutting out) if negotiations does 
11 not work . 
12 TOMMY DUNN: But y ' all feel very 
13 strongly this is the way to go and your team scored 
14 this , this is the team . And in the long run it ' s not 
15 going to be much money difference but more of service . 
16 MAJOR VAUGHAN: Absolutely. With the 
17 services that this company is trying to provide us , 
18 we ' re looking basically at a forty - four thousand dollar 
19 difference , what they ' re providing us and we currently 
20 have . It ' s not an amount , like Councilman Graham said , 
21 that the sheriff ' s in full support of going forward 
22 with no negotiations . We ' re not writing any contract 
23 right now . We ' ll have to come back before the council 
24 just to go forward and have talks . 
25 TOMMY DUNN : This coming from a 
26 committee , it doesn ' t need a second . Now open the 
27 floor for discussion and questions . Mr . Sanders? 
28 BRETT SANDERS : Yeah , with that difference 
29 there ' s also a lot of intangibles that it ' s hard to 
30 quantify , too . 
31 MAJOR VAUGHAN : Absolutely . The increased 
32 amount of staff that they ' re willing -- they ' ve done an 
33 analysis with the difference in our average daily 
34 population from the contract we have now , they ' ve 
35 actually done an analysis based on four hundred and 
36 twelve inmates in our facility . As of our average 
37 population this month , we ' re at four oh nine . So 
38 they ' re more in line with that , whereas our contract 
39 currently is for three seventy- five . So any inmate 
40 that we have in our facility over three seventy- five 
41 currently , we have to pay additional charges. Other 
42 intangibles that you brought up is CEO actually does 
43 the training for their medical staff . Strongly 
44 requires , very strong on his -- while we were talking 
45 to him -- having our detention staff there , our 
46 leaders , our shift supervisors and our booking officers 
47 be a part of the training . Also that ' s something I 
48 can ' t quantify because I don ' t know the dollar amount 
49 that you would put on that . This company also has a 
50 ninety- eight percent retention . That ' s a good thing . 



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 And with the increase of the staffing that we have 
2 there , I don ' t know how I could quantify whether 

46 

3 additional staffing there is going to allow officers to 
4 bring individuals in our facility and not send them out 
5 to the ER . 
6 So another big thing is that ' s going to increase 
7 our overtime . And one thing that they ' ve actual l y 
8 listed in their proposal is having psychiatry four 
9 hours a week as part of our mental health initiative as 

10 far as the Criminal Justice Coordinating Committee . 
11 RAY GRAHAM : Thank you , Major Vaughan . 
12 TOMMY DUNN : Anyone else? 
13 CINDY WILSON : May I ask a quick question? 
14 TOMMY DUNN : Ms . Wilson . 
15 CINDY WILSON : I know this is a very 
16 complicated area to work through. But is it feasible 
17 to look at going back to a similar model that we were 
18 using before we had an outside carr i er come in where we 
19 had staff and in- house people to monitor the health out 
20 at the jail? 
21 MAJOR VAUGHAN : That was before the 
22 position I ' m in now . We ' ve had a contract with outside 
23 independent contracting for medical since 2013 . We ' re 
24 big on doing our due diligence , going through and 
25 looking at these contract a little bit more frequently. 
26 Since I ' ve been involved with the detention center 
27 since 2017 , I started going down that road and I ' ve had 
28 a lot of help from our detention staff . So I can ' t a 
29 hundred percent answer that question (mic cutting out) 
30 with respect to the liability . Going back with our own 
31 places all the liability back on the county . 
32 CINDY WILSON : Well , it does kind of 
33 spread it a little bit with an outside entity . But 
34 we ' re still in the chain of title , so to speak . 
35 They ' ll come after us , too , if any mistakes are made . 
36 Thank you . 
37 RAY GRAHAM: Mr . Chairman? 
38 TOMMY DUNN: Mr . Graham . 
39 RAY GRAHAM : Just to kind of help answer 
40 some of that . Ms . Wilson some of the biggest things is 
41 there ' s so many regulations now. And when you look at 
42 malpractice and everything else as far as on the 
43 doctor ' s standpoint . And plus , you know , again the 
44 liability that it would put on the county . You know , 
45 some things are left best separated . And in having an 
46 outside contractor , per se , doing this , in my opinion 
47 it takes the ball out of their court as far as saying , 
48 well , this inmate needs to go to the hospital or they 
49 don ' t need to go to the hospital. There ' s no rhyme or 
50 reason for them to say yes or no . It puts it out into 



Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 an outside contractor . That liability in itself is 
2 tremendous . Not saying that our guys would do 

47 

3 something like that , but you can bet your tail they ' re 
4 going to -- if something happened , some attorney is 
5 going to step up and say , well , they didn ' t send that 
6 individual to the hospital because . And I mean doing a 
7 separate contract , that kind of removes that liability , 
8 as well . 
9 So there ' s several different things . I know they 

10 have looked at - - they have been looking at this quite 
11 a bit trying to determine what is the best direction. 
12 It goes back looking at the CJCC , all the work and 
13 effort that Anderson County has put in that . This 
14 literally is following right in suit as far as what the 
15 recommendations for that is . Moving that forward , 
16 advancing to basically reduce recidivism, reduce some 
17 of the issues where patients with some type of mental 
18 health issues as far as coming back and forth in the 
19 hospital- - I mean to the jail . Literally I mean it ' s 
20 a revolving door almost . And providing this different 
21 level of care is hopefully going to prepare us to 
22 reduce that , as well , and give us better -- basically 
23 get these patients -- or these inmates back into the 
24 community and be a law abiding citizen , hopefully , 
25 through the proper care . 
26 TOMMY DUNN : Anyone else? All in favor 
27 of the motion show of hands . Opposed like sign . Show 
28 the motion carries unanimously . 
29 Thank you , Major . 
30 Moving on now to item number 5 , East-West Connector 
31 safety plan. 
32 RAY GRAHAM : Thank you , Mr . Chairman. 
33 Councilman Wooten , would you like to do this? 
34 CRAIG WOOTEN : Sure . 
35 RAY GRAHAM : I know you have spearheaded 
36 this and I think it ' s a great plan . 
37 CRAIG WOOTEN : Yes . Last council meeting 
38 I had spoke with Chairman Graham about adding to the 
39 agenda of the Public Safety meeting a safety plan for 
40 the connector because we had talked about from the 
41 money that was coming from the state that was sent to 
42 us , they would expand the connector . And there ' s more 
43 and more people walking or riding bikes on it. Fearful 
44 at Ingles on 81 ; fearful at Applebee ' s on Clemson 
45 Boulevard and even at the movie theater there will be a 
46 lot of kids and bikes crossing . That ' s really busy 
47 intersections , so we wanted to make sure that we do 
48 that in a safe way . And then also any time you ' ve got 
49 a lot of people of all ages you want to make sure that 
50 maybe we could have a blue light stand where , you know , 



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 you get the phone or you hit the emergency button if 
2 you ' re having chest pains or if a strange person is 
3 following you or something like that . So these are 
4 pretty inexpensive ways to make it safer . And we 
5 talked with Steve Kelly , the EMS director , about the 
6 easiest way to deploy these things . These will be 
7 things that we ' re going to try to do over time as the 

48 

8 budget allows and do it with recommendations of EMS and 
9 police . 

10 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you , Mr . Wooten . 
11 RAY GRAHAM : One thing on that , we did 
12 look at some pricing on this and surprisingly it ' s 
13 actually a fairly reasonable cost on this. Hopefully 
14 that is something we can move forward with. That was 
15 definitely , again , a great idea Mr . Wooten came up with 
16 on that . 
17 Going on down as far as franchise agreement and 
18 application process . We ' re still working through --
19 we ' ve got that in place . As council members know , we 
20 voted on that last year . And we have got one 
21 individual that ' s looking at possibly doing an 
22 application and going through the process . So we ' re 
23 trying to work out some kinks on that as far as 
24 requirements and what we need to do on that . 
25 Definitely have some more information on that probably 
26 in meetings to come . 
27 Di spatch , Steve has implemented some new SOGs as 
28 far as the EMS dispatch . Basically some of the issues 
29 we ' ve had in the past as far as (change of audio) 
30 procedures . We ' ve got great dispatchers ; great EMS 
31 providers . Basically we just had to get everybody on 
32 the same page . That ' s what this amounts to in a 
33 nutshell . Steve has done great as far as implementing 
34 these SOGs , along with staff at dispatch , and Director 
35 Baker . Again , that ' s already -- technically has 
36 already been implemented and we ' re just sharing an 
37 update on that . 
38 EMS fee schedule . As everyone knows we did not do 
39 an increase as far as on the EMS supplement that the 
40 county does to the providers this year . They basically 
41 came to us wanting us to consider a possible EMS fee 
42 increase . We ' ve done that about a little over two 
43 years ago . And basically what that does , in a 
44 nutshell , the county regulates what they can and cannot 
45 charge for a simple trip to the hospital , what it cost 
46 for drugs or what not. With the cost of drugs and 
47 everything else skyrocketing , they ' re basically wanting 
48 to come up with a fee . Basically what we ' ve done is we 
49 recommended -- kind of left it at the table right now , 
50 but the committee recommended to Steve to go back to 



49 
Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 the Chiefs Association to basically , you know, poll the 
2 local counties . Let ' s see what they ' re doing with the 
3 fees. Let's see what-- are we in line with it , do we 
4 need to go up , is it something we ' re hitting our 
5 taxpayers on? Is it something their insurance is going 
6 to cover? Basically where ' s the money being left on 
7 th~ table? I think every one of the members of Public 
8 Safety, along with Ms . Wilson that was there , our 
9 biggest concern is , is this going to put another burden 

10 on the taxpayers or is this something that the 
11 insurance will cover? So we ' re looking into that , as 
12 well , and hopefully we ' ll have some more information to 
13 bring back to full council on that . 
14 There ' s some discussion on medical control . We ' re 
15 probably going to have some changes on that due to Dr . 
16 Stoll was looking at possibly relinquishing that 
17 position due to some obligations he has . With that 
18 being said, we ' re probably looking at appointing 
19 another medical control doctor . Naturally that will be 
20 brought before full council for full council ' s support 
21 as we move forward with that . 
22 EMD process with new radio system. We ' ve kind of 
23 put that back with Steve and Mark Williams as far as --
24 got some ideas as far as what we can possibly go with . 
25 The biggest thing is making sure it ' s going to interact 
26 with the radio equipment and computer system that Mark 
27 and them is discussing possibly going with in the near 
28 future . So again , there ' s some more information to be 
29 gained on that . 
30 A lot of information that was shared at this 
31 meeting , we had a lot to go over , but really the ones 
32 that , again , that Public Safety had a vote on and 
33 brought back to full council has already been taken 
34 care of , but I did want to keep everybody informed as 
35 far as where we stand on some of this . Definitely got 
36 a lot going on and I ' m sure we ' re going to be 
37 discussing it some more at the next few meetings . 
38 Thank you , Mr . Chairman . 
39 TOMMY DUNN : Appreciate you , Chairman 
40 Graham . I ' d just like to add one comment . If you 
41 would because it ' s very important and this has been 
42 going on way too long , this medical control thing . We 
43 should have something in place on that. Should have 
44 done had something . 
45 RAY GRAHAM: I agree . 
4 6 TOMMY DUNN : I understand about the 
47 doctor , but we need to move on . I understand I 
48 think they ' re waiting on a new doctor to come in town 
49 that ' s going to be in this . But if it ain ' t , we need 
50 to get this one took care of . This affects our 



Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 citizens and everybody around . It ' s about quality 
2 control . And we don ' t this study a few years ago . 

50 

3 That ' s one of the recommendations , we need to get this 
4 and improve on this. So we need to make this happen 
5 enough to move this on. 
6 RAY GRAHAM : Mr . Chairman , I agree a 
7 hundred percent on that . And we did discuss that . I 
8 think our EMS system has made great strides in moving 
9 forward . As fellow council members can attest to this , 

10 that was one thing that I did say point blank we have 
11 failed on . And if it ' s okay with council , I will go 
12 back to Steve and let him know that we do need to move 
13 through this process and try to get something in place . 
14 We definitely don ' t want to hurry up by no means , but 
15 we want to put the right person in the position. But 
16 in the same respect , it is a very key part of this 
17 process . 
18 TOMMY DUNN : I don ' t think we ' ll be 
19 hearing it after waiting as long as we ' ve waited on it . 
20 RAY GRAHAM : I agree . 
21 TOMMY DUNN: I appreciate it. 
22 Now moving on to item number 15 , appointments . Mr . 
23 Sanders . 
24 BRETT SANDERS : Yes , sir , Mr . Chairman . 
25 I ' d like to put in the form of a motion for Harold D. 
26 Durham, Jr . to fill a vacancy on the Land Use and 
27 Zoning Board of Appeals . 
28 TOMMY DUNN : Have a motion . Do I have a 
29 second? Second Ms . Wilson . Any discussion? I think 
30 that ' s a fine appointment and will do well . All in 
31 favor of the motion show of hands . Opposed like sign. 
32 Show the motion carries unanimously . 
33 I think Ms . Wilson has got something . 
34 CINDY WILSON : I do . With our disbanding 
35 of the Citizen Advisory Zoning Board groups for 
36 District 7 , I have some wonderful volunteers . Tonight 
37 I would like to appoint Ms. Catherine Bucks to the 
38 Behavioral Service Board and Ms . Catherine Hamby to the 
39 ATAX Board . Their applications are on file from 
40 Citizen Advisory ---
41 TOMMY DUNN : I see them here. We have a 
42 motion by Ms . Wilson . Do we have a second? Have a 
43 second from Mr . Sanders . Any discussion? All in favor 
44 of the motion show of hands . Opposed like sign . Show 
45 the motion carries unanimously . 
46 Anyone else have any appointments? 
47 Moving on now , requests by council members . Mr . 
48 Davis . 
49 JIMMY DAVIS : Thank you , Mr . Chair . From 
50 District 6 ' s special projects fund , I would like to 



51 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

allocate one thousand five hundred dollars to the Wren 
High Bass Team -- it ' s not the Wren High , it ' s the Wren 
Bass Team ; middle school is included . And I would also 
like to allocate one hundred dollars to FAVOR of 
Anderson . I make that in the form of a motion . 

TOMMY DUNN : Have a motion . Do I have a 
second? 

CINDY WILSON : Second. 
TOMMY DUNN: Second Ms. Wilson . Any 

discussion? All in favor of the motion show of hands . 
Opposed like sign. Show the motion carries 
unanimously . Anything else , Mr . Davis? 

JIMMY DAVIS: No , sir. 
TOMMY DUNN : Mr . Sanders . 
BRETT SANDERS: Yes , sir . I ' d like to put 

them all 
TOMMY DUNN: Go ahead . That ' ll be fine . 
BRETT SANDERS: --- if I could. First Tee 

of the Upstate , I ' d like to give five hundred ; Anderson 
County Humane Society , three hundred ; Faces and Voices 
of Recovery , two hundred . I ' d like to put that in the 
form of a motion . 

TOMMY DUNN : Have a motion by Mr . 
Sanders . Have a second? 

CINDY WILSON : Second. 
TOMMY DUNN : Second Ms . Wilson. Any 

discussion? All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
Opposed like sign . Show the motion carries 
unanimously . Anything else , Mr . Sanders? 

BRETT SANDERS : No , sir . Thank you . 
TOMMY DUNN : Ms. Floyd. 
GRACIE FLOYD: (Mic not on) 
TOMMY DUNN : That ' s a group ; they've 

been around a long time. I think they ' re on Whitner 
Street . They do work for women that ' s been battered or 
abused and other things , a shelter . And I think this 
request is they requested for a frigidaire . They ' re in 
deed of a frigidaire and they ' re trying to get money up 
to get a frigidaire . 

GRACIE FLOYD : Okay . Mr . Dunn , I don ' t 
know how to do this , but may I suggest that they get in 
touch with the Frigidaire company? 

TOMMY DUNN : They have . They said they 
quit doing that . They won ' t do nothing else , is my 
understanding . 

GRACIE FLOYD: Oh , you're kidding? 
TOMMY DUNN : Yes , ma ' am. Anything else? 

Mr. Graham . 
RAY GRAHAM : Thank you , Mr . Chairman. 

If it ' s okay I ' ll do all 



52 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 TOMMY DUNN : Yes , sir . 
2 RAY GRAHAM : --- mine together , as well . 
3 Just want to mention one thing before I do this . 
4 Anderson Pregnancy Care , I hate I missed the 
5 presentation at an earlier meeting. I had a prior 
6 engagement I could not get away from . But they 
7 definitely do great work . Ms . Audrey Shaw , she is just 
8 absolutely -- does wonderful with that program . With 
9 that being said , when they actually brought their 

10 request forth is when I was at Hilton Head at the 
11 conference . I ' d like to do twenty-five hundred dollars 
12 to Anderson Pregnancy Care . I ' d like to do five 
13 thousand dollars to City of Belton Parks & Recreational 
14 Department ; I ' d like to do a hundred dollars to 
15 Anderson County Humane Society . I bring that in forth 
16 of a motion. 
17 TOMMY DUNN : Have a motion Mr . Graham . 
18 Have a second? Second Ms. Wilson . Any discussion? 
19 All in favor of the motion show of hands . Opposed like 
20 sign . Show the motion carries unanimously . 
21 Mr . Wooten . 
22 CRAIG WOOTEN : Yes , Mr . Chairman . I ' ll 
23 put three together and make a motion to do three 
24 hundred dollars for the Humane Society ; three hundred 
25 dollars for the Lights of Hope ; and three hundred 
26 dollars for the Faces and Voices of Recovery . I put 
27 that in the form of a motion . 
28 TOMMY DUNN : Second Ms . Wilson ; motion 
29 by Mr . Wooten . Any discussion? All in favor of the 
30 motion show of hands . Opposed like sign . Show the 
31 motion carries unanimously . 
32 Ms . Wilson? 
33 CINDY WILSON : Thank you . From District 
34 7 ' s recreation fund , may I appropriate three hundred 
35 for the Anderson County Humane Society ; one hundred for 
36 the Lights of Hope; and one hundred dollars for the 
37 FAVOR request . 
38 TOMMY DUNN : We have a motion by Ms . 
39 Wilson. Have a second? Second Mr . Davis . Any 
40 discussion? All in favor of the motion show of hands . 
41 Opposed like sign. Show the motion carries 
42 unanimously . 
43 Mr. Burns . 
44 RUSTY BURNS : Nothing at this time . 
45 TOMMY DUNN : No , hang on just a minute 
46 now. Hang on . Look here , ain ' t nobody wanting to get 
47 out of here no more worser than me and Ms . Floyd , but 
48 you ' ve just got to settle down here a minute . 
49 It ' s my understanding , you correct me if I ' m wrong , 
50 FAVOR needed eight hundred dollars ; is that right? 



53 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 RUSTY BURNS: Correct . 
2 TOMMY DUNN : I just want to make sure 
3 they get what they need . So I think my calculation is 
4 they got seven . From District 5 ' s account , give one 
5 hundred to FAVOR , to give them a total of eight hundred 
6 dollars ; and give three hundred dollars to the Humane 
7 Society for the Fur Ball . Put that in the form of a 
8 motion . 
9 BRETT SANDERS : Second . 

10 TOMMY DUNN: Second by Mr . Sanders . Any 
11 discussion? All in favor of the motion show of hands . 
12 Opposed like sign . Show the motion carries 
13 unanimously . 
14 Now you can hit it . 
15 RUSTY BURNS : My answer still stands . 
16 TOMMY DUNN : Now citizens comments . 
17 When Mr . Harmon calls your name , please state your name 
18 and district for the record . You have three minutes . 
19 Address the Chair , please . Mr . Harmon . 
20 LEON HARMON : Mr . Chairman , first speaker 
21 is Rick Freemantle . 
22 RICK FREEMANTLE : Good evening , Mr . Chairman . 
23 I ' m from District 7 . Been meaning to get here and 
24 comment on the latest happenings with Mr . Preston . 
25 There ' s two of you on this council I really want to 
26 give a special thanks to for sticking to this . I know 
27 you guys got a lot of grief from a lot of people . Some 
28 of you new folks , if you helped with this my thanks 
29 goes out to you also . I know there was a lot of 
30 discussion about how much money this was costing the 
31 county . Sometimes money doesn ' t need to be the issue. 
32 And this was a perfect example . The precedence set 
33 with this case is going to help people in this state 
34 for generations to come. 
35 No longer will we have clowns sit in positions 
36 where they can have anticipatory breaches of contracts . 
37 How I wish I could get away with that . But anyways , I 
38 know you guys went through a lot of grief . I know it 
39 was a long tough- fought battle . And I really want to 
40 commend you for sticking to it and doing the right 
41 thing in spite of all the grief you caught. I know I 
42 come here and give you guys grief a lot of times . This 
43 is one time where you really deserve a huge pat on the 
44 back. Thank you . 
45 TOMMY DUNN : Mr . Harmon . 
46 LEON HARMON : Next speaker signed up is 
47 Mark Powell . I don ' t believe he ' s here tonight . 
48 TOMMY DUNN : He left the building . 
49 LEON HARMON : Next speaker is Elizabeth 
50 Fant . 



54 
Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 ELIZABETH FANT : Elizabeth Fant , District 3 . 
2 The road thing . I guess I ' m leaning towards a road fee 
3 because I don ' t think that if we do it -- really what 
4 I ' d like to do is do a one cent sales tax if we thought 
5 we really needed the road money , but I don ' t want to do 
6 that because the sales tax gets collected in Columbia 
7 and then they send us what they want to send us 
8 basically . If you are aware , the Legislation changed 
9 the aid to subdivision formula in May . Did you know 

10 that? So they ' re not going to give us any more than 
11 they want to. Likewise , as somebody pointed out today , 
12 I don ' t know why it is that the rest of you all won ' t 
13 sit on them more because you ' re citizens just like the 
14 rest of us , even if you are a council person , and they 
15 shouldn ' t be allowed to do that . It ' s our money , our 
16 tax money , that goes to Co l umbia . We ' re supposed to 
17 get a share back . It should be the fair share . I get 
18 very upset when I hear that they ' re spending forty 
19 million for a Carolina Panthers exit ramp . They ' re 
20 spending -- even on the radio this morning they were 
21 talking about how Darlington car thing gets a hundred 
22 thousand dollars last year . Talking about the Carolina 
23 Law Library , that they ' re going to do another one and 
24 that ' s going to cost three hundred million . And I 
25 understand there ' s a bonus of about three hundred and 
26 fifty million sitting in Columbia and they dang share 
27 it with us . It ' s our money. 
28 We should be able to find some money out of the 
29 general budget - - general fund budget. And I don ' t 
30 understand , if we ' re going to do that , why don ' t we 
31 just go ahead just like we do for the library and just 
32 like we do for Tri-County Tech, we set aside a certain 
33 millage every year for roads . 
34 That being said , do you remember when we used to 
35 get an inspection sticker on our car . Used to cost 
36 about ten bucks. They stopped doing that because all 
37 you had to do was find a buddy who would check off the 
38 stuff whether you had raw tires or no horn or whatever . 
39 I ' d like to see , if we go forward with this , that there 
40 be a whole lot more discussion . I don ' t want to have 
41 second reading until you all have had your little 
42 budget workshop thing , and you don ' t need to do it at 
43 twelve o ' clock in the middle of the day . You need to 
44 do it at night when other people can come like citizens 
45 tonight. 
46 Here ' s what I suggest . I know I ' m probably going 
47 to run out of time . If you do a road fee , do a twelve 
48 dollar fee per vehicle . That ' s twenty- five cents a 
49 week per vehicle. If you ' ve got four vehicles at home , 
50 that ' s only forty - eight dollars a year . If you ' re 



55 
Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 Cromer & Son food thing , you can probably get by with a 
2 reasonable amount . These people have got a fleet of 
3 vehicles . We do it for two years sunset , not four . Of 
4 course it ' ll take a year for the money to 
5 LEON HARMON : Time , Mr . Chairman . 
6 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you , Mr . Harmon . 
7 Next. 
8 LEON HARMON : No one else is signed up . 
9 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you . We ' re going to 

10 have comments from council . Mr . Davis . 
11 JIMMY DAVIS : Thank you , Mr . Chair. Just 
12 want to say Celebrate Anderson was one of the best 
13 times I ' ve had in a long time . And I thank all the 
14 county staff that worked so hard to put it on . Thank 
15 you . 
16 TOMMY DUNN : Thank you . Mr. Sanders. 
17 BRETT SANDERS : Likewise . I was back out 
18 there today . Everything is spotless , looking great. I 
19 know everyone worked hard , overtime . It was a 
20 spectacular event and I appreciate all the hard work 
21 that the county put into it . 
22 TOMMY DUNN: Thank you . Ms . Floyd. 
23 GRACIE FLOYD : Mr . Burns , it ' s hurricane 
24 season again. 
25 RUSTY BURNS : Yes , ma ' am . 
26 GRACIE FLOYD : And as you know , in the 
27 past , not eight years is a long time ago but in the 
28 last five years , we ' ve had a lot of our workers 
29 exiting , going down to the coast to work . As you know , 
30 I have always been against that because it ' s double 
31 payment . Now , a lot of you may not have realized this . 
32 But every time they went down to the coast to pass out 
33 water , they were getting paid from the FEMA people and 
34 then they were getting money for their jobs that they 
35 left here to go down there . 
36 Now , a lot of these were office workers . Mr . 
37 Burns , I don ' t mind our people who specialize in this 
38 kind of thing going down ; EMS , the roads and bridges , 
39 the people who cut the trees , the people who suck up 
40 the water that they do here for us . I think that they 
41 ought to be down there . But Mr . Burns , I don ' t think 
42 no secretary or no office worker or anybody else should 
43 be going down there to get that extra money . I have 
44 been against that from the first. All right . And I ' m 
45 hoping that that ' s a practice that we won ' t have to be 
46 doing any more . You can just leave your job - - walk 
47 off your job to go down there to get that money . 
48 Okay . We ' re closing Allen Park . That ' s one of the 
49 parks around the Broadway Lake . Okay . We ' re closing 
50 it because it wasn ' t being used that much . And when it 



56 
Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

was being used , it wasn ' t being used (not speaking into 
mic) . So this is a park that w€ ' re closing . 

If you missed the trip to ITT , you missed it. We 
had a good time . I have -- my son have told me about a 
place in Charlotte just like that that he has worked . 
They have a full cafeteria ; they have a full gym ; they 
have- - it ' s just a wonderful place . ITT. If you can 
ever get an invitation up there , please , please go . 
Where were you? 

CRAIG WOOTEN : My wife informed me I was 
taking the kids to school that morning . 

GRACIE FLOYD : That ' s no excuse because 
you could have dropped them off and come on up . 

CRAIG WOOTEN : I don ' t know if I could 
have made it in time . 

GRACIE FLOYD : Yeah, he made it . Brett 
made it; didn ' t you? 

BRETT SANDERS : No . I was out of town . 
GRACIE FLOYD : Okay , yeah . We had a good 

time . But we need to start going . But you missed 
those horses , the Clydesdale . Oh , man , they were 
beautiful. They were just absolutely beautiful . And I 
can ' t think of nothing else better that you had going 
other than your family. Now I can excuse families for 
anything ; okay? 

CRAIG WOOTEN : Okay . 
GRACIE FLOYD : But a job and other stuff 

y ' all are doing , you should have been there . 
And Mr . Burns , may I suggest something , please? 

When we are invited to places like that , why don ' t we 
call one or two of our constituents and see if they 
would like to go just to see the thing because they can 
help us spread the good news out there ; okay? They 
wouldn ' t mind . Three more plates wouldn ' t hurt . Mr . 
Dunn ate heartily . It was just that good in the 
cafeteria . Anyway , that ' s all I had to say . And I 
thank you . 

TOMMY DUNN: Thank you. Mr . Graham. 
RAY GRAHAM: Thank you , Mr . Chairman . I 

know it ' s getting late , but Mr . Burns , if you would , by 
all means let all of our county employees know that 
worked so hard on Celebrate Anderson . I know they ' re 
already planning for next year . I mean it ' s just a 
tremendous amount of work that goes into it. 
Definitely had a great time . As always , I think we top 
ourselves every year . It ' s just a great event. Good 
for everyone ' s families , our employees , our community . 
Glad Anderson County is able to take part in that . 
That ' s all I have , Mr . Chairman . Thank you . 

TOMMY DUNN : Thank you . Mr . Wooten . 



Anderson County Council- County Council Meeting- September 3, 2019 

1 CRAIG WOOTEN : Just real quickly , I feel 
2 like I don ' t get con~tituent calls for two weeks and 
3 then I ' ll get six in one day . And when that happens 

57 

4 staff has been so helpful in getting back to people in 
5 a timely manner with either an answer or help with 
6 their problem . I appreciate that . 
7 TOMMY DUNN: Thank you . Ms . Wilson . 
8 CINDY WILSON : Well , I heard from a lot of 
9 4- H' ers and pony clubbers and their families , so please 

10 pass on to Ms. Adrienne Cole how much they appreciated 
11 that ability to get up close with the Clydesdales . And 
12 thank y ' all for your prayers . I appreciate it . Thank 
13 you . 
14 TOMMY DUNN : Yes , ma ' am . Just a couple 
15 of things . I want the whole council to wish Mr. Harmon 
16 a happy birthday . Appreciate all you do and hope you 
17 have a good birthday . And I think you had a good 
18 surprise , I think Saturday you said your son got to 
19 come back , so I know you enjoyed that . 
20 LEON HARMON : I did , Mr . Dunn . He was 
21 able -- he and his wife were able to come over from 
22 Germany . He has to go back tomorrow . They don ' t give 
23 him much time off . He flies airplanes in the Air 
24 Force . But thank you very much . I appreciate that. 
25 TOMMY DUNN : I also want to thank Mr . 
26 Burns , you and your staff , for putting Celebrate 
2 7 Anderson together . And the clean - up , the process it 
28 goes through . Y' all don ' t realize , this thing don ' t 
29 just start Labor Day weekend. It starts back with them 
30 working , getting money raised. Appreciate all the 
31 staff and all the hard work . 
32 Just want to also thank again , Mr . Wooten , for 
33 bringing our six o ' clock agenda to on the pregnancy 
34 thing . Appreciate all you do on that and your 
35 leadership on that , Mr . Wooten . 
36 I also want , the last thing , just bring up , I was 
37 told today , Anderson County has passed Spartanburg on 
38 our median pay . So we ' re number two now . And that ' s 
39 great . Chasing that. That ' s only a good thing for 
40 Anderson County . That means people ' s got good jobs. 
41 They ' re able to buy things and that ' s what it ' s all 
42 about . 
43 Y' all have a good night . 
44 
45 (MEETING ADJOURNED AT 8 : 55 P.M.) 



Ordinance 2019-032 
Page 1 of 2 

Applicant: 

Current Owner: 

Property Address: 

Precinct: 

Council District: 

TMS #(s) : 

Acreage: 

Current Zoning: 

Requested Zoning: 

Surrounding Zoning: 

Evaluation: 

Anderson County Planning Commission 
Staff Report 

July 2019 

Richard Bennett 

Anderson Investors LLC 

Cartee Road and 1-85 

Mount Tabor 

4 

p/o 45-00-01-008 (Eastern portion of parcel, 760ft x depth of 

parcel, changing at curve of in Cartee) 

+/- 9.75 (entire parcel 25.37) 

R-20 (Single-Family Residential) 

C-2 (Highway Commercial) beginning at curve in Cartee Road 

C-2 (Highway Commercial) 

North: R-20 
South: 1-1 and R-20 
East: R-20 
West: C-2 

This request is to rezone the portion of the parcel of property 
described above from R-20 (Single-Family Residential) to C-2 
(Highway Commercial). The applicant's stated purpose is to 
add to the commercial property next door. 

The purpose of the C-2 district is to provide for commercial 
uses on major thoroughfares which are oriented to 
customers traveling by automobile. Establishments in this 
district provide goods and services for the traveling public 
and for the convenience of local residents. 

An expansion of wastewater lines to the Exit 14 location is 
currently being planned and could serve the proposal, once 
completed. 

Commercial and residential uses are adjacent to the subject 
parcel. The Future Land Use Map in the County's 
Comprehensive Plan (2016) identifies the area as 
commercial and residential . 



Ordinance 2019-032 
Page 2 of 2 
Public Outreach: 

Public Feedback: 

Staff hereby certifies that the required public notification 
actions have been completed, as follows: 

June 20: Rezoning notification signs posted on subject 
property; 
June 20: Rezoning notification postcards sent to 140 
property owners within 2,000' of the subject property; 
June 21: Planning Commission public hearing 
advertisement published in the Anderson Independent
Mail. 

To date, staff has received five phone calls and one 
office visit for more information. 

Staff Recommendation: Due to the compatibility with the character of the area and 
infrastructure planned, staff recommends approval of this 
request. 

Planning Commission 
Recommendation : The Anderson County Planning Commission met on July 9, 

2019 and after a duly noted public hearing recommended 
denial of a request to rezone from C-2/R-20 to C-2. The vote 
was 4 in favor, 0 opposed, and 3 absent. 



Rezoning Application 
Anderson County Planning & Community Development 

JlAM e. f (.) 1 20\'J 
Date of Submission Approved/Denied 

Applicant's Information 

Applicant Name: 

Mailing Address: tD c~t Aw1 :l'f ?Dw~t~Lf/fi.t!1 ~c 211~1 9 
3' ~~ 31Cf-- ~2 ·t..e Telephone: 

Email: 

Owner's Information 

(If Different from Applicant) 

Owner Name: 1f N l>fh s;;w J:iv tJ ~ 5 rfvz I 
Mailing Address: 

Telephone: 

Email: 

Designation of Agent: (Complete only if owner is not the applicant) 

I hereby appoint the person named the Applicant as my agent to represent me in this 

Date 

Project Information 

Property Location: $.c_ /¥"7 1 J:- 'iJ S 
Parcel Number(s)/TMS: i c5' a (2 c) /D () ¥ 

.... 

County Council District: · Y- ~chool District: ----+~---.-----
Total Acreage: ~ C\~~9\o (~ ~ · r?\ o... li ~ t urrent Land Use: tJr»d.eJ 
Requested Zoning : C. .:Z. Current Zoning : C ~~ R 1-D 

Purpose of Rezoning : IJdd .fu ~A-n.~ 'c/ ~ f c;/cwA. 

401 East River Street/Post Office Box 8002 • Anderson. South Carolina 29622 
Phone: 864.260.4720 * Email: planning@andersoncountysc.org 

~) 



Are their any Private Covenants or Deed Restrictions on the Property? Yes 

Date 

If you Indicated yes, please provide a copy of your covenants and deed restrictions with this 
application, pursuant to State Law (Section 6-29-1145: July 1, 2007), determining existence of 
restrictive covenants. Copies may be obtained at the Register of Deeds Office. It is the 
applicant's responsibility for checking any subdivision covenants or private covenants 
pertaining to the property. 

Additional Information or Comments: 

An accurate plat (survey} of the property must be submitted with this application. 

If pursuing a review district classification (PO, IZOD, PC), a preliminary development plan, 
statement of intent and letters from appropriate agencies or districts verifying available and 
adequate public facilities must be submitted with the application . 

Please refer to Chapter 70 of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances for further information 
regarding submission requirements. 

As the applicant, I hereby confirm that all required information and materials for this application 
are authentic and have been submitted to the Planning & Community Development office. 

~ \t"'D 0\. '» :> J.J 
Date 

~ ~A~=t=--..:::::::.:.... 
* A zo · g m amendment may be initiated by the property owner(s) , Planning Commission, 

Zoning Administrator or County Council. * 

For Office Use Only: 

Application Received By: Cx-r,.'C/ iS 

Commission Public Hearing: 7 -9-\C\ 

Complete Submission Date: 

Council Public Hearing: 

401 East River Street/Post Office Box 8002 * Anderson. South Carolina 29622 
Phone: 864.260.4720 * Email: planning@andersoncountysc.org 

1 



,pe ----
.. 
\J 
~ 

0 " ~ 
(\,) " ~ 

..J ' 8 ~ ~ ~~ ·~ 
\., I'Q 

tl 

~ "' ..... 
~ 

------

/GZB . ~-· 

;• '* 
-r~Acr A 
Z.S. .. 373AC~£S 

.r-es' 

Lr (;) c ,., ;r-/d;A/ ,w ~ 
A/a ..SC,4CC 

f¥JDE 

r-as 

"'?'" o tt:>~vr I k 

tJ o\ c ·~ 
0 

-, 

I Hllt!IY CERTIFY THA 
IULATIVI EltltOit 0' l'H 
DITUNINEO 1Y 0 M 
PltOJICTIONI I XCIP T • 
I H A 'LO OD H A Z A It D 

ITATI OF SOUTH CAitO 
COUNTY OF ANOEfUO 

PLAT . Of ; 

I~A~D Jt::. • A 
:E,ERENCU: Pt:A:r" 21 r 

\\ I SGO 

SCAL r : I :. 30«?' 



. . . 
· Al?+-zt £ 

' /8.!3..s:'. +7' 

' ~~ 
RECORDED THIS .. .. .... MY 
~ ~0 O.f"·~~ .... .. A.D., 19 .... ~ 
~ ... ~ !.1 PAGE . ~.-:. 

\\~lll--n AT •... .. ..... .. ... M. 

-~~o~·~:KP. 

T TH£ NEASUIUNINTS AS SHOWN ARE CORRECT : THU TH! 
IS tUitYIY IS '-£SS THAN I ;.,rooc/ •, THAT THE Aft£ A WAS 
0 . NlTHOO; THAT THEft! Altf NO !NCitOACHIIIEHTS OR 
AS SHOWN~ AND, THA, THE PROPI:IHf IS NOT LOCATlU 
AIUA . 

S . C . REO . 1.. . S. fCO . 41 94 

'-INA TOWN!HHP Ofll P£A/P.C.C"'T''AJ 
N CITY OF 

2. 7 -t!AC r 0, LAND SUftVEY£0 AT THI ltfQUUT OF 

'L~£A11 ::TA.. / JAMCS ..S· £A.k£.S 

/,SOO ' • 

our : ..JAt-J 18 \~9o 
a APPliWHITI: SUAVIYING ASSOC:IA,U 

"~DEASON STREET, BELTON, SOUfll CAROLINA 2982'1 
r ~2 BILTON H I·GHWAY, ANO(I.SON, SOUTH CAROL INA 2U21 

PHONE ~ lOS· 221 • 4 li 5 

r. 

r~ ~J 
..................... 

~ ~ 

~ 
' 

~? 
()~ ~'" " ~ (\ " " 

; 

I 
I 
.I 



Rezoning Request 
SC-187 & 1-85 
C-2/R-20 to C-2 

r 
0 250 500 1,000 Feet 



Aarlal Photography 
_;"'. .. ,.cz.':l'~-

Rezoning Request 
SC-187 & 1-85 
C-2/R-20 to C-2 

..----r---1 

0 500 1 ,000 2,000 Feet 



Rezoning Request 
SC-187 & 1-85 
C-2/R-20 to C-2 

1-1 

T I I . -,------- I I 
0 500 1,000 2,000 Feet 



Rezoning Request 
SC-187 & 1-85 
C-2/R-20 to C-2 

- r r-
o 500 1,000 2,000 Feet 







Rezoning Request Recommendation 

'1-9-\9 
Date of Planning Commission Meeting Recommendation (Approval or Denial} 

Project Information 

Name of Applicant: ~RL.!.\c:.bo.xJ~· ~~d:!.__----~~..B,ls:e..Lo..l!ndt...!:=:::.!.:__ ____ ____ ____ _ 

Prope~~c~on: ~~~~\w~~~~~C~~~~~~~~~-+~\~--Z~S~~~~~~~~ 
County Council District: __ 4..__ _ _ ______ School District: _ lf.!_ _ _ _____ _ 

Tota l Acreage: _..\-_!.f ____ q r..:... '1~5"'---------- Current Land Use: ~e,\~pe..cL 

Current Zoning: P.- Qo Requested Zoning: -~C==--~fJ~-----

Purpose of Rezoning: ().<)0. =\o C- Q 1)4.\-- doo'f 

Recommendation 

Recommendation Rendered: ___Jc\~QJ)~..!Jiu.o..l!o..ld.-_ ___ _ _ ____________ _ 

Reason(s) for DeniaL if applicable: 

.J Compatibility with Future Land Use Map 

fJ Compatibility with Traffic Levels 

1 J Availability of Infrastructure Support 

)4 Compatibility with Surrounding Properties 

~ Use and Value of Surrounding Properties 0 Compatibility with Density Levels 

L Other (please elaborate) : ------- - - ----- -------

Explanation of Reasons:--- ----- --- - -------- -------

Planning Commission Presiding Chairman: -'~,;Jp.O.Ob.L.!~e~-l.<..J.JO:I..Ll.o..lle""'-'-sL-___ _ ___ ___ _ 

Signature: } <""V ~~--- Date: '1- 9-J9 

Page l of l 

For Office Use Only: 

Scheduled Commission Public Hearing Date: '1 .... 9 ... l't Planning Commission Recommendation: denial 
Scheduled Council Public Hearing Date: County Council Decision: ___ _____ _ 

Revision 
March 2019 

Anderson County Planning & Community Development 
401 East River Street 1 Post Offic e Box 8002 

Anderson, South Carolina 29622 1 Phone: (864) 260-4720, Ext.3 



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-042 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS 
PARK (2010 PARK) OF ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO 
AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK TO INCLUDE CERTAIN PROPERTY OF 
PROJECT ALLOY; AND OTHER MATTERS THERETO. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 4391 enacted October 19, 2010 by Greenville 

County Council, Greenville County entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint 

County Industrial and Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, with 

Anderson County (the "Agreement"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created 

therein (the "Park") may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson 

County and Greenville County; and 

WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Greenville County to 

Project Alloy, it is now desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain parcels 

in Greenville County; 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council in meeting duly 

assembled that: 

1. Exhibit A to the Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include 

the property located in Greenville County described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and, 

pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon adoption by Anderson County Council of a 

corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed amended to so include such property and 

Exhibit A as so revised, without further action by either county. 

2. The remaining terms and provisions of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances 

not revised or affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 

A-1 



3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 

remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

4. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 

rescinded. 

5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 

Enactment by Anderson County Council. 

ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this ____ day of ____ , 2019. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
County Attorney 

First Reading: September 3, 2019 
Second Reading: ______ _ 
Third Reading: _______ _ 
Public Hearing: _______ _ 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

Addition to Exhibit A to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

A-2 



Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

Tax Map Number 0486000103905 

A-3 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of September 3, 2019, , 2019 and 
___ , 20 19, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and an 
original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

Dated: ___ , 2019 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) ORDINANCE NO. 2019-044 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FEE 
IN LIEU OF TAX AND INCENTIVE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND A COMPANY IDENTIFIED 
FOR THE TIME BEING AS PROJECT AUGUSTUS, WITH RESPECT TO 
CERTAIN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY TO BE LOCATED AT 
ONE OR MORE LOCATIONS IN THE COUNTY, WHEREBY SUCH PROPERTY 
WILL BE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES; AND 
OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the "County"), acting by and 
through its County Council (the "County Council"), is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the 
provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44 (the "PILOT Act"), Title 4, Chapter l (the "Multi-County Park Act"), Code 
of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the "Code), and, particularly, Section 4-l-175 of the Code, and 
by incorporation Section 4-29-68 of the Code, to enter into agreements with industry, whereby the industry 
would pay fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to qualified industrial or commercial projects; to provide special 
source revenue credits against such fees-in-lieu-of-taxes as reimbursement for certain qualified expenditures; 
through all such powers the economic development of the State of South Carolina (the "State") will be 
promoted and trade developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate or remain in 
the State and thus utilize and employ the manpower, products and resources of the State and benefit the general 
public welfare of the County by providing services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not 
otherwise provided locally; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the PILOT Act, and in order to induce investment in the County, the County 
Council adopted on September 3, 2019 an inducement resolution (the Inducement Resolution") with respect 
to certain proposed investment by a company identified for the time being as Project Augustus, a 
______ organized and existing under the laws of the State of (the "Company"), with 
respect to the acquisition, construction, and installation by the Company and any tenant thereof and/or 
successor in interest thereto of land, buildings, improvements, fixtures, machinery, equipment, furnishings 
and other real and/or tangible personal property to constitute the establishment of certain commercial or 
manufacturing facilities at one or more locations in the County (collectively, the "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the Company has represented that the Project will involve an aggregate projected 
investment of at least $10,065,000 in the County within the Investment Period (as such term is defined in the 
hereinafter defined Fee Agreement); and 

WHEREAS, the County has determined on the basis of the information supplied to it by the 
Company that the Project would be a "project" and "economic development property" as such terms are 
defined in the PILOT Act, and that the Project would serve the purposes of the PILOT Act; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Section 4-1-170 of the Multi-County Park Act and Article 
Vill, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution, the County intends to cause the Project, to the extent 
not already therein located, to be placed in a joint county industrial and business park such that the Project 
will receive the benefits of the Multi-County Park Act; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Inducement Resolution, the County has agreed to, among other things, 
enter into a Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement with the Company (the "Fee Agreement"), whereby 



the County would provide therein, amongst other things, for (i) a payment of a fee in lieu of taxes by the 
Company with respect to the Project and (ii) pursuant to Section 4-1-175 of the Multi-County Park Act, the 
benefit to the Company of certain Special Source Credits, all as set forth in great detail in the Free Agreement; 
and 

WHEREAS, the County Council has caused to be prepared and presented to this meeting the form 
of the Fee Agreement which the County proposes to execute and deliver; and 

WHEREAS, it appears that the documents above referred to, which are now before this meeting, are 
in appropriate form and are an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered or approved by the County 
for the purposes intended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Council as follows: 

Section 1. Based on information supplied by the Company, it is hereby found, determined and 
declared by the County Council, as follows: 

(a) The Project will constitute a "project" and "economic development property" as said 
terms are referred to and defined in the FILOT Act, and the County's actions herein will subserve the 
purposes and in all respects conform to the provisions and requirements of the FILOT Act; 

(b) The Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by 
providing services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; 

(c) The Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated 
municipality or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of either; 

(d) The purposes to be accomplished by the Project, i.e., economic development, 
creation of jobs and addition to the tax base of the County, are proper governmental and public 
purposes; and 

(e) The benefits of the Project are anticipated to be greater than the costs. 

Section 2. The form, terms and provisions of the Fee Agreement presented to this meeting are 
hereby approved and all of the terms and provisions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if 
the Fee Agreement was set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of County Council is hereby 
authorized, empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver the Fee Agreement in the name of 
and on behalf of the County, and the Clerk to County Council is hereby authorized and directed to attest the 
same, and thereupon to cause the Fee Agreement to be delivered to the Company and cause a copy of the 
same to be delivered to the Anderson County Auditor and Assessor. The Fee Agreement is to be in 
substantially the form now before this meeting and hereby approved, or with such minor changes therein as 
shall be approved by the Chairman of County Council, upon advice of counsel, his execution thereof to 
constitute conclusive evidence of his approval of any and all changes or revisions therein from the form of 
Fee Agreement now before this meeting. 

Section 3. The Chairman of County Council, the County Administrator, and the Clerk to the 
County Council for and on behalf of the County, are hereby authorized and directed to do any and all things 
necessary to effect the execution and delivery of the Fee Agreement and the performance of all obligations of 
the County thereunder. 

NPCOL1:7615114.3-LT-(TVC) 062206-00002 
Ordinance 2019-044 



Section 4. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and if any 
section, phrase or provisions shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid 
or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases and 
provisions hereunder. 

Section 5. All ordinances, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent 
of such conflict, hereby repealed. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage 
by the County Council. 

ENACTED in meeting duly assembled this __ day of ____ , 2019. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Burns 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey Croegaert, 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

First Reading: September 3, 2019 
Second Reading: 
Third Reading: 
Public Hearing: 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

NPCOL1:7615114 . 3-LT-(TVC) 062206 - 00002 
Ordinance 2019-044 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received unanimous approval , by the County Council at its meetings of September 3, 2019, , 2019; 
and , 2019, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, 
and an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

Dated: _____ , 2019 



FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 

Between 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

and 

[PROJECT AUGUSTUS] 

Dated as of ____ , 2019 



SUMMARY OF CONTENTS OF 
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND INCENTIVE AGREEMENT 

As permitted under Section 12-44-55(B), Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the "Code"), 
the parties have agreed to waive the requirements of Section 12-44-55 of the Code. The following is a 
summary of the key provisions of this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement (the "Fee Agreement"). 
This summary is inserted for convenience only and does not constitute a part of this Fee Agreement or a 
summary compliant with Section 12-44-55 of the Code. 

Company Name: 

Projected 
Investment: 
Location (street): 

1. FILOT 
Required 

Investment: 
Investment Period: 

Assessment Ratio: 

Millage: 

Adjustable or fixed 
millage: 

Clawback 
information: 

2.MCIP 
Included m an 

MCIP: 
If yes, Name & Date: 

3. SSRC 
Total Amount: 
No. of Years 
Yearly Increments : 

Clawback information: 

4. Other information 

[Project Augustus] Project Code Project Augustus 
Name: 

$10,065,000 Projected Jobs: N/A 

[To be inserted.] Tax Map No.: [To be inserted.] 

$10,065,000 Required Jobs : None 

Ends, initially, 5 years from Ordinance '2019 
Commencement Date, as defined No./Date: 
in the Fee Agreement 
6% Term (years): 30 (for each annual 

Phase, as defined in the 
Fee Agreement) 

308.7 Net Present Value 
(if yes, discount No 
rate): 

Fixed 

FILOT terminated retroactively and prospectively if aggregate investment m 
Project is not at least $10,065,000 by end of Standard Investment Period. 

Yes (To be completed in 2019) 

Anderson-Greenville MCIP Agreement dated as of December 1, 2010 
(Subject property to be added 20 19) 

85 % for tax years 1-5; 35 % for tax years 6-30 
30 years 
See above. 
SSRC terminated retroactively and prospectively if aggregate investment in Project 
is not at least $10,065,000 by end of Standard Investment Period. 

If the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement ($1 0,065,000) is satisfied within 
the Standard Investment Period, the Investment Period shall be extended by 5 years . 

Ill 

NPCOLI :7614635.2-LT-(TVC) 062206-00002 
Ordinance 2019-044 



FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND INCENTIVE AGREEMENT 

THIS FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND INCENTIVEAGREEMENT (the "Fee Agreement") is made 
and entered into as of , 20019 by and between ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH 
CAROLINA (the "County") , a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South 
Carolina (the "State"), acting by and through the Anderson County Council (the "County Council") as the 
governing body of the County, and [PROJECT AUGUSTUS], a organized and existing 
under the laws of the State of (the "Company"). 

RECITALS 

1. The Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (the "Code"), and, more particularly, 
Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code (the "PILOT Act"), authorizes the County to (a) induce industries to locate 
in the State; (b) encourage industries now located in the State to expand their investments and thus make use 
of and employ manpower, products, and other resources of the State; and (c) enter into a fee agreement with 
entities meeting the requirements of the PILOT Act, which identifies certain property of such entities as 
economic development property and provides for the payment of a fee in lieu of tax with respect to such 
property. 

2. The Company (as a Sponsor, within the meaning of the PILOT Act) desires to provide for 
the acquisition and construction of the Project (as defined herein) to constitute the establishment of certain 
commercial or manufacturing facilities by the Company and any tenant thereof and/or successor in interest 
thereto at one or more locations in the County. 

3. Based on information supplied by the Company, the County Council has evaluated the 
Project based on relevant criteria that include, but are not limited to, the purposes the Project is to accomplish, 
the anticipated dollar amount and nature of the investment, and the anticipated costs and benefits to the 
County. Pursuant to Section l2-44-40(H)(l ) of the PILOT Act, the County finds that: (a) the Project is 
anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing services, employment, recreation, 
or other public benefits not otherwise adequately provided locally; (b) the Project will give rise to no pecuniary 
liability of the County or any incorporated municipality therein and to no charge against their general credit 
or taxing powers; (c) the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and public 
purposes; and (d) the benefits of the Project are greater than the costs. 

4. The Project is located, or if not so located as of the date of this Fee Agreement the County 
intends to use its best efforts to so locate the Project, in a joint county industrial or business park created with 
an adjoining county in the State pursuant to agreement entered into pursuant to Title 4, Chapter I of the Code, 
and more particularly, Section 4-1-170 of the Code and Article Vill, Section l3(D) of the South Carolina 
Constitution. 

5. Section 4-l-17 5 of the Code authorizes the County to provide special source revenue 
credits ("Special Source Credits") against payments in lieu of taxes for purposes of defraying of the cost of 
designing, acquiring, constructing, improving, or expanding (i) the infrastructure serving the County or a 
project and (ii) for improved and unimproved real estate, and personal property, including machinery and 
equipment, used in the operation of a manufacturing facility or commercial enterprise (collectively, 
"Special Source Improvements"). 

6. By enactment of an Ordinance on , 2019, the County Council has 
authorized the County to enter into this Fee Agreement with the Company which classifies the Project as 
Economic Development Property under the PILOT Act, provides for the payment of fees in lieu of taxes in 



connection with the Project, and effects the provision of Special Source Credits with respect to the Project, all 
as further described herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the respecti ve representations and 
agreements hereinafter contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.0 I. Definitions 

The terms that this Article defines shall for all purposes of this Fee Agreement have the meanings 
herein specified, unless the context clearly requires otherwise: 

"Administration Expenses" shall mean the reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the 
County with respect to this Fee Agreement, including without limitation reasonable attorney fees; provided, 
however, that no such expense shall be considered an Administration Expense until the County has 
furnished to the Company a statement in writing indicating the amount of such expense and the reason it 
has been or will be incurred. 

"Affiliate" shall mean with respect to the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, 
any corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other entity which owns all or part of the 
Company, or such Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, or which is owned in whole or in part by the 
Company or such Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, or by any partner, shareholder or owner of the 
Company or such Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, as well as any subsidiary, affiliate, individual or 
entity who bears a relationship to the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, as described 
in Section 267(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

"Code" shall mean the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended. 

"Commencement Date" shall mean the last day of the property tax year during which the Project 
or the first Phase thereof is placed in service, which date shall not be later than the last day of the property 
tax year which is three (3) years from the year in which the County and the Company enter into this Fee 
Agreement. 

"Company" shall mean [Project Augustus], a limited liability company, organized and existing 
under the laws of the State of , and any surviving, resulting, or transferee entity in any merger, 
consolidation, or transfer of assets; or any other person or entity which may succeed to the rights and duties 
of the Company. 

"Condemnation Event" shall mean any act of taking by a public or quasi-public authority through 
condemnation, reverse condemnation or eminent domain . 

"Contract Minimum Investment Requirement" shall mean, with respect to the Project, investment 
by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, in the aggregate, of at least $10,065,000 (without regard to 
depreciation or other diminution in value) that would be subject (non-exempt) to ad valorem taxation in the 
absence of this Fee Agreement. 

2 
NPCOLI :76 14635.2-L T -(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 2019-044 



"County" shall mean Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a political 
subdivision of the State, its successors and assigns, acting by and through the County Council as the 
governing body of the County . 

"County Administrator" shall mean the Anderson County Administrator, or the person holding any 
successor office of the County. 

"County Assessor" shall mean the Anderson County Assessor, or the person holding any successor 
office of the County. 

"County Auditor" shall mean the Anderson County Auditor, or the person holding any successor 
office of the County. 

"County Council " shall mean Anderson County Council , the governing body of the County. 

"County Treasurer" shall mean the Anderson County Treasurer, or the person holding any 
successor office of the County . 

"Defaulting Entity " shall have the meaning set forth for such term in Section 6.02(a) hereof. 

"Deficiency Amount" shall have the meaning set forth for such term in Section 4.03(a) hereof. 

"Department" shall mean the South Carolina Department of Revenue. 

"Diminution in Value " in respect of the Project shall mean any reduction in the value, using, to the 
extent such constitute Economic Development Property, the original fair market value (without regard to 
depreciation) as determined in Step 1 of Section 4.01 of this Fee Agreement, of the items which constitute 
a part of the Project which may be caused by the Company's or any Sponsor Affiliate 's removal and/or 
disposal of Project property pursuant to Section 4.04 hereof, or by its election to remove components of 
the Project as a result of any damage or destruction or any Condemnation Event with respect thereto. 

"Economic Development Property " shall mean those items of real and tangible personal property 
of the Project which are eligible for inclusion as economic development property under the Fll__OT Act, 
selected and identified by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in its annual filing of a SCDOR PT-300S 
or comparable form with the Department (as such filing may be amended from time to time) for each year 
within the Investment Period. 

"Equipment" shall mean machinery, equipment, furniture , office equipment, and other tangible 
personal property, together with any and all additions, accessions, replacements, and substitutions thereto 
or therefor, all to the extent located on the Land. 

"Event of Default" shall mean any event of default specified in Section 6.01 hereof. 

"Exemption Period" shall mean the period beginning on the first day of the property tax year after 
the property tax year in which an applicable portion of Economic Development Property is placed in service 
and ending on the Termination Date. In case there are Phases of the Project, the Exemption Period 
separately applies to each year's investment made during the Investment Period. 

"Fee Agreement" shall mean this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement, as originally 
executed and as, from time to time, supplemented or amended as permitted herein. 

3 
NPCOLI :7614635.2-LT-(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 2019-044 



"FILOT" or "FILOT Payments" shall mean the amount paid or to be paid in lieu of ad valorem 
property taxes as provided herein. 

"FILOT Act" shall mean Title 12, Chapter 44, of the Code, and all future acts successor or 
supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof. 

"FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement" shall mean, with respect to the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliate, an investment of at least $2,500,000 by the Company, or Sponsor Affiliate, as the case 
may be, in the Project, or, alternatively, of at least $5,000,000 by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, 
in the aggregate, in the Project to the extent permitted by Section 12-44-30 of the FILOT Act. 

"Improvements" shall mean improvements to the Land, including buildings, building additions, 
roads, sewer lines, and infrastructure, together with any and all additions, fixtures, accessions, 
replacements, and substitutions thereto or therefor. 

"Investment Period" shall mean, and shall be equal to, the Standard Investment Period; provided, 
as permitted by the FILOT Act, in the event the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement is satisfied by 
the end of the Standard Investment Period, the Investment Period shall be automatically extended by five 
(5) years. 

"Land" means the land upon which the Project will be located, as described in Exhibit A attached 
hereto, as Exhibit A may be supplemented from time to time in accordance with Section 3.01(c) hereof. 

"MCIP Act" shall mean Title 4, Chapter 1, of the Code, and all future acts successor or 
supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof. 

"MCIP Agreement" shall mean the Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial 
and Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, between the County and 
Greenville County, South Carolina, as the same may be further amended or supplemented from time to 
time, or such other agreement as the County may enter with respect to the Project. 

"MCIP " shall mean (i) the joint county industrial park established pursuant to the terms of the 
MCIP Agreement and (ii) any joint county industrial park created pursuant to a successor park agreement 
delivered by the County and a partner county in accordance with Section 4-1-170 of the MCIP Act, or any 
successor provision, with respect to the Project. 

"Phase" or "Phases" in respect of the Project shall mean that the components of the Project are 
placed in service during more than one year during the Investment Period, and the word "Phase" shall 
therefore refer to the applicable portion of the Project placed in service in a given year during the Investment 
Period. 

"Project" shall mean the Land and all the Equipment and Improvements that the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliate determines to be necessary, suitable or useful for the purposes described in Section 
2.02(b) hereof, to the extent determined by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate to be a part of the Project 
and placed in service during the Investment Period, and any Replacement Property . Notwithstanding 
anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the Economic Development Property portion of the Project 
shall not include property which will not qualify for the FILOT pursuant to Section 12-44-110 of the FILOT 
Act, including without limitation property which has been subject to ad valorem taxation in the State prior 
to commencement of the Investment Period; provided, however, the Project may include (a) modifications 
which constitute an expansion of the real property portion of the Project, (b) property described in Section 
12-44-110(3) of the FILOT Act to the extent the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates invest at least an 

4 
NPCOLI :7614635.2-LT-(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 2019-044 



additional $45,000,000 in the Project, exclusive of such described property, and (c) the property allowed 
pursuant to Section 12-44-110(2) of the FILOT Act. 

"Removed Components" shall mean components of the Project or portions thereof which the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in its sole discretion, elects to remove from the Project pursuant to 
Section 4.04 hereof or as a result of any Condemnation Event. 

"Replacement Property" shall mean any property which is placed in service as a replacement for 
any item of Equipment or any Improvement previously subject to this Fee Agreement regardless of whether 
such property serves the same functions as the property it is replacing and regardless of whether more than 
one piece of property replaces any item of Equipment or any Improvement to the fullest extent that the 
FILOT Act permits. 

"Special Source Credits" means the special source revenue credits provided pursuant to Section 4-
1-175 of the MCIP Act and Section 4.02 of this Fee Agreement, with respect to the Special Source 
Improvements . Special Source Credits are to be used for the payment of, or reimbursement for, Special 
Source Improvements constituting real property, improvements and infrastructure before any use for the 
payment of Infrastructure constituting personal property, notwithstanding any presumptions to the contrary 
in the MCIP Act or otherwise. 

"Special Source Improvements" means (i) the infrastructure serving the County or the Project, (ii) 
improved and unimproved real estate, and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used in 
the operation of a manufacturing or commercial enterprise, or (iii) such other items as may be described in 
or permitted under Section 4-29-68 of the Code. 

"Sponsor Affiliate" shall mean an entity that joins with the Company and that participates in the 
investment in, or financing of, the Project and which meets the requirements under the FILOT Act to be 
entitled to the benefits of this Fee Agreement with respect to its participation in the Project, all as set forth 
in Section 5.13 hereof. 

"Standard In vestment Period" shall mean the period beginning with the first day of any purchase 
or acquisition of Economic Development Property and ending five (5) years after the Commencement Date. 

"State" shall mean the State of South Carol ina. 

"Termination Date" shall mean, with respect to each Phase of the Project, the end of the last day 
of the property tax year which is the 291h year following the first property tax year in which such Phase of 
the Project is placed in service; provided, that the intention of the parties is that the Company will make at 
least 30 annual FILOT payments under Article IV hereof with respect to each Phase of the Project; and 
provided further, that if this Fee Agreement is terminated earlier in accordance with the terms hereof, the 
Termination Date shall mean the date of such termination . 

"Transfer Provisions" shall mean the provisions of Section 12-44-120 of the FILOT Act, as 
amended or supplemented from time to time, concerning, among other things, the necessity of obtaining 
County consent to certain transfers. 

Any reference to any agreement or document in this Article I or otherwise in this Fee Agreement 
shall include any and all amendments, supplements, addenda, and modifications to such agreement or 
document. 

Section 1.02 . Project-Related Investments 

5 
NPCOL I :76 14635.2-L T -(TV C) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 2019-044 



The term "investment" or "invest" as used herein shall include not only investments made by the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, but also to the fullest extent permitted by law, those investments 
made by or for the benefit of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate with respect to the Project through 
federal, state, or local grants, to the extent such investments are subject to ad valorem taxes, fees in lieu of 
ad valorem taxes pursuant to the MCIP Act, or PILOT payments by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate 
pursuant to the PILOT Act. 

[End of Article I] 

6 
NPCOLI :7614635.2-LT-(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 2019-044 



ARTICLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS 

Section 2.0 I . Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the County 

The County hereby represents, warrants, and agrees as follows: 

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State and acts 
through the County Council as its governing body. The County has duly authorized the execution and 
delivery of this Fee Agreement and any and all other agreements described herein or therein and has 
obtained all consents from third parties and taken all actions necessary or that the law requires to fulfill its 
obligations hereunder. 

(b) Based upon representations by the Company, the Project constitutes a "project" within the 
meaning of the PILOT Act. 

(c) The County has agreed that each item of real and tangible personal property comprising 
the Project which is eligible to be economic development property under the PILOT Act, and that the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate so selects, shall be considered Economic Development Property and is 
thereby exempt from ad valorem taxation in the State. 

(d) The millage rate set forth in Step 3 of Section 4.01(a) hereof is 308.7 mills, which is the 
millage rate in effect with respect to the location of the proposed Project as of June 30,2018, as permitted 
under Section 12-44-SO(A)(l)(d) of the PILOT Act. 

(e) The County has located, or will use its best efforts to locate, the Project in the MCIP on 
terms, and for a duration, sufficient to facilitate the County's provisions of the Special Source Credits 
set forth in this Fee Agreement. 

Section 2.02. Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the Company 

The Company hereby represents, warrants, and agrees as follows: 

(a) The Company is organized and in good standing under the laws of the State of ___ _ 
is duly authorized to transact business in the State, has power to enter into this Fee Agreement, and has duly 
authorized the execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement. 

(b) The Company intends that the Project be operated as a "project" within the meaning of the 
PILOT Act as in effect on the date hereof. The Company intends that the Project be operated and utilized 
for the purpose of commercial and/or industrial activities, and for such other purposes that the PILOT Act 
permits as the Company may deem appropriate. 

(c) The execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement by the County has been instrumental in 
inducing the Company to locate the Project in the County. 

(d) The Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, will use commercially reasonable 
efforts to meet, or cause to be met, the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement within the Investment 
Period. 

7 
NPCOLI :7614635.2-L T -(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 2019-044 



[End of Article II] 

8 
NPCOLI :7614635.2-LT-(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 2019-044 



ARTICLE III 

COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 

Section 3.0 l. The Project 

(a) The Company intends and expects, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, to (i) construct 
and acquire the Project, as shall be determined in its sole discretion, and (ii) meet the Contract Minimum 
Investment Requirement within the Investment Period. The Company anticipates that the first Phase of the 
Project will be placed in service during the property tax year ending [December 31]. 

(b) Pursuant to the FILOT Act and subject to Section 4.03 hereof, the Company and the 
County hereby agree that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall identify annually those assets which 
are eligible for FILOT payments under the FILOT Act and which the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate 
selects for such treatment by listing such assets in its annual PT-300S form (or comparable form) to be filed 
with the Department (as such may be amended from time to time) and that by listing such assets, such assets 
shall automatically become Economic Development Property and therefore be exempt from all ad valorem 
taxation during the Exemption Period. Anything contained in this Fee Agreement to the contrary 
notwithstanding, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall not be obligated to complete the acquisition 
of the Project. However, if the Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, do not meet the Contract 
Minimum Investment Requirement within the Investment Period, the provisions of Section 4.03 hereof 
shall control. 

(c) The Company may add to the Land such real property, located in any of the same taxing 
district or districts in the County as the original Land, as the Company, in its discretion, deems useful or 
desirable. In such event, the Company, at its expense, shall deliver to the County an appropriately revised 
Exhibit A to this Fee Agreement, in form reasonably acceptable to the County, and such revised Exhibit A 
shall, effective as of the date set forth in the written notice transmitting the revised Exhibit A, be 
automatically made a part of this Fee Agreement without further action or proceedings by the County. 

Section 3.02. Diligent Completion 

The Company agrees to use its reasonable efforts to cause the completion of the Project as soon as 
practicable, but in any event on or prior to the end of the Investment Period. 

Section 3.03. Filings and Reports 

(a) Each year during the term of the Fee Agreement, each of the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates shall deliver to the County, the County Auditor, the County Assessor, and the County Treasurer 
a copy of its most recent annual filings with the Department with respect to the Project, not later than thirty 
(30) days following delivery thereof to the Department. 

(b) The Company shall cause a copy of this Fee Agreement, as well as a copy of the completed 
Form PT-443 of the Department, to be filed with the County Auditor and the County Assessor, and to their 
counterparts in the partner county to the MCIP Agreement, the County Administrator and the Department 
within thirty (30) days after the date of execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement by all parties hereto. 

(c) Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agree to maintain complete books and 
records accounting for the acquisition, financing, construction, and operation of the Project. Such books 
and records shall (i) permit ready identification of the various Phases and components thereof; (ii) confirm 
the dates on which each Phase was placed in service; and (iii) include copies of all filings made by the 

9 
NPCOLI :7614635.2-LT-(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 2019-044 



Company and any such Sponsor Affiliates in accordance with Section 3.03(a) or (b) above with respect to 
property placed in service as part of the Project. 

[End of Article III] 

10 
NPCOLI :7614635.2-LT-(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 20 19-044 



ARTICLE IV 

FILOT PAYMENTS 

Section 4.0 1. FILOT Payments 

(a) Pursuant to Section 12-44-50 of the PILOT Act, each of the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates, as applicable, are required to make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes to the County with 
respect to its respective portion of Economic Development Property. Inasmuch as the Company anticipates 
an initial investment of sums sufficient for the Project to qualify for a fee in lieu of tax arrangement under 
Section 12-44-SO(A)( 1) of the FILOT Act, the County and the Company have negotiated the amount of the 
FILOT Payments in accordance therewith. Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, 
shall make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes with respect to its respective portion of Economic 
Development Property which comprises the Project and is placed in service, as follows: each of the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes during 
the Exemption Period with respect to its respective portion of the Economic Development Property or, if 
there are Phases of the Economic Development Property, with respect to its respective portion of each Phase 
of the Economic Development Property, said payments to be made annually and to be due and payable and 
subject to penalty assessments on the same dates and in the same manner as prescribed by the County for 
ad valorem taxes. The determination of the amount of such annual FILOT Payments shall be in accordance 
with the following procedure (subject, in any event, to the procedures required by the FILOT Act): 

Step 1: Determine the fair market value of the Economic Development Property (or Phase of the 
Economic Development Property) placed in service during the Inv~stment Period using original income tax 
basis for State income tax purposes for the Land and Improvements without regard to depreciation 
(provided, the fair market value of real property, as the FILOT Act defines such term, that the Company 
and any Sponsor Affiliates obtains by construction or purchase in an arms-length transaction is equal to the 
original income tax basis, and otherwise, the determination of the fair market value is by appraisal) and 
original income tax basis for State income tax purposes for any personal property less depreciation for each 
year allowable for property tax purposes, except that no extraordinary obsolescence shall be allowable. The 
fair market value of the real property for the first year of the Exemption Period remains the fair market 
value of the real property for the life of the Exemption Period. The determination of these values shall take 
into account all applicable property tax exemptions that State law would allow to the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates if the property were taxable, except those exemptions that Section 12-44-50(A)(2) of the 
FILOT Act specifically disallows. 

Step 2: Apply an assessment ratio of six percent (6%) to the fair market value in Step 1 to establish 
the taxable value of the Economic Development Property (or each Phase of the Economic Development 
Property) in the year it is placed in service and in each of the 29 years thereafter or such longer period of 
years in which the FILOT Act permits the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates to make annual FILOT 
payments. 

Step 3: Use a millage rate of 308.7 mills which millage rate shall be in accordance with Section 
12-44-SO(A)( l)(b)(i) of the FILOT Act, during the Exemption Period against the taxable value to determine 
the amount of the FILOT Payments due during the Exemption Period on the applicable payment dates. 

II 
NPCOLI :7614635 .2-LT-(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 2019-044 



(b) In the event that a final order of a court of competent jurisdiction from which no further 
appeal is allowable declares the Fll...OT Act and/or the herein-described Fll...OT Payments invalid or 
unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, the parties express their intentions to reform such 
payments so as to effectuate most closely the intent thereof (without increasing the amount of incentives 
being afforded herein) and so as to afford the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the benefits to be 
derived herefrom, the intention of the County being to offer the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates a 
strong inducement to locate the Project in the County. If the Economic Development Property is deemed 
to be subject to ad valorem taxation, and, subject to any request from the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate 
to enter into a lease purchase agreement, as set forth below, thi s Fee Agreement shall terminate, and the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall pay the County regular ad valorem taxes from the date of 
termination, but with appropriate reductions equivalent to all tax exemptions which are afforded to the 
Company and such Sponsor Affiliates. Any such amount determined to be due and owing to the County 
from the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates, with respect to a year or years for which the Company or 
such Sponsor Affiliates previously remitted Fll...OT Payments to the County hereunder, shall (i) take into 
account all applicable tax exemptions to which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates would be entitled 
if the Economic Development Property was not and had not been Economic Development Property under 
the Act; and (ii) be reduced by the total amount of Fll...OT Payments the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates 
had made with respect to the Project pursuant to the terms hereof. The County agrees, if requested by the 
Company or Sponsor Affiliate, to enter into a lease purchase agreement with the Company or Sponsor 
Affiliate pursuant to Section 12-44-160 of the Fll...OT Act and Title 4, Chapter 29 or Title 4, Chapter 12 of 
the Code, as applicable. The Company or any Sponsor Affiliate acknowledges, if a court of competent 
jurisdiction holds all or part of the Fll...OT Act is unconstitutional or otherwise illegal, the Fll...OT Act 
currently provides that the Company and each Sponsor Affiliate must transfer its respective portion of the 
Economic Development Property to the County within one hundred eighty ( 180) days following such 
determination in order for the Fll...OT benefits to continue to apply to such property. In any such lease 
purchase agreement referenced above, the County, upon the conveyance of title to the Project to the County 
at the expense of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, agrees to lease such entity's 
portion of the Project to the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be. At the end of the term 
of any such lease purchase agreement, and upon payment of all outstanding obligations incurred under such 
lease purchase agreement, the Company and each such Sponsor Affiliate shall have the option to purchase 
its respective portion of the Project from the County for Ten Dollars ($ 10.00). In furtherance of this 
covenant, the County also agrees that, in the event that, for any reason, the MCIP is declared by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable in whole or in part, the parties express their intentions 
that tax or Fll...OT payments be reformed so as to best afford the Company and each Sponsor Affiliate 
benefits commensurate with, but not in excess of, those intended under this Fee Agreement, as then 
permitted by law, including, without limitation, any benefits afforded under Title 12, Chapter 6, Title 4, 
Chapter 1 and Title 4, Chapter 29 of the Code, as applicable, to the extent allowed by law. 

Section 4.02. Special Source Credits 

(a) As reimbursement for investment in Special Source Improvements, and subject to the 
requirements of Section 4-1-175 of the Code, the County hereby agrees that the Company shall be entitled 
to receive, and the County shall provide, Special Source Credits against each Fll...OT Payment due from the 
Company with respect to the Project for a period of thirty (30) consecutive tax years, commencing with the 
tax year for which the initial Fll...OT Payment is due with respect to the Project hereunder as follows : (i) for 
the first five (5) such tax years, in an amount equal to 85% of each such Fll...OT Payment; and (ii) for the 
remaining twenty-five (25) such tax years, in an annual amount equal to thirty-five percent (35%) of each 
such Fll...OT Payment; 

12 
NPCOLI :76 14635.2-LT-(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 2019-044 



(b) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, under no circumstances shall the 
Company be entitled to claim or receive any abatement of ad valorem taxes for any portion ofthe investment 
in the Project for which a Special Source Credit is taken . 

(c) In no event shall the aggregate amount of all Special Source Credits claimed by the Company 
exceed the amount expended with respect to the Special Source Improvements at any point in time. The 
Company shall be responsible for making written annual certification as to compliance with the provisions of 
the preceding sentence through the delivery of a certification in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit 
~. 

(d) Should the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement not be met by the end of the 
Standard Investment Period, any Special Source Credits otherwise payable under this Agreement shall no 
longer be payable by the County, and the Company shall be retroactively liable to the County for the amount 
of the Special Source Credits previously received by the Company, plus interest at the rate payable for late 
payment of ad valorem taxes. Any amounts determined to be owing pursuant to the foregoing sentence 
shall be payable to the County on or before the one hundred twentieth (1201h) day following the last day of 
the Standard Investment Period. 

(e) As provided in Section 4-29-68 of the Code, to the extent any Special Source Credits are 
taken against fee in lieu of tax payments on personal property, and the personal property is removed from the 
Project at any time during the term of this Agreement (and not replaced with qualifying replacement property), 
the amount of the fee in lieu of taxes due on the personal property for the year in which the personal property 
was removed from the Project shall be due for the two (2) years immediately following such removal. 

(f) Each annual Special Source Credit shall be reflected by the County Auditor or other 
authorized County official or representative on each bill for PILOT Payments sent to the Company by the 
County for each applicable tax year, by reducing such PILOT Payments otherwise due by the amount of 
the Special Source Credit to be provided to the Company for such tax year. 

(g) The Special Source Credits are payable solely from the PILOT Payments, are not secured 
by, or in any way entitled to, a pledge of the full faith, credit or taxing power of the County, are not an 
indebtedness of the County within the meaning of any State constitutional provision or statutory limitation, 
are payable solely from a special source that does not include revenues from any tax or license, and are not 
a pecuniary liability of the County or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of the County. 

Section 4.03. Failure to Achieve Minimum Investment Requirement 

(a) In the event the Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, fails to meet the Contract 
Minimum Investment Requirement by the end of the Standard Investment Period, this Fee Agreement shall 
terminate and the Company and each Sponsor Affiliate shall be obligated to pay the County an amount 
which is equal to the excess, if any, of (i) the total amount of ad valorem taxes as would result from taxes 
levied on each such entity ' s respective portion of the Project by the County, municipality or municipalities, 
school district or school districts, and other political units as if the items of property comprising the 
Economic Development Property were not Economic Development Property, but with appropriate 
reductions equivalent to all tax exemptions and abatements to which each such entity would be entitled in 
such a case, through and including the end of the Standard Investment Period, over (ii) the total amount of 
PILOT payments each such entity has made with respect to such entity's respective portion of the Economic 
Development Property (after taking into account any Special Source Credits received) (such excess, a 
"Deficiency Amount") for the period through and including the end of the Standard Investment Period. Any 
amounts determined to be owing pursuant to the foregoing sentence shall be payable to the County on or 
before the one hundred twentieth (1201h) day following the last day of the Standard Investment Period; 

13 
NPCOL 1 :7614635.2-LT -(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 2019-044 



provided, however, any such Deficiency Amount due shall be offset by any repayments of Special Source 
Credits made by any such entity under Section 4.02(c) hereof. 

(b) As a condition to the FILOT benefit provided herein, the Company agrees to provide the 
County Administrator, the County Assessor, the County Auditor and the County Treasurer with an annual 
certification as to investment in the Project. Such certification shall be in substantially the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit B, and shall be due no later than the May 1 following the immediately preceding December 
31 of each year during the Investment Period. 

Section 4.04. Removal of Project Property 

Subject, always, to the other terms and provisions of this Fee Agreement, the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates shall be entitled to remove and dispose of components of the Project from the Project in 
its sole discretion with the result that said components shall no longer be considered a part of the Project 
and, to the extent such constitute Economic Development Property, shall no longer be subject to the terms 
of this Fee Agreement. Economic Development Property is disposed of only when it is scrapped or sold or 
removed from the Project. If it is removed from the Project, it is subject to ad valorem property taxes to the 
extent the Property remains in the State and is otherwise subject to ad valorem property taxes. 

Section 4.05. FILOT Payments on Replacement Property 

If the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate elects to replace any Removed Components and to 
substitute such Removed Components with Replacement Property as a part of the Economic Development 
Property, or the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate otherwise utilizes Replacement Property, then, pursuant 
and subject to the provisions of Section 12-44-60 of the FILOT Act, the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate 
shall make statutory payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes with regard to such Replacement Property in 
accordance with the following: 

(i) Replacement Property does not have to serve the same function as the Economic 
Development Property it is replacing. Replacement Property is deemed to replace the oldest 
Economic Development Property subject to the Fee, whether real or personal, which is disposed of 
in the same property tax year in which the Replacement Property is placed in service. Replacement 
Property qualifies as Economic Development Property only to the extent of the original income tax 
basis of Economic Development Property which is being disposed of in the same property tax year. 
More than one piece of property can replace a single piece of Economic Development Property. 
To the extent that the income tax basis of the Replacement Property exceeds the original income 
tax basis of the Economic Development Property which it is replacing, the excess amount is subject 
to annual payments calculated as if the exemption for Economic Development Property were not 
allowable. Replacement Property is entitled to treatment under the Fee Agreement for the period 
of time remaining during the Exemption Period for the Economic Development Property which it 
is replacing; and 

(ii) The new Replacement Property which qualifies for the FILOT shall be recorded 
using its income tax basis, and the calculation of the FILOT shall utilize the millage rate and 
assessment ratio in effect with regard to the original property subject to the FILOT. 

Section 4.06. Reductions in Payment of Taxes Upon Diminution in Value; Investment 
Maintenance Requirement 

In the event of a Diminution in Value of the Economic Development Property, the FILOT Payments 
with regard to the Economic Development Property shall be reduced in the same proportion as the amount 
of such Diminution in Value bears to the original fair market value of the Economic Development Property 

14 
NPCOLI :7614635 .2-LT-(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 2019-044 



as determined pursuant to Step 1 of Section 4.01(a) hereof; provided, however, that if at any time 
subsequent to the end of the Investment Period, the total value of the Project remaining in the County based 
on the original income tax basis thereof (that is, without regard to depreciation), is less than the FILOT Act 
Minimum Investment Requirement, then beginning with the first payment thereafter due hereunder and 
continuing until the Termination Date, the Project shall no longer be entitled to the incentive provided in 
Section 4.01, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall therefore commence to pay regular ad 
valorem taxes thereon, calculated as set forth in Section 4.01(b) hereof. 

[End of Article IV] 

15 
NPCOLI :76 14635.2-LT-(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 2019-044 



ARTICLE V 

PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

Section 5.01. Cessation of Operations 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Fee Agreement, each of the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates acknowledges and agrees that the County's obligation to provide the FILOT incentive ends, and 
this Fee Agreement is prospectively terminated, if the Company and all Sponsor Affiliates cease operations 
at the Project. For purposes of this Section, "cease operations" means closure of the Project or the cessation 
of commercial activities, including, but not limited to, the cessation of production and shipment of products 
to customers for a continuous period of twenty-four (24) months. The provisions of Section 4.03 hereof 
relating to retroactive payments shall apply, if applicable, if this Fee Agreement is terminated in accordance 
with this Section prior to the end of the Standard Investment Period. Each of the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates agree that if this Fee Agreement is terminated pursuant to this subsection, that under no 
circumstance shall the County be required to refund or pay any monies to the Company or any Sponsor 
Affiliates. 

Section 5.02. Rights to Inspect 

The Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledge and agree that the County and its authorized 
agents shall have the right at all reasonable times and upon prior reasonable notice to the Company to enter 
upon and examine and inspect the Project. The County and its authorized agents shall also be permitted, at 
all reasonable times and upon prior reasonable notice to the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, to have 
access to examine and inspect the Company' s South Carolina property tax returns of the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates, as filed with respect to the Project. The aforesaid rights of examination and inspection 
shall be exercised only upon such reasonable and necessary terms and conditions as the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates shall prescribe, and shall be subject to the provisions of Section 5.03 hereof. 

Section 5.03. Confidentiality 

The County acknowledges and understands that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates may 
utilize confidential and proprietary processes and materials, services, equipment, trade secrets, and 
techniques (herein "Confidential Information") . In this regard, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates 
may clearly label any Confidential Information delivered to the County "Confidential Information." The 
County agrees that, except as required by law, neither the County nor any employee, agent, or contractor 
of the County shall disclose or otherwise divulge any such clearly labeled Confidential Information to any 
other person, firm, governmental body or agency, or any other entity unless specifically required to do so 
by law. Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledge that the County is subject to the 
South Carolina Freedom of Information Act, and, as a result, must disclose certain documents and 
information on request, absent an exemption. In the event that the County is required to disclose any 
Confidential Information obtained from the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates to any third party, the 
County agrees to provide the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates with as much advance notice as is 
reasonably possible of such requirement before making such disclosure, and to cooperate reasonably with 
any attempts by the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates to obtain judicial or other relief from such 
disclosure requirement. 

Section 5.04. Limitation of County's Liability 

Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, any financial obligation the County may incur 
hereunder, including for the payment of money, shall not be deemed to constitute a pecuniary liability or a 

16 
NPCOLI :7614635 .2-LT-(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 2019-044 



debt or general obligation of the County (it being intended herein that any obligations of the County with 
respect to the Special Source Credits shall be payable only from Fll..,OT Payments received from or payable 
by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates); provided, however, that nothing herein shall prevent the 
Company from enforcing its rights hereunder by suit for mandamus or specific performance. 

Section 5.05 . Mergers, Reorganizations and Equity Transfers 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges that any mergers, reorganizations 
or consolidations of the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates may cause the Project to become ineligible 
for negotiated fees in lieu of taxes under the Fll..,OT Act absent compliance by the Company and such 
Sponsor Affiliates with the Transfer Provisions; provided that, to the extent provided by Section 12-44-120 
of the Fll..,OT Act or any successor provision, any financing arrangements entered into by the Company or 
any Sponsor Affiliates with respect to the Project and any security interests granted by the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliates in connection therewith shall not be construed as a transfer for purposes of the Transfer 
Provisions. Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, it is not intended in this Fee 
Agreement that the County shall impose transfer restrictions with respect to the Company, any Sponsor 
Affiliates or the Project as are any more restrictive than the Transfer Provisions. 

Section 5.06. Indemnification Covenants 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Fee Agreement or in any other agreements 
with the County, the Company and each Sponsor Affiliate agrees to jointly and severally indemnify, defend 
and save the County, its County Council members, elected officials, officers, employees, servants and 
agents (collectively, the "Indemnified Parties") harmless against and from all claims by or on behalf of any 
person, firm or corporation arising from the conduct or management of, or from any work or thing done on 
the Project or the Land by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, their members, officers, shareholders, 
employees, servants, contractors, and agents during the Term, and, the Company and each Sponsor Affiliate 
agrees to jointly and severally further indemnify, defend and save the Indemnified Parties harmless against 
and from all claims arising during the Term from (i) entering into and performing its obligations under this 
Fee Agreement, (ii) any condition of the Project, (iii) any breach or default on the part of the Company or 
any Sponsor Affiliate in the performance of any of its obligations under this Fee Agreement, (iv) any act of 
negligence of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or its agents, contractors, servants, employees or 
licensees, (v) any act of negligence of any assignee or lessee of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or 
of any agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees of any assignee or lessee of the Company or 
any Sponsor Affiliate or (vi) any environmental violation, condition, or effect with respect to the Project. 
The Company and each Sponsor Affiliate shall be obligated to jointly and severally indemnify, defend and 
save the County harmless from and against all costs and expenses incurred in or in connection with any 
such claim arising as aforesaid or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon 
notice from the County, the Company and each Sponsor Affiliate shall be obligated to jointly and severally 
defend it in any such action, prosecution or proceeding with legal counsel acceptable to the County (the 
approval of which shall not be unreasonably withheld). 

(b) Notwithstanding the fact that it is the intention of the parties that the Indemnified Parties 
shall not incur pecuniary liability by reason of the terms of this Fee Agreement, or the undertakings required 
of the County hereunder, by reason of the granting of the Fll..,OT, by reason of the execution of this Fee 
Agreement, by the reason of the performance of any act requested of it by the Company or any Sponsor 
Affiliate, or by reason of the County's relationship to the Project or by the operation of the Project by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, including all claims, liabilities or losses arising in connection with the 
violation of any statutes or regulations pertaining to the foregoing, nevertheless, if the County or any of the 
other Indemnified Parties should incur any such pecuniary liability, then in such event the Company and 
each Sponsor Affiliate shall be obligated to jointly and severally indemnify, defend and hold them harmless 

17 
NPCOL I :7614635.2-L T -(TYC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 2019-044 



against all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm or corporation, arising out of the same, and all costs 
and expenses incurred in connection with any such claim or in connection with any action or proceeding 
brought thereon, and upon notice, the Company and each Sponsor Affiliate shall be obligated to jointly and 
severally defend them in any such action or proceeding with legal counsel acceptable to the County (the 
approval of which shall not be unreasonably withheld); provided, however, that such indemnity shall not 
apply to the extent that any such claim is attributable to (i) the grossly negligent acts or omissions or willful 
misconduct of the County, its agents, officers or employees, or (ii) any breach of this Fee Agreement by 
the County. 

(c) Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the above-referenced 
covenants insofar as they pertain to costs, damages, liabilities or claims by any Indemnified Party resulting 
from any of the above-described acts of or failure to act by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, shall 
survive any termination of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 5.07. Qualification in State 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates warrant that it is duly qualified to do business in 
the State, and covenants that it will continue to be so qualified so long as it operates any portion of the 
Project. 

Section 5.08. No Liability of County's Personnel 

All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County contained herein 
shall be deemed to be covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County and shall 
be binding upon any member of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, servant or 
employee of the County only in his or her official capacity and not in his or her individual capacity, and no 
recourse shall be had for the payment of any moneys hereunder against any member of the governing body 
of the County or any elected official, officer, agent, servants or employee of the County and no recourse 
shall be had against any member of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, servant or 
employee of the County for the performance of any of the covenants and agreements of the County herein 
contained or for any claims based thereon except solely in their official capacity. 

Section 5.09. Assignment, Leases or Transfers 

The County agrees that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates may at any time (a) transfer all or 
any of their rights and interests under this Fee Agreement or with respect to all or any part of its respective 
portion of the Project, or (b) enter into any lending, financing, leasing, security, or similar arrangement or 
succession of such arrangements with any financing or other entity with respect to this Fee Agreement or 
all or any part of its respective portion of the Project, including without limitation any sale-leaseback, 
equipment lease, build-to-suit lease, synthetic lease, nordic lease, defeased tax benefit or transfer lease, 
assignment, sublease or similar arrangement or succession of such arrangements, regardless of the identity 
of the income tax owner of such portion of the Project, whereby the transferee in any such arrangement 
leases such portion of the Project in question to the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or operates such 
assets for the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or is leasing the portion of the Project in question from the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate. In order to preserve the PILOT benefits afforded hereunder with respect 
to any portion of the Project so transferred, leased, financed, or otherwise affected: (i) except in connection 
with any transfer to an Affiliate ofthe Company or of any Sponsor Affiliate, or transfers, leases, or financing 
arrangements pursuant to clause (b) above (as to which such transfers the County hereby consents), the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall obtain the prior consent or subsequent ratification 
of the County which consent or subsequent ratification may be granted by the County in its sole discretion; 
(ii) except when a financing entity which is the income tax owner of all or part of the Project is the transferee 

18 
NPCOLI :7614635.2-L T -(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 2019-044 



pursuant to clause (b) above and such financing entity assumes in writing the obligations of the Company 
or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, hereunder, or when the County consents in writing, no such 
transfer shall affect or reduce any of the obligations of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates hereunder; 
(iii) to the extent the transferee or financing entity shall become obligated to make PILOT Payments 
hereunder, the transferee shall assume the then current basis of, as the case may be, the transferor Company 
or any Sponsor Affiliates (or prior transferee) in the portion of the Project transferred; (iv) the Company or 
applicable Sponsor Affiliate, transferee or financing entity shall, within sixty (60) days thereof, furni sh or 
cause to be furnished to the County and the Department a true and complete copy of any such transfer 
agreement; and (v) the Company, the Sponsor Affiliates and the transferee shall comply with all other 
requirements of the Transfer Provisions. 

Subject to County consent when required under this Section, and at the expense of the Company or 
any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, the County agrees to take such further action or execute such 
further agreements, documents, and instruments as may be reasonably required to effectuate the assumption 
by any such transferee of all or part of the rights of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate under this Fee 
Agreement and/or any release of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate pursuant to this Section. 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges that such a transfer of an interest 
under this Fee Agreement or in the Project may, subject to the provisions of this Section 5.09, cause all or 
part of the Project to become ineligible for the PILOT benefit afforded hereunder or result in penalties under 
the PILOT Act absent compliance by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the Transfer Provisions. 

Section 5.10. Administration Expenses 

The Company agrees to pay, or cause to be paid, any Administration Expenses to the County when 
and as they shall become due following receipt of a written statement from the County requiring payment 
of such Administration Expenses, but in no event later than the date which is the earlier of any payment 
date expressly provided for in this Fee Agreement or the date which is forty-five (45) days after receiving 
written statement from the County, accompanied by such supporting documentation as may be necessary 
to evidence the County's right to receive such payment, specifying the nature of such expense and 
requesting payment of same. The parties understand that the County has incurred, and will incur, legal fees 
and other expenses in connection with the original execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement, the MCIP 
Agreement and all resolutions, ordinances, and other documentation related thereto in an amount not to 
exceed $5,000. 

Section 5.11. Priority Lien Status 

The County's right to receive PILOT payments hereunder shall have a first priority lien status 
pursuant to Sections 12-44-90(E) and (F) of the PILOT Act and Chapters 4, 49, 51, 53, and 54 of Title 12 
of the Code. 

Section 5.12. Interest; Penalties 

In the event the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate should fail to make any of the payments to the 
County required under this Fee Agreement, then the item or installment so in default shall continue as an 
obligation of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate until the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate shall 
have fully paid the amount, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agree, as applicable, to pay the 
same with interest thereon at a rate, unless expressly provided otherwise herein and in the case of PILOT 
payments, of 5% per annum, compounded monthly, to accrue from the date on which the payment was due 
and, in the case of PILOT payments, at the rate for non-payment of ad valorem taxes under State law and 
subject to the penalties the law provides until payment. 

19 
NPCOLI :7614635.2-L T -(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 2019-044 



Section 5.13 . Sponsor Affiliates 

The Company may designate from time to time any Sponsor Affiliates pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 12-44-30(20) and 12-44-130 of the PILOT Act, which Sponsor Affiliates shall join with the 
Company and make investments with respect to the Project, or participate in the financing of such 
investments, and shall agree to be bound by the terms and provisions of this Fee Agreement pursuant to the 
terms of a written joinder agreement with the County and the Company, in form and substance reasonably 
acceptable to the County. The Company shall provide the County and the Department with written notice 
of any Sponsor Affiliate designated pursuant to this Section within ninety (90) days after the end of the 
calendar year during which any such Sponsor Affiliate has placed in service any portion of the Project, in 
accordance with Section 12-44-130(B) of the PILOT Act. 

[End of Article V] 

20 
NPCOLl :76 14635.2-LT-(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 20 L 9-044 



ARTICLE VI 

DEFAULT 

Section 6.01. Events of Default 

The following shall be "Events of Default" under this Fee Agreement with respect to the defaulting 
Company or Sponsor Affiliate, or the County, as the case may be, and the term "Event of Default" shall 
mean, whenever used with reference to this Fee Agreement, any one or more of the following occurrences: 

(a) Failure by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, to make the Fll.,OT 
Payments due with respect to its respective portion of the Project described in Section 4.01 hereof, or any 
other amounts payable to the County under this Fee Agreement when due, which failure shall not have been 
cured within thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice thereof from the County; provided, 
however, that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall be entitled to all redemption rights granted by 
applicable statutes; or 

(b) A representation or warranty made by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case 
may be, hereunder which is deemed materially incorrect when deemed made; or 

(c) Failure by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, to perform any of 
the terms, conditions, obligations, or covenants hereunder (other than those under (a) above), which failure 
shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the County to the defaulting Company 
or Sponsor Affiliate specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, unless the Company or such 
Sponsor Affiliate shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is diligently pursuing 
such action until the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be extended to cover such 
additional period during which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate is diligently pursuing corrective 
action; or 

(d) Failure by the County to perform any of the terms, conditions, obligations, or covenants 
hereunder, which failure shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the 
Company or Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, specifying such failure and requesting that it be 
remedied, unless the County shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is diligently 
pursuing such action until the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be extended to 
cover such additional period during which the County is diligently pursuing corrective action. 

Section 6.02. Remedies Upon Default 

(a) Whenever any Event of Default by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate (the "Defaulting 
Entity") shall have occurred and shall be continuing, the County may take any one or more of the following 
remedial actions as to the Defaulting Entity, only: 

(i) terminate this Fee Agreement; or 

(ii) take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to 
collect the amounts due hereunder. 

In no event shall the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate be liable to the County or otherwise for 
monetary damages resulting from the Company ' s (together with any Sponsor Affiliates) failure to meet the 
Fll.,OT Act Minimum Investment Requirement, or the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement other 
than as expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement. 

21 
NPCOL I :7614635 .2-L T -(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 2019-044 



In addition to all other remedies provided herein, the failure to make PILOT payments shall give 
rise to a lien for tax purposes as provided in Section 12-44-90 of the PILOT Act. In this regard, and 
notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the County may exercise the remedies that 
general law (including Title 12, Chapter 49 of the Code) provides with regard to the enforced collection of 
ad valorem taxes to collect any PILOT payments due hereunder. 

(b) Whenever any Event of Default by the County shall have occurred or shall be continuing, 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate may take one or more of the following actions: 

(i) bring an action for specific enforcement; 

(ii) terminate this Fee Agreement as to the acting party; or 

(iii) in case of a materially incorrect representation or warranty, take such action as is 
appropriate, including legal action, to recover its damages, to the extent allowed by Jaw. 

Section 6.03. Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Expenses and Other Expenses 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, 
should the County be required to employ attorneys or incur other reasonable expenses for the collection of 
payments due hereunder or for the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or 
agreement, the County shall be entitled, within thirty (30) days of demand therefor, to reimbursement of 
the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable expenses so incurred from such defaulting 
entity . 

Section 6.04. No Waiver 

No failure or delay on the part of any party hereto in exercising any right, power, or remedy 
hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right, power, 
or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power, or remedy 
hereunder. No waiver of any provision hereof shall be effective unless the same shall be in writing and 
signed by the waiving party hereto. 

[End of Article VI] 

22 
NPCOLl :7614635 .2-LT -(TV C) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 2019-044 



ARTICLE VII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 7.0 1. Notices 

Any notice, election, demand, request, or other communication to be provided under this Fee 
Agreement shall be effective when delivered to the party named below or when deposited with the United 
States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows (or 
addressed to such other address as any party shall have previously furnished in writing to the other party), 
except where the terms hereof require receipt rather than sending of any notice, in which case such provision 
shall control: 

Section 7 .02. 

If to the Company: 

[Project Augustus] 

With a copy to: 

Nexsen Pruet, LLC 
Attn: Tushar V. Chikhliker, Esq. 
1230 Main Street, Suite 700 (29201) 
P.O. Drawer 2426 
Columbia, South Carolina 29202 

If to the County: 

Anderson County 
Attn: Rusty Burns, County Administrator 
P.O. Box 8002 
Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 

With a copy to: 

Anderson County Attorney 
P.O. Box 8002 
Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 

Binding Effect 

This Fee Agreement and each document contemplated hereby or related hereto shall be binding 
upon and inure to the benefit of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, the County, and their respective 
successors and assigns. In the event of the dissolution of the County or the consolidation of any part of the 
County with any other political subdivision or the transfer of any rights of the County to any other such 
political subdivision, all of the covenants, stipulations, promises, and agreements of this Fee Agreement 
shall bind and inure to the benefit of the successors of the County from time to time and any entity, officer, 

23 
NPCOLI :7614635 .2-LT-(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 20 19-044 



board, commission, agency, or instrumentality to whom or to which any power or duty of the County has 
been transferred. 

Section 7.03. Counterparts 

This Fee Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and all of the counterparts 
taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 7 .04. Governing Law 

This Fee Agreement and all documents executed in connection herewith shall be construed in 
accordance with and governed by the laws of the State. 

Section 7.05. Headings 

The headings of the articles and sections of this Fee Agreement are inserted for convenience only 
and shall not be deemed to constitute a part of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 7 .06. Amendments 

The provisions of this Fee Agreement may only be modified or amended m writing by any 
agreement or agreements entered into between the parties. 

Section 7.07. Further Assurance 

From time to time, and at the expense of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, the County 
agrees to execute and deliver to the Company and any such Sponsor Affiliates such additional instruments 
as the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates may reasonably request and as are authorized by law and 
reasonably within the purposes and scope of the PILOT Act and this Fee Agreement to effectuate the 
purposes of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 7.08. Invalidity; Change in Laws 

In the event that the inclusion of property as Economic Development Property or any other issue is 
unclear under this Fee Agreement, the County hereby expresses its intention that the interpretation of this 
Fee Agreement shall be in a manner that provides for the broadest inclusion of property under the terms of 
this Fee Agreement and the maximum incentive permissible under the PILOT Act and the MCIP Act, to 
the extent not inconsistent with any of the explicit terms hereof. If any provision of this Fee Agreement is 
declared illegal, invalid, or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions hereof shall be 
unimpaired, and such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision shall be reformed to effectuate most 
closely the legal, valid, and enforceable intent thereof and so as to afford the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates with the maximum benefits to be derived herefrom, it being the intention of the County to offer 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates the strongest inducement possible, within the provisions of the 
PILOT Act or MCIP Act, to locate the Project in the County. In case a change in the PILOT Act, the MCIP 
Act, or South Carolina laws eliminates or reduces any of the restrictions or limitations applicable to the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates and the PILOT, the parties agree that the County will give expedient 
and full consideration to reformation of this Fee Agreement, and, if the County Council so decides, to 
provide the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the benefits of such change in the PILOT Act, MCIP 
Act, or South Carolina laws. 

Section 7.09. Termination by Company 

24 
NPCOL l :7614635.2-LT -(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 2019-044 



The Company and each Sponsor Affiliate is authorized to terminate this Fee Agreement at any time 
with respect to all or part of its respective portion of the Project upon providing the County with thirty (30) 
days' written notice; provided, however, that (i) any monetary obligations existing hereunder and due and 
owing at the time of termination by such entity to a party hereto (including without limitation any amounts 
owed with respect to Section 4.03 hereof); and (ii) any provisions which are intended to survive termination 
shall survive such termination . In the year following such termination, all property shall be subject to ad 
valorem taxation or such other taxation or fee in lieu of taxation that would apply absent this Fee 
Agreement. The obligation to make PILOT Payments under this Fee Agreement shall terminate with respect 
to the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, in the year following the year of such 
termination pursuant to this section. 

Section 7.10. Entire Understanding 

This Fee Agreement expresses the entire understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto 
with each other, and neither party hereto has made or shall be bound by any agreement or any representation 
to the other party which is not expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement or in certificates delivered in 
connection with the execution and delivery hereof. 

Section 7 .11. Waiver 

Either party may waive compliance by the other party with any term or condition of this Fee 
Agreement only in a writing signed by the waiving party. 

Section 7 .12. Business Day 

In the event that any action, payment, or notice is, by the terms of this Fee Agreement, required to 
be taken, made, or given on any day which is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday in the jurisdiction in 
which the person obligated to act is domiciled, such action, payment, or notice may be taken, made, or 
given on the following business day with the same effect as if given as required hereby, and no interest 
shall accrue in the interim. 

[End of Article VII] 

25 
NPCOLI :7614635.2-L T -(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 2019-044 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has caused 
this Fee Agreement to be executed in its name and behalf by the County Administrator and to be attested 
by the Clerk of the County Council; and the Company has caused this Fee Agreement to be executed by its 
duly authorized officer, all as of the day and year first above written. 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

[Signature Page I to Fee in Lieu ofT ax and Incentive Agreement] 

26 
NPCOL I :76 14635.2-L T -(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 20 19-044 



PROJECT AUGUSTUS 

By: 
Its : 

[Signature Page 2 to Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement] 

27 
NPCOL I :7614635.2-L T -(TVC) 062206-00002 

Ordinance 2019-044 



EXHIBIT A 

DESCRIPTION OF LAND 

[To be inserted.] 

A-I 
NPCOLI :76 14635.2-LT-(TVC) 062206-00002 



EXHffiiTB 

INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 

I , the of (the "Company"), do hereby certify m 
connection with Section 4.03 of the Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement dated as of ___ _ 
2019 between Anderson County, South Carolina and the Company (the "Agreement"), as follows: 

(1) The total investment made by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the Project 
during the calendar year ending December 31, 20_ was$ ____ _ 

(2) The cumulative total investment made by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the 
Project from the period beginning , 20_ (that is, the beginning date of the Investment Period) 
and ending December 31, 20_, is$ ___ _ 

All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this __ day of ____ , 20_. 

PROJECT AUGUSTUS 

Name: ______________ _ 
Its: _______________ _ 

B-1 
NPCOLI :7614635.2-LT-(TVC) 062206-00002 



EXHffiiTC 

INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 

I , the of (the "Company"), do hereby certify in connection 
with Section 4.02 of the Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement dated as of , 2019 between 
Anderson County, South Carolina and the Company (the "Agreement'') , as follows : 

(1) As of the date hereof, the aggregate amount of Special Source Revenue Credits previously 
received by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates is$ ___ _ 

(2) As of December 31, 20_, the aggregate amount of investment in costs of Special Source 
Improvements incurred by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates during the Investment Period is not 
less than $ ___ _ 

(3) Ofthe total amount set forth in (2) above,$ pertains to the investment in personal 
property, including machinery and equipment, at the Project. The applicable personal property, and 
associated expenditures, are listed below: 

Personal Property Description Investment Amount 

All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this __ day of ____ , 20_. 

Name: _______________ _ 
Its: ________________ _ 

B-2 
NPCOLl :7614635.2-LT-(TVC) 062206-00002 



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-045 

AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE A GROUND LEASE BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE FOR A 
SITE AT THE ANDERSON REGIONAL AIRPORT FOR HEAVY EQUIPMENT 
OPERATOR TRAINING AND FOR A SITE AT THE TTl PEARMAN DAIRY ROAD 
FACILITY FOR A LINEMAN TRAINING SCHOOL; AND OTHER MATTERS 
RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the "County") has previously leased a site 

at the Anderson Regional Airport to Tri County Technical College ("TCTC") for heavy equipment 

operator training; 

WHEREAS, Anderson County Council previously approved Resolution No. R-2019-020 

on May, 7, 2019, identifying an area at the TTl Pearman Dairy Road site on which TCTC will 

conduct a lineman training school; 

WHEREAS, the County and TCTC desire to memorialize the terms and conditions of a 

ground lease for the above described activities; and 

WHEREAS, the County has authority to lease real property pursuant to the South Carolina 

Code of Laws, Section 4-9-130. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 

assembled that: 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby approves the Ground Lease Agreement 

attached hereto as Exhibit A by and between Anderson County and Tri-County Technical College 

for a site at the Anderson Regional Airport for heavy equipment operator training and a site at the 

TTl Pearman Dairy Road facility for a lineman training school. The County Administrator is 

hereby authorized to sign any documents necessary to complete the Ground Lease Agreement. 

2. The remaining terms and provisions of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances 

not revised or affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 



3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 

remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

4. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 

rescinded. 

5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 

Enactment by Anderson County Council. 

ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this ____ day of ____ , 2019. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Burns 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

1st Reading: September 3, 2019 

2nd Reading: _______ _ 

3rd Reading: ________ _ 

Public Hearing: ______ _ 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) 
) 

GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT 

This Ground Lease Agreement, effective as of August 1, 2019 ("Ground Lease"), by and between 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina ("Ground Lessor") and TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE, an 
instrumentality of the State of South Carolina ("Ground Lessee"). 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, Ground Lessor and Ground Lessee desire to work together to provide (a) heavy equipment 
operator training and (b) lineman training (collectively, "Program") to further educational and employment 
opportunities for Anderson County citizens as expressly contemplated by Section 4-9-41 of the South 
Carolina Code of Laws and Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution; 

WHEREAS, Ground Lessor and Ground Lessee desire that Program be located on two parcels of real 
property owned by Ground Lessor, each as more fully described on Exhibit A and more fully depicted on 
Exhibit B, each of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (collectively, "Demised 
Premises"); 

WHEREAS, Ground Lessor and Ground Lessee desire to establish the terms and conditions of this 
Ground Lease to fulfill the foregoing objectives. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises of the parties, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree that the foregoing recitals are 
true and correct and incorporated herein by this reference, and further agree as follows: 

WITNESSETH: 

Section 1. Premises. Ground Lessee's use of its funds to pay for Program, the mutual covenants and 
agreements herein contained, and of other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and legal sufficiency 
of which are hereby acknowledged by the parties hereto, Ground Lessor hereby demises and rents unto 
Ground Lessee, and Ground Lessee here by rents and hires from Ground Lessor, the Demised Premises. 

The following additional stipulations, hereby declared to be conditions of this Ground Lease, shall , 
unless otherwise expressly stated, be applicable at all times throughout the term of this Ground Lease and 
are mutually agreed upon by the parties. 

Section 2. Management and Operation of Program. The costs of Program shall be borne solely by 
Ground Lessee. Ground Lessee covenants and agrees to comply or cause compliance with all laws, 
ordinances, municipal rules, and regulations and requirements of public authorities applying to or affecting 
the conduct of any construction related to Program or operation of Program including, but not limited to, 
the rules and regulations of the Federal Aviation Administration and the South Carolina Aeronautics 
Administration. 

Section 3. Term of Ground Lease. The term of this Ground Lease shall be for the period beginning 
August 1, 2019, and ending on July 31 , 2024. 

Section 4. Authority. Ground Lessor and Ground Lessee each represent and warrant they have full 
power and authority to execute and enter into this Ground Lease for the full term herein granted under the 
terms and conditions provided herein and that this Ground Lease is a valid and binding obligation of each 
of them enforceable in accordance with its terms 

Section 5. Quiet Enjoyment. Ground Lessor covenants that Ground Lessee, on the performance of the 



GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT: 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SatJrH CAROLINAffRi-COUNTY T ECHNICAL COLLEGE 

EFFECIWE: AUGUST I , 201 9 

PAGE 2 OF2 

terms and conditions of this Ground Lease, shall and may peaceably and quietly have, hold and enjoy the 
Demised Premises for the full term of this Ground Lease. 

Section 6. No Partnership or Joint Venture. Under no circumstances shall Ground Lessor and 
Ground Lessee be deemed or held to be partners or joint ventures in or concerning the Demised Premises. 

Section 7. Condition of Demised Premises and Disclaimer of Liability. The Demised Premises is 
leased in a "WHERE IS, AS IS" condition. Ground Lessor makes no representation or warranty, express or 
implied, as to the condition of the Demised Premises and expressly disclaims same. 

GROUND LESSOR HEREBY DISCLAIMS, AND GROUND LESSEE HEREBY RELEASES 
GROUND LESSOR AS WELL AS ITS COUNCIL MEMBERS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES AGENTS, 
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS FROM, ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT OR 
TORT (INCLUDING STRICT LIABILITY AND NEGLIGENCE) FOR ANY LOSS, DAMAGE OR 
INJURY OF ANY NATURE WHATSOEVER SUSTAINED BY GROUND LESSEE, ITS EMPLOYEES, 
AGENTS, CONTRACTORS, LICENSEES OR INVITEES ARISING OUT OF, OR RELATED IN ANY 
MANNER TO, THIS GROUND LEASE OR THE USE OF THE DEMISED PREMISES. 
NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, GROUND LESSOR SHALL BE LIABLE FOR LOSSES, 
DAMAGES OR INJURIES PROXIMATELY CAUSED BY THE GROSS NEGLIGENCE OR 
INTENTIONAL ACTS OF GROUND LESSOR OR ITS EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS. THE PARTIES 
DO, HOWEVER, HEREBY AGREE THAT UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL GROUND 
LESSOR BE LIABLE FOR INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES, 
WHETHER IN CONTRACT OR TORT. 

Section 8. Insurance. Ground Lessee shall, at its sole expense, carry and keep in force a policy of 
comprehensive liability insurance, including property damage, with respect to Program. Said policy shall 
provide at least the following limits: bodily injury $1,000,000.00 each person, $1,000,000.00 each 
occurrence and property damage $1,000,000.00 each occurrence. In addition to Ground Lessee and to the 
extent possible, the policy shall lalso name Ground Lessor as an additional insured at the cost of Ground 
Lessee, at all times while the Ground Lease is in effect. Ground Lessee shall, upon written request from 
Ground Lessor, deliver to Ground Lessor certificates or other evidence that the insurance coverage required 
above is in effect. Ground Lessee shall further require any third party operating upon the Demised Premises 
or furnishing equipment to be operated upon the Demised Premises to carry comprehensive liability 
insurance in an amount commensurate with the risk, but in no event with less than the limits stated above, 
as well as property and casualty insurance fully insuring said third party's property against loss . Ground 
Lessee shall have the option of procuring at its sole expense additional insurance coverage against third 
said party risks and liability in which event Ground Lessor shall be named as an additional insured in 
accordance with the foregoing provisions. All insurance required hereunder shall, at a minim urn, be issued 
by insurance companies authorized to do business in the State or South Carolina, with a Best's Rating of at 
least A and a Financial Size Category of at least VH as rated in the most recent edition of Best's Insurance 
Reports . 

Section 9. Environmental. Ground Lessee and/or its employees, agents, contractors, invitees, licensees 
or permittees shall not deposit or cause to be deposited Hazardous Material (as hereinafter defined) in or 
upon the Demised Premises and shall operate the Demised Premises in full compliance with all laws, orders, 
regulations, rules, ordinances, and requirements of the Federal, State, County and local Governments, 
including all Environmental Laws (as hereinafter defined). The term "Hazardous Material" means any 
substance, chemical, compound, product, solid, gas, liquid, waste, byproduct, pollutant, contaminant, or 
material which is hazardous or toxic. The term "Environmental Laws" means all federal, state and local 
laws, statutes, ordinances and regulations, now or hereafter in effect, and applicable to the Premises relating 
to the regulation and protection of human health and safety and/or the environment and natural resources. 

Section 10. Improvements. Ground Lessee shall not erect any permanent structure on or upon the 
Demised Premises. Upon termination of the Ground Lease, Ground Lessee shall, at its sole expense, return 



GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT: 
ANDERSON C OUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINAITRI-COUNTY T ECHNICAL C OLLEGE 

EFFECTIVE: A UGUST I, 201 9 
PAGE30F 2 

the Demised Premises to its original condition, normal wear and tear excepted. 

Section 11. Default by Ground Lessor. If Ground Lessee shall fail to keep or shall violate a condition 
or agreement in this Ground Lease on the part of Ground Lessee to be performed and if either such failure 
or violation shall have continued for a period of 60 days after Ground Lessee shall have received written 
notice by certified or registered mail from Ground Lessor to cure such violation or failure, or for such 
additional period of time as may be reasonably necessary provided Ground Lessee diligently undertakes to 
cure such default, then, in such event, Ground Lessor shall have the right at its option, in addition to and 
not in lieu of all of the rights to which it may be entitled to hereunder and by law, to terminate this Ground 
Lease and re-enter and repossess all and singular the Demised Premises. Neither the exercise by Ground 
Lessor of any or all of its rights under this Ground Lease or law nor the defaults by Ground Lessee of any 
of Ground Lessee's obligations to Ground Lessor shall in any way relieve Ground Lessee of Ground 
Lessee's obligation to any third party to whom Ground Lessee may be obligated. 

Section 12. Default by Ground Lessor. If Ground Lessor shall fail to keep or shall violate a condition 
or agreement in this Ground Lease on the part of Ground Lessor to be performed and if either such failure 
or violation shall have continued for a period of 60 days after Ground Lessor shall have received written 
notice by certified or registered mail from Ground Lessee to cure such violation or failure, or for such 
additional period of time as may be reasonably necessary provided Ground Lessor diligently undertakes to 
cure such default, then, in such event Ground Lessee may in addition to and not in lieu of all of the rights 
to which it may be entitled hereunder and by law, terminate this Ground Lease and tum over possession of 
the Demised Premises to Ground Lessor. 

Section 13. Termination. Ground Lessee agrees upon the expiration of the original term as specified 
in Section 3, or upon the earlier termination of the Ground Lease as provided herein, to quit and surrender 
the Demised Premises and that all title and interest in the Demises Premises shall vest in Ground Lessor 
free and clear of the encumbrances of this Ground Lease and that the improvements on the Demised 
Premises will be and become the property of Ground Lessor or Ground Lessor's designee. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, either party may terminate this Ground Lease for convenience upon 
ninety days written notice to the other party; Ground Lessor shall use best efforts to make an alternative 
site available to Ground Lessee upon the same terms and conditions contained herein in the event Ground 
Lessor terminates the Ground Lease for convenience under this provision. 

Section 14. Notice. Any notice to be given by any party to the other pursuant to the provisions of this 
Ground Lease shall be given by registered or certified mail, addressed to the party for whom it is intended 
at the address stated below, or such other address as may have been designated in writing: 

To Ground Lessor at: Tri-County Technical College 
P.O. Box 587 
Pendleton, South Carolina 29670 
Attention: President 

To Ground .Lessee at: Anderson County 
lO l S. Main Street 
Anderson, SC 29622 
Attention: County Administrator 

Section 15. Successors and Assigns. The covenants, conditions and agreements contained in this 
Ground Lease shall bind and inure to the benefit of Ground Lessor and Ground Lessee and their respective 
successors and assigns; provided, however, that Ground Lessee shall not assign, sublease or otherwise 
transfer its interests herein without prior written consent of Ground Lessor. 

Section 16. Miscellaneous. This Ground Lease shall be subject to the following: 



GROUND LEASE AG REEMENT: 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOlJrH CAROLINAITRJ-COUNTY T ECHNICAL COLLEGE 

EFFEClW E: AUGUST I , 201 9 
PAGE 4 0F2 

(a) There are no oral or verbal understandings among Ground Lessor and Ground Lessee concerning 
the subject matter of this Ground Lease, and any amendment, modification or supplement to this Ground 
Lease must be in writing and signed by all parties. 

(b) No waiver of any condition or covenant in this Ground Lease, or of any breach thereof, shall be 
taken to constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach. 

(c) Whenever Ground Lessee requests any consent, permission or approval which may be required or 
desired by Ground Lessee pursuant to the provisions hereof, Ground Lessor shall not be arbitrary or 
capricious in withholding or postponing the granting of such consent, permission or approval. 

(d) All covenants, promises, conditions and obligations herein contained or implied by law are 
covenants running with the land and shall attach and bind and inure to the benefit of Ground Lessor and 
Ground Lessee and their respective legal representatives, successors and assigns, except as otherwise 
provided herein . 

(e) The patties will at any time at the request of any other party, promptly execute duplicate originals 
of an instrument, in recordable form, which will constitute a short form of lease, setting forth a description 
of the Demised Premises, the term of this Ground Lease and any other portions thereof, as either party may 
request. 

Section 17. Execution in Counterparts. This Ground Lease may be simultaneously executed in 
several counterparts each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the 
same instrument. 

Section 18. Applicable Law. This Ground Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of South Carolina without regard to conflict of laws principles. 

Section 19. Non-Appropriation. This Ground Lease is at all times subject to the appropriation of funds 
by the Anderson County Council. In the event of non-appropriation, this Ground Lease shall immediately 
terminate without further obligation or liability on the part of Ground Lessor. 

Section 20. Captions. The captions or headings herein are for convenience only and in no way define, 
limit, or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or sections of this Ground Lease. 

(TWO SIGNATURE PAGES AND TWO EXHIBITS FOLLOW] 

(REMAINDER OF PAGE I NTENTIONALLY BLANK] 



GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT: 
ANDERSON COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINAITRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

EFFECIWE: AUGUST I , 20 19 
PAGE 5 OF2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has set their hands as of the date first above written. 

[SEAL] 
Attest: 

By: ________________________ __ 

Clerk, County Council 

ADDITIONAL WITNESSES 

GROUND LESSOR: 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By: _____________ _ 

Chairman, County Council 

By: ______________ _ 

County Administrator 

[ANDERSON COUNTY SIGNATURE PAGE) 



GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT: 

A NDERSON COUNTY. SatrrH CAROLINA!fRI-COUNTY T ECHNICAL COLLEGE 

EFFECTIVE: A UGUST I , 20 19 
PAGE 6 0F2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has set their hands as of the date first above written. 

GROUND LESSEE: 

TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

By: ______________ _ 

President 

By: ____________ _ 
Vice-President 

ADDITIONAL WITNESSES 

ITRI-COUNTY T ECHNICAL COLLEGE SIGNATURE PAGE] 



GROUND LEASE AGREEM ENT : 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOlJHI CAROLINA/TRI-COUNTY T ECHNICAL COLLEGE 

EFFECIWE: AUGUST I , 201 9 
PAGE 7 OF2 

EXHffiiTA 
AIRPORT PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

Beginning at an old mag nail on the centerline of Old Portman Rd. (C-09-0163) approximately 800' west 
of its intersection with Airport Rd. (C-09-04 10) and heading S36°-52 '00" W, 346.58 ' to a point on the 
northernmost property line of a 5-acre tract of Anderson County property; thence heading west along the 
property Line to the northwestern most corner of said 5 acre tract and Point of Beginning for the tract; 
thence heading N80°-20'-00"E for a distance of 444.69 ' to an old 1" iron pipe; thence S 17°-20'-lO"E, 
462.15' to a new W' rebar on the line of Anderson County property bounded on the east by Lakeshore 
Leasing Inc.; thence proceeding S80°-20' -OO"W, 506.37' to a newW' rebar; thence proceeding N09°-40' 
OO"W, 458.02' to Point of Beginning. This property description is written utilizing an existing 20' access 
easement along the S36° -52' -OO"W bearing from Old Portman Rd. to the northernmost property line of this 
property. The easement for access will continue across the northwest corner of the 5-acre tract for common 
easement to the remainder of the Anderson County property should it be necessary for access. Right is 
reserved by Anderson County to widen or realign said easement to better facilitate permanent paved access 
to the property and additional portions of the remaining Anderson County tract. Further reference is craved 
to that certain plat prepared by F & S Surveyors, Engineers & Planners, Inc. entitled "Boundary Survey
Tract "R" Portion of Anderson County Property Surveyed at the Request of Anderson County," dated 
October 4, 2012. 



GROUND LEASE AGREEM ENT: 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOlrrH CAROLJNAITRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
EFFECTIVE: AUGUST I , 20 19 
PAGE80F2 

EXHIDITB 
TTl PROPERTY DEPICTION 



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-046 

AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE AN AMENDMENT TO THE FEE IN LIEU OF 
TAX AGREEMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND ORTEC, INC. SO AS TO ADD THE 
TOWN OF PENDLETON AS A PARTY TO THE AGREEMENTS; AND OTHER 
MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 12-44-10, et seq. and Section 4-1-175 

of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, Anderson County, South Carolina (the 

"County") and Ortec, Inc. (the "Company") previously entered into that certain Fee In Lieu of Tax 

Agreement (the "FILOT Agreement") and that certain Infrastructure Finance Agreement (the "IFA 

Agreement," together with the FILOT Agreement, the "Agreements") each dated as of December 

16,2016, pursuant to which the Company has been afforded certain payments in lieu of taxes under 

the FILOT Agreement and certain infrastructure credits under the IFA Agreement; 

WHEREAS, the County and Company desire to amend the Agreements as to add the Town 

of Pendleton (the "Town") as a party to the Agreements and the desires to join therewith; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Memorandum of Understanding between the County, 

Company and Town, the Company anticipates investing approximately Forty Million Dollars 

($40,000,000.00) and creating approximately seventy-eight (78) new, full-time jobs in the County 

(the "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the Company, County and Town anticipate the Project will be annexed by 

the Town (the "Annexation)). 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 

assembled that: 



1. The Anderson County Council hereby approves the Amendment to Fee In Lieu of 

Tax Agreement and Infrastructure Finance Agreement, attached hereto in Exhibit A and made a 

part hereof. This Amendment is an amendment to the FILOT Agreement and the IF A Agreement 

entered into by the County and the Company as of December 6, 2016. The Chairman of County 

Council and the County Administrator are authorized to execute all documents necessary to carry 

out the transaction contemplated by this Ordinance. 

2. The remaining terms and provisions of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances 

not revised or affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 

3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 

remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

4. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 

rescinded. 

5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 

Enactment by Anderson County Council. 

ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this ____ day of ____ , 2019. 



ATTEST: 

Rusty Burns 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

1st Reading: September 3, 2019 

2nd Reading: _______ _ 

3rd Reading: ________ _ 

Public Hearing: ______ _ 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 



AMENDMENT TO 
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE AGREEMENT 

This AMENDMENT TO FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT AND INFRASTRUCTRE 
FINANCE AGREEMENT (the "Amendment") is dated as of , 20_ by and between 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, a political subdivision and body corporate of the State 
of South Carolina (the "County"), and ORTEC, INC., a South Carolina corporation, and PENDLETON 
LAND HOLDINGS, LLC a South Carolina limited liability company (together, the "Company"), as well 
as the TOWN OF PENDLETON, SOUTH CAROLINA, a political subdivision and body corporate of 
the State of South Carolina (the "Town"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 12-44-10 et seq. and Section 4-1-175 of the 
Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, the County and the Company previously entered into 
that certain Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement (the "Fll.,OT Agreement") and that certain Infrastructure Finance 
Agreement (the "IFA Agreement", together with the FIT..,OT Agreement, the "Agreements") each dated as of 
December 6, 2016, pursuant to which the Company has been afforded certain payments in lieu of taxes 
under the Fll.,OT Agreement and certain Infrastructure Credits under the IFA Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Memorandum of Understanding between the Company, 
County, and Town, the Company anticipates investing approximately Forty Million Dollars ($40,000,000) 
and creating approximately seventy eight (78) new, full-time jobs in the County (the "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the Company, County and Town anticipate the Project will be annexed by the Town 
(the "Annexation"); and 

WHEREAS, the County and Company desire to amend the Agreements and the Town desires to 
join therewith, all as set forth below; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above and other lawful consideration duly paid 
and received, the parties hereto HEREBY AGREE that: 

Section 1. Effective upon Annexation, the County, Company, and Town agree that the Town, by the 
execution hereof, shall become a party to, adhere to and be bound by the terms and provisions of the 
Agreements and have the rights and obligations thereof. 

Section 2. Effective upon Annexation, the FIT..,OT Agreement definition of "Project Millage Rate" 
shall include the applicable Town of Pendleton millage as of the date hereof. 

Section 3. IFA Agreement Article III is hereby amended to add the following subsection (j): 

(j) Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, in addition to those Infrastructure Credits 
described in Section 3.02(a) and Section 3.02(b) hereof, the Company shall receive from the Public 
Parties additional Infrastructure Credits equal to any increase in Fee Payment caused by the annexation 
of the Project into the Town of Pendleton, such that the actual Fee Payments shall not increase above the 
Fee Payment had the only millage been that of the County's. 

[Intentionally blank.] 



Section 4. IFA Agreement definitions are amended to include the following: 

"Public Parties" shall mean the County and the Town. 

"Town" shall mean the Town of Pendleton, a political subdivision and body corporate of the 
State of South Carolina located within the County. 

Section 5. The Fll...OT Agreement definition of "Threshold Date" is replaced with the following : 

"Threshold Date " shall mean December 31, 2024. 

Section 6. All other provisions of the Agreements are hereby confirmed and ratified except those 
provisions as provided for herein . 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, ORTEC, INC., 
PENDLETON LAND HOLDINGS, LLC, and TOWN OF PENDLETON each pursuant to due 
authority, have duly executed this Amendment, all as of the date first above written . 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
(SEAL) 

By: -----------------------------
Name: ____________________________ __ 
Title: ____________________________ __ 

Attest: 

By: --------------------------
Name: ____________________________ __ 
Title: ____________________________ __ 

ORTEC,INC. 

By: --------------------------
Name: ____________________________ _ 
Title: ____________________________ __ 

PENDLETON LAND HOLDINGS, LLC 

By: -----------------------------
Name: ____________________________ _ 
Title: ____________________________ __ 

TOWN OF PENDLETON 

By: -----------------------------
Name: ____________________________ _ 
Title: ____________________________ __ 

2 



ORDINANCE 2019-014 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 70, ARTICLE 6 OF THE 
ANDERSON COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, SO AS TO CLARIFY 
STORAGE OF COMMERCIAL EQUIPMENT IN RESIDENTIAL ZONES; 
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, the County wishes to clarify requirements for the storage of commercial 
equipment in residentially zoned areas; and 

WHEREAS, the Anderson County Planning Commission held a duly advertised Public 
Hearing on May 14, 2019, after which it reviewed the proposed revisions as described in Exhibit 

A, and recommended the proposed revisions to County Council; and 

WHEREAS, Anderson County Council wishes to amend Chapter 70, Article 6 of the 
Anderson County Code of Ordinances, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 

assembled, that: 

1. Chapter 70, Article 6 of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances is hereby 

amended to include the language attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

2. The remaining terms and provisions of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances 

not revised or affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 

3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not 

affect the remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

4. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 

repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 

5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 

Enactment by Anderson County Council. 



ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this ____ day of ____ , 2019. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Burns 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

1st Reading: _______ _ 

2nd Reading: _______ _ 

3rd Reading: ________ _ 

Public Hearing: ______ _ 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 



Exhibit A 

6: 6.4 Commercial equipment and materials. In all "R" Districts except R-A and 
R-A2, no commercial equipment or materials associated with an off-site business 
may be stored on a property, unless such equipment and materials are located on a 
tract of property where the equipment and materials are not visible from any 
property line. Such equipment and materials may include but are not limited to 
tractors, backhoes, front end loaders, skidsteers, ditchwitches, grinders, chippers, 
shredders, large commercial equipment, or other machinery; logs, stumps, mulch, 
or debris; paper, plastic, and cardboard debris or containers; auto parts and tires; 
appliances and furniture; rock, gravel, railroad ties, building materials, or other 
supplies or materials. Removal of such equipment or materials from the property 
must occur within 10 days of initial contact by the Development Standards 
Department or be subject to enforcement as provided in Section 1-7. 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) 
) 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-040 

AN ORDINANCE (1) AUTHORIZING PURSUANT TO TITLE 4 OF THE CODE 
OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA 1976, AS AMENDED, INCLUDING SECTIONS 
4-1-170,4-1-175, AND 4-29-68 THEREOF, AND ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 13 OF 
THE SOUTH CAROLINA CONSTITUTION THE, EXECUTION AND DELIVERY 
OF AN INFRASTRUCTURE CREDIT AGREEMENT, BY AND BETWEEN 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, AND A COMPANY KNOWN TO 
THE COUNTY AS PROJECT SWAN, TO PROVIDE FOR CERTAIN SPECIAL 
SOURCE REVENUE OR INFRASTRUCTURE CREDITS; (2) AUTHORIZING 
THE RECEIPT AND ADMINISTRATION OF A STATE GRANT FOR THE 
BENEFIT OF THE PROJECT; AND (3) OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina ("County"), acting by and through its County 
Council ("County Council") is authorized by Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 
1976, as amended, including Sections 4-1-170 and 4-1-175 thereof, Section 4-29-68 of the Code of Laws 
of South Carolina 1976, as amended (collectively, the "Infrastructure Credit Act"), and Article VIII, 
Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution (i) to provide special source revenue or infrastructure credits 
("Infrastructure Credit") for the purpose of defraying certain costs, including, without limitation, the cost 
of designing, acquiring, constructing, improving, or expanding the infrastructure serving the County or the 
project and for improved and unimproved real estate and personal property, including machinery and 
equipment, used in the operation of a manufacturing facility or commercial enterprise, all to enhance the 
economic development of the County ("Infrastructure"); and (ii) to expand, in conjunction with one or 
more other counties, a joint county industrial or business park in order to facilitate the grant of such special 
source revenue credits; and 

WHEREAS, [PROJECT SWAN], a [STATE ENTITY]' [formerly identified by the County as 
Project Swan] ("Company"), is planning an investment consisting of the expenditure of approximately 
$4,195,000 ("Investment") to acquire by construction, lease, and purchase certain land, buildings, 
furnishings, fixtures, and equipment for the purpose of establishing a manufacturing facility in the County 
and expects to create 115 new, full-time jobs in the County (collectively, "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the County has previously created a joint county industrial and business park with 
Greenville County ("Park") pursuant to that that certain Agreement for the Development of a Joint County 
Industrial and Business Park (2010 Park), as amended, between the County and Greenville County, as the 
same may be further amended or supplemented from time to time, or such other agreement as the County 
may enter into with respect to the Project to offer the benefits of the Infrastructure Credit to the Company 
hereunder ("Park Agreement"); 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution, real 
and personal property having a situs in the Park are exempt from all ad valorem taxation, however, the 
owners or lessees of such real and personal property are obligated to make, or cause to be made, payments 
in lieu of taxes to the County in the total amount equivalent to the ad valorem property taxes or other fee
in-lieu-of-taxes that would have been due and payable with respect to such real and personal property but 
for the location of such real and personal property within such Park (each, a "Fee Payment"); and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Project, the Company has requested the County to enter into 
an incentives agreement, to the extent and subject to the conditions provided in that agreement, to establish 
the commitments of (i) the Company to make the Investment and (ii) the County to provide certain special 



source revenue or infrastructure credits against certain Fee Payments made in connection with the Project; 
and 

WHEREAS, the County has determined to provide certain annual infrastructure credits against 
each Fee Payment for a period of twenty (20) years, the terms and conditions of which are more fully set 
forth in an agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A ("Infrastructure Credit Agreement") . 

WHEREAS, [SPONSOR AFFILIATE] intends to participate in the Investment in the Project at the 
Project Site and desires to be approved as a [Sponsor Affiliate] to the Infrastructure Credit Agreement as 
further defined in the Infrastructure Credit Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the County understands that the Coordinating Council for Economic Development 
(the "Coordinating Council") plans to provide a monetary grant (a "State Grant") , for the benefit of the 
Project in the County, the funds of which will be received and administered by the County, or its affiliates, 
as grantee, for the benefit of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the County consents (i) to enter into any necessary agreements with the Coordinating 
Council and the Company, including but not limited to any performance agreement in connection therewith 
("State Grant Agreement"); and (ii) to accept, receive and administer the State Grant for the benefit of the 
Project in the County; and 

WHEREAS, the parties recognize and acknowledge that the Company would not otherwise 
undertake the Project in the County but for the delivery of the Incentives as set forth herein. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Council: 

Section 1. Findings. The County hereby finds and affirms based on information provided by the 
Company: (i) the Project will benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing services, 
employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; (ii) the Project gives rise to 
no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated municipality and to no charge against its general 
credit or taxing power; (iii) the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and 
public purposes; and (iv) the benefits of the Project to the public are greater than the costs to the public . 

Section 2. Authorization to Execute and Deliver Infrastructure Credit Agreement. The County 
Council authorizes and directs the County Council Chairman to execute the Infrastructure Credit 
Agreement, with any minor modifications and revisions which shall not be materially adverse to the County 
and shall be deemed approved by the County Council upon the Chairman's execution of the Infrastructure 
Credit Agreement, and the Clerk to County Council is authorized and directed to attest the same; and the 
Clerk to County Council is further authorized and directed to deliver the executed Infrastructure Credit 
Agreement to the Company. 

Section 3. Inclusion and Maintenance of Project in Park. The County Council agrees to use its 
best efforts to ensure that the Project is incorporated into and remains in the Park for no less than the term 
of the Infrastructure Credit Agreement and hereby authorizes and directs the County Council Chairman to 
execute an amendment to the Park Agreement, with any minor modifications and revisions which shall not 
be materially adverse to the County and shall be deemed approved by the County Council upon the 
Chairman's execution of the Park Agreement, and the Clerk to County Council is authorized and directed 
to attest the same; and the Clerk to County Council is further authorized and directed to deliver the executed 
Park Agreement to the Company. 



Section 4. Grant Administration. The County shall administer the State Grant, as applicable, and 
within a reasonable time after receipt by the County and confirmation of the Company's compliance with 
the terms and conditions of the State Grant, as applicable, shall provide the proceeds of the State Grant, as 
applicable, for the benefit of the Project. The Chair of County Council is authorized and empowered, in the 
name of and behalf of the County, to enter any performance agreement with the Coordinating Council and 
the Company as may be necessary and advisable by the County Attorney. 

Section 5. Further Acts. The County Council authorizes the Chair of County Council, the County 
Administrator, other County staff, and the County Attorney, along with any designees and agents who any of 
these officials deems necessary and proper, in the name of and on behalf of the County (each an "Authorized 
Individual"), to take whatever further actions, and enter into whatever further agreements, as any Authorized 
Individual deems to be reasonably necessary and prudent to effect the intent of this Ordinance and induce the 
Company to locate the Project in the County. 

Section 6. General Repealer. All ordinances, resolutions, and their parts in conflict with this 
Ordinance are, to the extent of that conflict repealed. 

Section 7. Severability. Should any part, proviSIOn, or term of this Ordinance be deemed 
unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such finding or 
determination shall not affect the rest and remainder of the Ordinance or any part, provision or term thereof, 
all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

This Ordinance takes effect and is in full force only after the County Council has approved this 
Ordinance following three readings and a public hearing. 

Done in meeting duly assembled this ____ Day of _____ , 2019. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Bums 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

READINGS : 
First reading: 
Second reading: 
Public hearing: 
Third reading: 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 



EXHffiiTA 

Property Description 

[INSERT LEGAL DESCRIPTION] 



EXHffilTB 

Infrastructure Credit Agreement 



INFRASTRUCTURE CREDIT AGREEMENT 

BY AND BETWEEN 

[PROJECT SWAN] 

AND 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

_______ , 2019 

PREPARED BY: 

PARKER POE ADAMS & BERNSTEIN LLP 
110 EAST COURT STREET, SUITE 200 

GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA 29601 
(864) 577-6370 



INFRASTRUCTURE CREDIT AGREEMENT 

THIS INFRASTRUCTURE CREDIT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into as of 
October 15, 2019, by and among Anderson County, South Carolina ("County"), a body politic and 
corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina ("State"), acting by and through the 
Anderson County Council ("County Council") as the governing body of the County, [PROJECT SWAN], 
a [STATE ENTITY] [formerly identified by the County as Project Swan] ("Investor"), [AFFll..JATE], a 
[STATE ENTITY] (a Project Affiliate as that term is defined in this Agreement and, together with Investor, 
the "Company"), and any other party that may join as a Project Affiliate as that term is defined in this 
Agreement (hereinafter, the County, the Company, and any Project Affiliate are referred to collectively as 
"Parties," and individually as a "Party"). 

WITNESSETH: 

(a) The County, acting by and through its County Council is authorized by Title 4, Chapter 1 of the 
Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, including Sections 4-1-170 and 4-1-17 5 thereof, Section 
4-29-68 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (collectively, the "Infrastructure Credit 
Act"), and Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution (i) to provide special source revenue 
credits for the purpose of defraying certain costs, including, without limitation, the cost of designing, 
acquiring, constructing, improving, or expanding the infrastructure serving the County or the project and 
for improved and unimproved real estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used 
in the operation of a manufacturing facility or commercial enterprise, all to enhance the economic 
development of the County; and (ii) to expand, in conjunction with one or more other counties, a joint 
county industrial or business park in order to facilitate the grant of such special source revenue credits; 

(b) The Company is planning an investment consisting of the expenditure of $4,195,000 (including 
$1,350,000 of real property acquisition, $645,000 of leasehold improvements, $1,500,000 of new 
machinery and equipment, and $700,000 of used machinery and equipment being transferred to the County) 
and the creation of approximately 115 new, full-time jobs in connection with the acquisition by 
construction, lease, transfer, and purchase of certain land, buildings, furnishings, fixtures, and equipment, 
for the purpose of establishing a manufacturing facility in the County (collectively, "Project"); 

(c) The Project, including the real property which is more particularly described in the attached Exhibit 
A ("Project Site"), will be placed in a multi-county industrial park as previously formed by that certain 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and Business Park (2010 Park), as amended, 
between the County and Greenville County, as the same may be further amended or supplemented from 
time to time, or such other agreement as the County may enter into with respect to the Project to offer the 
benefits of the Infrastructure Credit to the Company hereunder ("Park Agreement"); 

(d) The term Project Affiliate refers to an affiliate that joins with or is an affiliate of the Company who 
executes and delivers a Joinder Agreement in a form substantially similar to that attached hereto as Exhibit 
,!!; and whose investment with respect to the Project shall (i) be considered towards satisfaction of the 
Investment Commitment, as defined below, for purposes of this Agreement and (ii) be qualified to receive 
the benefits pursuant to this Agreement and the Infrastructure Credit Act; and 

(e) In accordance with Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution, real and personal 
property having a situs in a Park, are exempt from all ad valorem taxation, however, the owners or lessees 
of such real and personal property are obligated to make, or cause to be made, payments in lieu of taxes to 
the County in the total amount equivalent to the ad valorem property taxes or other fee-in-lieu-of-taxes that 
would have been due and payable with respect to such real and personal property but for the location of 
such real and personal property within such Park (each, a "Fee Payment"). 

2 
PPAB 5038032v7.oocx 
ORDINANCE 20 19-040 



NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the respective representations and agreements 
contained in this Agreement, the Parties agree to the following. 

ARTICLE I 
REPRESENTATIONS 

Section 1.1. Representations by the County. The County represents to the Company as follows: 
(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South 

Carolina ("State"); 

(b) The County is authorized and empowered by the provisions of the Act to enter into and carry 
out its obligations under this Agreement; 

(c) The County has duly authorized and approved the execution and delivery of this Agreement by 
adoption of an ordinance in accordance with the procedural requirements of the Infrastructure Credit Act 
and any other applicable state law; 

(d) The County is not in default of any of its obligations (contractual or otherwise) as a result of 
entering into and performing its obligations under this Agreement; 

(e) The County has approved the inclusion of the Property in the Park by adoption of an ordinance; 
and 

(f) Based on representations made by the Company, the County has determined the Project and 
the Infrastructure will enhance the economic development of the County. Therefore, the County is entering 
into this Agreement for the purpose of promoting the economic development of the County . 

Section 1.2. Representations by the Company. The Company represents to the Local 
Governments as follows: 

(a) The Company is in good standing under the laws of the State, has power to conduct business 
in the State and enter into this Agreement, and by proper company action has authorized the officials signing 
this Agreement to execute and deliver it; 

(b) The Company will invest the Investment Commitment, as defined below, at the Project; and 

(c) The Company' s execution and delivery of this Agreement, and its compliance with the 
provisions of this Agreement do not result in a default under any agreement or instrument to which the 
Company is now a party or by which it is bound. 

Section 2.1 

ARTICLE II 
INFRASTRUCTURE CREDITS 

Investment Commitment; Jobs Commitment. 

(a) The aggregate amount the Company shall invest in the Project shall equal or exceed $4,195,000, 
as measured by original cost without regard to depreciation ("Investment Commitment"), before the end 
of the investment period, which shall begin on the first day of the first tax year in which the Company 
places investments into service and shall include each subsequent year through December 31, 2024 
("Investment Period"). 

3 
PPAB 5038032v7.DOCX 
ORDINANCE 2019-040 



(b) The Company shall create at least one hundred and fifteen (115) new, full-time jobs at the 
Project before the end of the Investment Period. 

Section 2.2 Infrastructure Credits. 

(a) Subject to the provisions in this Section 2.2, the County grants an annual infrastructure credit 
("Infrastructure Credit") to the Company and any Project Affiliate against each annual Fee Payment in 
an amount equal to the percentage ("Applicable Percentage") shown in the table below multiplied by the 
otherwise due Fee Payment liability each year for a period of twenty (20) years ("Credit Period"). The 
Credit Period shall commence in the first property tax year for which any Fee Payment becomes due. The 
Parties anticipate that the first year of the Credit Period will be property tax year 2020 (i.e. , since the Fee 
Payment for investments made in 2019 will be invoiced to the Company in property tax year 2020 and 
payable on or before January 15, 2021) and that the last year of the Credit Period will be tax year 2039. 

Years Applicable Percenta2e 
1-5 60% 

6-10 50% 
11-20 42% 

(b) The County shall deduct the Infrastructure Credits from the Company' s annual Fee Payment 
liability and reflect the deduction on the Company's property tax bills with respect to the Project and the 
Company shall remit the Fee Payment net of the Infrastructure Credit ("Net Fee Payment") to the County. 
Under no circumstances shall the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates be entitled to enjoy both the amount 
of the Infrastructure Credit described in this Section 2.2 and any five-year statutory abatement of ad valorem 
taxes otherwise applicable to manufacturing property . 

(c) Any Infrastructure Credit provided under this Agreement shall be used to reimburse the 
Company for eligible expenditures, as permitted by the Infrastructure Credit Act, which includes the cost 
of designing, acquiring, constructing, improving, or expanding the infrastructure serving the Company's 
property, for improved or unimproved real estate or for personal property. The Infrastructure Credit 
benefits shall be first deemed to be applied to the eligible expenditures of the Company, with any remaining 
Infrastructure Credit benefit to be applied to the eligible expenditures of a Project Affiliate, if any, the 
allocation of which shall be determined in the sole discretion of the Company. In no event shall the 
aggregate amount of Infrastructure Credits received as of any point in time exceed the amount of the 
Company' s, and any Project Affiliate's, aggregate investment in such eligible expenditures as of such time. 

(d) To the extent that the Company is unable to apply the annual Infrastructure Credit to its fullest 
extent in any given year of the Credit Period, the Company may use any remaining amount of annual 
Infrastructure Credit in any of the succeeding years of the Credit Period. To the extent that the Company 
has any remaining, unused Infrastructure Credit upon the end of the Credit Period, the Company may 
request that the County extend the Credit Period so that the Company may apply such amount to future Fee 
Payments, the extension of which may be approved by the County Administrator, without further action by 
County Council. However, if there is sufficient Fee Payment in any given year during the Credit Period 
against which an annual Infrastructure Credit could be applied, then the annual Infrastructure Credit must 
be taken to the fullest extent against such Fee Payment in such year. 

(e) Subject to the provisions in this Section 2.2, in the event the Company fails to, by the end of the 
third year after the first year in which property is placed in service for the Project, which date the Parties 
expect to be December 31, 2022, achieve either (i) an aggregate investment in the County of at least 
$3,000,000, as measured by original cost without regard to depreciation for new machinery and equipment, 
or (ii) aggregate job creation in the County of at least eighty new, full-time jobs, the Applicable Percentage 

4 
PPAB 5038032v7.oocx 
ORDINANCE 2019-040 



otherwise required by this Agreement shall be reduced to forty-two percent ( 42%) for the fourth year of the 
Credit Period and shall remain forty-two percent ( 42%) for each of the remaining years of the Credit Period. 

(f) In the event the reduction provided by Section 2.2(e) of this Agreement is triggered and the 
Company subsequently achieves, by the end of the Investment Period, both (i) an aggregate investment in 
the County of at least $4,195,000, as measured by original cost without regard to depreciation for new 
machinery and equipment, and (ii) aggregate job creation in the County of at least one hundred and fifteen 
new, full-time jobs, the Applicable Percentage otherwise required by this Agreement shall be restored to 
fifty percent (50%) for years 6-10 of the Credit Period and shall remain forty-two percent ( 42%) for years 
11-20 of the Credit Period. 

Section 2.3. Certification. For each year during the Credit Period, the Company shall be 
responsible for completing an "Investment Certification" (in substantially the form attached as Exhibit 
g on or before May 31 following each year of the Investment Period, beginning on May 31, 2020, in 
accordance with the instructions set forth therein. Exhibit C shall be part of this Agreement. Should the 
Company fail to submit the Investment Certification on May 31 following each year of the Investment 
Period, the County may choose to terminate this Agreement upon written notice of default to the Company 
by the County and the expiration of a 90-day cure period. 

Section 2.4. Project Shall Remain in the Park . The County will use its best efforts to ensure 
that the Project will remain in the Park so long as the Company is located at the Project Site. If, for any 
reason, the Park Agreement is modified to exclude the Project or is otherwise terminated, then the County 
will use its best efforts to ensure that the Project shall be immediately placed into another multi-county park 
arrangement to which the County is party and that would enable the Company to receive the Infrastructure 
Credit benefits set forth in this Agreement. To the extent that no multi-county park arrangement exists to 
which the County is a party, then the County agrees to use its best efforts to make arrangements with the 
Company to offer a legally available alternative arrangement, upon mutually agreeable terms, that would 
deliver the same value of the benefits as the Infrastructure Credit benefits set forth in this Agreement for 
the remainder of the Credit Period, as extended, to the maximum extent permitted by law. 

Section 2.5. Addition of Project Affiliates. Any Project Affiliate may join as a Party to this 
Agreement, without the approval of County Council , provided that it agrees to be bound by the terms of 
that Joinder Agreement attached as Exhibit B, a fully executed copy of which will be delivered to the 
County. 

Section 3.1. 

ARTICLE III 
DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

Events of Default. The following are "Events of Default" under this Agreement: 

(a) Failure by the Company to make a Net Fee Payment to the County, which failure has not been 
cured within 30 days following receipt of written notice from the County specifying the delinquency in 
payment and requesting that it be remedied; 

(b) A representation or warranty made by the Company which is deemed materially incorrect when 
deemed made; 

(c) Failure by the Company to perform any obligation under this Agreement (other than those 
described in Sections 2.1 and 2.2 and under (a) above), which failure has not been cured within 30 days 
after written notice from the County to the Company specifying such failure and requesting that it be 
remedied, unless the Company has instituted corrective action within the 30-day period and is diligently 
pursuing corrective action until the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period is extended to 

5 
PPAB 5038032v7.oocx 
ORDINANCE 2019-040 



include the period during which the Company is diligently pursuing corrective action; 

(d) A representation or warranty made by the County which is deemed materially incorrect when 
deemed made; 

(e) Failure by the County to perform any of the terms, conditions, obligations, or covenants 
hereunder, which failure has not been cured within 30 days after written notice from the Company to the 
County specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, unless the County has instituted 
corrective action within the 30-day period and is diligently pursuing corrective action until the default is 
corrected, in which case the 30-day period is extended to include the period during which the County is 
diligently pursuing corrective action . 

Section 3.2. Remedies on Default. 

(a) If an Event of Default by the Company has occurred and is continuing, then the County may 
take any one or more of the following remedial actions: 

(i) terminate the Agreement; or 

(ii) take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to collect 
amounts due or otherwise remedy the Event of Default or recover its damages. 

(b) If an Event of Default by the County has occurred and is continuing, the Company may take 
one or more of the following actions: 

(i) bring an action for specific enforcement; or 

(ii) terminate the Agreement. 

Section 3.3. Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Other Expenses. On the occurrence of an 
Event of Default, if a Party is required to employ attorneys or incur other reasonable expenses for the 
collection of payments due under this Agreement or for the enforcement of performance or observance of 
any obligation or agreement, the prevailing Party is entitled to seek reimbursement of the reasonable fees 
of such attorneys and such other reasonable expenses so incurred. 

Section 3.4. Remedies Not Exclusive. No remedy described in this Agreement is intended to 
be exclusive of any other remedy or remedies, and each and every such remedy is cumulative and in addition 
to every other remedy given under this Agreement or existing at law or in equity or by statute. 

Section 3.5. Nonwaiver. A delay or omission by the Company or Local Governments to 
exercise any right or power accruing on an Event of Default does not waive such right or power and is not 
deemed to be a waiver or acquiescence of the Event of Default. Every power and remedy given to the 
Company or County by this Agreement may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed 
expedient. 

ARTICLE IV 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 4.1. Notices. Any notice, election, demand, request or other communication to be 
provided under this Agreement shall be effective when delivered to the party named below or three business 
days after deposited with the United States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage 

6 
PPAB 5038032v7.oocx 
ORDINANCE 2019-040 



prepaid, addressed as follows (or addressed to such other address as any party shall have previously 
furnished in writing to the other party), except where the terms hereof require receipt rather than sending 
of any notice, in which case such provision shall control: 

AS TO THE COUNTY: 

WITH A COPY TO: 
(does not constitute notice): 

AS TO THE COMPANY: 

WITH A COPY TO: 
(which shall not 
constitute notice) 

Anderson County, South Carolina 
Attn: County Administrator 
PO Box 8002 
Anderson, South Carolina 29622 

Anderson County Attorney 
PO Box 8002 
Anderson, South Carolina 29622 

[NAME] 
[ADDRESS] 

Parker Poe Adams & Bernstein LLP 
Attn: Madison Felder 
110 East Court Street, Suite 200 
Greenville, South Carolina 29601 

Section 4.2. Binding Effect. This Agreement is binding, in accordance with its terms, upon and 
inures to the benefit of the Company and its respective successors and assigns. In the event of the dissolution 
of the County or the consolidation of any part of the County with any other political subdivision or the 
transfer of any rights of the County to any other such political subdivision, all of the covenants, stipulations, 
promises and agreements of this Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the successors of the 
County from time to time and any entity, officer, board, commission, agency or instrumentality to whom 
or to which any power or duty of the County has been transferred. 

Section 4.3. Counterparts; Electronic Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in any 
number of counterparts and each such executed counterpart shall be, and shall be deemed to be, an original, 
but all of which shall constitute, and shall be deemed to constitute, in the aggregate but one and the same 
instrument. This Agreement may be circulated for signature through electronic transmission, including, 
without limitation, facsimile and email, and all signatures so obtained and transmitted shall be deemed for 
all purposes under this Agreement to be original signatures and may conclusively be relied upon by any 
Party to this Agreement. 

Section 4.4. Governing Law. This Agreement and all documents executed in connection with 
this Agreement are construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the South Carolina. To the 
extent of any conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and the Infrastructure Credit Act, the 
Infrastructure Credit Act controls. 

Section 4.5. 
signed by the Parties. 

Amendments. The Parties may modify or amend this Agreement only in a writing 

Section 4.6. Further Assurance. From time to time the County shall execute and deliver to the 
Company any additional instruments as the Company reasonably request to evidence or effectuate the 
purposes of this Agreement, subject to any approvals required to be obtained from County Council. 

7 
PPAB 5038032v7.oocx 
ORDINANCE 2019-040 



Section 4.7. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is illegal, invalid or unenforceable 
for any reason, the remaining provisions remain unimpaired and any illegal , invalid or unenforceable 
provision are reformed to effectuate most closely the legal, valid and enforceable intent and to afford the 
Company with the maximum benefits to be derived under this Agreement and the Act, it being the intention 
of the County to offer the Company the strongest inducement possible to encourage investment on the 
Project. 

Section 4.8. Assignment. This Agreement may be assigned in whole or in part. To the extent 
any further consent is required by the Act and requested, the County may grant such consent by adoption 
of a Resolution, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld. 

Section 4.9. Limited Obligation. THIS AGREEMENT AND THE INFRASTRUCTURE 
CREDITS BECOMING DUE HEREUNDER ARE LllviiTED OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY 
PROVIDED BY THE COUNTY SOLELY FROM THE FEE PAYMENTS RECEIVED BY THE COUNTY 
FOR THE PROJECT PURSUANT TO THE PARK AGREEMENT, AND DO NOT AND SHALL NEVER 
CONSTITUTE A GENERAL OBLIGATION OR AN INDEBTEDNESS OF THE COUNTY OR ANY 
MUNICIPALITY WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISION (OTHER THAN 
THE PROVISIONS OF ARTICLE X, SECTION 14(10) OF THE SOUTH CAROLINA CONSTITUTION) 
OR STATUTORY LllviiTATION AND DO NOT AND SHALL NEVER CONSTITUTE OR GIVE RISE 
TO A PECUNIARY LIABILITY OF THE COUNTY OR ANY MUNICIPALITY OR A CHARGE 
AGAINST THEIR GENERAL CREDIT OR TAXING POWER. THE FULL FAITH, CREDIT, AND 
TAXING POWER OF THE COUNTY OR ANY MUNICIPALITY ARE NOT PLEDGED FOR THE 
INFRASTRUCTURE CREDITS. 

Section 4.10. Force Majeure. The Company is not responsible for any delays or non
performance caused in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, by strikes, accidents, freight embargoes, fire, 
floods, inability to obtain material s, conditions arising from government orders or regulations, war or 
national emergency, acts of God, and any other cause, similar or dissimilar, beyond the Company' s 
reasonable control. 

Section 4.11. Administration Expenses. The Company agrees to pay the reasonable and 
necessary expenses incurred by the County with respect to this Agreement ("Administration Expenses"), 
including reasonable attorney fees; provided, however, that no such expense shall be considered an 
Administration Expense until the County has furnished to the Company a statement in writing indicating 
the amount of such expense and the reason it has been or will be incurred. The parties hereto agree the 
Administration Expenses shall not exceed $5,000 in any event. The Company agrees to pay the 
Administration Expenses to the County when and as they shall become due, but in no event later than the 
date which is the earlier of any payment date expressly provided for in this Fee Agreement or the date which 
is forty-five (45) days after receiving written notice from the County, accompanied by such supporting 
documentation as may be necessary to evidence the County' s right to receive such payment, specifying the 
nature of such expense and requesting payment of same. 

8 
PPAB 5038032v7.oocx 
ORDINANCE 2019-040 



Section 4.12 Entire Agreement. This Agreement expresses the entire understanding and all 
agreements of the Parties with each other, and no Party is bound by any agreement or any representation to 
another Party which is not expressly set forth in this Agreement or in certificates delivered in connection 
with the execution and delivery of this Agreement. 

Section 4.13 Construction. Each Party and its legal counsel have reviewed this Agreement 
and any rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved against a drafting party does 
not apply in the interpretation of this Agreement or any amendments or exhibits to this Agreement. 

Section 4.14. Waiver. Any Party may waive compliance by another Party with any term or 
condition of this Agreement but the waiver is valid only if it is in a writing signed by the waiving Party. 

Section 4.15. Termination. Unless first terminated under any other provision of this Agreement, 
this Agreement terminates on the expiration of the Credit Period and payment by the Company of any 
outstanding Net Fee Payment due on the Project pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

Section 4.16. Business Day. If any action, payment, or notice is, by the terms of this Agreement, 
required to be taken, made, or given on any Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday in the jurisdiction in which 
the Party obligated to act is situated, such action, payment, or notice may be taken, made, or given on the 
following business day with the same effect as if taken, made or given as required under this Agreement, 
and no interest will accrue in the interim. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council , has caused this 
Agreement to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the Chair of County Council and to be attested 
by the Clerk to County Council as of the day and year first above written. 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

9 
PPAB 5038032v7.oocx 
ORDINANCE 2019-040 



[Signature Page 1 to Infrastructure Credit Agreement] 

10 
PPAB 5038032v7.oocx 
ORDINANCE 2019-040 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Agreement to be executed in its name and on its 
behalf by its authorized officer as of the day and year first above written. 

[PROJECT SWAN] 

By: _______________ _ 

Its: _________________ _ 

[Signature Page 2 to Infrastructure Credit Agreement] 

11 
PPAB 5038032v7.DOCX 
ORDINANCE 2019-040 



EXHIDITA 

Project Site 

[INSERT LEGAL DESCRIPTION] 

A-1 
PPAB 5038032v7.oocx 

ORDINANCE 2019-040 



EXHffiiTB 

JOINDER AGREEMENT 

Reference is hereby made to that certain Infrastructure Credit Agreement effective October 15, 2019 
("Infrastructure Credit Agreement"), between Anderson County, South Carolina ("County") and 
[PROJECT SWAN] (the "Company"). 

1. Joinder to Infrastructure Credit Agreement. 

The undersigned hereby (a) joins as a party to, and agrees to be bound by and subject to all of the terms and 
conditions of, the Infrastructure Credit Agreement except the following: 
(b) acknowledges and agrees that (i) in accordance with the Infrastructure Credit Agreement, the 
undersigned has been designated as a Project Affiliate by the Company for purposes of the Project; and (ii) 
the undersigned shall have all of the rights and obligations of a Project Affiliate as set forth in the 
Infrastructure Credit Agreement, unless otherwise set forth herein. 

2. Capitalized Terms. 

All capitalized terms used but not defined in this Joinder Agreement shall have the meanings set forth in 
the Infrastructure Credit Agreement. 

3. Governing Law. 

This Joinder Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
South Carolina, without regard to principles of choice of law. 

4. Notice. 
Notices under Section 4.1 of the Infrastructure Credit Agreement shall be sent to: 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Joinder Agreement to be effective as of the 
date set forth below. 

Date Name of Entity 

By: 
Name: 
Its: 
Address: ____________ _ 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company consents to the addition of the above-named entity becoming a 
Project Affiliate under the Infrastructure Credit Agreement effective as of the date set forth above. 

By: 
Name: 

B-1 
PPAB 5038032v7.oocx 

ORDINANCE 2019-040 



Its: 
Date: 
Address: ____________ _ 

B-2 
PPAB 5038032v7.oocx 

ORDlNANCE 2019-040 



EXHffiiTC 

INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 

Reference is made to the Infrastructure Credit Agreement, dated as of October 15, 2019 
("Agreement"), by and among Anderson County, South Carolina ("County") and [PROJECT SWAN] 
("Company"). Each capitalized term not defined in this Annual Certification and Claim Form 
("Certification") has the meaning contained in the Agreement. 

I , the of the Company, do hereby certify in connection with Section 1 and 
Section 2 of the Agreement, as follows: 

( l ) The total investment made by the Company in the Project during the calendar year ending 
December 31, 20_ was$ ____ _ 

(2) The cumulative total investment made by the Company in the Project from the period beginning 
____ , 20_ (that is, the beginning date of the Investment Period) and ending December 31, 20_, is 
$. ___ _ 

All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this __ day of ____ , 20_. 

Name: _______ _ 

Its: ----------

C-1 
PPAB 5038032v7.oocx 

ORDINANCE 2019-040 



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-041 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND 
BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF ANDERSON AND 
GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted October 19, 2010, by Anderson County 
Council, Anderson County entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 
Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, with Greenville County 
("Agreement"); 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created as a result 
of the Agreement ("Park") may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson 
County and Greenville County; 

WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Anderson County, it is now desired 
that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include parcels in Anderson County; 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that Exhibit A to the Agreement is 
and shall be amended and revised to include property located in Anderson County described in the schedule 
attached to this Ordinance, and, pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, at and after adoption by 
Greenville County of a corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed amended to so include the 
property and Exhibit A as so revised, without further action by either county. 

DONE in meeting duly assembled this ____ day of ____ , 2019. 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Burns 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

First Reading: 
Second Reading: 
Third Reading: 
Public Hearing: 

PPAB 5064118v3 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 



Addition to Exhibit A to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

Property Description 

[INSERT LEGAL DESCRIPTION] 

A-I 
PPAB 5064118v3 



SOUTH CAROLINA 

ANDERSON COUNTY 

) 
) 
) 

I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify that 
attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and received 
majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of , 2019, , 2019, and __ _ 
2019, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and an original 
of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 

Clerk, Anderson County Council 
Dated: ______ , 2019 

PPAB 5064118v3 



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-048 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FEE-IN-LIEU 
OF AD VALOREM TAX AND INCENTIVE AGREEMENT BY AND 
BETWEEN ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND PROJECT 
SANTA'S HAT TO PROVIDE FOR PAYMENT OF A FEE-IN-LIEU OF 
TAXES; AUTHORIZING THE INCLUSION OF A PROJECT SITE IN A 
MULTI-COUNTY BUSINESS PARK; AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
SPECIAL SOURCE REVENUE CREDITS; AND OTHER RELATED 
MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina ("County"), acting by and through its County Council 
("County Council") is authorized pursuant to the provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44, Code of Laws of South 
Carolina, 1976, as amended ("PILOT Act"), to encourage manufacturing and commercial enterprises to 
locate in the State of South Carolina ("South Carolina" or "State") or to encourage manufacturing and 
commercial enterprises now located in the State to expand their investments and thus make use of and 
employ the manpower, products, and other resources of the State by entering into an agreement with a 
sponsor, as defined in the PILOT Act, that provides for the payment of a fee-in-lieu of ad valorem tax 
("PILOT Payments"), with respect to economic development property, as defined in the PILOT Act; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution and Title 4, Section 
1, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (collectively, "MCIP Act"), the County is authorized 
to jointly develop multicounty parks with counties having contiguous borders with the County and, in the 
County's discretion, include property within the boundaries of such multicounty parks. Under the authority 
provided in the MCIP Act, the County has created a multicounty park with Greenville County ("Park"); 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the PILOT and MCIP Acts, the County is authorized to provide special source 
revenue credits ("Infrastructure Credits") against PILOT Payments derived from economic development 
property to pay costs of designing, acquiring, constructing, improving or expanding (i) infrastructure 
serving a project or the County and (ii) improved and unimproved real estate and personal property used in 
the operation of a commercial enterprise or manufacturing facility ("Infrastructure"); 

WHEREAS, Project Santa's Hat ("Sponsor") desires to establish a photovoltaic solar facility in the 
County ("Project") consisting of an investment in real and personal property of not less than $2,500,000; 
and 

WHEREAS, at the request of the Sponsor and as an inducement to locate the Project in the County, the 
County desires to enter into a Fee-in-Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes Agreement with the Sponsor, as sponsor 
and a sponsor affiliate, the final form of which is attached as Exhibit A ("Fee Agreement"), pursuant to 
which the County will provide certain incentives to the Sponsor with respect to the Project, including (i) 
providing for PILOT Payments, to be calculated as set forth in the Fee Agreement, with respect to the 
portion of the Project which constitutes economic development property; (2) locating the Project in the 
Park; and (3) providing Infrastructure Credits, as described in the Fee Agreement, to assist in paying the 
costs of certain Infrastructure. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Council as follows: 

Section 1. Statutory Findings. Based on information supplied to the County by the Sponsor, County 
Council evaluated the Project based on relevant criteria, including the purposes the Project is to accomplish, 
the anticipated dollar amount and nature of the investment, and the anticipated costs and benefits to the 
County, and hereby finds: 



(a) The Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing services, 
employment, recreation, or other public benefits not otherwise adequately provided locally; 

(b) The Project gives rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or incorporated municipality or a 
charge against its general credit or taxing power; 

(c) The purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and public purposes; and 

(d) The benefits of the Project are greater than the costs. 

Section 2. Approval of Incentives; Authorization to Execute and Deliver Fee Agreement. The 
incentives as described in this Ordinance ("Ordinance"), and as more particularly set forth in the Fee 
Agreement, with respect to the Project are hereby approved. The form, terms and provisions of the Fee 
Agreement that is before this meeting are approved and all of the Fee Agreement's terms and conditions 
are incorporated in this Ordinance by reference. The Chair of County Council ("Chair") is authorized and 
directed to execute the Fee Agreement in the name of and on behalf of the County, subject to the approval 
of any revisions or changes as are not materially adverse to the County by the County Administrator and 
counsel to the County, and the Clerk to County Council is hereby authorized and directed to attest the Fee 
Agreement and to deliver the Fee Agreement to the Sponsor. 

Section 3. Further Assurances. The County Council confirms the authority of the Chair, the County 
Administrator, the Clerk to County Council, and various other County officials and staff, acting at the 
direction of the Chair, the County Administrator, or Clerk to County Council, as appropriate, to take 
whatever further action and to negotiate, execute and deliver whatever further documents as may be 
appropriate to effect the intent of this Ordinance and the incentives offered to the Sponsor under this 
Ordinance and the Fee Agreement. 

Section 4. Savings Clause. The provisions of this Ordinance are separable. If any part of this Ordinance 
is, for any reason, unenforceable then the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance is unaff((cted. 

Section 5. General Repealer. Any prior ordinance, resolution, or order, the terms of which are in 
conflict with this Ordinance, is, only to the extent of that conflict, repealed. 

Section 6. Effectiveness. This Ordinance is effective after its third reading and public hearing. 

2 



(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Burns 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk of Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

First Reading: 
Second Reading: 
Public Hearing: 
Third Reading: 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

3 



EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF FEE AGREEMENT 

-#4826-6206-58 15 v. l-



FEE-IN-LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES AND 

SPECIAL SOURCE REVENUE CREDIT AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

PROJECT SANTA'S HAT 

AND 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

EFFECTIVE AS OF [] 



ARTICLE I 

Section 1.1. 

ARTICLE II 

Section 2.1. 
Section 2.2. 

ARTICLE III 

Section 3.1. 
Section 3.2 
Section 3.3. 

ARTICLE IV 

Section 4.1. 
Section 4.2. 
Section 4.3. 
Section 4.4. 
Section 4.5. 
Section 4.6. 
Section 4.7. 
Section 4.8. 

ARTICLEV 

Section 5.1. 

ARTICLE VI 

Section 6.1. 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

DEFINITIONS ......... ......................................................................... ....... .. 1 

Terms ................................... .................................................................................... 1 

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES ................ ........................ 5 

Representations and Warranties of the County ....... ........ .......... .. ... .... .. ..... ....... .... ... 5 
Representations and Warranties of the Sponsor . .... .................. ... ... ..... ..... ..... ..... .... 5 

THE PROJECT .................................................. ..... ..... ... .......... ....... ..... .... 6 

The Project ... ............. ......... ............... ....... ................................................................ 6 
Leased Property ... ............... ..... ..... ..... ..... ....... ...... .......... ..... ...... .. ... ....... ......... ... ....... 6 
Filings and Reports ... ....... ....... ....... ... ....... ........................................ ........................ 6 

FILOTPAYMENTS ..... ............................................... ... .......... ......... ..... .. 6 

FILOT Payments ....... .... ........................................... ............. ........ ........ .............. ..... 6 
FILOT Payments on Replacement Property .............. ................ ... ..................... ..... . 7 
Removal of Components of the Project ................... .......................... ....... ......... ... ... 7 
Damage or Destruction of Economic Development Property ... ... ....... ..... .... ..... ..... . 7 
Condemnation ... ...................... ..... .......... .................................................................. 8 
Calculating FILOT Payments on Diminution in Value ... ....... ... .... ....... ........ .......... . 8 
Payment of Ad Valorem Taxes ... ..... ........ .... ....... ........... ......... ...... ...... ....... ......... ...... 8 
Place of FILOT Payments ................ ................................................................. ..... . 8 

ADDITIONAL INCENTIVES ........ ..... ......... ............. ... .... ... ..... ....... ..... ... 8 

Infrastructure Credits ............. ................................................................................. 8 

CLAWBACK ......... ............................. ........... .... ..... ..... ... ............ ..... .... ..... 9 

Claw Back ... ............. ................ ......... ..... ............ .................... ... .... ..... .... .... .............. 9 

ARTICLE VII DEFAULT .... .. ....... .. ....... .. ...... ....... ...... ............ .... ... ....... .. ..... .... ... ....... ........ 9 

Section 7 .1. Events of Default ... ...... .... ....... ....... ......... ..... ..... ............................ ..... ........ ........... .... 9 
Section 7 .2. Remedies on Default ... ......... ......... ..... ......... ..... ........... ....... .......... ...... ..... ............. .... 9 
Section 7.3. Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Other Expenses .......... .......... ...... ............... ..... 10 
Section 7 .4. Remedies Not Exclusive ..................... ................................ ................ ................ .... 10 

ARTICLE VIII PARTICULAR RIGHTS AND COVENANTS ... ........ ..... .... .... ............ 10 

Section 8.1. Right to Inspect ............ ........... ......... ... .... ......... ... ...... ..... ....... ..... .... .... ... ...... ........... 1 0 
Section 8.2. Confidentiality ............. ............. .............. ....................... ............... ..................... .... 11 
Section 8.3. No Liability of County Personnel ....... ........ ...... .......... ...... ... ..... .... .... ... ..... ............. 11 
Section 8.4. Limitation of Liability ......................... ......... ....................................................... ... 11 
Section 8.5. Assignment ........... .... ............. ......... ...... ... ... ....... ......... ......... ........ .. .... ... ......... ......... 11 
Section 8.6. No Double Payment; Future Changes in Legislation ........ ....... ... ........ ....... ........ ... 11 
Section 8.7. Administration Expenses ....... ........ ....... ....... ....... .............. ........ ..... ... ..... ..... .... ..... .. 12 

Ordinance 2019-048 



Section 8080 

ARTICLE IX 

Section 901. 

Section 9 0 20 

ARTICLE X 

Section 10020 

Section 1003 0 

Section 10.40 

Section 10.5. 

Section 1006 0 

Multicounty Park 0 0 00000000 0 0000 0 0000 00 00000000 0 0000 0 00 0 00 0 000000000000000000000000 0 0000 0 000000000 0 0 0 000000000 0 00 0 0012 

SPONSOR AFFILIATES 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0 000000000 0 00 0 000012 

Sponsor Affiliates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 012 

Primary Responsibility oo o o o o oooo oo o o o o oo o o o oo o o oo o ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo o o o oooooooo o ooooooooooo o o12 

MISCELLANEOUS 00000000000 0 00000 0 00 0 0 0 0000 0 0 0 0 0 000 0 0 0 000000 0 0 00 0 0 000 0 00 0 0 0 000 0 0 0 0 00 000 0 00 0 00 00 013 

Provisions of Agreement for Sole Benefit of County and Sponsor 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0000 0 0 00 00 0 013 

Counterparts o o ooo o o o o o oooooo o o o oooo o oo o o o oooooo o ooooooo o oo o oooooo o oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo14 

Governing Law o o o o oooooo o oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo o o o o o o o o o o o oo o o o o oo o o o oooo o o oo o o o o o oo o o o o o o oo o o o oo o o o14 

Headings oooooooooooooooo o oooooo o o oo ooo O O o oO O Ooo o oo o o o ooooo o oooo o oooooooooooooo o o o oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo o oo14 

Amendments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 014 

Section 1007 0 Agreement to Sign Other Documents 000000 0 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000014 

Section 10080 Interpretation; Invalidity; Change in Laws 00 0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0 00014 

Section 10090 Force Majeure ooooo o o o oooo o oooo o o OOOO O O O o oooo o o o oo o oo o o o oo o o o oooooooo o ooo o o o o oo oooooo o oo o oooo O O OO O O OOOO o oooo o oooo o o oo 14 

Section 100100 Termination; Termination by Sponsorooooo ooooo ooooooooo oooooo ooooooo ooo ooooooo ooo ooo ooooo oooooo ooo ooooo15 
Section 100110 Entire Agreement 0 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0000 0 0000 0 0 0 0 00 0 00 0 0 0 00 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 00000 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 0 00 0 00 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 000000 0 0015 

Section 100120 Waiverooo o ooo o oooooooooooo o oooo o o o o o oooooooooooooo o o o oo o oooo o oooo o ooo o o o oooooooo o o o oooo o oo o o o ooooooo o oooooo o oooo o ooooooooo15 

Section 100130 Business Dayoooooooo o oooooooooo o ooooooooo o oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo o ooooooooo o oooooooo o o o 15 

Section 100140 Agreement's Construction oo o o o oo o o o oo o o o oo o o o oo o oooo o o o o o o o o o oo o ooo o o o o o oooo oo o o o o oo o ooooooo o o o oo o o o o o o o o ooooo15 

Exhibit A- Description of Property; Fair Market Value 
Exhibit B- Form of Joinder Agreement 
Exhibit C- Description of Infrastructure Credit 

11 

Ordinance 2019-048 



SUMMARY OF CONTENTS OF 
FEE AGREEMENT 

The parties have agreed to waive the requirement to recapitulate the contents of this Fee Agreement 
pursuant to Section 12-44-55 of the Code (as defined herein). However, the parties have agreed to include 
a summary of the key provisions of this Fee Agreement for the convenience of the parties. This summary 
is included for convenience only and is not to be construed as a part of the terms and conditions of this Fee 
Agreement. 

PROVISION BRIEF DESCRIPTION SECTION REFERENCE 
Sponsor Name Santa's Hat Solar, LLC 
Project Location 
Tax Map No. 

FILOT 

• Phase 40 years 
Exemption 
Period 

• Investment $2,500,000 
Commitment 

• Jobs -0-
Commitment 

• Investment 5 years 
Period 

• Assessment 6% 
Ratio: 

• Millage Rate 353.4 

• Fixed or Five- Fixed 
Year Adjustable 
millage: 

• Claw Back Statutory clawback for failure to reach minimum 
information investment 

Multicounty Park Anderson - Greenville 
Infrastructure 
Credit 

• Brief Amount sufficient to reduce each annual FILOT 
Description payment to a fixed payment of $8,000 per year 

• Credit Term 40 years 

• Claw Back No clawback on Infrastructure Credit unless less 
information: than $2,500,000 is invested 

Other information 

111 

Ordinance 2019-048 



FEE-IN-LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES AND 

SPECIAL SOURCE REVENUE CREDIT AGREEMENT 

THIS FEE-IN-LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES AGREEMENT ("Fee Agreement") is entered 
into, effective, as of [DATE], between Anderson County, South Carolina ("County"), a body politic and 
corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina ("State"), acting through the Anderson 
County Council ("County Council") as the governing body of the County, and Santa's Hat Solar, LLC, a 
limited liability company organized and existing under the laws of the State of South Carolina ("Sponsor"). 

WITNESSETH: 

(a) Title 12, Chapter 44, ("Act") of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended 
("Code"), authorizes the County to induce manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate in the State 
or to encourage manufacturing and commercial enterprises currently located in the State to expand their 
investments and thus make use of and employ the manpower, products, and other resources of the State by 
entering into an agreement with a sponsor, as defined in the Act, that provides for the payment of a fee-in
lieu of ad valorem tax ("FILOT') with respect to Economic Development Property, as defined below; 

(b) Sections 4-1-170,4-1-175 , 4-29-68 of the Code authorize the County to (i) create multi-county 
industrial parks in partnership with contiguous counties; (ii) include the property of eligible companies 
within such parks as an inducement to locate within the County, which inclusion under the terms of Section 
13 of Article Vill of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina makes such property exempt from ad 
valorem property taxes, therefore changing the character of the annual receipts from such properties from 
ad valorem property taxes to FILOT payments; and (iii) grant an annual tax credit against such FILOT 
payments in order to assist a company in paying the cost of designing, acquiring, constructing, improving, 
or expanding the infrastructure serving the property of any company located within such multi-county 
industrial parks or for improved or unimproved real estate and personal property including machinery and 
equipment used in the operation of a commercial enterprise located within such multi-county parks in order 
to enhance the economic development of the County; 

(c) The Sponsor desires to establish a commercial enterprise ("Facility") in the County, consisting of 
investment in real and personal property of not less than $2,500,000; 

(d) By an ordinance enacted on [DATE], County Council authorized the County to enter into this 
Fee Agreement with the Sponsor to provide for a FILOT and the other incentives as more particularly 
described in this Fee Agreement to induce the Sponsor to locate its Facility in the County. 

NOW, THEREFORE, AND IN CONSIDERATION of the respective representations and 
agreements hereinafter contained, parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.1. Terms. The defined terms used in this Fee Agreement have the meaning given below, 
unless the context clearly requires otherwise. 

From time to time herein, reference is made to the term taxes or ad valorem taxes. All or portions 
of the Project are or will be located in a Multicounty Park and, as such, are or will be exempt from ad 
valorem taxation under and by virtue of the provisions of Paragraph D of Section 13 of Article Vill of the 
S.C. Constitution and the MCIP Act (as defined herein). With respect to facilities located in a Multicounty 
Park, references to taxes or ad valorem taxes means the fees-in-lieu of ad valorem taxes provided for in the 
MCIP Act. 

1 
Ordinance 2019-048 



"Abandonment" shall mean the failure of the Company to achieve Substantial Energy Generation 
at the Project for a period of one year after the Project has been placed in service. 

"Act" means Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code, as the Act may be amended from time to time and 
all future acts successor or supplemental thereto. 

"Act Minimum Investment Requirement" means an investment of at least $2,500,000 in the 
Project by the Sponsor or a Sponsor Affiliate within five years of the Commencement Date, or a combined 
total investment of at least $5,000,000 in the Project by the Sponsor and one or more Sponsor Affiliates, 
regardless of the amount invested by each such party, within five years of the Commencement Date. 

"Administration Expenses" means the reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the County 
in the negotiation, approval and execution of this Fee Agreement, for reasonable attorney's fees. 
Administration Expenses do not include any costs, expenses, including attorney's fees, incurred by the 
County (i) after execution of this Fee Agreement, (ii) in defending challenges to the Fll...OT Payments, 
Infrastructure Credits or any other incentives provided by this Fee Agreement brought by any third parties; 
or (ii) any actions by the Sponsor or its affiliates and related entities; or (iii) in connection with matters 
arising prior to execution at the request of the Sponsor outside of the immediate scope of this Fee 
Agreement. 

"Code" means the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as the same may be amended from time 
to time. 

"Commencement Date" means the last day of the property tax year during which Economic 
Development Property is placed in service. The Commencement Date shall not be later than the last day of 
the property tax year which is three years from the year in which the County and the Sponsor enter into this 
Fee Agreement. 

"County" means Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a political 
subdivision of the State, its successors and assigns, acting by and through the County Council as the 
governing body of the County . 

"County Council" means the Anderson County Council, the governing body of the County. 

"Credit Term" means the years during the Fee Term in which the Infrastructure Credit is applicable, 
as described in Exhibit C. 

"Decommissioning" shall mean the removal and proper disposal of all Equipment, stabilization 
and rehabilitations of the Real Property, and restoration of the Real Property to its original state. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Sponsor shall have no obligation to remove roads constructed on the Real 
Property, or to remove fencing that the then current landowner requests to remain, or to remove subsurface 
improvements below 30 inches of depth. 

"Department" means the South Carolina Department of Revenue. 

"Diminution in Value" means a reduction in the fair market value of Economic Development 
Property, as determined in Section 4.l(a)(i) of this Fee Agreement, which may be caused by (i) the removal 
or disposal of components of the Project pursuant to Section 4.3 of this Fee Agreement; (ii) a casualty as 
described in Section 4.4 of this Fee Agreement; or (iii) a condemnation as described in Section 4.5 of this 
Fee Agreement. 

"Economic Development Property" means those items of real and tangible personal property of 
the Project placed in service not later than the end of the Investment Period that (i) satisfy the conditions of 

2 
Ordinance 20 19-048 



classification as economic development property under the Act, and (ii) are identified by the Sponsor in its 
annual filing of a PT-300S or comparable form with the Department (as such filings may be amended from 
time to time) . 

"Equipment" means all of the machinery, equipment, furniture, office equipment, and fixtures , 
together with any and all additions, accessions, replacements, and substitutions. 

"Event of Default" means any event of default specified in Section 7.1 of this Fee Agreement. 

"Fee Agreement" means this Fee Agreement. 

"Fee Term" means the period from the effective date of this Fee Agreement until the Final 
Termination Date. 

"FILOT Ordinance" means Ordinance No. 
adopted by the County Council. 

~====~~~-· dated 

"FILOT Payments" means the amount paid or to be paid in lieu of ad valorem property taxes by 
the Sponsor and all Sponsor Affiliates as provided in Section 4.1 and before taking into account any 
Infrastructure Credit. For the avoidance of doubt, should any part or all of the Project not be eligible as 
Economic Development Property, the Fll...OT Payment shall also mean, in such case, the payments in lieu 
of taxes made as a result of the Project being located in a Multicounty Park. 

"Final Phase" means the Economic Development Property placed in service during the last year 
of the Investment Period. 

"Final Termination Date" means the date on which the last Fll...OT Payment or Net Fll...OT 
Payment or with respect to the Final Phase is made, or such earlier date as the Fee Agreement is terminated 
in accordance with the terms of this Fee Agreement. "Fixed FILOT Payment" shall have the meaning as 
described on Exhibit C attached hereto. 

"Improvements" means all improvements to the Real Property, including buildings, building 
additions and improvements, roads, sewer lines, and infrastructure, together with all additions, fixtures, 
accessions, replacements, and substitutions. 

"Infrastructure" means (i) the infrastructure serving the County or the Project, and (ii) improved 
and unimproved real estate. Upon the written election by the Sponsor and notice to the County, personal 
property, including machinery and equipment, used in the operation of a manufacturing or commercial 
enterprise, and such other items as may be described in or permitted under Section 4-29-68 of the Code 
shall also be included in the definition of Infrastructure. 

"Infrastructure Credit" means the special source revenue credit provided to the Sponsor pursuant 
to Section 4-1-175 of the MCIP Act and Section 5.1 of this Fee Agreement, with respect to the 
Infrastructure. Infrastructure Credits are to be used for the payment of the costs of the Infrastructure. 

"Investment Period" means the period beginning with the first day of any purchase or acquisition 
of Economic Development Property and ending five (5) years after the Commencement Date, as may be 
extended pursuant to Section 12-44-30(13) of the Act. For purposes of this Fee Agreement, the Investment 
Period, unless so extended, is expected to end on December 31, 2024. 

"MCIP Act" means Article VIII, Section l3(D) of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina, 
and Sections 4-1-170, 4-l-172, 4-1-175, and 4-29-68 of the Code. 

3 
Ordinance 2019-048 



"Multicounty Park" means the multicounty industrial or business park governed by the Agreement 
for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and Business Park (2010 Park), dated as of December 1, 
2010, between the County and Greenville County, South Carolina. 

"Net FILOT Payment" means the PILOT Payment net of the Infrastructure Credit. 

"Phase" means Project property placed in service during a particular year of the Investment Period. 

"Phase Exemption Period" means, with respect to each Phase, the period beginning with the 
property tax year the Phase is placed in service during the Investment Period and ending on the Phase 
Termination Date. 

"Phase Termination Date" means, with respect to each Phase, the last day of the property tax year 
which is the 39th year following the first property tax year in which the Phase is placed in service. 

"Project" means all the Equipment, Improvements, and Real Property in the County that the 
Sponsor determines to be necessary, suitable, or useful by the Sponsor in connection with its investment in 
the County. 

"Real Property" means real property that the Sponsor uses or will use in the County for the 
purposes that Section 2.2(b) describes, and initially consists of the land identified on Exhibit A of this Fee 
Agreement, and shall also include such land located in the County which shall be noted on schedules or 
supplements to Exhibit A, as may be provided by the Sponsor, provided that any requirement that the 
Sponsor provide such schedules or supplements with respect to future land may be satisfied by the 
Sponsor's filing with the Department of Form PT -300 with ScheduleS attached listing such additional land, 
or such comparable form or schedule as the Department may provide in connection with projects subject to 
the Act. 

"Removed Components" means Economic Development Property which the Sponsor, in its sole 
discretion, (a) determines to be inadequate, obsolete, worn-out, uneconomic, damaged, unsuitable, 
undesirable, or unnecessary pursuant to Section 4.3 of this Fee Agreement or otherwise; or (b) elects to be 
treated as removed pursuant to Section 4.4(c) or Section 4.5(b)(iii) of this Fee Agreement. 

"Replacement Property" means any property which is placed in service as a replacement for any 
Removed Component regardless of whether the Replacement Property serves the same functions as the 
Removed Component it is replacing and regardless of whether more than one piece of Replacement 
Property replaces a single Removed Component. 

"Sponsor" means Santa's Hat Solar, LLC and any surviving, resulting, or transferee entity in any 
merger, consolidation, or transfer of assets; or any other person or entity which may succeed to the rights 
and duties of the Sponsor under this Fee Agreement. 

"Sponsor Affiliate" means an entity that participates in the investment at the Project and, following 
receipt of any required County approval pursuant to Section 9.1 of this Fee Agreement, joins this Fee 
Agreement by delivering a Joinder Agreement, the form of which is attached as Exhibit B to this Fee 
Agreement. 

"State" means the State of South Carolina. 

"Substantial Energy Generation" shall mean generation of at least 50% of energy capacity at the 
Project, which shall mean a production of less than 2,350 MWhs annually. 

4 
Ordinance 2019-048 



Any reference to any agreement or document in this Article I or otherwise in this Fee Agreement 
shall include any and all amendments, supplements, addenda, and modifications to such agreement or 
document. 

The term "investment" or "invest" as used in this Fee Agreement includes not only investments 
made by the Sponsor, but also to the fullest extent permitted by law, those investments made by or for the 
benefit of the Sponsor in connection with the Project through federal , state, or local grants, in cash or in 
kind, to the extent such investments are or, but for the terms of this Fee Agreement, would be subject to ad 
valorem taxes to be paid by the Sponsor. 

ARTICLE II 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

Section 2.1. Representations and Warranties of the County. The County represents and warrants 
as follows: 

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State and acts 
through the County Council as its governing body. The Act authorizes and empowers the County to enter 
into the transactions that this Fee Agreement contemplates and to carry out its obligations under this Fee 
Agreement. The County has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement and all other 
documents, certificates or other agreements contemplated in this Fee Agreement and has obtained all 
consents from third parties and taken all actions necessary or that the law requires to fulfill its obligations 
under this Fee Agreement. 

(b) Based on representations by the Sponsor, County Council evaluated the Project based on all 
relevant criteria including the purposes the Project is to accomplish, the anticipated dollar amount and 
nature of the investment resulting from the Project, and the anticipated costs and benefits to the County and 
following the evaluation, the County determined that (i) the Project is anticipated to benefit the general 
public welfare of the County by providing services, employment, recreation, or other public benefits not 
otherwise adequately provided locally; (ii) the Project gives rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or 
any incorporated municipality and to no charge against the County's general credit or taxing power; (iii) 
the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and public purposes; and (iv) the 
benefits of the Project are greater than the costs. 

(c) The County identified the Project, as a "project" on [DATE] by adopting an inducement 
resolution, as defined in the Act. 

(d) The County is not in default of any of its obligations (contractual or otherwise) as a result of 
entering into and performing its obligations under this Fee Agreement. 

(e) The County has located or will take all reasonable action to locate and maintain the Project in 
the Multicounty Park. 

Section 2.2. Representations and Warranties of the Sponsor. The Sponsor represents and warrants 
as follows: 

(a) The Sponsor is in good standing under the laws of the State of its organization, is duly authorized 
to transact business in the State (or will obtain such authority prior to commencing business in the State), 
has power to enter into this Fee Agreement, and has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Fee 
Agreement. 

5 
Ordinance 2019-048 



(b) The Sponsor intends to operate the Project as a photovoltaic solar facility, and for such other 
purposes that the Act permits as the Sponsor may deem appropriate. 

(c) The Sponsor's execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement, and its compliance with the 
provisions of this Fee Agreement do not result in a default under any agreement or instrument to which the 
Sponsor is now a party or by which it is bound. 

(d) The Sponsor will use commercially reasonable efforts to achieve the Act Minimum Investment 
Requirement. 

(e) The execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement by the County and the availability of the 
PILOT Payments and other incentives provided by this Fee Agreement has been instrumental in inducing 
the Sponsor to locate the Project in the County. 

ARTICLE III 
THE PROJECT 

Section 3.1. The Project. The Sponsor intends and expects to (i) construct or acquire the Project 
and (ii) meet the Act Minimum Investment Requirement within the Investment Period. The Sponsor 
anticipates that the first Phase of the Project will be placed in service during the calendar year ending 
December 31,2021. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the Sponsor 
is not obligated to complete the acquisition of the Project. 

Section 3.2 Leased Property. To the fullest extent that State law allows or is revised or construed 
to permit leased assets including a building, or personal property to be installed in a building, to constitute 
Economic Development Property, then any property leased by the Sponsor is, at the election of the Sponsor, 
deemed to be Economic Development Property for purposes of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 3.3. Filings and Reports. 

(a) The Sponsor shall file a copy of this Fee Agreement and a completed PT-443 with the 
Department and the Auditor, Treasurer and Assessor of the County and partner county to the Multicounty 
Park. 

(b) On request by the County Administrator, the Sponsor shall remit to the County copies of such 
records related to the calculation of the PILOT Payments and the Net PILOT Payments due hereunder as 
the County would normally be entitled to in case the Project was subject to ad valorem taxation. 

Section 4.1. FILOT Payments. 

ARTICLE IV 
FILOT PAYMENTS 

(a) The PILOT Payment due with respect to each Phase through the Phase Termination Date is 
calculated as follows: 

(i) The fair market value of the Phase calculated as set forth in the Act (for the Real 
Property portion of the Phase, the County and the Sponsor have elected to use the fair 
market value established in the first year of the Phase Exemption Period which fair 
market value is set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto), multiplied by 

(ii) An assessment ratio of six percent (6%), multiplied by 

6 
Ordinance 2019-048 



(iii) A fixed millage rate equal to the cumulative millage rate levied by or on behalf of all 
the taxing entities within which the Project is located as of June 30, 2019, which the 
parties believe to be 353.4 mills. 

The calculation of the Fll.,OT Payment must allow all applicable property tax exemptions except 
those excluded pursuant to Section 12-44-50(A)(2) of the Act. 

(b) If a final order of a court of competent jurisdiction from which no further appeal is allowable 
declares the Fll.,OT Payments invalid or unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, the parties shall 
negotiate, in accordance with and subject to the terms of Section 10.8, the reformation of the calculation of 
the Fll.,OT Payments to most closely afford the Sponsor with the intended benefits of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 4.2. FILOT Payments on Replacement Property. If the Sponsor elects to place 
Replacement Property in service, then, pursuant and subject to the provisions of Section 12-44-60 of the 
Act, the Sponsor shall make the following payments to the County with respect to the Replacement Property 
for the remainder of the Phase Exemption Period applicable to the Removed Component of the Replacement 
Property: 

(a) Fll.,OT Payments, calculated in accordance with Section 4.1 , on the Replacement Property to 
the extent of the original income tax basis of the Removed Component the Replacement Property is deemed 
to replace. 

(b) Regular ad valorem tax payments to the extent the income tax basis of the Replacement Property 
exceeds the original income tax basis of the Removed Component the Replacement Property is deemed to 
replace. 

Section 4.3. Removal of Components of the Project. The Sponsor is entitled to remove and dispose 
of components of the Project in its sole discretion. Components of the Project are deemed removed when 
scrapped, sold or otherwise permanently removed from the Project with the intent that it no longer be used 
for the Project. If the components removed from the Project are Economic Development Property, then the 
Economic Development Property is a Removed Component, no longer subject to this Fee Agreement and 
is subject to ad valorem property taxes to the extent the Removed Component remains in the State and is 
otherwise subject to ad valorem property taxes. In case Economic Development Property is removed, the 
Fixed Fll.,OT Payment shall be adjusted downward pro rata. 

Section 4.4. Damage or Destruction of Economic Development Property. 

(a) Election to Terminate . If Economic Development Property is damaged by fire, explosion, or 
any other casualty, then the Sponsor may terminate all or part of this Fee Agreement. In the property tax 
year in which the damage or casualty occurs and continues, the Sponsor is obligated to make Fll.,OT 
Payments with respect to the damaged Economic Development Property only to the extent property subject 
to ad valorem taxes would have been subject to such taxes under the same circumstances for the period in 
question. 

(b) Election to Restore and Replace. If Economic Development Property is damaged by fire, 
explosion, or any other casualty, and the Sponsor does not elect to terminate this Fee Agreement, then the 
Sponsor may restore and replace the Economic Development Property. All restorations and replacements 
made pursuant to this subsection (b) are deemed, to the fullest extent permitted by law and this Fee 
Agreement, to be Replacement Property. 

7 
Ordinance 2019-048 



(c) Election to Remove. If Economic Development Property is damaged by fire, explosion, or any 
other casualty, and the Sponsor elects not to terminate this Fee Agreement pursuant to subsection (a) and 
elects not to restore or replace pursuant to subsection (b), then the damaged portions of the Economic 
Development Property are deemed Removed Components and the Fixed Fll...OT Payment shall be adjusted 
downward pro rata. 

Section 4.5. Condemnation. 

(a) Complete Taking. If at any time during the Fee Term title to or temporary use of the Economic 
Development Property is vested in a public or quasi-public authority by virtue of the exercise of a taking 
by condemnation, inverse condemnation, or the right of eminent domain; by voluntary transfer under threat 
of such taking; or by a taking of title to a portion of the Economic Development Property which renders 
continued use or occupancy of the Economic Development Property commercially unfeasible in the 
judgment of the Sponsor, the Sponsor shall have the option to terminate this Fee Agreement by sending 
written notice to the County within a reasonable period of time following such vesting. 

(b) Partial Taking. In the event of a partial taking of the Economic Development Property or a 
transfer in lieu, the Sponsor may elect: (i) to terminate all or part of this Fee Agreement; (ii) to restore and 
replace the Economic Development Property, with such restorations and replacements deemed, to the fullest 
extent permitted by law and this Fee Agreement, to be Replacement Property; or (iii) to treat the portions 
of the Economic Development Property so taken as Removed Components with a corresponding pro rata 
downward adjustment of the Fixed FILOT Payment. 

(c) In the year in which the taking occurs, the Sponsor is obligated to make FILOT Payments with 
respect to the Economic Development Property so taken only to the extent property subject to ad valorem 
taxes would have been subject to taxes under the same circumstances for the period in question . 

Section 4.6. Calculating FILOT Payments on Diminution in Value . If there is a Diminution in 
Value, the FILOT Payments due with respect to the Economic Development Property or Phase so 
diminished shall be calculated by substituting the diminished value of the Economic Development Property 
or Phase for the original fair market value in Section 4.1 (a)(i) of this Fee Agreement. For the avoidance of 
doubt, the Infrastructure Credit shall remain applicable to such adjusted FILOT Payment at all times. 

Section 4.7. Payment of Ad Valorem Taxes. If Economic Development Property becomes subject 
to ad valorem taxes as imposed by law, pursuant to this Fee Agreement, the Act, or otherwise, then the 
calculation of any ad valorem taxes due with respect to the Economic Development Property in a particular 
property tax year shall: (i) include the property tax reductions and exemptions that would have applied to the 
Economic Development Property as if it were not Economic Development Property; and (ii) include a credit 
for FILOT Payments or Net FILOT Payments or the Sponsor has made with respect to the Economic 
Development Property. 

Section 4.8. Place of FILOT Payments. All Net FILOT Payments shall be made directly to the 
County in accordance with applicable law. 

ARTICLE V 
ADDITIONAL INCENTIVES 

Section 5.1. Infrastructure Credits. To assist in paying for costs of Infrastructure, the Sponsor is 
entitled to claim an Infrastructure Credit to reduce certain FILOT Payments due and owing from the 
Sponsor to the County under this Fee Agreement. The term, amount and calculation of the Infrastructure 

8 
Ordinance 20 19-048 



Credit is described in Exhibit C. In no event may the Sponsor's aggregate Infrastructure Credit claimed 
pursuant to this Section exceed the aggregate expenditures by the Sponsor on Infrastructure. 

For each property tax year in which the Infrastructure Credit is applicable ("Credit Term"), the 
County shall prepare and issue the annual bills with respect to the Project showing the Net Fll..OT Payment, 
calculated in accordance with Exhibit C. Following receipt of the bill, the Sponsor shall timely remit the 
Net Fll..OT Payment to the County in accordance with applicable law. 

ARTICLE VI 
CLAW BACK 

Section 6.1. Act Minimum Investment Requirement Claw Back. If the Sponsor together with any 
Sponsor Affiliate fails to reach the Act Minimum Investment Requirement then this Agreement shall be 
terminated and the Sponsor and any Sponsor Affiliate is subject to the claw backs as described in the Act, 
subject to the provisions of Exhibit C with respect to Infrastructure Credits. 

ARTICLE VII 
DEFAULT 

Section 7.1. Events of Default. Subject in all events to Section 10.9 hereof, the following are 
"Events of Default" under this Fee Agreement: 

(a) Failure by the Sponsor to make Fll..OT Payments or Net Fll..OT Payments due under this 
Agreement, which failure has not been cured within 30 days following receipt of written notice from the 
County specifying the delinquency in such payments and requesting that it be remedied; 

(b) (i) A representation or warranty made by the Sponsor which is materially incorrect when made 
or deemed made; or (ii) a failure by the Sponsor to perform any of the material terms, conditions, 
obligations, or covenants under this Fee Agreement (other than those under (a), above, or addressed under 
Section 6.1 hereof for which failure an exclusive remedy has been provided in Exhibit C), which failure 
under (i) or (ii) has not been cured within 30 days after written notice from the County to the Sponsor 
specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, unless the Sponsor has instituted corrective action 
within the 30-day period and is diligently pursuing corrective action until the default is corrected, in which 
case the 30-day period is extended to include the period during which the Sponsor is diligently pursuing 
corrective action; 

(c) A representation or warranty made by the County which is materially incorrect when made or 
deemed made; or 

(d) Failure by the County to perform any of the material terms, conditions, obligations, or covenants 
hereunder, which failure has not been cured within 30 days after written notice from the Sponsor to the 
County specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, unless the County has instituted 
corrective action within the 30-day period and is diligently pursuing corrective action until the default is 
corrected, in which case the 30-day period is extended to include the period during which the County is 
diligently pursuing corrective action. 

Section 7 .2. Remedies on Default. 

(a) If an Event of Default by the Sponsor has occurred and is continuing, then the County may take 
any one or more of the following remedial actions: 

9 
Ordinance 2019-048 



(i) bring an action for collection of any amounts due hereunder; and/or terminate this Fee 
Agreement, upon another 30 days written notice, in the case of an Event of Default under Section 
7. l(a); or 

(ii) take whatever action at law or in equity that may appear necessary or desirable to 
remedy the Event of Default under Section 7 .l(b) but the County' s damages under this Agreement 
for an Event of Default shall always be limited to and never exceed under any circumstance the 
amount of Fll.,OT Payments due (after application of any Infrastructure Credit) plus legal fees and 
expenses under Section 7.3 hereof, and any penalty and interest required by statute. Under no 
circumstances will the Sponsor ever be liable to the County for any other damages hereunder or 
any other penalty or other interest. 

(b) If an Event of Default by the County has occurred and is continuing, the Sponsor may take any 
one or more of the following actions: 

(i) bring an action for specific enforcement; 

(ii) terminate this Fee Agreement; or 

(iii) take such other action as is appropriate, including legal action, to recover its damages, 
to the extent allowed by law. For purposes of this Agreement, the Sponsor and any Sponsor 
Affiliate' s damages under this Agreement for an Event of Default shall be limited to and never 
exceed, under any circumstance, the actual savings to be realized by the Sponsor and/or the Sponsor 
Affiliate due to the Fll.,OT Payments and Infrastructure Credit provided herein, plus any legal fees 
and expenses under Section 7.3 hereof, plus interest at the same rate as provided under (a)(ii) above. 
Under no circumstances will the County ever be liable for any other damages hereunder or penalty 
or other interest. 

Section 7.3. Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Other Expenses. If a party is required to employ 
attorneys or incur other reasonable expenses for the collection of payments due under this Fee Agreement 
or for the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or agreement, the prevailing party 
is entitled to reimbursement of the reasonable fees of such attorneys and other reasonable expenses so 
incurred. 

Section 7.4. Remedies Not Exclusive. Unless expressly provided otherwise, no remedy described 
in this Fee Agreement is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or remedies described in this 
Agreement, and each and every such remedy is cumulative and in addition to every other remedy given 
under this Fee Agreement. 

ARTICLE VIII 
PARTICULAR RIGHTS AND COVENANTS 

Section 8.1. Right to Inspect. Subject to the Sponsor's safety policies and requirements, this 
Agreement does not limit any otherwise existing legal right of the County and its authorized agents, at any 
reasonable time on prior notice, to enter and examine and inspect the Project for the purposes of permitting 
the County to carry out its duties and obligations in its sovereign capacity (such as, without limitation, for 
such routine health and safety purposes as would be applied to any other manufacturing or commercial 
facility in the County). 

10 
Ordinance 20 19-048 



Section 8.2. Confidentiality. The County acknowledges that the Sponsor may utilize confidential 
and proprietary processes and materials, services, equipment, trade secrets, and techniques ("Confidential 
Information") and that disclosure of the Confidential Information could result in substantial economic harm 
to the Sponsor. The Sponsor may clearly label any Confidential Information delivered to the County 
pursuant to this Fee Agreement as "Confidential Information ." Except as required by law, the County, or 
any employee, agent, or contractor of the County, shall not disclose or otherwise divulge any labeled 
Confidential Information to any other person, firm, governmental body or agency. The Sponsor 
acknowledges that the County is subject to the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act, and, as a result, 
must disclose certain documents and information on request, absent an exemption. If the County is required 
to disclose any Confidential Information to a third party, the County will use its best efforts to provide the 
Sponsor with as much advance notice as is reasonably possible of such disclosure requirement prior to 
making such disclosure, and to cooperate reasonably with any attempts by the Sponsor to obtain judicial or 
other relief from such disclosure requirement. 

Section 8.3. No Liability of County Personnel. All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements 
and obligations of the County contained in this Fee Agreement are binding on members of the County 
Council or any elected official, officer, agent, servant or employee of the County only in his or her official 
capacity and not in his or her individual capacity, and no recourse for the payment of any moneys under 
this Fee Agreement may be had against any member of County Council or any elected or appointed official, 
officer, agent, servant or employee of the County and no recourse for the payment of any moneys or 
performance of any of the covenants and agreements under this Fee Agreement or for any claims based on 
this Fee Agreement may be had against any member of County Council or any elected or appointed official, 
officer, agent, servant or employee of the County except solely in their official capacity. 

Section 8.4. Limitation of Liability. The County is not liable to the Sponsor for any costs, expenses, 
losses, damages, claims or actions in connection with this Fee Agreement, except from amounts received 
by the County from the Sponsor under this Fee Agreement. Notwithstanding anything in this Fee 
Agreement to the contrary, any financial obligation the County may incur under this Fee Agreement is 
deemed not to constitute a pecuniary liability or a debt or general obligation of the County. 

ANY OBLIGATION OF THE COUNTY CREATED BY OR ARISING OUT OF THIS FEE 
AGREEMENT SHALL BE A LIMITED OBLIGATION OF THE COUNTY, PAYABLE BY THE 
COUNTY SOLELY FROM THE PROCEED DERIVED UNDER THIS FEE AGREEMENT AND 
SHALL NOT UNDER ANY CIRCUMSNT ACES BE DEEMED TO CONSTITUTE A GENERAL 
OBLIGATION OF THE COUNTY WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL OR 
STATUTORY LIMITATION. 

Section 8.5. Assignment. The Sponsor may assign this Fee Agreement in whole or in part with the 
prior written consent of the County or a subsequent written ratification by the County, which may be done 
by resolution, and which consent or ratification the County will not unreasonably withhold; provided, 
however, that the County hereby expressly consents in advance to any such assignment of this Fee 
Agreement, in whole or in part, by the Sponsor to any entity, now existing or to be formed in the future, 
which controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Sponsor. The Sponsor agrees to 
notify the County and the Department of the identity of the proposed transferee within 60 days of the 
transfer. In case of a transfer, the transferee assumes the transferor's basis in the Economic Development 
Property for purposes of calculating the FILOT Payments. 

Section 8.6. No Double Payment; Future Changes in Legislation. Notwithstanding anything 
contained in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, and except as expressly required by law, the Sponsor is 
not required to make a FILOT Payment in addition to a regular ad valorem property tax payment in the 
same year with respect to the same piece of Economic Development Property. The Sponsor is not required 

11 
Ordinance 2019-048 



to make a PILOT Payment on Economic Development Property in cases where, absent this Fee Agreement, 
ad valorem property taxes would otherwise not be due on such property. 

Section 8.7. Administration Expenses. The Sponsor will reimburse the County for its 
Administration Expenses in an amount that shall in any event be capped at and limited in the aggregate to 
$2,500 on receipt of a written request from the County or at the County's direction, which request shall 
include a statement of the amount and nature of the Administration Expense. The Sponsor shall pay the 
Administration Expense as set forth in the written request no later than 60 days following receipt of the 
written request from the County. The County does not impose a charge in the nature of impact fees or 
recurring fees in connection with the incentives authorized by this Fee Agreement. The payment by the 
Sponsor of the County's Administration Expenses shall not be construed as prohibiting the County from 
engaging, at its discretion, the counsel of the County's choice. 

Section 8.8. Multicounty Park. The County will use its best efforts to cause, prior to the Project 
being place in service, the Real Property to be placed in the Multicounty Park (if not already in the 
Multicounty Park) and to maintain the Real Property in the Multicounty Park or in some other multicounty 
industrial or business park within the meaning of the MClP Act for at least as long as the Infrastructure 
Credit is to be provided to the Sponsor under this Fee Agreement. 

Section 8.9. Decommissioning. The Sponsor shall obtain a bond listing the County as obligee in 
the amount of $10,000 per megawatt of output AC produced by the Project to ensure performance of 
Sponsor's Decommissioning obligations within six (6) months of the Abandonment, termination of the 
lease governing the Real Property or other termination of the Project by the Sponsor. The obligations 
arising under this Section survive termination of the Fee Agreement. 

ARTICLE IX 
SPONSOR AFFILIATES 

Section 9.1. Sponsor Affiliates. The Sponsor may designate Sponsor Affiliates from time to time, 
including at the time of execution of this Fee Agreement, pursuant to and subject to the provisions of Section 
12-44-130 of the Act. To designate a Sponsor Affiliate, the Sponsor must deliver written notice to the 
County identifying the Sponsor Affiliate and requesting the County's approval of the Sponsor Affiliate. 
Except with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate designated at the time of execution of this Fee Agreement, which 
may be approved in the County Council ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of this Fee 
Agreement, approval of the Sponsor Affiliate may be given by the County Administrator delivering written 
notice to the Sponsor and Sponsor Affiliate following receipt by the County Administrator of a 
recommendation from the Economic Development Committee of County Council to allow the Sponsor 
Affiliate to join in the investment at the Project; provided, however, that the County hereby expressly 
consents to any future designation by the Sponsor as a Sponsor Affiliate (i) any entity, now existing or to 
be formed in the future, which controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Sponsor and 
(ii) any third party that the Sponsor may elect to involve in the construction or financing of the Project, and 
(iii) the Iandowner(s) of the Real Property. The Sponsor Affiliate's joining in the investment at the Project 
will be effective on delivery of a Joinder Agreement, the form of which is attached as Exhibit B, executed 
by the Sponsor Affiliate to the County. 

Section 9.2. Primary Responsibility. Notwithstanding the addition of a Sponsor Affiliate, the 
Sponsor acknowledges that it has the primary responsibility for the duties and obligations of the Sponsor 
and any Sponsor Affiliate under this Fee Agreement, including the payment of PILOT Payments or any 
other amount due to or for the benefit of the County under this Fee Agreement. For purposes of this Fee 
Agreement, "primary responsibility" means that if the Sponsor Affiliate fails to make any PILOT Payment 
or omit any other amount due under this Fee Agreement, the Sponsor shall make such PILOT Payment or 

12 
Ordinance 2019-048 



remit such other amounts on behalf of the Sponsor Affiliate. The Sponsor Affiliate's obligation to make 
FILOT Payments under this Fee Agreement to the County shall be limited to the PILOT Payments due on 
the Sponsor Affiliate's Economic Development Property only and under no circumstances shall the Sponsor 
Affiliate be liable for any PILOT Payments relating to the Sponsor's Economic Development Property. 

ARTICLE X 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 10.1. Notices. Any notice, election, demand, request, or other communication to be 
provided under this Fee Agreement is effective when delivered to the party named below or when deposited 
with the United States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed 
as follows (or addressed to such other address as any party shall have previously furnished in writing to the 
other party), except where the terms of this Fee Agreement require receipt rather than sending of any notice, 
in which case such provision shall control: 

IF TO THE SPONSOR: 

Santa's Hat Solar, LLC 
130 Roberts Street, 
Asheville, North Carolina 28801 

WITH A COPY TO (does not constitute notice): 

Nelson Mullins Riley & Scarborough, LLP 
Attn: Edward Kluiters 
1320 Main Street, 17th Floor (29201) 
PO Box 11070 
Columbia, SC 29211 

IF TO THE COUNTY: 

Anderson County, South Carolina 
Attn: Anderson County Administrator 
101 S. Main Street 
Anderson, SC 29624 

WITH A COPY TO (does not constitute notice): 

Leon Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 
101 S. Main Street 
Anderson, SC 29624 

Section 10.2. Provisions of Agreement for Sole Benefit of County and Sponsor. Except as 
otherwise specifically provided in this Fee Agreement, nothing in this Fee Agreement expressed or implied 
confers on any person or entity other than the County and the Sponsor and any Sponsor Affiliates any right, 
remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Fee Agreement, this Fee Agreement being intended to be for 

13 
Ordinance 2019-048 



the sole and exclusive benefit of the County and the Sponsor and any Sponsor Affiliates. 

Section 10.3. Counterparts. This Fee Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
and all of the counterparts together constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 10.4. Governing Law. South Carolina law, exclusive of its conflicts of law provisions that 
would refer the governance of this Fee Agreement to the laws of another jurisdiction, governs this Fee 
Agreement and all documents executed in connection with this Fee Agreement. 

Section 10.5. Headings. The headings of the articles and sections of this Fee Agreement are 
inserted for convenience only and do not constitute a part of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 10.6. Amendments. This Fee Agreement may be amended only by written agreement of 
the parties to this Fee Agreement. 

Section 10.7. Agreement to Sign Other Documents. From time to time, and at the expense of the 
Sponsor, to the extent any expense is incurred, the County agrees to execute and deliver to the Sponsor 
such additional instruments as the Sponsor may reasonably request and as are authorized by law and 
reasonably within the purposes and scope of the Act and this Fee Agreement to effectuate the purposes of 
this Fee Agreement. 

Section 10.8. Interpretation; Invalidity; Change in Laws. 

(a) If the inclusion of property as Economic Development Property or any other issue is unclear 
under this Fee Agreement, then the parties intend that the interpretation of this Fee Agreement be done in 
a manner that provides for the broadest inclusion of property under the terms of this Fee Agreement and 
the maximum incentive permissible under the Act, to the extent not inconsistent with any of the explicit 
terms of this Fee Agreement. It is expressly agreed that the Sponsor may add Economic Development 
Property, whether real or personal, by including such property on the Sponsor's PT-300 Schedule S or 
successor form during the Investment Period to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

(b) If any provision of this Fee Agreement is declared illegal, invalid, or unenforceable for any 
reason, the remaining provisions of this Fee Agreement are unimpaired, and the parties shall reform such 
illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision to effectuate most closely the legal, valid, and enforceable intent 
of this Fee Agreement so as to afford the Sponsor with the maximum benefits to be derived under this Fee 
Agreement, it being the intention of the County to offer the Sponsor the strongest inducement possible, 
within the provisions of the Act, to locate the Project in the County. 

(c) The County agrees that in case the FILOT incentive described in this Fee Agreement is found 
to be invalid and the Sponsor does not realize the economic benefit it is intended to receive from the County 
under this Fee Agreement as an inducement to locate in the County, the County agrees to provide a special 
source revenue or Infrastructure Credit to the Sponsor (in addition to the Infrastructure Credit explicitly 
provided for above) to the maximum extent permitted by law, to allow the Sponsor to recoup all or a portion 
of the loss of the economic benefit resulting from such invalidity. 

Section 10.9. Force Majeure. Notwithstanding Section 7.1 hereof or any other provision of this 
Fee Agreement to the contrary, the Sponsor is not liable or responsible for any delays or non-performance 
caused in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, by strikes, accidents, freight embargoes, fires, floods, 
inability to obtain materials, conditions arising from governmental orders or regulations, war or national 
emergency, acts of God, natural disasters, and any other cause, similar or dissimilar, beyond the Sponsor's 
reasonable control. 

14 
Ordinance 2019-048 



Section 10.10. Termination; Termination by Sponsor. 

(a) Unless first terminated under any other provision of this Fee Agreement, this Fee Agreement 
terminates on the Final Termination Date. 

(b) The Sponsor is authorized to terminate this Fee Agreement at any time with respect to all or 
part of the Project on providing the County with 30 days' notice. 

(c) Any monetary obligations due and owing at the time of termination and any provisions which 
are intended to survive termination, survive such termination . 

(d) In the year following termination, all Economic Development Property is subject to ad valorem 
taxation or such other taxation or payment in lieu of taxation that would apply absent this Fee Agreement. 
The Sponsor's obligation to make Fll..OT Payments under this Fee Agreement terminates to the extent of 
and in the year following the year the Sponsor terminates this Fee Agreement pursuant to this Section. 

Section 10.11. Entire Agreement. This Fee Agreement expresses the entire understanding and all 
agreements of the parties, and neither party is bound by any agreement or any representation to the other 
party which is not expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement or in certificates delivered in connection with 
the execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 10.12. Waiver. Either party may waive compliance by the other party with any term or 
condition of this Fee Agreement only in a writing signed by the waiving party . 

Section 10.13. Business Day. If any action, payment, or notice is, by the terms of this Fee 
Agreement, required to be taken, made, or given on any Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday in the 
jurisdiction in which the party obligated to act is situated, such action, payment, or notice may be taken, 
made, or given on the following business day with the same effect as if taken, made or given as required 
under this Fee Agreement, and no interest will accrue in the interim. 

Section 10.14. Agreement's Construction. Each party and its counsel have reviewed this Fee 
Agreement and any rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved against a drafting 
party does not apply in the interpretation of this Fee Agreement or any amendments or exhibits to this Fee 
Agreement. 

[Signature pages follow] 

15 
Ordinance 2019-048 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has caused 
this Fee Agreement to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the Chair of County Council and to be 
attested by the Clerk of the County Council; and the Sponsor has caused this Fee Agreement to be executed 
by its duly authorized officer, all as of the day and year first above written. 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

[Signature Page 1 to Fee in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes Agreement] 

Signature Page-l 



SANTA'S HAT SOLAR, LLC 

By: ------------------------
Its: _____________ _ 

[Signature Page 2 to Fee in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes Agreement} 

Signature Page-2 



EXHffiiTA 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION; FAIR MARKET VALUE 

TMS: 267-00-11-006 MARKET VALUE: $69,390 

267-00-11-007 MARKET VALUE: $195,780 

[ADD LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS) 

A-1 



EXHffiiTB 
FORM OF JOINDER AGREEMENT 

Reference ts hereby made to the Fee-in-Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes Agreement, effective 
_________ ("Fee Agreement"), between Anderson County, South Carolina ( "County") and 
____________ ("Sponsor") . 

1. Joinder to Fee Agreement. 

_______ ], a [STATE] [corporation]/[lirruted liability company]/[lirruted partnership] 
authorized to conduct business in the State of South Carolina, hereby (a) joins as a party to, and agrees to 
be bound by and subject to all of the terms and conditions of, the Fee Agreement as if it were a Sponsor 
[except the following: ]; (b) shall receive the benefits as provided under 
the Fee Agreement with respect to the Econorruc Development Property placed in service by the Sponsor 
Affiliate as if it were a Sponsor [except the following ]; (c) acknowledges 
and agrees that (i) according to the Fee Agreement, the undersigned has been designated as a Sponsor 
Affiliate by the Sponsor for purposes of the Project; and (ii) the undersigned qualifies or will qualify as a 
Sponsor Affiliate under the Fee Agreement and Section 12-44-30(20) and Section 12-44-130 of the Act. 

2. Capitalized Terms. 

Each capitalized term used, but not defined, in this Joinder Agreement has the meaning of that term set 
forth in the Fee Agreement. 

3. Representations of the Sponsor Affiliate. 

The Sponsor Affiliate represents and warrants to the County as follows: 

(a) The Sponsor Affiliate is in good standing under the laws of the state of its organization, is duly 
authorized to transact business in the State (or will obtain such authority prior to commencing business in 
the State), has power to enter into this Joinder Agreement, and has duly authorized the execution and 
delivery of this Joinder Agreement. 

(b) The Sponsor Affiliate's execution and delivery of this Joinder Agreement, and its compliance with 
the provisions of this Joinder Agreement, do not result in a default, not waived or cured, under any 
agreement or instrument to which the Sponsor Affiliate is now a party or by which it is bound. 

(c) The execution and delivery of this Joinder Agreement and the availability of the FILOT and other 
incentives provided by this Joinder Agreement has been instrumental in inducing the Sponsor Affiliate to 
join with the Sponsor in the Project in the County. 

4. Request of Sponsor. 

The Sponsor hereby requests and consents to the addition of ____________ as 
Sponsor Affiliate to the Fee Agreement. 

5. Consent of County. 

The County, through approval as authorized in the Fee Agreement, hereby consents to the addition 
of as Sponsor Affiliate to the Fee Agreement. 

6. Governing Law. 

B-1 



This Joinder Agreement is governed by and construed according to the laws, without regard to 
principles of choice of law, of the State of South Carolina. 

7. Notice. 
Notices under Section 10.1 of the Fee Agreement shall be sent to: 

B-2 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Joinder Agreement to be effective as of 
the date set forth below. 

Date Name of Entity 
By: 
Its : 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County acknowledges it has consented to the addition of the above
named entity as a Sponsor Affiliate under the Fee Agreement effective as of the date set forth above. 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By: 
Its: 

B-3 



EXHffiiTC 
DESCRIPTION OF INFRASTRUCTURE CREDIT 

The Project shall be entitled to the Infrastructure Credit each year for a period of forty (40) consecutive 
years, to commence with the first Fll..,OT Payment to be made with respect to the Project after it is placed 
in service, unless the Sponsor requests a different starting date by notice to the County no later than June 
30 of the property tax year in which the Infrastructure Credit is to commence. For the avoidance of doubt, 
should any part or all of the Project not be eligible as Economic Development Property, the Fll..,OT Payment 
shall also mean, in such case, the payments in lieu of taxes made as a result of the Project being located in 
a Multicounty Park so that the Infrastructure Credit and Negative Infrastructure Credit provided for herein 
can be utilized to reduce or increase, as appropriate, such Fll..,OT Payments to the Fixed Fll..,OT Payment 
(as defined below). 

The Infrastructure Credit shall be equal to the amount necessary to reduce the Fll..,OT Payment for the 
applicable year to an amount equal to $8,000 (the "Fixed Fll..,OT Payment") . The Fixed Fll..,OT Payment 
is subject to adjustments after the Project is placed in service as provided in sections 4.2, 4.3, 4.4, and 4.5 
of this Agreement. Should the Fll..,OT Payment for any year be less than the Fixed Fll..,OT Payment due for 
such year, the Sponsor agrees to pay an amount in addition to the Fll..,OT Payment due for such year to 
make the Sponsor's total payment to the County for that year equal to the Fixed Fll..,OT Payment (as may 
be adjusted). 

The Infrastructure Credit may be allocated among the Sponsor and any Sponsor Affiliates' cost of 
Infrastructure as determined from time to time by Sponsor as the Project components owned by each of the 
Sponsor and the Sponsor Affiliates constitute one integrated Project. To the extent a Sponsor Affiliate is 
not able to use or apply an Infrastructure Credit due to a lack of Infrastructure costs, such Infrastructure 
Credit shall be applied to the Sponsor's Infrastructure costs so as to put the Sponsor in the same economic 
position as if the Sponsor Affiliate had been able to use such Infrastructure Credit. 

To the extent the Infrastructure Credit is used to pay for the cost of personal property and the removal of 
such personal property results in a penalty pursuant to 4-29-68(A)(2)(ii) of the Code, the Sponsor shall be 
entitled to an additional Infrastructure Credit against any remaining Fll..,OT Payments to be made on 
property remaining subject to the Fll..,OT Payments after the date of such removal. 

-#4814-7814·6199 v.1-

C-1 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
) 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON ) 
ORDINANCE NO. 2019-049 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE TERMINATION OF A LEASE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
AND PROJECT LILAC; THE CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN PROPERTY 
FROM ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA TO PROJECT LILAC 
OR ITS DESIGNEE; THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN 
INFRASTRUCTURE CREDIT AGREEMENT, BY AND BETWEEN 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND PROJECT LILAC OR 
ITS DESIGNEE, TO PROVIDE FOR SPECIAL SOURCE REVENUE 
CREDITS; AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the "County"), acting by and through its 
County Council (the "County Council"), as authorized by Title 4, Chapter 12 of the Code of Laws 
of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the "FILOT Act"), entered into a Lease Agreement dated 
December 15, 1999, with [Original Company] (the "1999 Lease Agreement"), and by way of 
succession, merger, name change and assignment [Project Lilac] is now the party to the 1999 Lease 
Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and is now the owner of the Project 
(defined herein); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the 1999 Lease Agreement [Project Lilac] would, in lieu of 
statutory ad valorem taxes, make Payments-in-Lieu-of-Taxes (as defined in the 1999 Lease 
Agreement) for real and personal property comprising the Project (as defined in the 1999 Lease 
Agreement and the Infrastructure Credit Agreement (defined herein)) that were placed in service 
after February 5, 1999 and before February 6, 2005, for a total of20 years for each item of property 
comprising the Project; and 

WHEREAS, [Project Lilac] transferred the real property upon which the Project is located 
(the "Land"), a description of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B, to the County, as required by 
the FILOT Act; and 

WHEREAS, at the time the parties entered the 1999 Lease Agreement [Project Lilac] 
anticipated investing at least $30,000,000 in the Project and [Project Lilac] has since invested and 
maintained at least $30,000,000 in the Project; and 

WHEREAS, based on the Inducement (defined herein) [Project Lilac] transferred a 
substantial portion of the Project to a new owner by way of an equity sale (the "Acquisition"); and 

WHEREAS, the Land and personal property comprising the Project are currently located 
in a multicounty business park (the "Park") [ENTER PARK INFORMATION] and in accordance 
with Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution and Sections 4-1-170, 4-1-17 5, 
and 4-29-68 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (collectively the "Multi 
County Park Act"), real and personal property having a situs in a Park is exempt from all ad 
valorem property taxes; however, the owner or lessee of such property is obligated to make, or 
cause to be made, payments in lieu of taxes to the County in the total amount equivalent to the ad 



valorem property taxes that would have been due and payable with respect to such property but 
for the location of such property within the Park (each a "FILOT Payment"). 

WHEREAS, pursuant to that Resolution No. 2019-007 adopted by the County Council on 
February 19,2019, as an inducement to the Acquisition and the anticipated retention of the Project 
in the County (the "Inducement"), [Project Lilac] requested and the County authorized, finding it 
to be a substantial public benefit to the County, a new incentive arrangement with [Project Lilac] 
or its designee ("New Incentive Arrangement"), the form of which is presented to County Council 
and attached hereto as Exhibit C (the "Infrastructure Credit Agreement"); and 

WHEREAS, the New Incentive Arrangement permits the Company, at its sole discretion, 
to make PILOT Payments net of Special Source Revenue Credits ("SSRC"s) such that the net 
PILOT Payments would be equivalent to the remaining Payments-in-Lieu-of-Taxes that would 
have become due under the 1999 Lease Agreement and to extend the term of such benefits by a 
period of 20 years, resulting in a total term of 40 years during which the Company could continue 
to make such net PILOT Payments, as further set forth in the Infrastructure Credit Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, in order for the real and personal property assets of [Project Lilac] that are 
subject to the benefits of the 1999 Lease Agreement to receive the benefits under the New 
Incentives Arrangement, [Project Lilac] must exercise its option to purchase pursuant to Section 
11 .1. of the 1999 Lease Agreement, upon which the County would convey such real and personal 
property back to [Project Lilac], or at [Project Lilac's] option, to its designee, and the County 
consents thereto; and 

I 

WHEREAS, as of the effective date of this Ordinance, with the consent of the County 
thereto, [Project Lilac] has exercised its option to purchase pursuant to the 1999 Lease Agreement, 
and the County has conveyed, or will as soon as practicable convey, all real and personal property 
comprising the Project, at the option of [Project Lilac] back to [Project Lilac] or its designee, and 
the 1999 Lease Agreement is terminated or will terminate upon such conveyance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 
DULY ASSEMBLED THAT: 

Section 1. Inclusion and Maintenance of the Project in the Park. The County will 
use its best efforts to ensure that the Project is incorporated into and will remain in the Park (or a 
successor multi-county business park) for no less than the term of the Infrastructure Credit 
Agreement. 

Section 2. Authorization to Execute and Deliver the Infrastructure Credit 
Agreement. The form, terms and provisions of the Infrastructure Credit Agreement presented at 
this meeting and filed with the Clerk to County Council are hereby approved, and all of the terms, 
provisions and conditions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if the 
Infrastructure Credit Agreement was set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of 
County Council and the Clerk to County Council are hereby authorized, empowered and directed 
to execute, acknowledge and deliver the Infrastructure Credit Agreement in the name and on behalf 
of the County, and thereupon to cause the Infrastructure Credit Agreement to be delivered to 
[Project Lilac] or [the Buyer]. The Infrastructure Credit Agreement to be in substantially the form 

2 
PPAB 4800983v4 

Ordinance 20 19-049 



now before this meeting and hereby approved, or with such changes therein as shall not materially 
adversely affect the rights of the County thereunder and as shall be approved by the officials of 
the County executing the same upon the advice of the County Attorney, their execution thereof to 
constitute conclusive evidence of their approval of any and all changes or revisions therein from 
the form of Infrastructure Credit Agreement now before this meeting. 

Section 3. Approval ofTermination of 1999 Lease Agreement. The termination of the 
1999 Lease Agreement, effective upon the execution of the Infrastructure Credit Agreement by all 
parties thereto is hereby approved. The County hereby releases the Company from any future 
obligations or liability in connection therewith. 

Section 4. Approval of Conveyance of Property. The conveyance of the real and 
personal property comprising the Project by the County to [Project Lilac] or its designee is hereby 
approved. The Chairman of County Council and the Clerk to County Council are hereby 
authorized, empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver limited warranty deeds 
and bills of sale or other conveyance documents in the name and on behalf of the County, the form 
of such documents as shown on Exhibit D attached hereto, are hereby approved, subject to any 
reasonable changes thereto, which are not materially adverse to the County. Upon their execution 
the County shall cause said deed(s) and bill(s) of sale to be delivered to [Project Lilac] or its 
designee for recording with the County's real estate records department. 

Section 5. Further Acts. The County Council authorizes the Chairman of County 
Council, the County Administrator, other County staff and the County Attorney, along with any 
designees and agents who any of these officials deems necessary and proper, in the name of and 
on behalf of the County (each an "Authorized Individual"), to take whatever further actions, and 
enter into whatever further agreements, as any Authorized Individual deems to be reasonably 
necessary and prudent to effect the intent of this Ordinance. 

Section 6. General Repealer. All ordinances, resolutions and parts thereof in conflict 
herewith are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed. 

Section 7. Severability. Should any part, provision or term of this Ordinance be 
deemed unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
finding or determination shall not affect the rest and remainder of the Ordinance or any part, 
provision or term thereof, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

This Ordinance takes effect and is in full force only after the County Council has approved 
this Ordinance following three readings and a public hearing. 

3 
PPAB 4800983v4 

Ordinance 2019-049 



(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Burns 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

First Reading: 
Second Reading: 
Third Reading: 
Public Hearing: 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

4 
PPAB 4800983v4 

Ordinance 2019-049 



EXHIBIT A 

1999 Lease Agreement 

[attached] 

5 
PPAB 4800983v4 

Ordinance 2019-049 



EXHIBITB 

Description of Land 

[to be entered] 

6 
PPAB 4800983v4 

Ordinance 2019-049 



EXHIBIT C 

Infrastructure Credit Agreement 

[attached] 

7 
PPAB 4800983v4 

Ordinance 2019-049 



EXHIBITD 

Reconveyance Documents 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
) 
) COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

QUITCLAIM DEED TO TITLE 
OF REAL ESTATE 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH 
CAROLINA, a body corporate and politic and a political subdivision of the State of South 
Carolina ("Grantor"), for and in consideration of ONE DOLLAR ($1.00) has granted, bargained, 
sold and released, and by these presents does grant, bargain, sell and release unto [Project Lilac], 
a South Carolina corporation ("Grantee"), all of Grantor's right, title and interest in the real 
property, if any, and improvements to real property, including buildings, structures, and other 
improvements, constructed on and annexed to the real property (collectively, "Property"): 

See Attachment A attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

This conveyance is specifically made subject to any and all restrictions, easements, 
covenants, conditions, and rights of way of record in the Register of Deeds Office for Anderson 
County, South Carolina and subject to any of the same, which might appear from an inspection of 
the premises. 

Grantee's Address: [Project Lilac] 
Street 
South Carolina 

Together with all and singular the rights, members, hereditaments and appurtenances to 
said improvements belonging or in any wise incident or appertaining; to have and to hold all and 
singular the improvements before mentioned unto the Grantee, and Grantee's successors and 
assigns, forever. 

Grantor has taken no action to affect title to the Property. Grantor makes no warranty, 
express, implied or otherwise as to its title, if any, to the Property or the condition of the 
Property, which is conveyed AS IS, WHERE IS, without representation or warranty of any kind. 

[Signature Page Follows] 

8 
PPAB 4800983v4 

Ordinance 2019-049 



WITNESS the Grantor's hand and seal as of this_ day of ________ , 2018. 

SIGNED, sealed and delivered in the 
presence of: 

WITNESSES: 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

ANDERSON COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA 

By: ________ _ 

) 
) ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON ) 

I, , Notary Public for the State of South Carolina, do 
hereby certify that the above-named Anderson County, South Carolina by and through 

________ ,personally appeared before me this day and 
acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument. 

Witness my hand an official seal this the ____ day of _______ , 2019. 

Notary Public ____________ _ 
My Commission Expires: ________ _ 

9 
PPAB 4800983v4 

Ordinance 2019-049 



Attachment A 

Legal Description 

10 
PPAB 4800983v4 

Ordinance 2019-049 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

) 
) 
) 

BILL OF SALE 

THIS BILL OF SALE (the "Bill of Sale") is given as of the_ day of , 2019, 
by ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, a body politic and corporate and a political 
subdivision of the State of South Carolina (the "County"), to [Project Lilac], a corporation duly 
organized under the laws of the State of South Carolina (the "Company"). 

RECITALS: 

On December 15, 1999, the Company and the County entered into a fee-in-lieu of taxes 
arrangement pursuant to Title 4, Chapter 12 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended (the 
"Code"). In connection therewith, the County and the Company entered a Lease Agreement (the 
" 1999 Lease Agreement") and the Company transferred to the County its Project in the County (as 
defined in the 1999 Lease Agreement), consisting, in relevant part, of real and personal property (the 
"Property"), pursuant to which the County leased the Project to the Company and which 1999 Lease 
Agreement provides for fee-in-lieu of taxes treatment for the Project (as defined in the 1999 Lease 
Agreement). 

The Company and the County having agreed to enter into a new arrangement, have agreed to 
terminate the 1999 Lease Agreement and the Company has exercised its option pursuant to the 1999 
Lease Agreement to purchase the Project from the County. 

Pursuant to an ordinance enacted on , 2019 (the "Ordinance"), the 
County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina authorized the termination of the 1999 Lease 
Agreement and the above-described reconveyance of title to the Project to the Company. 

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which are hereby acknowledged, the County does hereby grant, bargain, sell, transfer, and 
convey to the Company all of the property and assets held by it whether real or personal, in 
connection with the 1999 Lease Agreement, including all machinery, equipment, fixtures, goods, 
furniture and office equipment and other personal property now or hereafter located on or acquired 
in connection with the construction of improvements on the land described on Exhibit A which 
would be subject to South Carolina property taxes but for the 1999 Lease Agreement, including 
but not limited to, the property described on Exhibit A-1 attached hereto, together with any and all 
additions, accessions, replacements and substitutions thereto or therefor. 

The County represents and warrants that it is the true and lawful owner of the property 
described herein; that it has full power, right and lawful authority to execute and deliver this Bill 
of Sale; and that it will forever warrant and defend the foregoing title to such property. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Bill of Sale as of the date 
first above written. 

11 
PPAB 4800983v4 

Ordinance 2019-049 



Attest: 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk of Council 

12 

ANDERSON COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA 

By: 
Tommy Dunn, Chairman, 
Anderson County Council 

PPAB 4800983v4 

Ordinance 2019-049 



EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description 

At that piece or parcel of land, together with any and all improvements thereon, situate, lying and being in 
Anderson County, and being more particularly described as follows: to wit, 

13 
PPAB 4800983v4 

Ordinance 2019-049 



EXHIBIT A-1 

All machinery, equipment, fixtures, goods, furniture, office equipment, and all other personal 
property and fixtures located on, or acquired in connection with, the construction of improvements 
on the land described in Exhibit A. 

14 
PPAB 4800983v4 

Ordinance 2019-049 



INFRASTRUCTURE CREDIT AGREEMENT 

BY AND BETWEEN 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

AND 

[PROJECT LILAC/BUYER] 

2019 

This Infrastructure Credit Agreement (the "Agreement") is made and entered into as of 
[date] by and between Anderson County, South Carolina (the "County"), a body politic and 
corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina ("State"), acting by and through 
the Anderson County Council ("County Council") as the governing body of the County and 
[Project Lilac I Buyer], a company formerly known to the County as Project Lilac, a [state corp I 
llc], its affiliated and related entities and assigns ("Company") and any other party that may join 
as a Project Affiliate (hereinafter, the County, the Company, and any Project Affiliate are referred 
to collectively as "Parties," and individually as a "Party"). 

WHEREAS, the County, acting by and through its County Council, as authorized by Title 
4, Chapter 12 of the Code ofLaws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the "FILOT Act"), entered 
into a Lease Agreement dated December 15, 1999, with [Original Company] (the "1999 Lease 
Agreement"), and by way of succession, merger, name change and assignment [Project Lilac] is 
now the party to the 1999 Lease Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and 
is now the owner of the Project (defined herein); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the 1999 Lease Agreement [Project Lilac] would, in lieu of 
statutory ad valorem taxes, make Payments-in-Lieu-of-Taxes (as defined in the 1999 Lease 
Agreement) for real and personal property comprising the Project (as defined in the 1999 Lease 
Agreement and this Agreement) that were placed in service after February 5, 1999 and before 
February 6, 2005, for a total of 20 years for each item of property comprising the Project; and 

WHEREAS, [Project Lilac] transferred the real property upon which the Project is located 
(the "Land"), a description of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B, to the County, as required by 
the FILOT Act; and 

WHEREAS, at the time the parties entered the 1999 Lease Agreement [Project Lilac] 
anticipated investing at least $30,000,000 in the Project and [Project Lilac] has since invested and 
maintained at least $30,000,000 in the Project; and 

WHEREAS, based on the Inducement (defined herein) [Project Lilac] transferred a 
substantial portion of the Project to a new owner by way of an equity sale (the "Acquisition"); and 



WHEREAS, the Land and the Project are currently located in a multicounty business park 
(the "Park") and in accordance with Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution 
and Sections 4-1-170, 4-1-175, and 4-29-68 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as 
amended (collectively the "Multi County Park Act"), real and personal property having a situs in 
a Park is exempt from all ad valorem property taxes; however, the owner or lessee of such property 
is obligated to make, or cause to be made, payments in lieu of taxes to the County in the total 
amount equivalent to the ad valorem property taxes that would have been due and payable with 
respect to such property but for the location of such property within the Park (each a "FILOT 
Payment"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to that Resolution No. 2019-007 adopted by the County Council on 
February 19, 2019, as an inducement to the Acquisition and the anticipated retention of the Project 
in the County (the "Inducement"), [Project Lilac] requested and the County authorized, finding it 
to be a substantial public benefit to the County, a new incentive arrangement with [Project Lilac] 
or its designee ("New Incentive Arrangement"); and 

WHEREAS, the New Incentive Arrangement permits the Company, at its sole discretion, 
to make FILOT Payments net of Special Source Revenue Credits ("SSRC"s) such that the net 
FILOT Payments would be equivalent to the remaining Payments-in-Lieu-of-Taxes that would 
have become due under the 1999 Lease Agreement and to extend the term of such benefits by a 
period of 20 years, resulting in a total term of 40 years during which the Company could continue 
to make such net FILOT Payments; and 

WHEREAS, in order for the real and personal property assets of Project Lilac that are 
subject to the benefits of the 1999 Lease Agreement to receive the benefits under the New 
Incentives Arrangement, the Company must exercise its option to purchase pursuant to Section 
11.1 of the 1999 Lease Agreement, upon which the County would convey such real and personal 
property back to [Project Lilac] , or at [Project Lilac's] option, to its designee and the 1999 Lease 
Agreement would terminate; and 

WHEREAS, as of the effective date of this Agreement, with the consent of the County 
thereto, [Project Lilac] has exercised its option to purchase pursuant to the 1999 Lease Agreement, 
and the County has conveyed all real and personal property comprising the Project, at the option 
of Project Lilac back to [Project Lilac][designee] and the 1999 Lease Agreement is terminated; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Company desires to enter into this Agreement, the terms of which the 
County and the Company have in good faith mutually negotiated, to effectuate the intent of the 
New Incentives Arrangement; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to an ordinance adopted [date] by County Council, the County 
authorized (i) the execution and delivery of this Agreement; (ii) the grant of Special Source 
Revenue Credits against the FILOT Payments with respect to the Project as further set forth herein; 
(iii) the maintenance and inclusion of the Project in the Park; (iv) the termination of the 1999 Lease 
Agreement upon the execution of this Agreement; and (v) the conveyance of the Land to [Project 
Lilac] or its designee. 

2 
PPAB 4802205v4 

Ordinance 2019-049 



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the respective representations and agreements 
contained in this Agreement, the Parties agree to the following: 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

As used herein the term Eligible Property shall mean those portions of the Project that 
were placed in service after February 5, 1999 and before February 6, 2005, to include all 
Replacement Property (as defined in the 1999 Lease Agreement) that the Company has placed in 
service as a replacement for Eligible Property and for which the Company has made Payments-in
Lieu-of-Taxes pursuant to the 1999 Lease Agreement. 

As used herein the term Project Affiliate shall mean any person or entity who the Company may 
assign any portion of the Project and who delivers an instrument to the Company and County 
joining this Agreement with respect to its assets that comprise the Project. 

As used herein Land shall mean that portion of real property, described on Exhibit B, and 
all improvements thereon. 

As used herein the term Project shall mean the Land, the buildings and improvements 
located on the land, machinery, apparatus, equipment, office facilities, furnishings and other 
personal property located or installed on the Land or in the buildings. 

ARTICLE II 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

Section 2.1 The Company makes the following representations and warranties as the basis for the 
undertakings on its part herein contained: 

(a) The Company is a [corporation] duly organized, validly existing, and in good 
standing, under the laws of the State of [South Carolina], has power to enter into this Agreement, 
and by proper corporate action has been duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement. 

(b) This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Company and 
constitutes the legal, valid, and binding obligation of the Company, enforceable in accordance with 
its terms except as enforcement thereof may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, or similar laws 
affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally. 

(c) Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the consummation of the 
transactions contemplated hereby, nor the fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, will result in a material breach of any of the terms, conditions, or 
provisions of any corporate restriction or any agreement or instrument to which the Company is 
now a party or by which it is bound, or will constitute a default under any of the foregoing, or 

3 
PPAB 4802205v4 

Ordinance 2019-049 



result in the creation or imposition of any lien, charge, or encumbrance of any nature whatsoever 
upon any of the property or assets of the Company, other than as may be created or permitted by 
this Agreement. 

(d) The agreement of the County to provide the SSRCs has been instrumental in 
inducing the Company to maintain the Project in Anderson County and in the State of South 
Carolina. 

Section 2.2 The County makes the following representations and warranties as the basis for the 
undertakings on its part herein contained: 

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State 
which acts through the County Council as its governing body and by the provision of the Act is 
authorized and empowered to enter into the transactions contemplated by the Agreement and to 
carry out its obligations hereunder. The County has duly authorized the execution and delivery of 
this Agreement and any and all other agreements described herein or therein. 

(b) Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the consummation of the 
transactions contemplated hereby, nor the fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, will result in a material breach of any of the terms, conditions, or 
provisions of any agreement or instrument to which the County is now a party or by which it is 
bound, or will constitute a default under any of the foregoing. 

(c) In conjunction with the termination of the 1999 Lease Agreement, the County 
affirms that the Company is in compliance with the 1999 Lease Agreement and the County hereby 
releases the Company from any future obligations or liability in connection therewith. 

ARTICLE III 
SPECIAL SOURCE REVENUE CREDITS 

Section 3.1 Calculation and Application of Special Source Revenue Credit. 

(a) Subject to the provisions herein, the County agrees to provide a Special Source 
Revenue Credit (each an "SSRC") to the Company against its annual FILOT Payments due on the 
Eligible Property, beginning with the first tax year in which the Eligible Property is no longer 
eligible for those benefits under the 1999 Lease Agreement, such year anticipated to be 2020, for 
a total of twenty (20) years, according to the following schedule: 

(i) For the first five (5) tax years, anticipated to be years 2020-2024, each annual 
FILOT Payment that becomes due on Eligible Property pursuant to this Agreement, shall 
be reduced by a SSRC in an amount equal to 70% of such FILOT Payment due; 

(ii) Thereafter, for the subsequent five (5) years, anticipated to be years 2025-2029, 
each annual FILOT Payment that becomes due on Eligible Property pursuant to this 
Agreement, shall be reduced by a SSRC in an amount equal to 65% of such FILOT 
Payment due; and 

4 
PPAB 4802205v4 

Ordinance 2019-049 



(iii) Thereafter, for the subsequent ten (10) years, anticipated to be years 2030-
2039, each annual FILOT Payment that becomes due on Eligible Property pursuant to this 
Agreement, shall be reduced by a SSRC in an amount equal to 60% of the FILOT Payment 
due. 

(b) The County shall reimburse the Company the appropriate SSRC amount by 
reflecting the same as an annual credit toward the Company's FILOT Payment on the invoices 
provided by the County to the Company. 

Section 3.2 Disposal of any portion Eligible Property of the Project. 
The Company may in its sole discretion remove any portion of the Eligible Property of the 

Project that it determines to be inadequate, obsolete, worn out, unsuitable, unusable or 
unnecessary. Such removed portions shall be known as "Disposed Property". Any Disposed 
Property shall not be eligible for SSRCs against any FILOT Payments that may become due on 
such Disposed Property. 

Section 3.3 Condemnation. 
Should the temporary use of or title to any portion of or the entire Project become vested 

in a public or quasi-public authority by virtue of the exercise of a taking by condemnation, inverse 
condemnation or the right of eminent domain, or by voluntary transfer under threat of such taking, 
the Company shall have the option to terminate this Agreement. In the event of a partial taking if 
the Company elects not to terminate this Agreement it may treat those portions of the Project so 
taken as Disposed Property. 

Section 3.4 Casualty. 
In the event the Project or any portion of the Project is damaged by fire, explosion, or any 

other casualty, the Company shall have the right to terminate this Agreement. If the Company 
elects not to terminate this Agreement it may restore the Project. Any such restorations to any 
portion of the Project shall be treated as Eligible Property. Any damaged portion of the Project 
that is not restored shall be treated as Disposed Property. 

ARTICLE IV 
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Section 4.1 Default. 
The following are "Events of Default" under this Agreement, and the term "Events of 

Default" means, whenever used with reference to this Agreement, any one or more of the following 
occurrences: 

(a) Failure by the Company or, as applicable, any Project Affiliate, to make, upon levy, 
FILOT Payments; provided, however, that the Company or, as applicable, the Project Affiliate, 
shall be entitled to all redemption rights for non-payment of taxes granted by applicable statutes; 
or 

5 
PPAB 4802205v4 

Ordinance 20 l 9-049 



(b) Failure of the Company or, as applicable, any Project Affiliate, to make payment 
of any other amounts payable to the County under this Agreement, of which default has not been 
cured within ninety (90) days of written notice of nonpayment from the County. 

(c) Failure by the Company or, as applicable, any Project Affiliate, to perform any of 
the other material terms, conditions, obligations or covenants of the Company or, as applicable, 
any Project Affiliate hereunder, which failure shall continue for a period of ninety (90) days after 
written notice from the County to the Company or, as applicable, any Project Affiliate, specifying 
such failure and requesting that it be remedied, unless the County shall agree in writing to an 
extension of such time prior to its expiration. 

Section 4.2 Remedies on Default. 

Whenever any Event of Default shall have occurred and shall be continuing, the County, 
after having given written notice to the Company or, as applicable, any Project Affiliate, of such 
default and after the expiration of a ninety (90) day cure period shall have the option to take any 
one or more of the following remedial actions: 

(a) Terminate this Agreement; or 

(b) Take whatever action at law or in equity that may appear necessary or desirable to 
collect the other amounts due and thereafter to become due or to enforce performance and 
observance of any obligation, agreement or covenant of the Company or, as applicable, any Project 
Affiliate, under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE V 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 5.1 Confidentiality. The County acknowledges and understands that the Company and, 
as applicable, any Project Affiliate, utilizes confidential and proprietary "state-of-the-art" 
information and data in their operations, and that a disclosure of any information, including, but 
not limited to, disclosures of financial or other information concerning the Company's operations 
and, as applicable, any Project Affiliate' operations, could result in substantial harm to them and 
could thereby have a significant detrimental impact on their employees and also upon the County. 
Therefore, the County agrees that, except as required by law and pursuant to the County's police 
powers, neither the County nor any employee, agent, or contractor of the County: (i) will request 
or be entitled to receive any such confidential or proprietary information; (ii) will request or be 
entitled to inspect the Project or any property associated therewith; provided, however, that if an 
Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing hereunder, the County shall be entitled to 
inspect the Project provided they shall comply with the remaining provisions of this Section; or 
(iii) will knowingly and intentionally disclose or otherwise divulge any such confidential or 
proprietary information to any other person, firm, governmental body or agency, or any other entity 
unless specifically required to do so by State law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, whenever the 
County shall be required by any governmental or financial entity to file or produce any reports, 
notices, returns, or other documents while this Agreement is in effect, the Company or owner of 
the Project at the time shall promptly furnish to the County through the County Attorney the 
completed form of such required documents together with a certification by the Company or owner 

6 
PPAB 4802205v4 

Ordinance 2019-049 



that such documents are accurate and not in violation of any provisions of law or of the other 
documents of this transaction, and that the documents meet the legal requirements of such filing 
or delivery. In the event of the failure or refusal of the Company or owner to comply with this 
provision, the Company or owner agrees to pay the statement for attorney' s fees and administrative 
time presented by the County for producing and filing such documents, such statement to be paid 
within thirty (30) days after presentation by the County, and to promptly pay any fees, penalties, 
assessments, or damages imposed upon the County by reason of its failure to duly file or produce 
such documents. Prior to disclosing any confidential or proprietary information or allowing 
inspections of the Project or any property associated therewith, the Company and, as applicable, 
any Project Affiliate, may require the execution of reasonable, individual, confidentiality and non
disclosure agreements by any officers, employees, or agents of the County or any supporting or 
cooperating governmental agencies who would gather, receive, or review such information or 
conduct or review the results of any inspections. 

Section 5.2 Assignment. This Agreement may be assigned in whole or part by the Company. 
The Company agrees to notify the County of any assignments as soon as practical. 

Section 5.3 Termination. Prior to the last SSRC available pursuant to this Agreement, the 
Company may at any time by written notice to the County, provide for the termination of this 
Agreement, effectively immediately upon giving such notice or upon such date as may be specified 
in the notice; provided that the Company shall have made payment to the County of all applicable 
payments payable under this Agreement as of such time. Upon any such termination, and subject 
to any provisions herein which shall by their express terms be deemed to survive any termination 
of this Agreement, the sole consequence to the Company shall be that it shall no longer be entitled 
to the benefit of the SSRCs provided herein and, except as may be expressly provided herein, in 
no event shall the Company be required to repay to the County the amount of any benefit 
previously received hereunder. 

Section 5.4 Force Majeure. The Company shall not be responsible for any delays or non
performance caused in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, by strikes, accidents, freight 
embargoes, fire, floods , inability to obtain materials, conditions arising from government orders 
or regulations, war, or national emergency, acts of God, and any other cause, similar or dissimilar, 
beyond the Company' s reasonable control. 

Section 5.5 Fiscal Year; Property Tax Year. If the Company' s and, as applicable, any Project 
Affiliate's, fiscal year changes so as to cause a change in the Company' s or Project Affiliate ' s 
property tax year, then the timing of the requirements of this Agreement are automatically revised 
accordingly. 

Section 5.6 Notices. Any notice, election, demand, request or other communication to be 
provided under this Agreement shall be effective when delivered to the party named below or three 
business days after deposited with the United States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt 
requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows (or addressed to such other address as any party 
shall have previously furnished in writing to the other party), except where the terms hereof require 
receipt rather than sending of any notice, in which case such provision shall control: 
AS TO THE COUNTY: Anderson County, South Carolina 

7 
PPAB 4802205v4 

Ordinance 2019-049 



ATTN: 
Street 
Anderson, South Carolina 
Telephone: (864) 

AS TO THE COMPANY: Project Lilac 
ATTN: 
Street 
City 
Telephone: 
Facsimile: 
Email: 

WITH A COPY TO: [FIRM] 
(shall not constitute notice) ATTN: 

Street 
City 
Telephone: 
Facsimile: 
Email: 

Section 5.7 Binding Effect. This Agreement is binding, in accordance with its terms, upon and 
inure to the benefit of the Company, any Project Affiliate, and the County, and their respective 
successors and assigns, to the extent allowed by law. In the event of the dissolution of the County 
or the consolidation of any part of the County with any other political subdivision or the transfer 
of any rights ofthe County to any other such political subdivision, all ofthe covenants, stipulations, 
promises and agreements of this Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the successors 
of the County from time to time and any entity, officer, board, commission, agency or 
instrumentality to whom or to which any power or duty of the County has been transferred. 

Section 5.8 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, an 
all of the counterparts taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 5.9 Governing Law. This Agreement and all documents executed in connection 
herewith shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State. 

Section 5.10 Headings. The headings of the articles and sections of this Agreement are inserted 
for convenience only and shall not be deemed to constitute a part of this Agreement. 

Section 5.11 Amendments. The provisions of this Agreement may be modified or amended only 
in writing by an agreement lawfully entered into by all parties. 

Section 5.12 Further Assurance. From time to time, and at the Company's and any Project 
Affiliate's expense, the County agrees to execute and deliver to the Company and any Project 

8 
PPAB 4802205v4 

Ordinance 2019-049 



Affiliates such additional instruments as either may reasonably request to effectuate the purposes 
of this Agreement. 

Section 5.13 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is declared illegal, invalid, or 
unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions hereof shall be unimpaired, and such 
illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision shall be reformed so as to most closely effectuate the 
legal, valid, and enforceable intent thereof and so as to afford the Company, and, as applicable, 
any Project Affiliate, with the maximum benefits to be derived herefrom, it being the intention of 
the County to offer the Company and, as applicable, any Project Affiliate, the strong inducement 
to retain the Project in the County. 

Section 5.14 Limited Obligation. NEITHER THE PROJECT NOR THE 
NEGOTIATION, EXECUTION, DELIVERY, OR IMPLEMENTATION OF THIS 
AGREEMENT SHALL GIVE RISE TO ANY PECUNIARY LIABILITY OF THE COUNTY 
OR ANY INCORPORATED MUNICIPALITY NOR TO ANY CHARGE AGAINST THEIR 
GENERAL CREDIT OR TAXING POWER. 

ATTEST: 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

9 
PPAB 4802205v4 

Ordinance 2019-049 



EXHIBITB 

Description of Land 

[to be entered] 

11 
049 

PPAB 4802205v4 

Ordinance 20 19-



EXHIBIT A 

1999 Lease Agreement 

[attached] 

10 
049 

PPAB 4802205v4 

Ordinance 2019-



RESOLUTION R2019-038 

A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING INTENT TO CEASE COUNTY MAINTENANCE ON AND 
TO AUTHORIZE COUNTY CONSENT TO JUDICIAL ABANDONMENT AND CLOSURE 
OF BEEillVE BOULEVARD, DESIGNATED AS ANDERSON COUNTY ROAD C-1-0372; 
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, Beehive Boulevard (the "Road") is currently an asphalt Anderson County (the 
"County") public road, designated as Anderson County Road C-0 1-0372; 

WHEREAS, the Road extends 288 feet from Highway 153 and exists on two parcels of 
property identified as Anderson County tax map numbers 237-00-08-002 and 237-00-08-009, all of 
which have common ownership, as shown on the map prepared by Anderson County Roads and 
Bridges Department on August 6, 2016 attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by 
reference; 

WHEREAS, the property owners (hereinafter collective the "Petitioners") have requested that 
the County abandon said Road for new development. The Petition is attached hereto as Exhibit B and 
incorporated herein by reference; 

WHEREAS, the County has complied with all of its Ordinances and Regulations pertaining 
to cessation of County maintenance and County consent to judicial abandonment and closure of 
County public roads, in the case of the above referenced Road; 

WHEREAS, none of the procedures undertaken by the County have revealed or reflected a 
need for said Road to remain under County maintenance or to remain a public road, and the County 
staff have recommended that the County consent to the requested abandonment and judicial closure; 
and 

WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a political 
subdivision of the State of South Carolina, acting by and through its County Council (the "County 
Council") desires to express its intent to cease County maintenance on, and to authorize County 
consent to judicial abandonment and closure of the Road. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 

1. Anderson County, acting by and through its County Council, consents to the judicial 
abandonment and closure of Beehive Boulevard (C-O 1-0372) by the property owners. 

2. In the event Beehive Boulevard is closed by a Judicial Order, the county shall 
immediately cease all maintenance of this Road. 

3. All orders and resolutions in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such conflict 
only, repealed and rescinded. 



4. Should any part or portion of this resolution be deemed unconstitutional or 
otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such finding shall 
not affect the remainder hereof, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

5. This resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately upon enactment. 

RESOLVED this 17th day of September 2019, in meeting duly assembled. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Burns 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey A. Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 



ANDERSON COUNTY 
SOUIII CAlOUNA 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

MEMORANDUM 
ANDERSON COUNTY ROADS AND BRIDGES 

September 9. 2019 

Mr. Rusty Burns, County Administrator 

Matt Hogan, Roads and Bridges Manager 

Proposed abandonment of Beehive Blvd. C-1-372 

Council District Six 

Please find attached information regarding the proposed abandonment of Beehive 
Boulevard. Property owners have requested abandonment for new development of a 
7-Eleven Convenience Store. Site plans have been submitted to Anderson County 
Development Standards and approval is pending abandonment of the road. Petition has 
been filed for judicial abandonment. A copy of the petition is attached. 

This road was accepted into the county system on September 20, 2016. The development 
was called Holliday Commercial Tract. There have been no improvements or developments 
on the property. 

A signed petition by the landowners i enclosed . Owners were provided a copy of Anderson 
County Ordinance regarding abandonment and closure of public roads policies and 
prO<X?dures and notified in writing of theit· responsibilit ies for obtaining legal title to the 
road if Council approves abandonment by resolution . 

Notification signs were posted on the road on August 9, 2019. Signs were in place for 30 
days on September 8, 2019. 

Not ification of the proposed abandonment was mailed to Emergency Service providers and 
Anderson School Dis trict One Tt·ansportation Department. Anderson School District 
confirmed the closure would not impact bus routing. No response was received from 
Emergency Services. 

Our department has conducted a thorough investigation of this road . 
• Public notification signs were posted for 30 days 
• There were no inquil'ies 
• Road is in general public use 
• Road runs from Highway 153 to dead end 
• The asphalt road is 288 linear feet and 24 feet wide 
• 66 right·of·way 
• Average Daily Traffic Count is 7 cars per day 

Tommy Dunn Craig Wooten 
Chairman District 5 Council District I 

Ray Graham Gracie Floyd 
V Chairman. District 3 Cound District 2 

Tom Allen 
Council District 4 

Ken Waters 
Council District 6 

Cindy Wilson 
Council District 7 

lacey Croegaert 
Clerk to Council 

PO Box 8002. Anderson. South Carolina 29622·80021 www andersoncountysc org 

ANDERSON COUNTY 
SOUTH CARO\IIV, 

Rusty Bums I County Administrator 
rburns@andersoncountysc.org 



MEMORANDUM 
ANDERSON COUNTY DEPARTMENT NAME I PAGE 2 

With the information provided, I recommend Anderson County abandon interest in Beehive 
Boulevard. 

Photogt·aphs and location map arc enclosed for your convenience. 

Enclosures 

Tommy Dunn Craig Wooten 
Chairman. District 5 Council District 1 

Ray Graham Gracie Floyd 
V. Chairman. District 3 Council District 2 

Tom Allen 
Counci District 4 

Ken Waters 
Council District 6 

Cindy Wilson 
Council District 7 

lacey Croegaert 
Cieri< to Council 

PO Box 8002. Anderson. South Carolina 29622-80021 www andersoncoumysc.org 

ANDERSON COUNTY 
SOUTH CAROLINA 

Rusty Burns I County Administrator 
rburns@andersoncounlysc.org 



Anderson County Roads & Bridges 

735 Michelin Boulevard, Anderson, SC 29625 
(864) 260-4190 

Roadway Abandonment Petition 

*Only one signature per household will be counted Date: B I I j2 Ol 0) 

I am the Contact Person for this road and will be responsible for the expedition of information between 
the Anderson County Roads & Bridges Engineering Section and the landowners on the proposed road. 

Name: W-ende\! L. Hawr:ins. PA 
Mailing 

Address: I D~-c ee~eor'/ C!mHnons D( 
City: Kr-(fr State: S'C Zip: 

Telephone#: __ ___,&"'"'\tl"--4-'--- &I...L.-:.4 ....._8 _J-j..:....;3:.....1..:.....:Do....-_____________ _ 

Road Name: BEEHNE BLVD C-01 -0372 

Reason for abandonment: Conf!ic.±s wi1Yl n--cvv d-errltflnco-t (cDmm:erclaJ} 

We, the undersigned landowners, do petition Anderson County Roads & Bridges to abandon the road, or 
portion of road, named above. 

Address 

Description: LOT OP2 BEEHIVE BLVD 1.62 AC 

TMS:23700080Q? 

Owner: BEESON DEVELOPMENT LLC 

(Owner Contact- Jose[!h Beesgn) 

Phone Number 

{864) 704-44 15 

Mailing Address: 2156 RIVER RD. PIEDMONT SC 2967"-1 ------

Description: IR H COOPER RD 5.50 AC 

TMS· 2370008009 

Owner: COOPER lJYING TRUST 

(Owner Contact- Richard Cooper) (864) 918-2943 

Majljn~ Address: 475 HWY 183 PIEDMONT SC 29673 -------



August 6, 2019 

Jimmy Ray Sutherland, Fire Chief 
Anderson County Fire Department 
210 McGee Road 
Anderson, South Carolina 29625 

Dear Chief Sutherland: 

ANDERSON COUNTY 
SOOTH CAROUN" 

This letter is to inform you that we have received a request to abandon Beehive Boulevard, 
C·l·372 off Highway 153. This is a dead end road in which the abutting properties were 
never developed. Owners are wanting to abandon for new development. 

We would appreciate as to how, if any, this Closure might impact emergency vehicle 
response to neighboring citizens. A response from you within 30 days regarding this mat ter 
would be greatly appreciated. If this closure has no effect, we will proceed with the 
abandonment process. 

Thank you in advance for your assistance with this matter. You may contact me via email 
at wmho an@andersoncountysc.org if you desire. 

Sincerely, 

Matt Hogan 
Roads and Bridges Manager 

Enclosures 

Tommy Dunn Craig Wooten 
Choifmon. District 5 Council District 1 

Ray Graham Gracie Floyd 
V Chairman. District 3 Council Di~trict 2 

Tom Allen 
Council District 4 

Ken Waters 
Council District 6 

Cindy Wilson 
Council District 7 

Locey Croegaert 
Clerk to Council 

PO Box 8002. Anderson. SoUih Carolina 2%22-80021 ww" andcrsoncountysc.org 

ANDERSON COUNTY 
SOUTH CAROLINA 

Rusty Bums I County Adm1nistrot01 
rt:lurns@ondersoncountysc org 



ANDERSON COUNTY 
SOUTti CAROIJ~A 

August 6, 2019 

Benny Bridges, Jr. , Transportation Supervisor 
Anderson County School District One 
2001-B Easley Highway 
Piedmont, South Carolina 29673 

Dear Mr. Bl'idges: 

This letter is to inform you that we have received a request to abandon Beehive Boulevard, 
C-1-372 off Highway 153. This is a dead end road in which the abutting properties were 
never developed. Owners are wanting to abandon for new development. 

We would appreciate your input as to how, if any, this closure might impact bus routing on 
this road. We would appreciate a response within 30 days . 

Thank you in advance for your assistance with this matter. You may contact me via email 
at wmho!Z{Ln@andersoncountysc.org if you desire . 

Sincerely, 

Matt Hogan 
Roads and Bridges Manager 

Enclosures 

Tommy Dunn Craig Wooten 
Chairmon. District 5 Council District 1 

Ray Graham Gracie Floyd 
V. Chairman. District 3 Council District 2 

Tom Allen 
Council District 4 

Ken Waters 
Council District 6 

Cindy Wilson 
Council District 7 

lacey Croegaert 
Clerk to Council 

PO Box 8002. Anderson. Soulh Carohna 29622-8002 J www andt:rsoncounrysc org 

ANDERSON COUNTY 
SOUTH CAROLINA 

Rusty Burns I County Administrator 
rburns@ondersoncountysc.org 



From: 
To: 

Matt Hooan 

Jill Sanders 

Subject: Fwd : Request to Abandon 

Date: Tuesday, August 13, 2019 3:54:26 PM 

Sent from my iPhone 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: Benny Bridges <bridgesbe@apps.anderson l .org> 
Date: August 13, 2019 at 11:10:19 AM EDT 
To: wmbogan@andersoncountysc.org 
Subject: Request to Abandon 

Mr. Hogan, 

This is to confirm that I have received the letter in reference to the request to 
abandon Beehive Blvd C-1-372 off Highway 153 and after reviewing this request 
I can confirm that this closure would NOT impact the bus routing. 

I sincerely appreciate you considering the impact this road closure would have on 
bus routing and giving us the option to respond. 

Thanks, 

Benny Bridges, Jr 

Transportation Director 

Anderson School District One 

Transportation Office 

bridgesbe@apps.anderson l.org 

864-947-8989 or 864-232-6619 Office P~one 

864-947-9881 Fax 

NOTICE: Employees are reminded of Board Policy IJNDB-R, which governs e
mail and Internet usage, and are advised to act accordingly. Recipients of e-mail 
sent through Anderson One's system should understand that it may contain 
confidential, proprietary, or privileged material. If you have received the above e
mail or any attachments in error, this does not constitute permission to examine, 
copy, or distribute the information.Prompt notification to the sender of the error 
would be appreciated. 



Beehive Blvd 

8/6/2016 Anderson County Roads & Bridges Dept. 



Beehive Blvd, C-1-372 Abandonment 

View from Highway 153 

View from End of Road 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS 
) 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON ) TENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 
) 
) 

Richard S. Cooper and Margaret B. Cooper, ) C.A. No. 2019-CP-04-
Trustees, or their successors in trust under the ) 
Cooper Living Trust dated November 26, ) 
1997, Richard S. Cooper, J and E Holdings, ) SUMMONS 
LLC and Beeson Development, LLC, ) 

) 
Petitioners, ) 

) 
) 

County of Anderson, South Carolina, ) 
) 

Respondent. ) 
) 

TO THE RESPONDENT ABOVE-NAMED: 

You are hereby summoned and required to answer the Petition in this action, a copy of 

which is herewith served upon you, and to serve a copy of your Answer to the Petition, upon the 

subscriber at I 03-C Regency Commons Drive, Greer, SC 29650 within thirty (30) days after 

service hereof, exclusive of the day of service. If you fail to answer the Petition within that time, 

the Plaintiff will apply to the court for the relief demanded in the Petition and a Judgment by 

Default will be rendered against you for the relief demanded in the Petition. 

YOU WILL ALSO TAKE NOTICE that, pursuant to Rule 53(b) of the South Carolina 

Rules of Civil Procedure, as amended, the Petitioners will move for a general Order of Reference 

to the Master in Equity for Anderson County, which Order shall , pursuant to Rule 53(b) of the 

SCRCP, specifically provide that said Master is authorized and empowered to conduct hearing and 

enter a final judgment in this action. 

m 
r 
m 
() 
-I 
:;o 
0 
z 
() 
)> 
r 
r 
-< 
::::!1 
r 
m 
0 

N 
0 

<.D 
)> 
c 
co 
N 

I 

)> 
z 
0 
m 
:;o 
(f) 

0 
z 
() 
0 
s:: 
s:: 
0 z 
"'0 
r 
m 
)> 
(f) 

() 
)> 
(f) 
m 
~ 
0 

<.D 
() 
"'0 
0 
~ 
0 __. 
O'l 
N 
N 



August 21 , 2019 
Greer, South Carolina 

Respectfully submitted, 

Is/ Aimee V Leary 
Wendell L. Hawkins (S.C. Bar#: 13583) 
Aimee V. Leary (S.C. Bar#: I 00657) 
Wendell L. Hawkins, PA 
I 03-C Regency Commons Dr. Greer, SC 29650 
(864) 848-9370 (Ph) (864) 848-9759 (Fax) 
wlh@wlhawkinslawfirm.com 
avl@wlhawkinslawfirm.com 
Attorneys for Petitioners 

2 

m 
r 
m 
() 
-l 
:::0 
0 
z 
0 
)> 
r 
r 
-< 
:::!:! 
r 
m 
0 

1'0 
0 ...... 
<D 
)> 
c 
(0 

1'0 

I 

)> 
z 
0 
m 
:::0 
(/) 

0 
z 
() 
0 
$; 
$; 
0 
z 
"tl 
r 

~ 
(/) 

() 
)> 
(/) 
m 
=lt 
1'0 
0 ...... 
<D 
() 
"tl 
0 
~ 
0 ...... 
en 
1'0 
1'0 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
) 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON ) 
) 
) 

Richard S. Cooper and Margaret B. Cooper, ) 
Trustees, or their successors in trust under the ) 
Cooper Living Trust dated November 26, ) 
1997, Richard S. Cooper, J and E Holdings, ) 
LLC and Beeson Development, LLC, ) 

) 
Petitioners, ) 

) 
) 

County of Anderson, South Carolina, ) 
) 

Respondent. ) 
) 

IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS 

TENTH JUDICIAL ClRCUIT 

C. A. No. 20 19-CP-04-

PETITION 
Permanent Road Closure 

Non-Jury 

Petitioners, by and through their undersigned counsel , would respectfully show this Court 

the following: 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

1. The real property ("Beehive Blvd") which is the subject of this action is located in 

Anderson County, South Carolina and is more particularly described as follows: 

Beehive Blvd extending 288 feet from SC Highway 153 to its terminus and exists 
on one parcel of property identified as Anderson County tax map number 23 7-00-
08-009 as shown on a map prepared by Anderson County Roads and Bridges 
Department on July 22, 2019, including any and all portions of Beehive Blvd that 
may not be herein described but are intended to be abandoned. 

2. Beehive Blvd is located within the County of Anderson and is identified as 

Anderson County Road Number C-0 1-0372 on the records for Anderson County, South Carolina. 

3. Petitioners own fee simple title to the real property which abuts each portion of 

Beehive Blvd to be closed hereunder. Petitioners , Richard S. Cooper and Margaret B. Cooper, 

Trustees, or their successors in trust under the Cooper Living Trust dated November 26, 1997, 

Richard S. Cooper and J and E Holdings, LLC, collectively owning Anderson County tax map 

3 

m 
r 
m 
() 
-l 
:::0 
0 z 
() 
)> 
r 
r 
-< 
:::!:! 
r 
m 
0 

1\J 
0 

<.0 
)> 
c 

co 
1\J ..... 

I 

)> 
z 
0 
m 
:::0 
(/) 

0 z 
() 
0 
s:: 
s:: 
0 
z 
"U 
r 

~ 
(/) 

() 
)> 
(/) 
m 
~ 
0 

<.0 
() 
"U 
0 
~ 
0 ..... 
0) 
1\J 
1\J 



number 237-00-08-009 and Petitioner, Beeson Development, LLC, owning Anderson County tax 

map number 237-00-08-002. 

4. The Respondent, County of Anderson, is the governmental entity charged with 

maintaining the roads within the County of Anderson, South Carolina, which is joined to this action 

because it may claim, for the public, some right, title or interest in Beehive Blvd which is the 

subject of this action. 

5. 

6. 

For the forgoing reasons jurisdiction and venue are proper with this court. 

FOR A FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 
(Road Closure) 

Petitioners have instituted this action in accordance with the procedures described 

in § 57-9-10 through § 57-9-40 of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976, as amended) for the 

purpose of formally closing Anderson County Road C-0 l-03 72 identified herein above, and 

establishing record title to the real property which underlies Beehive Blvd to be abandoned and 

closed. 

7. Petitioners have caused a Notice of Intent to File a Petition to be published once a 

week for three (3) consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation published in Anderson 

County, South Carolina, as will be evidenced by the Affidavit of Publication to be filed with this 

Court. 

8. Respondent has caused signs with Notice of Pending Closure to be posted at each 

terminus of Beehive Blvd in compliance with the requirements of Regulation §63-1 000, of the 

South Carolina Code of Laws (1976, as amended). 

9. The closure of Beehive Blvd described above is appropriate and necessary to allow 

the productive development of the real property owned by Petitioners and will not adversely affect 

the ability of owners surrounding Beehive Blvd or the general public to have access to or travel 

4 

m 
r 
m 
0 
--! 
:::0 
0 
z 
0 
::t> 
r 

~ 
::!:! 
r 
m 
0 

N 
0 _. 
<D 

::t> 
c 
(0 

N 

I 

::t> z 
0 
m 
:::0 
(/) 

0 
z 
0 
0 
s:: 
s:: 
0 z 
'U 
r 

~ 
(/) 

0 
::t> 
(/) 
m 
~ 
0 

<D 
0 
'U 
0 
.J:>. 
0 

Q) 
N 
N 



upon public roads located nearby. 

I 0. Petitioners believe and allege that Beehive Blvd serves no public purpose in that it 

does not provide access to any existing development or improvements. 

II. Petitioners believe and allege that it is in the best interest of all parties involved and 

the general public that Beehive Blvd described hereinabove and shown on the map attached here 

to as Exhibit A be ordered closed and abandoned and that fee simple title to Beehive Blvd be 

vested in Petitioner, Richard S. Cooper and Margaret B. Cooper, Trustees, or their successors in 

trust under the Cooper Living Trust dated November 26, 1997. 

12. Petitioners own the property abutting the boundaries of Beehive Blvd and therefore 

Petitioners have complied with the notice requirements of§ 57-9-10, et seq. of the South Carolina 

Code of Laws ( 1976, as amended). 

WHEREFORE, Petitioners respectfully pray that this Court grant the following relief: 

l. For an Order directing that Beehive Blvd described hereinabove and by the map 

attached hereto as Exhibit A be judicially closed and permanently abandoned as a 

paved, public road ; 

2. For an Order that fee simple title to Beehive Blvd be vested in Petitioner, Richard 

S. Cooper and Margaret B. Cooper, Trustees, or their successors in trust under the 

Cooper Living Trust dated November 26, 1997; 

3. For an Order permanently enjo ining Petitioners and Respondent, and all persons 

claiming under them, from asserting any adverse claim to title to the property as 

established by the order of this Court; 

4. That the office of the Register of Deeds for Anderson County be directed to record 

the Order issued by this Court in the records of said office, indexed in the Book of 

5 

m 
r 
m 
() 
-; 
;:o 
0 
z 
() 
)> 
r 

~ 
:::!:! 
r 
m 
0 

N 
0 ..... 
CD 
)> 
c 
co 
N 

I 

)> 
z 
0 
m 
;:o 
(/) 

0 
z 
() 
0 
s: 
s: 
0 
z 
iJ 
r 
m 
)> 
(/) 

() 
)> 
(/) 
m 
~ 
N 
0 

CD 
() 
iJ 
0 
.j:>. 
0 ..... 
Q) 
N 
N 



5. 

Deeds to real estate maintained in said office in the name of the Petitioners and the 

Respondent in the Grantor index and in the name of the Petitioners and the 

Respondent in the Grantee index; and 

For such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Is/ Aimee V Leary 
Wendell L. Hawkins (S.C. Bar#: 13583) 
Aimee V. Leary (S.C. Bar#: I 00657) 
Wendell L. Hawkins, PA 
I 03-C Regency Commons Dr. Greer, SC 29650 
(864) 848-9370 (Ph) (864) 848-9759 (Fax) 
wlh@wlhawkinslawfirm .com 
avl@wlhawkinslawfirm.com 
Attorneys for Petitioners 

August 21 , 2019 
Greer, South Carolina 

6 

m 
r 
m 
() 
-l ;:o 
0 
z 
~ 
r 
r 
-< 
::!} 
r 
m 
0 

N 
0 

<.0 

)> 
c: 
(Q 

N 

.!::> 
(J.) ..... 

' )> 
z 
0 
m 
;:o 
(f) 

0 
z 
() 

0 
s:: 
s:: 
0 
z 
-o 
r 

~ 
(f) 

() 
)> 
(f) 
m 
~ 
0 

<.0 
() 
-o 
0 
.!::> 
0 ..... 
(j) 
N 
N 



July 22, 2019 

Exhibit A 
Beehive Blvd, C-1-372 

Anderson County Roads and Bridges Dept. 

m 
r 
m 
() 
-! 
:;u 
0 z 
() 
)> 
r 
r 
-< , 
r 
m 
0 

0 

1\.) 
0 _. 
CD 
)> 
c 
co 
1\.) 

~ 
(;.) 

IJ 
s: 

0 

)> 
z 
0 
m 
:;u 
(/) 

0 
z 
0 

() 
0 
s: 
s: 
0 
z 
IJ 
r 

~ 
(/) 

0 

() 
)> 
(/) 
m 
~ 
0 _. 
CD 
() 
IJ 
0 
~ 
0 _. 
()') 
1\.) 
1\.) 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
) 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON ) 
) 
) 

Richard S. Cooper and Margaret B. Cooper, ) 
Trustees, or their successors in trust under ) 
the Cooper Living Trust dated November ) 
26, 1997, Richard S. Cooper, J and E ) 
Holdings, LLC and Beeson Development, ) 
LLC, ) 

) 
Petitioners, ) 

) 
) 

County of Anderson, South Carolina, ) 
) 

Respondent. ) 
) 

IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS 

TENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 

C.A. No. 20 19-LP-04-

LIS PENDENS 

YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT an action has been commenced and is 

now pending in the Court of Common Pleas Court for Anderson County, South Carolina to close 

Beehive Blvd (C-O 1-0372) described below and to quiet title for the property more particularly 

described as follows: 

Beehive Blvd extending 288 feet from SC Highway 153 to its terminus and exists 
on one parcel of property identified as Anderson County tax map number 237-00-
08-009 as shown on a map prepared by Anderson County Roads and Bridges 
Department on July 22, 2019, including any and all portions of Beehive Blvd that 
may not be herein described but are intended to be abandoned . 

Portion ofTMS #: 237-00-08-009. 

Respectfully submitted, 

/s/ Aimee V Leary 
Wendell L. Hawkins (S.C. Bar#: 13583) 
Aimee V. Leary (S.C. Bar#: 100657) 
Wendell L. Hawkins, PA 
1 03-C Regency Commons Dr. Greer, SC 29650 
(864) 848-9370 (Ph) (864) 848-9759 (Fax) 

m 
r 
m 
() 
-i 
:::0 
0 
z 
() 
)> 
r 

~ 
:::!:! 
r 
m 
0 
I 

N 
0 __. 
c.o 
)> 
c 
(0 

N 

.t:
(JJ __. 

I 

)> 
z 
0 
m 
:::0 
(/) 

0 z 
() 
0 
s:: 
s:: 
0 
z 
"0 
r 

~ 
(/) 

() 
)> 
(/) 
m 
~ 
0 

c.o 
() 
"0 
0 
.t
o __. 
(j) 
N 
N 



August 21 , 2019 
Greer, South Carolina 

wlh@wlhawkinslawfirm.com 
avl@wlhawkinslawfirm.com 
Attorneys for Petitioners 

2 

m 
r 
m 
() 
-i 
;:a 
0 
z 
0 
)> 
r 
r 
-< 
::!! 
r 
m 
0 

N 
0 _. 
(() 

)> 
c 
co 
N _. 

I 

)> 
z 
0 
m 
;:a 
(/) 

0 
z 
() 
0 
s::: 
s::: 
0 
z 
'U 
r 
m 
)> 
(/) 

() 
)> 
(/) 
m 
=It 
N 
0 

(() 
() 
'U 
0 
~ 
0 _. 
(j) 
N 
N 



8/6/2016 

Exhibit A 

2370008009 
COOPER LIVING TRUST 

Anderson County Roads & Bridges Dept. 



Exhibit 8 

Anderson County Roads & Bridges 

735 Michelin Boulevard, Anderson, SC 29625 
(864) 260-4190 

Roadway Abandonment Petition 

*Only one signature per household will be counted Date: '6\ I j2 0\ 4 

I am the Contact Person for this road and will be responsible for the expedition of information between 
the Anderson County Roads & Bridges Engineering Section and the landowners on the proposed road. 

Name: W-ende\! L. Haw~in5. PA 
Mailing 

Address: I 0) 4 c ee ~eoc'J C!)m mons D( 
City: &=eer State: SC Zip: 

Telephone#: __ ___,&=:....tt>;::_L.J_,___4 
....... 1)_.;.4 ....._8 _- q_,_'S;:_1..:....:0:::...__ _____________ _ 

Road Name: BEEHIVE BLVD C-01-0372 

Reason for abandonment: 

We, the undersigned landowners, do petition Anderson County Roads & Bridges to abandon the road, or 
portion of road, named above. 

Address Phone Number 

Description: LOT OP2 BEEHIVE BLVD 1.62 AC 

TMS: 237000800? 

Owner: BEESON DEVELOPMENT LLC 

(Owner Contact- Joseph Beeson) (864) 704-4415 

Mailing Address: 2156 RIVER RD PIEDMONT SC 2967..:....1 ------

Description: TR H COOPER RD 5.50 AC 

TMS·2370008009 

Owner· COOPER LIVING TRUST 

(Owner Contact - R jchard Cooper) (864) 918-2943 

Majlin~: Address: 475 HWY 183 PIEDMONT SC 29673 



SOUTH CAROLINA 

ANDERSON COUNTY 

) 
) 
) 

RESOLUTION R2019-040 

COMMITTING TO NEGOTIATE A FEE-IN-LIEU OF AD 
VALOREM TAXES AGREEMENT BETWEEN ANDERSON 
COUNTY AND PROJECT SANTA'S HAT; IDENTIFYING THE 
PROJECT; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO 

WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina ("County"), acting by and through its County Council 
("County Council") is authorized pursuant to the provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44, Code of Laws of South 
Carolina, 1976, as amended ("Act") to encourage manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate in 
the State of South Carolina ("South Carolina" or "State") or to encourage manufacturing and commercial 
enterprises now located in the State to expand their investments and thus make use of and employ the 
manpower, products, and other resources of the State by entering into an agreement with a sponsor, as 
defined in the Act, that provides for the payment of a fee-in-lieu of ad valorem tax ("FILOT Payments") 
with respect to economic development property, as defined in the Act; 

WHEREAS, Project Santa's Hat, an entity whose name cannot be publicly disclosed at this time 
("Sponsor"), desires to invest capital in the County in order to establish a photovoltaic solar facility in the 
County ("Project"); 

WHEREAS, the Project is anticipated to result in a total investment of not less than $2,500,000 in real 
and personal property; 

WHEREAS, as an inducement to make the investment in the County, Sponsor has requested that the 
County negotiate a fee-in-lieu of ad valorem taxes agreement ("Agreement"), which provides for FILOT 
Payments with respect to the portion of the Project which constitutes economic development property, as 
defined in the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Sponsor has also requested that the County include the Project in a multicounty 
business park established pursuant to Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the Constitution of the State of South 
Carolina, and Sections 4-1-170, 4-1-172, 4-1-175 and 4-29-68 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, 
as amended (the "MCBP Act") and provide certain special source revenue credits ("SSRCs") against the 
FILOT payments pursuant to the MCBP Act. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the County Council as follows: 

Section 1. This Resolution is an inducement resolution for this Project for purposes of the Act. 

Section 2. County Council agrees to enter into the Agreement, which provides for FILOT Payments 
with respect to the portion of the Project which constitutes economic development property, using an 
assessment ratio of six percent (6%) and a fixed millage rate of 353.4, for a period of forty ( 40) years. The 
FILOT Payments shall be reduced further by an SSRC each year in an amount sufficient to reduce the 
FILOT payments to an equal, level payment of $8,000 over the forty ( 40) year term of the Agreement. The 
further details of the FILOT Payments, SSRCs, and the Agreement will be prescribed by subsequent 
ordinance of the County to be adopted in accordance with South Carolina law and the rules and procedures 
of the County. 

Section 3. County Council identifies and reflects the Project by this Resolution, therefore permitting 
expenditures made in connection with the Project to qualify as economic development property, subject to 
the terms and conditions of the Agreement and the Act. 

Section 4. This Resolution is effective after its approval by the County Council. 



RESOLVED this 17th day of September, 2019, in a meeting duly assembled. 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Burns 
Anderson County Administrator 

Lacey Croegaert 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

-#4827-6535-0807 v. l-

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

2 



Anderson County Purchasing Department Bid Tabulation 

BID# 19-049 TOXAWAY MILL DEBRIS PILE REMEDIATION 

Vendor I r '-

'"F-'!' ' 
TOTAL COST ., I• •· 

NEO $799,000.00 

2 BELKCO ( $380,700.00 . ) 

'- _/ 

3 ATA NR 

4 HRP NR 

5 MARTIN & SON NR 

6 SME INC. NR 

7 LOGAN AND DIVING NR 

8 GCINC. NR 

9 SCS ENGINEERS NR 

10 HESS LLC NR 

11 ELEVATED ENVIRONMENTAL NR 

12 MOORHEAD CONSTR. NR 

13 SUE LUX NR 

14 BYRDJAMEY NR 



Vendor TOTAL COST ,. 

15 AFTERMATH DISASTER NR 

16 DENNIS CORP. NR 

17 TONYA MILLER NR 

18 ROGERS AND CALCOTT NR 

19 CERESENV NR 

20 ELITE TRUCKING NR 

21 NUEARTH NR 

22 EARTH MATERIALS NR 

23 EPGCO NR 

24 GARY SHAW NR 

25 SUMMIT CO. NR 

26 BRANDON STEPP NR 

27 J C WILLKIE NR 

28 BETH HIGUERA NR 

29 BUD G W C NR 

30 SCS ENGR. NR 



31 

32 

33 

34 

35 

36 

37 

38 

39 

40 

41 

42 

43 

Anderson County Purchasing Department Bid Tabulation 

BID# 19-049 TOXAWAY MILL DEBRIS PILE REMEDIATION 

Vendor I TOTAL COST 

MATTHEW CAWLEY NR 

MILLERS CO. NR 

BHC TRUCKING NR 

AWARDED TO: i]eJ~ Q_\:) ~ 



SOLICITATION OFFER AND AWARD FORM 

ANDERSON COUNTY PURCHASING, ANDERSON, SOUTH CAROLINA 29624 
REQUEST FOR BIDS, OFFER, AND AWARD 

********************************************Solicitation Information**************************************** 

l. SOLICITATION: # 19-049 4. Brief Descri(!tion of Project: 
2. ISSUE DATE: AprillO, 2019 Anderson County is requesting proposals from 
3. FOR INFORMATION CONTACT: qualified companies to complete debris pile 

rcarroll(a,andcrsoncount~sc.org _..e; remediation & removal at the Toxaway Mill site. 
?~-

5. SUBMIT PROPOSAL TO: 
Anderson County Purchasing Department 
101 South Main Street, Room 115 
Anderson, S.C. 29624 
6. Submission Deadline: Thursday, May 2, 2019 Time: II :00 A.M . 

7. Submit Sealed Proposal: Five (5) originals 
8. Firm Offer Period: Proposals submitted shall remain firm for a period of one hundred and twenty ( 120) calendar days from date 
specified in block 6. 

>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>Offer (To be completed by Proposer)<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<< 

9. BUSINESS 0 Woman Business Enterprise 

CLASSIFICATION (Check Appropriate Box) 0 Minority Business Enterprise 
0 Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 

10. Additional Information: In compliance with above, the undersigned agrees, if this proposal is accepted within the period 
specified in Block 8 above, to furni sh any or all other further information requested by Anderson County. 
11. Proposer's name and addre s (Type or print): 12. Name & Title of Person Authorized to sign the Proposal 

-p~,/ Bet/C. 
(Type or Print): 

'p;tv.-/~e(/::-7 ke f?e(/L H;?,_,lLt.e_ 
f'.v. /J7>v b Cf _.b 13. Propos~'> Signature & Date: 

rf--u/ ert-~>-. ~ 2c; 6;z-z- ~~ -
E-mail address: -k 1/? (9 {) tdfr~, 1'--Jd: >/'I U;(Cf 
Telephone#: ~. 'f,t?SC{?.j'J. Fax#: __ -
Federal Identification #: 

>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>Award (To be completed by Anderson County)<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<< 

14. Total Amount of Award: 15. Successful Propo er: 

16. Contracting Officer or Authorized 17. Signature: 18. A ward date: 
Representative: Robert E. Carroll 

2 



SECTION III 

TOXAWAY MILL DEBRIS PILE REMEDIATION & REMOVAL BID FORM 

Name of Party making the Bid: ____,ti,.___,~ ...... e~S:....o:;;..=e..LII:,c;:;;:;_____:tiJ=....:.#1:::......L4AL~----=-~-r:..__Lb=:c:-==-
To: Purchasing Manager for Anderson County 

Pursuant to the Notice Calling for Bids and the other Bid documents contained in the Bid package, 
the undersigned party making the Bid, having become familiarized with the Agreement, provided in 
Section IV of the Bid Package~ .and having conducted a thorough inspection and evaluation of the 
Specifications, drawings (if any) and General Conditions contained therein, hereby proposes and 
agrees to be bound by all the terms and conditions of the Agreement and agrees to perform, within 
the time stipulated, the work to be performed hereunder at the pricing set forth herein, including all 
of its .component parts, ~nd everything required to be performed, and to provide and furnish_and pay 
for any and all of the labor, materials, tools, expendable equipment, and all applicable taxes, utility 
and transportation services necessary to perform the work and complete in a good workmanlike 
manner all of the work required in connection with the following project: 

Bid #1 9-049 TOXAWAY MILL DEBRIS PILE REMEDIATION AND REMOVAL 

all in strict conformity with the Agreement, including all exhibits and Addenda thereto, contained in 
Section IV of the Bid package, a copy of which shall be maintained at the office of the Purchasing 
Manager of County for the following Bid items: a ~o 

A. Base Bid for Work according to Specifications: $ 7 e ltj '{cPtO· 

B. Please attach any Subcontractor information as Addendum E hereto. 

t. Each individual Bid has been determined from reviewing the requirements and Specifications 
and all other portions of the Bid documents, and shall include all items necessary to complete the 
work, including the assumption of all obligations, duties, and responsibilities necessary to the 
successful completion of all obligations of the Agreement, and the furnishing of all materials and 
equipment required to be incorporated in and form a permanent part of the work, the furnishing of 
tools, equipment, supplies, transportation, facilities, labor, and services required to perform and 
complete the work, and all bonds, insurance and submittals, pursuant to the requirements of the Bid 
Package, including, but not limited to, the Agreement and all Bid documents, whether or not 
expressly listed or designated. 

2. It is understood that the County reserves the right to reject this Bid and that this Bid shall 
remain open and not be withdrawn for the period specified in the Notice Calling for Bids. The 
required (5%) Bid security is attached and is based on the contract sum of the Project. The 
Agreement which the successful bidder will be required to execute, and the performance and 
payment bonds which the Contractor shall be required to furnish prior to execution of the 
Agreement shall contain language requiring that the Payment (Labor and Material) bond shall be in 
the amount not less than One Hundred percent (100%) of the contract sum for the installation 

19 



MEMORANDUM 

TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
RE: 

RUSTY BURNS 
STEVE NEWTON 
AUGUST 14, 2019 
IMPLEMENTATION OF TITLE VI REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO COUNTY BOARDS 
AND COMMISSIONS 

As you likely recall, as part of a recent compliance review of our Title VI program, SCDOT 
expressed concern about the amount and distribution of minority representation on the 
various county boards and commissions. We were asked to present to SCDOT some 
methods we may use to help encourage more public participation in our boards/commissions 
applications process. In response, staff suggested the following methods, which have been 
accepted by SCDOT: 

METHOD 1: Use media assets (website, Facebook, Twitter, television station, and email 
notifications) to announce specific open positions and encourage applications 

Suggested Responsible Parties: Clerk to Council; Public Information Office 
Suggested Implementation: Clerk will notify PIO of specific board/commission 
openings; PIO will place notice of opening and link to application on website and 
media assets; Clerk will receive applications directly and distribute accordingly 

METHOD 2: Make general solicitations for applications via our media assets on a quarterly 
basis in an effort to increase the pool of candidates to consider as slots become available 

Suggested Responsible Parties: Public Information Officer; Clerk to Council 
Suggested Implementation: PIO to publish an open solicitation for applications on 
website and media assets at the beginning of each quarter; Clerk will receive 
applications directly and distribute accordingly 

METHOD 3: Maintain a list of community interest groups and request assistance from 
these organizations in encouraging applications from citizens they serve 

Suggested Responsible Parties: Governmental Mfairs; Planning Director 
Suggested Implementation: The responsible parties will work with relevant actors 
to develop and maintain a comprehensive database of active community groups; 
Governmental Mfairs will directly notify groups of openings and send periodic 
solicitations of open applications. 

Tommy Dunn Craig Wooten 
Chairman. Distric t 5 Council Distric t 1 

Ray Graham Gracie Floyd 
V. Chairman. District 3 Council District 2 

Brett Sanders 
Council Dist rict 4 

Jimmy Davis 
Council District 6 

Cindy Wilson 
Counc il District 7 

lacey Croegaert 
Clerk to Counc il 

PO Box 8002. Anderso n. South Carolina 29622·8002 1 www.andersoncountysc.org 

ANDERSON COUNTY 
SOUTH CAROLINA 

Rusty Burns I County Administrato r 
rburns@andersoncountysc.org 



PAGE2 

METHOD 4: All county departments will solicit applications during their group 
interactions with the general public (neighborhood meetings. community events. etc.) 

Suggested Responsible Parties: Division Heads; Department Heads 
Suggested Implementation: The responsible parties, at all public and community 
meetings they organize and/or staff, will make available printed copies of the 
county's boards and commissions application form . 

As a final matter of implementation, the Clerk to Council is asked to forward by email a 
copy of all submitted board/commission applications to the Governmental Affairs office 
received during a calendar year so response data can be reported to SCDOT if requested. 

Please review and advise if we may proceed with establishing and implementing the 
described methods. Should this matter need Council ratification, please place as an 
appropriate agenda item at the earliest available Council meeting. If there are other 
suggested approaches we may wish to take, please forward those to me and I will consult 
with SCDOT as to acceptability. 

Tommy Dunn Craig Wooten 
Chairman. District 5 Counc il District l 

Ray Graham Gracie Floyd 
V. Chairman. District 3 Counc il District 2 

Tom Allen 
Council District 4 

Ken Waters 
Counc il District 6 

Cindy Wilson 
Council District 7 

lacey Croegaert 
Clerk to Council 

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 I www.andersoncountysc .org 

ANDERSON COUNTY 
SOUTH CAROLINA 

Rusty Burns I County Administrator 
rburns@andersoncountysc .org 



Anderson County 

Recreation Fund Appropriation Application 2019 

l.Name of Entity Requesting Fund Appropriation: 

Anderson County Chapter of the South Carolina Genealogical Society 

2. Total Amount of Request: $2334 (see itemization below) 

The Anderson County Chapter of the South Carolina Genealogical 

Society (SCGS) is requesting: 

a) Four volumes of: Genealogical Abstracts of Revolutionary War 

Pension Files, by Virgil D. White (Volumes I-IV) 

$1,999.00 (includes shipping and insurance) 

b) Index to Revolutionary War Service Records by Virgil D. White 

(Volumes I-IV) 

$406.45 (includes shipping and insurance) 

3.The purpose for which the funds are being allocated: 

These out- of- print -books are invaluable for people who are trying to 

trace their American ancestry back to the Revolutionary War. They 

include: 

a) The indexes and lists of Revolutionary War Pension files in 

alphabetical order by the applicant's name. 

b) Other information is often provided in the abstract, or summary, of 

the important information in the pension file i.e.; the state from which 

the man served, his birth location and date, where the applicant 



applied, where he served, and where the applicant lived after the 

Revolutionary War. The name of the soldier's wife is often included, 

along with when and where the soldier was married. 

4. Is the entity a non-profit corporation in good standing with the 

South Carolina Secretary of State? If so, please attach evidence of that 

good standing. 

Yes. The South Carolina Genealogical Society-the umbrella organization 

under which the Anderson County Genealogy operates- is a Non-Profit 

Corporation organized January 7th, 1971. (Please see attachment) 

5. Contact Person: Shirley Phillips, President 

Mailing Address: 110 Federal Street 

Phone Number: (864) -540-8300 

6. Statement as to whether the entity will be providing matching 

funds: 

The Anderson Genealogy Society will use donated funds from members 

as well as the community to cover the costs of office supplies. 

I certify that the forgoing is true and accurate to the best of my 

knowledge and that I am authorized to make this application on 

behalf of the abovenamed entity. 

Signature .£ ~ g. 'P ~ 

PrintName £'. b;r-J~y s. fJI,;I/:rs 

Date A ~j~ J. 9Jlb I ~ 



The State of South Carolina 

Office of Secretary of State Mark Hammond 

Certificate of Existence, Non-Profit Corporation 

I, Mark Hammond, Secretary of State of South Carolina Hereby certify that: 

SOUTH CAROLINA GENEALOGICAL SOCIETY, INC. THE, a Non-Profit · 
Corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of South Carolina on 
January 7th, 1971, has as of the date hereof filed as a non-profit corporation for 
religious, educational, social, fraternal, charitable, or other eleemosynary 
purpose, and has paid all fees, taxes and penalties owed to the Secretary of 
State, that the Secretary of State has not mailed notice to the company that it is 
subject to being dissolved by administrative action pursuant to section 33-31-
1404 of the South Carolina code and that the non-profit corporation has not filed 
articles of dis\olution as of the date hereof. 

Given under my Hand and the Great 
Seal of the State of South Carolina this 
23rd day of August, 2012. 



South. Carolina Secretary of St;lte 

Business Entities Online 
File, Search, and Retrieve Documents Electronically 

SOUTH CAROLINA GENEALOGICAL SOCIETY, INC. THE 

Corporate Information 

Entity Type: Nonprofit 

Status: Good Standing 

Domestic/Foreign: Domestic 

Incorporated State: South Carolina 

Registered Agent 

Agent: HEADQUARTERS 

Address: 1519 COLUMBIA COLLEGE DR COLUMBIA SC 

, South Carolina 

Official Documents On File 

Filing Type 
Amendment 

Incorporation 

For filing questions please contact us at 803-734-2158 

Important Dates 

Effective Date: 01 /07/1971 

Expiration Date: N/ A 

Term End Date: N/A 

Dissolved Date: N/ A 

Filing Date 
05/17/1974 

01 /07/1971 

Copyright C 2019 State of South Carolina 



R.D. TXPRG018 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 
EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE 

,_..._~RTIFICATE VALID ONLY IF A.LL APPLY *** 
1) PURCHASES WILL BE RESOLD 
2) PROCEEDS ARE USED FOR AN EXEMPT PURPOSE 
3) NO PROFIT WILL INURE TO ANY INDIVIDUAL 

SC GENEALOGICAL SOCIETY INC THE 
PO BOX 24526 
COLUMBIA, SC 29224 4526 

CERTIFICATE ISSUED TO: 

000005 

ST-9 (Rev. 919/03) 5011 
--· .. · -- .. ---. - - ____ ...., 

NOT VALID WHEN EXTENDED 
TO C 0 N S T R U C T I 0 N 
C 0 N T R A C T 0 R S THEIR 
SUB-CONTRACTORS, OR 
THEIR MATERIAL SUPPI.. Y i 
MEN. 

!This c-~rtlticate ·-~;-i~s~-;dln~ 

!
accordance wtth S~lon 12·36·2120 : 
ol Article 21 , Section 12·36·120 ot 1 

1 Article 1, Section 12-36·2510 ot 
. Anlcle 25 of Chaptar 36 of title 12, 
! S6t1ion 58·25·80 of title 58, or 

Soctlon 44·96·160(V)(1) of tl~c 4>4 of 
, the COde of Laws or South c arolina 
... !976, as ameng~ .......... ____ .. _ 

SOUTII CAROLINA GENEALOGICAL SOCIETY 
2917 WOODWAY LANE 
COLUMBIA, SC 29223 
REISSUE CERTIFICATE 

CERTIFICATE NUMBER 1468116-004 
DATE ISSUED: 09/02/08 
EXEMPTIONS: 48 

I NOTICE: 
The numbers in parentheses, which are a part of your certificate number, have reference to the specific type(s) of 
exemptions granted by this certificate. Should this property be diverted to a taxable use, UabUity for payment . 
of the tax thereon rests with your company. In the event the nature of your operations changes, you ! 
should notify the Department of Revenue immediately as this could affect the valldffY. of this certtflcate. ( 

SCHEDULE OF EXEMPTION UNDER SECTION 12-36·2120 of Article 21 

(?) Coal, or coke or other fuel sold to manufacturers, electric power compan·res, and transportation companies for. 
(a) Use or consumption in the production of by-products; 

! 

(b) The generation of heat or power used in manufacturing tangible personal property for sale. For purposes of 
this item, 'manufacturer' or 'manufacturing' Includes the activities of a processor; 

(c) The generation oi electric power or energy for use in manufacturing tangible personal property for sale: or 
(d) The generation of motive power for transportation. For purposes of this item, 'manufacturing' includes the 

activities of mining and quarrying. 

(9) Supplies and machinery used by laundries, cleaning, dyeing, pressing or garment or other textile rental 
establishment in the direct performance of their primary function, but not sale of supplies and machinery used by 
coin-operated lau.ndromats; 

(11) Wrapping paper, wrapping twine, paper bags and containers, used incident to the sale and delivery of tangible 
personal property; 

(12) Electricity use by cotton gins, manufacturers, miners, or quarriers to manufacture, mine, or quarry tangible personal 
property for sale. For purposes of this item, 'manufacturer' or 'manufacturing' includes the activities of processors. 

(13) Machines used in manufacturing, processing, recycling, compounding, mining, or quarrying tangible personal 
property for sale. 'Machines' Include the parts of machines, attachments, and replacements used, or manufactured 
for use, on or in the operation of the machines and which (a) are necessary to the operation of the machines and 
are customarily so used, or (b) are necessary to comrly with the order of an agency of the United States or this 
State for the prevention or abatement .of pollution o air, water, or noise that is caused or threatened by any 
machine used as provided In this sectlon. This exemption does not Include automobiles or trucks. As used rn this 
Item 'recyclino' means any process by which materials that otherwise would become solid waste are collected, 
separatea, or processed and reused, or returned to use in the form of raw materials or prOducts, Including 
composting, for .sale. In applying this exemption to machines used in recycling, the following percentage of the 
gross proceeds of sale, or sales price of, machines used In recycling are exempt from the taxes imposed by this 
chapter: Fiscal Year of Sale Percentage, Fiscal year 1997-98 fifty percent; after June 30, 1998, one hundred 
percent. · 



Sep 06 19 08:36a Belton Center for the Art 864-338-0280 

RECREATION FUND APPROPRIA T]ONS 
APPLICATION FORl\11 

p.2 

WHAT DISTRICT(S) ARE YOU REQAIT_TING FUNDING FROM: 
DISTRICT: 

Mail/Email/Fax to: 
Anderson County Council Clerk 

P. 0. Box 8002 
Anderson, SC 29622 

kapoulin (cV,andersoncounrvsc.org 
Fax: 864-260-4356 

l. N~~es~n fundap+P:ti~ 

2. ~~request (If requesting fun.&m more than one district, annotate amount from each 

district): $ ~ O () 

3. Thep~s~e~qu~~-0-~~ + 

4. Is the entity a non-profit corporation in good standing with the South Carolina S~ate? If so, 
please attach evidence of that good standing. 

5. Contact Plft:: '0~ ~~ 
Mailing Address: 8. IJ . B ax ·.3 b S2 
Phone Number: 339::,- '2 5.5 L:, 

6. Statement as to whether the entity will be providing matching funds: 

? ) ~ wM_ ~ trno:~l ~ 
I certify that the forgoing is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and that I am authorized to 
make this application on behalf of the above named entity. 



South Carcdina Secretary of State 

Business Entities Online 
File, Search, and Retrieve Documents Electronically 

BELTON CENTER FOR THE ARTS 

Corporate Information Important Dates 

Entity Type: Nonprofit Effective Date: 05/2811999 

Status: Good Standing Expiration Date: N/ A 

Domestic/Foreign: Domestic Term End Date: N/ A 

Incorporated State: South Carolina Dissolved Date: N/ A 

Registered Agent 

Agent: SANDRA P GAILLARD 

Address: 300 N MAIN ST 
BELTON, South Carolina 29627 

Official Documents On File 

Filing Type Filing Date 
Amendment 08/03/2000 

Incorporation 05/2811999 

For filing questions please contact us at 803-734-2158 Copyright C 2019 State of South Carolina 

' 



RECREATION FUND APPROPRIATIONS 
APPLICATION FORM 

WHAT DISTRICT(S) ARE YOU REQUESTING FUNDING FROM: 

DISTRICT: _3 __ 

Mail/Email/Fax to: 
Anderson County Council Clerk 

P. 0 . Box 8002 
Anderson, SC 29622 

kapoulin@ andersoncountysc.org 
Fax: 864-260-4356 

1. Name of entity requesting recreation fund appropriation: 
Starr Athletic Association 

2. Amount of request (If requesting funds from more than one district, annotate amount from each 
district): 

3. The purpose for which the funds are being requested: 
Complex needs and monthly operations cost 

4. Is the entity a non-profit corporation in good standing with the South Carolina Secretary of State? If so, 
please attach evidence of that good standing. Yes 57-0713516 

5. Contact Person: Justin Roach 
Mailing Address: PO BOX 777 Starr S.C. 29684 
Phone Number: (864) 314-0922 

6. Statement as to whether the entity will be providing matching funds: NO 

I certify that the forgoing is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and that I am authorized to 

make this application on behalf of the above named entity. 

Justin Roach 8/30/2019 
_____________________ ! ________________________________ _ 

Signature Print Name Date 



South Carolina Secretary of State 

Business Entities Online 
File, Search, and Retrieve Documents Electronically 

STARR ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION 

Corporate Information Important Dates 

Entity Type: Nonprofit Effective Date: 03/18/ 1980 

Status: Good Standing Expiration Date: N/ A 

Domestic/Foreign: Domestic Term End Date:N/A 

Incorporated State: South Carolina Dissolved Date: N/ A 

Registered Agent 

Agent: DANNY DAVIS 

Address: 1319 AGNEW RD 
STARR, South Carolina 29684 

Official Documents On File 

Filing Type Filing Date 
Amendment 10/3112001 

Amendment 10/25/2001 

Amendment 07/28/1981 

Incorporation 03/18/1980 

Former Names 

Name Filing Date 
STARR SCHOOL AREA ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION, INCORPORATED N/A 

For filing questions please contact us at 803-734-2158 Copyright 0 2019 State of South Carolina 



Anderson County Building & Codes 
Monthly Activity Report 

Aug-19 

Total Number Permit Transactions: 1143 

New Single Family: 127 
New Multi-Family: 3 
Residential Additions/Upgrades: 20 
Garsges/Bsrns/Storsge: 27 
New Manufactured Homes: 21 
New Commercial: 6 
Commercial Upfits/Upgrades: 7 
Courtesy Permits/Fees Waived: __ _;;;2 ___ (S«Attachd} 

Inspection Activity: 

Citizens Inquiries: 
(New & Follow Up; Includes Sub·Standard Housing /Mobile Homes) 
Tall Grass Complaints (New and Follow Ups): 
Number of Scheduled Building Inspections Performed(# of Site Visits): 
Courtesy, Site and Miscellaneous Inspections: 
Manufactured Home Inspections: 

Total Number of Inspections (Site Visits) for Department: 

Reviews/Misc. Activity: 

22 
12'92"' 
21 

103 

1505 -
Plans Reviewed: 
Mech/EiecjPiumb Reviews: 
New Derelict Manufactured Home Cases: 

__ ..:;:2~5.:-4 __ (1nclu4es preliminary consultations, resubmlttab and sobr} 

__ ....;1"::::4;.._ __ (Includes residential solar) 

0 
Hearings: 0 
Court Cases: 0 

Revenue Collected: 

Reinspection Fees Collected: $630.00 
Plan Review Revenue: $9,931.40 

Total Revenue For The Month: $179,195.00 



F.\\'. OOI)GE BlJILJ)JNG STATISTICS 
Toll-Free Phone: !l77-.JX'J.~UIJ2 F • .x: HUU-li'J~-7.J711 

For the month of: 

hem 
No 

A 

(ol (bl 

101 127 

101 J 

lt..:m 

Nn lluiklint• 

llcm 

Nn ltvildinK.! 

J 

H11u\ina 

Un~; t 

•C I 

H•MI ' in t-

Unfll. 

,,, 

$426,420 

C IWUIM lilta 

$930.303 

$417.3~ 

C.rnJfntc•mn 

Omit cmiJ 

OF OR 

ZONING PERMITS ISSUED AND 
LOCAL PUBLIC CONS1'RUCfiON 

Hu.l<l.n~ 

Kl.uhJm~r ' 

ttuu: ln~; 

Uniu 

H.uuiny 

Huusinv 

Units 

:o 

the 

CuruiNL:llun 

Curuanu:tlun 

Omdcsnts 

C.lrutl1.K'1i ·tn 

Cnn~INcli .m 

Onrll . '"'' 



Anderson County Building & Codes 
Permits Issued for 2019 

Month Building Electrical Plumbing HVAC MH Wrecking Moving Misc. Total 

January 178 185 121 133 86 17 10 39 769 
February 181 154 95 102 64 6 6 38 646 

March 237 228 126 129 84 11 18 29 862 
April 232 221 132 132 79 15 13 31 855 
May 219 256 115 112 82 12 15 29 840 
June 199 189 132 128 51 15 8 37 759 
July 243 296 151 152 116 24 14 40 1036 

August 277 310 191 190 101 19 16 39 1143 
·September 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

October 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
November 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
December 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

_Total ..... 1766 1839 L__1063 ..... _ _1978 . 663 119 .... 100 282 - L_ 6910 
---- --

Permits Issued 

1500 • January 

1400 • February 

1300 Aii March 

1200 •April 
8 May 

1100 1-------------------------- a )une 

11000 8 july 

I 900 &August 

I 800 w September 

100 a October 

, ------------------ • November 600 ,... 

500 lit December 



Month Building Electrical 

January $43,648.80 $11,291.00 
February $33,766.00 $10,541.00 
March $37,851.60 $12,461.00 
April $43,991.00 $13,438.00 
May $49,681.40 $15,751.00 
June $40,207.40 $10,140.00 
July $112,994.80 $23,368.00 
August $112 060.60 $22,290.00 
September $0.00 $0.00 
October $0.00 $0.00 
November $0.00 $0.00 
December $0.00 $0.00 

Total $474,201.60 $119,280.00 

$200,000.00 

$150,000.00 

$100,000.00 

$50,000.00 

$0.00 

Anderson County Building & Codes 
Permit Revenue for 2019 

Plumbing HVAC .M!i 

$5,620.00 $7,895.00 $1,891.20 
$4,332.50 $5,455.00 $1,534.20 
$4,714.50 $8,141.00 $2,413.60 
$5,959.50 $8,580.00 $2,164.30 
$4,978.50 $8,685.00 $2,536.70 
$5,712.00 $7,655.00 $1 624.80 
$12,373.00 $11,810.00 $3,502.00 
$14,023.00 $14,385.00 $4,220.00 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

$57,713.00 $72,606.00 $19,886.80 

Permit Revenue 

Wrecking Moving 

$675.00 $150.00 
$270.00 $75.00 
$495.00 $270.00 
$585.00 $195.00 
$540.00 $225.00 
$585.00 $120.00 
$990.00 $665.00 
$855.00 $800.00 

$0.00 $0.00 
$0.00 $0.00 
$0.00 $0.00 
$0.00 $0.00 

$4,995.00 $2,500.00 

Misc. 

$3,141.50 
$3,710.30 
$7,067.00 
$6,655.70 

$14,034.80 
$5,159.60 

$23,327.30 
$10,561.40 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$73,657.60 

•January 
•February 
cMarch 
CApril 
•May 
a June 
•July 
cAugust 
•September 
•October 
cNovember 
•December 

Total 

$74 312.50 
$59,684.00 
$73,413.70 
$81,568.50 
$96,432.40 
$71,203.80 
$189,030.10 
$179,195.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$824,840.00 



BCR021 
REQUESTED BY: TEDOWDY 

PERMIT # 
ISSUE 
DATE COST 

ANDERSON COUNTY BUILDING CODES 
CENSUS REPORT FOR 8/01/2019 TO 8/31/2019 

COURTESY PERMITS 

OWNER NAME MOD DESCRIPTION 

9:58:57 9/03/19 PAGE 1 

=====~•••=•••••••=======•=•••••==================•=•••=====~===========••==~Be==========:•=•===•=========g•••••••aa================= 

MOD 702 

201907359 
201907484 

TOTALS: 

COURTESY PERMIT/NO CHARGE 

8/20/2019 
8/29/2019 

2 

500.00 
46,900.00 

_....,..- 47,400.00 

TECHTRONIC INDUSTRIES NORTH AMERICA 
RES SOUTH CAROLINA HOLDINGS LLC 

TTI/POWER FOR WELL PUMP ONLY 
ARTHREX CMU SUPPORT WALL 



September 11 , 2019 

DISTRICT 1 - SPECIAL PROJECTS 

001-5829-001 -241 

FY Ended June 30, 2020 

Council Check Check 

Meeting of: Dated: Number Vendor I Description Amount 

Budget 2019 - 2020 25,000.00 

From Accommodations Fee 5,000.00 

Brought Forward 59.43 

7/16/2019 7/2412019 75684 Anderson Area YMCA (5,000.00) 

7/1 6/2019 7/2412019 75682 Anderson Arts Center (1,000.00) 

7/1 6/2019 7/24/2019 75778 Lights of Hope (Anderson) (100.00) 

7/16/2019 7/2412019 75847 Tackling the Streets (250.00) 

7/16/2019 7/24/2019 75870 Widows Watchman Ministries (1 ,000.00) 

8/6/2019 8/1412019 76612 Anderson Pregnancy Care (10,000.00) 

8/20/2019 8/28/2019 77154 Cardinal Racquet Club (800.00) 

8/20/2019 8/28/2019 77113 Upstate Chapter of American Red Cross (1 ,500.00) 

9/3/2019 9/412019 8133 Treas FAVOR Anderson (300.00) 

9/3/2019 9/11/2019 77616 Anderson County Human Society (300.00) 

9/3/2019 9/11/2019 77623 Anderson Lights of Hope (300.00) 

SUB-TOTAL 9,509.43 

Committed: 

Ending Balance 9,509.43 

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate. 

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council DATE: 

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager DATE: September 11 , 2019 



Council 

Meeting of: 

7/16/2019 

7/16/2019 

7/16/2019 

8/6/2019 

8/6/2019 

8/20/2019 

8/6/2019 

Check 

Dated: 

7/24/2019 

7/24/2019 

7/24/2019 

8/14/2019 

8/14/2019 

8/28/2019 

Check 

Number 

75778 

75751 

75847 

76606 

76670 

77165 

DISTRICT 2 • SPECIAL PROJECTS 

001-5829-002-241 

Budget 2019 • 2020 

From Accommodations Fee 

Brought Forward 

Lights of Hope (Anderson) 

Generation 4 

Tackling the Streets 

FY Ended June 30, 2020 

Vendor I Description 

Food for luncheon ·Community Meeting 

Friends of Broadway Lake 

Anderson Recreation (Scholarships) 

SUB-TOTAL 

Committed: 

Food for luncheon ·Community Meeting 

Ending Balance 

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate. 

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council 

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager 

September 11 , 2019 

DATE: 

25,000.00 

5,000.00 

6,607.57 

(200.00) 

(1 ,000.00) 

(200.00) 

(27.55) 

(3,000.00) 

(3,500.00) 

28,680.02 

(47.45) 

28,632.57 

DATE: September 11 , 2019 



Council 

Meeting of: 

7/16/2019 

7/16/2019 

7/16/2019 

7/16/2019 

7/16/2019 

9/3/2019 

9/3/2019 

9/3/2019 

412/2019 

7/16/2019 

Check Check 

Dated: Number 

7/2412019 75691 

7/2412019 75704 

7/2412019 75733 

7/2412019 75764 

7/2412019 75776 

9/11/2019 77617 

9/11/2019 77626 

9/11/2019 77655 

DISTRICT 3 - SPECIAL PROJECTS 

001-5829-003-241 

FY Ended June 30, 2020 

Vendor I Description 

Budget 2019 - 2020 

From Accommodations Fee 

Brought Forward 

Anderson Jets Club 

Belton Area Museum 

Crescent High (Anglers Bass Master travel) 

Homeland Park Fire 

Leverette-Thomas American Legion 

Anderson County Human Society 

Anderson Pregnancy Care 

City of Belton (Parks and Recreation) 

Committed: 

Sheriff Office for Wireless Lanyard 

Big Water Marina 

Ending Balance 

SUB-TOTAL 

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate. 

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council 

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager 

September 11 , 2019 

Amount 

DATE: 

25,000.00 

5,000.00 

1,000.00 

(500.00) 

(1,000.00) 

(1 ,000.00) 

(750.00) 

(2,000.00) 

(100.00) 

(2,500.00) 

(5,000.00) 

18,150.00 

(1 ,000.00) 

(750.00) 

16,400.00 

DATE: September 11, 2019 



September 11, 2019 

DISTRICT 4 - SPECIAL PROJECTS 

001-5829-004-241 

FY Ended June 30, 2020 

Council Check Check 

Meeting of: Dated: Number Vendor I Description Amount 

Budget 2019- 2020 25,000.00 

From Accommodations Fee 5,000.00 

Brought Forward 15,456.99 

During Budget Process -Crisis Pregnancy Center (1,000.00) 

7/16/2019 7/24/2019 75683 Anderson Area YMCA (500.00) 

7/16/2019 7/24/2019 75685 Anderson Arts Center (200.00) 

7/16/2019 7/24/2019 75691 Anderson Jets Club (200.00) 

7/16/2019 7/24/2019 75776 Leverette-Thomas American Legion (200.00) 

7/16/2019 7/24/2019 75847 Tackling the Streets (1 ,000.00) 

7/16/2019 7/18/2019 8118 -Treas Town of Honea Path Recreation Dept. (200.00) 

7/16/2019 7/24/2019 75853 Townville Recreation Dept. (6,000.00) 

7/16/2019 7/24/2019 75870 Widows Watchman Ministries (500.00) 

8/6/2019 8/14/2019 76613 Anderson Pregnancy Care (500.00) 

8/6/2019 8/14/2019 76655 Distinguished Young Women (250.00) 

8/6/2019 8/14/2019 76760 Shalom House Ministries (750.00) 

9/3/2019 9/4/2019 8133 Treas FAVOR Anderson (200.00) 

9/3/2019 9/11/2019 77618 Anderson County Human Society (300.00) 

9/3/2019 9/11/2019 77683 First Tee of the Upstate (500.00) 

SUB-TOTAL 33,156.99 

Committed: 

Ending Balance 33,156.99 

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate. 

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council DATE: 

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager DATE: September 11, 2019 



September 11,2019 

DISTRICT 4 - SPECIAL PROJECTS 

001-5829-004-241 

FY Ended June 30, 2020 

Council Check Check 

Meeting of: Dated: Number Vendor I Description Amount 

Budget 2019 - 2020 25,000.00 

From Accommodations Fee 5,000.00 

Brought Forward 15,456.99 

During Budget Process - Crisis Pregnancy Center (1 ,000.00) 

7/16/2019 7/24/2019 75683 Anderson Area YMCA (500.00) 

7/16/2019 7/2412019 75685 Anderson Arts Center (200.00) 

7/16/2019 7/2412019 75691 Anderson Jets Club (200.00) 

7/16/2019 7/24/2019 75776 Leverette-Thomas American Legion (200.00) 

7/16/2019 7/24/2019 75847 Tackling the Streets (1,000.00) 

7/16/2019 7/18/2019 8118 -Treas Town of Honea Path Recreation Dept (200.00) 

7/16/2019 7/2412019 75853 Townville Recreation Dept (6,000.00) 

7/16/2019 7/2412019 75870 Widows Watchman Ministries (500.00) 

8/6/2019 8/14/2019 76613 Anderson Pregnancy Care (500.00) 

8/6/2019 8/1412019 76655 Distinguished Young Women (250.00) 

8/6/2019 8/1412019 76760 Shalom House Ministries (750.00) 

9/3/2019 9/412019 8133 Treas FAVOR Anderson (200.00) 

9/3/2019 9/11/2019 77618 Anderson County Human Society (300.00) 

9/3/2019 9/1 1/2019 77683 First Tee of the Upstate (500.00) 

SUB-TOTAL 33,156.99 

Committed: 

Ending Balance 33,156.99 

We certify that the above infonnation to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate. 

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council DATE: 

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager DATE: September 11 , 2019 



September 11, 2019 

DISTRICT 5 - SPECIAL PROJECTS 

001-5829-005-241 

FY Ended June 30, 2020 

Council Check Check 

Meeting of: Dated: Number Vendor I Description Amount 

Budget 2019 - 2020 25,000.00 

From Accommodations Fee 5,000.00 

Brought Forward 6,070.05 

During Budget Process -Crisis Pregnancy Center (3,000.00) 

During Budget Process - Anderson Oconee Speech & Hearing (2,430.00) 

6/28/2019 7/17/2019 75525 Homeland Park Fire (July 4th Celebration) (3,500.00) 

7/16/2019 7/2412019 75686 Anderson Arts Center (200.00) 

7/16/2019 7/2412019 75847 Tackling the Streets (4,000.00) 

7/16/2019 7/18/2019 8118 -Treas Town of Honea Path Recreation Dept. (200.00) 

7/16/2019 7/2412019 75870 Widows Watchman Ministries (500.00) 

8/6/2019 8/1412019 76614 Anderson Pregnancy Care (500.00) 

8/6/2019 8/1412019 76656 Distinguished Young Women (250.00) 

8/6/2019 8/1412019 76671 Friends of Sadlers Creek (1 ,500.00) 

8/6/2019 8/14/2019 76760 Shalom House Ministries (500.00) 

9/3/2019 9/412019 8133 Treas FAVOR Anderson (100.00) 

9/3/2019 9/11/2019 77619 Anderson County Human Society (300.00) 

SUB-TOTAL 19,090.05 

Committed: 

Ending Balance 19,090.05 

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate. 

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council DATE: 

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager DATE: September 11,2019 



Council 

Meeting of: 

7/16/2019 

8/6/2019 

8/6/2019 

8/20/2019 

8/20/2019 

9/3/2019 

9/3/2019 

Check 

Dated: 

7/19/2019 

8/1412019 

8/1412019 

8/28/2019 

8/28/2019 

9/412019 

9/11 /2019 

Check 

Number 

75847 

76657 

76760 

8133 Treas 

77810 

DISTRICT 6 -SPECIAL PROJECTS 

001-5829-006-241 

FY Ended June 30, 2020 

Budget 2019 - 2020 

From Accommodations Fee 

Brought Forward 

Tackling the Streets 

Distinguished Young Women 

Shalom House Ministries 

Carolina Elite Soccer Academy 

Powdersville Fishing Team 

FAVOR Anderson 

Vendor I Description 

Wren High School (Middle School Bass Team) 

SUB-TOTAL 

Committed: 

Ending Balance 

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate. 

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council 

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager 

September 11, 2019 

DATE: 

25,000.00 

5,000.00 

5,294.45 

(500.00) 

(250.00) 

(250.00) 

(3,000.00) 

(1,500.00) 

(100.00) 

(1 ,500.00) 

28,194.45 

28,194.45 

DATE: September 11 , 2019 



Council 

Meeting of: 

7/1 6/2019 

7/16/2019 

7/16/2019 

7/16/2019 

8/6/2019 

8/6/2019 

8/6/2019 

8/6/2019 

8/20/2019 

9/3/2019 

9/3/2019 

9/3/2019 

11/6/2018 

8/6/2019 

Check Check 

Dated: Number 

7/2412019 75691 

7/2412019 75719 

7/18/2019 8118 -Treas 

7/2412019 75870 

8/1412019 76615 

8/1412019 76658 

8/1412019 76722 

8/1412019 76760 

8/28/2019 77207 

9/412019 8133 Treas 

9/11/2019 77620 

9/11/2019 77623 

DISTRICT 7 - SPECIAL PROJECTS 

001 -5829-007-241 

FY Ended June 30, 2020 

Vendor I Description 

Budget 2019 - 2020 

From Accommodations Fee 

Brought Forward 

Anderson Jets Club 

Caroline Community Center 

Town of Honea Path Recreation Dept. 

Widows Watchman Ministries 

Anderson Pregnancy Care 

Distinguished Young Women 

Pelzer Heritage Commission 

Shalom House Ministries 

Honea Path Free Clinic 

FAVOR Anderson 

Anderson County Human Society 

Anderson Lights of Hope 

SUB-TOTAL 

Committed: 

ACOG Grant administering for Town of Pelzer 

Cheddar Youth 

Ending Balance 

We certify that the above infonnation to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate. 

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council 

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager 

September 11,2019 

Amount 

25,000.00 

5,000.00 

5,000.00 

(600.00) 

(5,000.00) 

(2,000.00) 

(1 ,000.00) 

(300.00) 

(300.00) 

DATE: 

(3,500.00) 

(300.00) 

(1 ,000.00) 

(100.00) 

(300.00) 

(100.00) 

20,500.00 

(5,000.00) 

(2,500.00) 

13,000.00 

DATE: September 11,2019 



Paving Report - August 31 , 2018 

Prepared by: Sheny McGmw 
Dote: Seplember 5. 2019 

Car1ftled by: Nai!Camey 

L---------~C~om=m!!!!i lted:!!!!.. ________ ....J. ___ -'S2,~270!J!I!!.II-I~O!:l:.04~1 Dole 

s2.ool .·~ ~ '-'! C. 6 iJt , I t - I '\ AVAILAIU 

Prolecls/T......,.CIIIes/OIIIer 
1\rJot<Ned Dote f'relecl SCOPe Total Scent to Dote ::omcJetion Dole 

08107/18 T~lel t Pave Parlclna Lot ttOIYVlJVl 11«mnn 

08107/18 Town of Honea Path - .... IYVl.nn 12<00.96 

08107/18 T"""'~>IP..._ Pavina <11ooo.nn ill.OO 

08/07/18 T"""'~>IWMtP- """""' ~IYVlnn 110.:200.00 

08/07/18 Town"' Wllllmn<ll>n """""' 1.<200000 ill.OO 

08/21 18 Sch<><>l Dktrld R<><>d in 06 P<Nlna t>DOOO.OO -ill.OO 

10/02/18 Monlal Haatth Parlolno Lot Pcwa Portclno l1>l 160.000.00 l23.1"""-' 
10104/18 C-Fund Malc:hlno Funds P<Mno 1315.000.00 1315 000.00 Tmn<f"' rnmniAtA 

11107/18 Road tmorovemenl Plan See Below S I 723.840.04 ., Ann.nn 

Totots: S2 270 840.04 t:IS4.259.51 

load Name Dlll!lc:l Sc-oiWook .-..... T ....................... ~ ...... 
H1>bo<>n R<><>d CS/Pave 183.571 u>rn 

I CS/Pcwe S18.0M to.OO 
7 FOP/Pave ............. iOJXl 

Plantotion R<><>d 4 CIPR <.<tOOO to-.oii 
lkonchRoad • CIPR SAI.'288 to -.oil 

~!E 
CIPR 

s~ 
!-iii> 

E Ide • .-, Dttve 

til ne 
lower Road 

Ok 
Ho :len Lone 

'ave 

fDP Q Full-Depth Pafch!ng: FDI • Fui>Oepth Reclamalion. ST • Single-Treatment PS • Fag Saol: f'ave • .-ce wlh Asphalt: CS • Crock Seal 



District I Paving Report 
11lroucb Aups131 , 2019 

FYI S-19 l!udaet includes Canvforward fiom FY 17-18 Budaet $65.290.00 
COIMiiaed $65.290.00 

AVAILABLE 50.00 

FDP • ful !leplh PMchi"': J!'DR • Full Dqod1 ReciGnadoa. ST • Sinl!le T-: FS • fOR Seal· Pno • - wilh AJI!phab; CS • Crack Seal 

Aolm>val Dote Pn>]oct 

CiiY or .......... 

111212016 Civi~Ctnllr 

111612011 Oalt Htl Dmo Trolllc: Conln>l 

APIIIOYII~ Pn>'oct 
All moru. now in KICOUnl: 000 

We - iljl thot lhc lbo\oe in(Oilllllioa,lo lhc bat ofour'-wlcd ... 

fs up-to-dale mel is ecc:wa~e inrorm.tiorla of A&qp&~&JI • 2019 

Projodlfl'........cltlaiOIIMr 

Scope Appropriotod- Total Prujoct Spent To-Dote 

$0.00 $0.00 

UptO'Idon>ods, 
$56.306.16 ......... $119.000.00 

Radarli ... 
r<llocton $6,500.00 S3 903.03 

To<ob: 512,,500.00 $60,209.19 

Dillrlctll'nlaaPiao 
Scope A-AmoUIII Tocal Pn> oct S-To-Dote 

Tocob: $0.00 $0.00 

Prqwed By: Shcny McOnlw Roods. Bridp 

Dole 

Ccnillcd By. Neil Camey Neil Carney 

Dote 

C_OIIIplelion Dote 

-
incomalole 

C-Dotc 



District 2 Paving Report 
Through August 31, 2019 

FYIB-19 Budget includes Canyforward from FYI7·18 Budget $0.00 

Committed $0.00 

AVAILABLE $0,00 

FDP • Full Depth Patching; FDR • Full Depth Reclamation, ST - Single Treat; FS- fog Seal; Pave • Resurface with Ashphllh; CS • Crack Seal 

Approval Date PrQiccl 

CilY of Anderson 

Approval Date Project 

All monies moved to acrount 000 

We certi fY that the above information, to the best of our knowledge, 

is up-to-<latc and isaccurale infonnalion as of August 31 , 2019 

Projecii/Cltlesa:TowiJIIOther 
Scope Appropriated Amount Toatal Project Spent To-Date 

GradinRIDrainaae $0.00 

Totals: $0.00 $0.00 

Dhtrld 2 Pavl112 Plaa 
Scope Approprialcd Amount Total Prn'cct Spent To-Date 

Totals: $0.00 $0.00 

Prepan:d By: Shcny M«Jtaw Roads &: Bridges 

Dale 

Certified By: Neil Carney Neil Carney 

Date 

Completion Date 

Completion Date 

Sht!rzMcGraw 

S•f?l!m/wr S, 20 I 9 



FYIB-19 Bud ... includes Convforwanl from FYI7-II Budaet 

Committed 

AVAILABLE 

I 
I 

District 3 Paving Report 
Through August 31,2019 

$42 690.00 

$42,690.00 

FDP • Full Depth PatdUna; FDR a Full Depth Reclamation, sr a Single T...,.t; J1S ; fOR Seol; Pave • Resurface with ~~~ CS = Crack Seal 

A"""'valllale Project 

8/112013 Townortva 

7nl20" Townortva 

7n/2015 Town or 5taJT 
Citv of Belton 

Aoorovalllelo Pro"cct 

All monies I1IOYed to ICCOUIIl 000 

We certify that the above information. to the best o( our knowledge. 

is UJ>'to-date and is accurate information as or August 31, 2019 

Pro ectlfl'owas&Chla/Oiber 

Scope Aocrooriated Amount Total Pro ect Spent To-Date 
Gradi $45 000.00 126,352.74 
Gradi $16,250.00 $0.00 
Gradi...mr.i....., $8 000.00 $5 999.65 

Gradi $0.00 

Tolals: $69,250.00 $32 352.39 

Dlstrid 3 l'avllltl Ploa 
Scope A......,.,.;,ted Amount TOIII Pro"ect Soent To-Date 

Tolals: $0.00 $0.00 

Preporad By: Sheny McGraw Roods and Bridaes 

Date 

Certified By: Neil Carney Neil Carney 

Dale 

Comolotion Date 
lncomolete 
1.-nplete 

lncomolete 

Completion Date 

S.p!•,blr J, 2019 



FYII-19 Budact includes Carryforward from FYI7·18 Budge~ 

Commined 

AVAILABLE 

District 4 Paving Report 
lluousJt August 31, 2019 

$12 4SS.OO 

$12,455.00 

I 
I 

I 

FDP F U Deplh Palch" FDR F II Depth R lamaf ST s· I T FS F Seal P z u 1na; c u ec oon, a Ingle 1'081; = rOll M'e=Res ur& "lh ~halt; CS Crack Seal cewo = 

Approval Date Pn>jecl 

7ni201S Town ofPendlelon 

Approval Date I Pn>lecl 

All monies moved to acccunt 000 

We certiiY that the abo.., inform Ilion, to the best of our knowledac. 
is up-to-dote and is accurate information as of August 31, 2019 

Pn>lectlfl'ownsaCidti!Oibr 

Scope Appropriated Amount Tolal Pn>jecl Spent To-Date 

Gradinaldrainaae $39.50000 $27042.90 

Tolals: 

Scope 

Totals: 

$39.50().00 $27,042.90 

District 4 P""lllll Plan 
APDIOilriated Amount Tow Pn>"ecl Spent To-Date 

$0.00 

Prepored By: Shmy McGraw Roads .t Bridacs 
Date 

Certified By: Neil Carney Neil Coomcy 

Date 

$0.00 

Completion Date 

incomolele 

Completion Date 

S.,tomiH!r 5. 2019 

'i~~f~ 



FV I S-19 Budaet includes Carrvforward ftom FV 17-18 Budl!d 

Committed 

AVAILABLE 

District 5 Paving Report 
Through August 31, 2019 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

I 
I 

I 

FDP ~Full Dcplh Palchins; FDR • Full J:lqllh Rccilmllion, ST • Single TrOll; FS • Foa Sal; Pave • Raurface with Ashpllolt; CS ~ Cnoclt Sal 

ADOIOYal Dale Proiec:t 

ADOIOYal Dole I Pro joel 

All monies moved to ac:<ounl 000 

We eertifY that lhe above informllion, to the best of our lcnowledso, 

is up-to-date and isaa:UIIIe infOrmation as of August31, 2019 

ProjcdlfTowiiiACIIIeo/Otllcr 

ScollO AJII!IOPria1ed Amount Total Pro~~nt To-Dote 

Torals: $0.00 $0.00 

District 5 PaYIII2 Piau 

Seope Apprnprioted Amount Total Project~~ To-Dote 

Totals: $0.00 $0.00 

P!epored By: Sheny McGraw RDids and Bridaes 
Dote 

Certified By: Neil Carney Neil Corney 

Dote 

Completion Dote 

~clionDale 

Sltmy McGraw 
Sef!!.tmbu J, 2019 

~-~~-~ 



FYII-19 BudDd i-Convfo.-.1 11om FYI7·11 Bud ... 

Cononinod 

AVAILABLE 

I 
I 

District 6 Paving Report 
Through Aupslll. 2019 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

FDI' • Full Depth l'llclrins; FDR • Full Dqldl--.., ST • Sin o1o T~<~~; n • Foa Sal; ra .. • -""' wnh Ashpbab: cs • enct Seal 

Appnml Dare ProJecl 

Aoon>YAI Dale ProJecl 
Allmonicii!IO'IodtoiCCOWIIOOO 

We oeni~ tblt tho above inbmalioa. lo tho belt or our knowledp. 
is up-to-dlte and is accurale infortnl4ion M or AuiPJIIll . 2019 

Tooals; 

Touls 

Pnlledofl'......aCHtafOtMo 
s.,_ ---

$0.00 

Dbtrtd 6 h•laa Plaa 

Scooc ~ltodAmounl 

$0.00 

Ccnified By. Neil Comoy 

TOial Plojeco Spa To-Dale 

$0.00 

Tcooll'roicodSocmTo-llole 

NciiComoy 

Dole 

$0.00 

C......,ionDare 

Comoleriono.tc 



FYI8-19 Budget includes CanyfCIIWIId from FYI?-18 Budaet 

Committed 

AVAILABLE 

District 7 Paving Report 
Through August31, 2019 

$47,665.07 

$47,665.07 

so.oo 

FDP • Full Depth Patching; FOR • Full Depth Reclomation, ST • Single TIUI; FS • Fos Seal; Pave • Resurface with Ash !halt; CS a Crack Seal 

Approval Dale Project 

7ni201S Town of Honea Path 
10/1912016 Town of Honea Path 

1111812014 Town ofPdzcr 

7ni201S Town of Pdzcr 
10/19/2016 Town of Pelzer 

Town of West Pelza' 

10/1912016 Town ofWiUiamslon 

Approval Dale I Project 

I 
All monies moved to account 000 

I 
I 
I 

We certifY that the above information. to the best of our knowledge, 
is up-Io-date and is accurale information u of Aupst 31, 20 t9 

Projecllffowns&CIIieiiOtber 

Scope APJIRllll'iated Amount Total PrQiect Spent To-Dale 

Gradinl/drainage $48000.00 $48000.00 

Gradin&fdrainaae $48,000.00 $25,627.46 

Grad' $5,000.00 $2,812.55 

Gradinl/drainaae $2,500.00 $0.00 

Gradifl&'drainaae $17,000.00 $0.00 

Gradinl/drainaae $0.00 $0.00 

Grading/drainqc $52,000.00 $24,579.51 

Totals: $172,500.00 SIOJ,OI9.52 

Dbtrkt 7 PIIYID& Plaa 

Scope Appropriated Amount Total Project Spent To-Dale 

Totals: $0.00 $0.00 

l'rq>aml By: Sheny Mc:Graw Roads and Bridges 

Dale 

Certified By: Neil Carney Neil Carney 

Date 

Completion Dale 

312112017 
incomplete 

incomplete 

incomplete 

incomplete 

incomplete 

Comoletion Date 

Shtny McGraw 

Septtmbtd. 2019 



Council Meeting: September 17, 2019 

Attached transfers have been posted 
to General Ledger. This is notice to 
council of the processed transfers. 



SEP/05/2019/THU 01:40PM FAX No. 

BUDGET TRANSFER 

FROM: 

nrLe . 
ACCT.I 

TITLE 
ACCTJ 

TilLE 
ACCl'# 

nTLE 
ACCT.# 

TlrLE 
ACCT.# 

DIVISION; 

DEPARTMENT: 

Printing 
001-5042..000.244 

Traasurar (5042) 

TO: 

TITLE Offlo. Suppl~ 
ACCTt 001-51M:Z.000..26& 

TITLE 
ACCT# 

'tiTLE 

-------
ACCT# -------

'tiTLE 

ACCT# -------

'TITLE 

ACCT# -------

Total 

Explain, tn COMPLETE DETAIL. the reason for tha transfer. 

RE!ASON: 
New office fumitl1111 

Ia this transfer within your department? 

Is this tran•fer within your division? 

£~ 
FINANCE: ~651-(:. 
ADMINISTRATOR; ~ ?5' 

DEPT. H!AD: 
DIVISH!AO; 

Journal Entry# l<UO~ 

(CI,. .. One) 0 
(Cird1110n111) ~ 

No 

No 

DATE: 9-5-19 ...;...;,...;.;.... ____ _ 
DATE; 
DATE: ---q-'E)-.... J'j---
DATE; , ~ ' -tct 

OATE: q q l9 

P. 001/001 

AMOUNT; 

2,fiOO.OO 

~ ~5 t)o.oo 



BUDGET TRANSFER 

DIVISION: Central Administrative Service 

DEPARTMENT: Assessor 

FROM: TO: AMOUNT: 

TITLE Printing , TITlE Repalns to Equipment 
ACCT.t 5044-000-245 ACCTI 5044-000-251 s 948.40 

TITLE TITLE 
ACCT.I ACCTtl s 

Explain, In COMPLETE DETAIL, the reaaon for the transfer. 

REASON: 
To cover the unexpected cost to repair an IBM greenbar printer that Is the main printing source for all of our 
appraiser/data entry work. 

Is this transfer within your department? (Cin:le One) v .. No 

Is this transfer within your division? (Cin:le One) Yes No 

DATE: a\~t{!~ DATE: 
DATE: 
..,, IC; JI•IC .:'l"'oll 

DEPT. HEAD: ~ 'l- '1:.'---- A 

DIVIS HEAD: '?l~ ~ . \\a.~ 

FINANCE: 
1(~~~~,~ ·=~=.!~~~=---;;~~~~~~=== ADMINISTRATOR: .,.. 

Journal Entry t# IOOo DATE: e ~'3 I~ 

1 



ANDERSON COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
August 2019 

Uniform Patrol Animal Control 

Average Daily Calls for Service 450 Average Daily Calls for Service 

Total Calls for Services 13,975 Total Calls for Service 

Total Number of Incident Reports 1,516 Total Number of Animals Collected/Transported 

Total Number of State Tickets/Arrest Warrants 

Total Number of Arrests 415 

Total Number of County Ordinance 

Total Number of "Domestic" Incidents 31 Tickets/Warnings Issued 
Total Number of "Unlawful Conduct Towards a 

Child " Reports 0 Traffic Stops/Reports Written 

Large Animal Calls 

Detention Center 

Average Daily Population 409 Forensics 

Average Daily Population Capacity Percentage 164.0% Total Individual Analysis Completed 

Total Number of Meals Served 38,809 Total Number of Evidence Pieces Collected 

Litter Crew: Total Miles Cleaned/Cleared 34 Total Number of Evidence Pieces Processed 

Litter Crew: Total Number of Trash Bags Processec 712 Total Number of CSI Calls 

Litter Crew: Total Number of Tires Removed 70 Total Number of Photos Taken 

Total Number of Finger Prints Collected 

Communications Center 

Average Daily Calls for Service I 1,047 Records and Judicial Order 

Total Calls for Assistance I 32,452 Total Number of Civil Papers Received 

Total Number of Civil Papers Served 

Total Number of Warrants Received 

Total Number of Warrants Served 

22 

675 

168 

2 

28/151 

22/20 

30 

3,300 

889 
498 

171 

4,893 

168 

1,324 

1,200 

387 

426 


	Anderson County Council Agenda September 17,2019
	3. Approval of Minutes September 3,2019
	7a. Ordinance 2nd Read 2019-032 Rezone +/- 9.75 R-20 to C-2 Cartee Road and I-85
	7b. Ordinance 2nd Read 2019-042 MCIP Project Alloy
	7c. Ordinance 2nd Read 2019-044 FILOT & Incentive Agreement( Project Augustus)
	7d. Ordinance 2nd Read 2019-045 Ground Lease at airport & TTI Facility for Lineman training
	7e. Ordinance 2nd Read 2019-046 amend FILOT  Ortec, Inc. add Town of Pendleton
	8a. Ordinance 1st Read 2019-014 amend chapter 70, Article 6  clarify storage equip. in residential zones
	8b. Ordinance 1st Read 2019-040 Infrastructure Agreement Project Swan
	8c. Ordinance 1st Read 2019-041 MCIP Project Swan
	8d. Ordinance 1st Read 2019-048 FILOT & Incentive agreement Project  Santa's Hat
	8e. Ordinance 1st Read 2019-049 Termination Lease Agreement w/ Project Lilac
	9a. Resolution R2019-038 Judicial Abandonment of Beehive Boulevard C-1-0372
	9b. Resolution R2019-040 FILOT Agreement Project Santa's Hat
	10a. Bid  Approval #19-049 Toxaway Mills Debris Pile Remediation
	11. Implementation of Title VI Requirements Boards and Commissions
	14. Requests by Council
	15a. Admin Report Building and Codes
	15b. Admin Report Special Projects
	15c. Admin Report Paving 
	15d. Admin Report Transfers
	15e. Admin Report Sheriff's Report



